
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR CHILDREN, YOUTH & FAMILIES

Url A. Weaver 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 0330i-3857
Comroinioner 603-27M451 J.800-852-3345 Ext. 4451

F9x: 603-271-4729 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 w\vw.dhhs.nh.sov
Marie E, Noonan •

Interim Director

May 21. 2024

His Excellency, Governor ChristopherT. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Children, Youth and
Families, to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Mary Hitchcock
Memorial Hospital (VC#177160), Lebanon. NH to continue to assist the Division for Children,
Youth and Families (DCYF) with the medical evaluation and diagnosis of child abuse or neglect,
by exercising a contract renewal option by increasing the price limitation by $1,499,410 frorn
$2,998,820 to $4,498,230 and extending the completion date from June 30, 2024 to'June 30,
2026, effective July 1,2024, upon Governor and Council approval. 8% Federal Funds 92®/o
General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on October 21, 2020, item
#10 and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on June 29,2022, item #16.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2025, and are
anticipated to be available In State Fiscal Year 2026, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds In the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because MOP 150 requires all amendments to agreements
previously approved as sole source to be identified as sole source. The Contractor Is the only
accredited educational facility with a certified child abuse and neglect pediatrician in NH.

The purpose of this request is for the Contractor to continue providing on-cal! access 24
hours a day, 7 days a week to experienced health care professionals who are trained in and can
advise on the standardized diagnostic methods, treatment, and disposition of suspected child
sexual abuse and physical abuse. The Contractor provides these services to children involved
with DCYF investigations, who are suspected victims of child abuse or neglect. These services
are needed because DCYF, through its Investigative process, often requires the expert opinion of
appropriately trained medical professionals who specialize in the evaluation and diagnosis of child
abuse and neglect.
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Approximately 1.000 individiials will be served during State Fiscal Years 2025 and 2026.

The Contractor's Child Advocacy and Protection Program will continue to conduct physical
examinations of children who are suspected victims of multiple types of abuse, and provide DCYF
with medical opinions based on these examinations. The Contractor will also provide case
reviews of other specific cases, at the request of DCYF. and consultation to DCYF when
necessary. Additionally, the Contractor will continue to provide pre-service and in-service training
to DCYF, nurses and child protective service workers.

The Department will continue monitoring services by ensuring:

•' 90% of all clients will be contacted and offered a family appointment within ten (10)
days of CAPP receiving the referral from DCYF.

•  80% of all cases referred to CAPP by the Department will have received a
completed evaluation and assessment within two (2) months of the referral from
DCYF if family agrees to the CAPP evaluation. '

•  100% of medical providers will participate in a minimum of five (5) peer review
sessions annually.

As referenced In Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions, of the original
agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to four (4) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew services for two
(2) of the two (2) years available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request. DCYF will not have continued
access to the expert opinion of trained medical professionals to evaluate suspected victims of
child abuse or neglect and ensure they receive appropriate treatment and services.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.778, FAIN #2405NH5MAP

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available^ additional General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Weaver

Commissioner

The Deparimtnt of Health and Human Seruices' Mission Is to join communities and families

. V. in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve hgolth and independence.



Fiscal Details

05-9S-47-470010-79480000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT, HHS: DIVISION OF MEDICAIO SERVICES, OFC OF
MEDICAID SERVICES, MEDICAIO CARE MANAGEMENT

50% Federal Funds, 50% General Funds

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

-  (Decrease)
Revised Amount

2021 101-500729 Medical Payments to Providers 47004033 $200,000 $0 $200,000
2022 101-500729 Medical Payments to Providers 47004033 $400,000 $0 $400,000
2023 101-500729 Medical Payments to Providers 47004033 $120,000 $0 $120,000
2024 101-500729 Medical Payments to Providers 47004033 $120,000 $0 $120,000
2025 101-500729 Medical Payments to Providers 47004033 $0 $120,000 $120,000
2026 101;500729 Medical Payments to Providers 47004033 $0 $120,000 $120,000

Sub Total $840,000 $240,000 $1,080,000

05-95-42-421010-295&0000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN 5VS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, CHILD PROTECTION, CHILD-

FAMILY SERVICES

100% General Funds

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD $209,705 $0 $209,705

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD $209,705 $0 $209,705
2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42107404 $390,240 $0 $390,240
2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42107404 $389,170 $0 $389,170
2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42107404 . $0 $390,240 $390,240
2026 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42107404 $0 $389,170 $389,170

Sub Total $1,196,820 $779,410 $1,978,230

OS-95-42-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, CHILD PROTECTION, CHILD-

FAMILY SERVICES

100% General Funds

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2021 103-502507 Contracts for Program Services TBD $160,000 $0 $160,000

2022 103-502507 Contracts for Program Services TBD $320,000 $0 $320,000
2023 102-502507 Contracts for Program Services 42105837 $240,000 $0 $240,000
2024 102-502507 Contracts for Program Services 42105837 $240,000 $0 $240,000
2025 103-502507 Contracts for Program Services 42105837 $0 $240,000 $240,000
2026 103-502507 Contracts for Program Services 42105837 $0 $240,000 $240,000

Sub Total $960,000 $480,000 $1,440,000

I  Overall Total $2,998,820 00 $1,499,410.00| $4,498,230.00|

SS-2020-OCYF-13-SPECI-01-A02
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Special Medical Evaluation Services contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Mary Hitchcock
Memorial Hospital ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on October 21, 2020 (Item #10), as amended on June 29, 2022 (Item #16), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2026

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$4,498,230

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Robert W. Moore, Director

4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 1 to read:

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 36.66% Federal funds: Medicaid, as awarded on 10/1/2021 and 10/1/2023, by the US
Department of Health and Human Services, Centers for Medicare and Medicaid
Services. ALN #93.778, FAIN #2205NH5MAP, #2405NH5MAP.

1.2. 63.34% General funds.

5. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 2.4, to read:

2.4. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibits C-1, Budget Sheet through C-6, Amendment #2, Budget Sheet.

6. Add Exhibit C-5. Budget Sheet, Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

7. Add Exhibit C-6, Budget Sheet, Amendm^ent #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials
5/21/202T

SS-2020-DCYF-13-SPECI-01-A02 Page 1 of 3 Date
v7.12.23

r—DS
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AH terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2024, upon Governor and Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

OoeuSlgned by:

/WlC
2FCCB724O1F40F.-

iName: "

5/22/2024

Date
."STT

Title: DCYF interim Director

5/21/2024

Date

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital

—DocuSigned by:

J. AiP
Nam^°^^^"^°J • Merrens, md

chief clinical officer

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital

SS-2020-DCYF-13-SPECI-01-A02
eff. 7.12.23

A-S-1.3

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

5/22/2024

—OoeuSigntd by:

.  , — 748734W4841460... —.
Date Name; — • ••-

Title; Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on; (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name;

Title;

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital A-S-1.3

SS-2020-DCYF.13-SPECI-01-A02 Page 3 of 3
eff. 7.12.23
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Exhibit C-5 Budget Sheet. Amendment #2

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital

Budget Request for: Special Medical Evaluation Services

Budget Period July 1,2024-June 30, 2025

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)0.00%

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages $594,318

2. Fringe Benefits $139,903

3. Consultants $0

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and

Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. $0

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0

5.(b) Supplies - Lab $0

5.(0) Supplies - Pharmacy $0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0

5.(e) Supplies Office $0

6. Travel $2,000

7. Software $0

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications $0

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $14,019

8'. (c) Other - Other (specify below) ■ $0

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $750,240

Total Indirect Costs $0

TOTAL $750,240

Contractor Initial:

SS-2020-DCYF-13-SPECI-01-A02 Date:
5/21/2024
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Exhibit C-6, Budget Sheet, Amendment #2

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital

Budget Request for: Special Medical Evaluation Services

Budget Period July 1.2025-June 30. 2026

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable)0.00%

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages $594,318

2. Fringe Benefits $139,903

3. Consultants $0

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to

equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and

Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. $0

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0

5.(b) Supplies-Lab $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0

5.(e) Supplies Office $0

6. Travel $2,000

7. Software $0

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications $0

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $12,949

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) $0

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

9. SubrecipientContracts. $0

Total Direct Costs $749,170

Total Indirect Costs $0

TOTAL $749,170

Contractor Initial;

€J/U,

SS-2020--DCYF-13-SPECI-01-A02 Date:
5/21/2024
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the Slate of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that MARY HITCHCOCK MEMORIAL

HOSPITAL is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on August 07, 1889. 1

further certify that all fees and doeuments required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as

far as this ofTicc is concerned.

Business ID: 68517

Certificate Number: 0006622917

SI IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 20th day of March A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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DaamQuffi ■ DanmdutH-Hitchcdck' BdaMsdf Trustees
Health'

CERTIFICATE OF VOTE/AUTHORITY

I, Roberta L. Hines, MD. do hereby certify that:

1. I am the duly elected Chair of the Boards of Trustees of Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital and

Dartmouth-Hitchcock Clinic (together, "Dartmouth-Hitchcock").

2. The following is a true and accurate excerpt from the Amended, Restated and Integrated Bylaws of the

Dartmouth-Hitchcock Corporations: '

a. "ARTICLE II - Section A. Fiduciary Duty. Stewardship over Corporate Assets. As
responsible stewards of tax-exempt, charitable Corporations, members of the Corporations'
Boards have the fiduciary duty to oversee, with due care and loyalty, the stewardship of the
Corporations' assets and operations in order to create a sustainable health system that is population
focused and value-based, and to advance their respective corporate purposes. In exercising this
duty, the Boards may, consistent with the respective Corporation's Articles of Agreement and
these Bylaws, delegate authority to Board Committees and other bodies, or to various officers, to
provide input with respect to issues and strategies, incur indebtedness, make expenditures, enter
into contracts and agreements and take such other binding actions on behalf of the Corporations
as may be necessary or desirable in furtherance of their charitable purposes."

3. Pursuant to policy approved and adopted by the Boards of Trustees consistent with the above Bylaws

provision, the Chief Clinical Officer, Edward Mcrrens, MD, has subdelegated signature authority to enter

into contracts and agreements on behalf of Dartmouth-Hitchcock Clinic and Mary Hitchcock Memorial

Hospital.

4. The foregoing authority shall remain in full force and effect as of the date of the agreement executed or

action taken in reliance upon this Certificate. This authority shall remain valid for thirty (30) days from

the date of this Certificate and the State of New Hampshire shall be entitled to rely upon same, until written

notice of modification, rescission or revocation of same, in whole or in part, has been received by the State

of New Hampshire.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the Chair of the Boards of Trustees of Dartmouth-

Hitchcock Clinic and Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital this 1^' day of May, 2024.

Roberta L. Hines, MD, Board Chair
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j i ivayttctc: DATE: June 29, 2023

COMPANY AFFORDING COVERAGE

Hamden Assurance Risk Retention Group, Inc.
P.O. Box 1687

30 Main Street, Suite 330
Burlington, VT 05401
INSURED

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital
One Medical Center Drive

Lebanon, NH 03756
(603)653-6850

This certificate is issued as a matter of infomiation only
and confers no rights upon the Certificate Holder. This
Certificate does not amend, extend or alter the coverage
afforded by the policies below.

COVERAGES

The Policy listed below has been issued to the Named Insured above for the Policy Period notwithstanding any
requirement, term or condition of any contract or other document with respect to which this certificate may be issued. The
insurance afforded by the policy is subject to all the tenns, exclusions and conditions of the policy. Limits shown may
have been reduced by paid claims.

TYPE OF

INSURANCE
POLICY NUMBER

POLICY

EFFECTIVE

DATE

POLICY

EXPIRATION

DATE

LIMITS

GENERAL

LIABILITY

0002023-A 7/1/2023 7/1/2024 I2ACH

OCCURRI-ZNCI-

X

DAMAGI- TO

RENTED

PREMISES

CLAIMS MADE
MEDICAL

EXPENSES

PERSONAL &

ADV INJURY

OCCURRENCE GENERAL

AGGREGATE

OTHER PRODUCTS-

COMP/OP AGG

1,000,000

$1,000,000

N/A

$1,000,000

$3,000,000

$1,000,000

PROFESSIONAL

LIABILITY

0002023-A 7/1/2023 7/1/2024 EACH CLAIM $1,000,000

X
CLAIMS MADE

ANNUAL

AGGREGATE
$3,000,000

OCCURENCE

OTHER

DESCRIPTION OP OPERATIONS/ LOCATIONS/ VEHICLES/ SPECIAL I TEMS (LIMITS MAY BE SUBJECT TO RETEN TIONS)
Certificate Is issued as evidence of insurance.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

NH Department of Health and Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

CANCELLATION

Should any of the above described policies be cancelled before the expiration date
thereof, the issuing company >vill endeavor to mail 30 DAYS written notice to the
certificate holder named below, but failure to mail such notice shall impose no
obligation or liability of any kind upon the company, its agents or representatives.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES
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DARTHIT-01 LSTILES

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE IMM/DD/YYYY)

7/10/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT/CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endor8ement(s).

PRODUCER License # 1780862 cgM^ACT tauren Stiles
HUB International New England
100 Central Street
Suite 201

PHONE FAX
(A/C, No. ExI): (A/C. No):

Snf)^iis.s Lauren.Stlles(Shubinternationai.com
Holllston, MA 01746

INSURERIS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICt

INSURER A: Safety National Casualty CorDoratlon 15105

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

1 Medical Center Dr. INSURER D :

Lebanon, NH 03756
INSURER E:

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

JJB. TYPE OF INSURANCE
ADOL

msp
SU8R

POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EPF

IMHrtlDrirVYYI
POLICY 6XP
IMMmO/YVVYI LIMR-S

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE I 1 OCCUR
EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES fE8 occurrencel

MED EXP (Any oo> p»r»on>

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GEN-L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY □ SgPr nuoc
GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMPlOP AGG

OTHER:

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
lEa accidenll

ANY AUTO
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

SMonly

SCHEDULED
AUTOS

N<
A'

BODILY INJURY fPy pytbn)

BODILY INJURY (Pw accidenil
'ROPERTY DAMAGE
Per acddwT

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DEO

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

RETENTION $

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

Y/N
ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
QFFlCER/MEMEiR EXCLUDED?(Mandaloryjn Iffl) ' '
II yat, desdlM under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

kGC4066562 7/1/2023 7/1/2024

Y PER
* .si&ruiE.

OTH-
.EB_

E.L. EACHACqPENT 1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE 1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE • POUCY LIMIT 1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS ILOCADONS / VEHICLES (ACORO 101, Additional RemarXt Schedule, may be attached If more epace la raquirad)
Evidence of Workers Compensation coverage for

Cheshire Medical Center
Dartmouth-Hltchcock.Health
Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital
Allce.Peck Day Memorial Hospital
New London Hospital Association
SEE ATTACHED ACORD 101

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NHDHHS
129 Pioasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHOR ZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. Ail rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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AGENCY CUSTOMER ID: DARTHIT^)1 LSTILES

LOC#: 1

ACORD'
ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page 1 of 1

AGENCY License 01780862

HUB international New England

NAMED INSURED

Dartmouth'Hltchcock Health
1 Medical Center Dr.
Lebanon, NH 03756

POLICY NUMBER

SEE PAGE 1

CARRIER NAIC CODE

SEE PAGE 1 SEE P 1 EFFECTtVEOATE; SEE PAGE 1

ADDITIONAL REMARKS

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,

FORM NUMBER: ACORD 25 FORM TITLE: Certiflcato of Liability Insurance

Description of Operations/LocationsA/ehicies:
Mt. Ascutney Hospital and Health Center
Visiting Nurse Associates and Hospice of Vermont and New Hampshire

ACORD 101 (2008/01) © 2008 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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About Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center and Dartmouth

Hitchcock Clinics

Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center and Clinics—members of Dartmouth Health

{hups://www.dartmouth-heaith.org)—include Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center, the state's

only academic medical center, and Dartmouth Hitchcock Clinics, which provide primary

and specialty care throughout New Hampshire and Vermont.

Our physicians and researchers collaborate with Geisel School of Medicine scientists and

faculty as well as other leading health care organizations to develop new treatments at the

cutting edge of medical practice bringing the latest medical discoveries to the patient.

Who are Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center and Dartmouth Hitchcock

Clinics?

Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center

a

SS
■J

vK V

a

Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center is the state's only academic medical center, and the
only Level I Adult and Level II Pediatric Trauma Center in New Hampshire. The Dartmouth

Hitchcock Advanced Response Team (DHART), based in Lebanon and Manchester, provides
ground and air medical transportation to communities throughout northern New England.
In 2022, Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center was named the #1 hospital in New
Hampshire by U.S. News b World Report (https://heaUh.usnews.com/best-hospitais/area/nh), and

recognized as high performing in 2 adult specialties. Cancer and Neurology/Neurosurgery,
as well as in 12 common adult procedures and conditions.

Dartmouth Hitchcock Clinics
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r
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Dartmouth Hitchcock Clinics provide primary and specialty care throughout New

Hampshire and Vermont, with major comrhunity group practices in Lebanon, Concord,

Manchester. Nashua, and Keene. New Hampshire, and Bennington. Vermont.

Children's Hospital at Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center

Children's Hospital at Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center is New Hampshire's only

children's hospital and a member of the Children's Hospital Association, providing

advanced pediatric inpatient, outpatient and surgical services at Dartmouth Hitchcock

Medical Center.

Norris Cotton Cancer Care Pavilion Lebanon

Norris Cotton Cancer Care Pavilion Lebanon (https://cancer.dartmouth.edu/). one of only 53

NCI-designated Comprehensive Cancer Centers in the nation, is one of the premier

facilities for cancer treatment, research, prevention^ and education.

Our mission, vision, and values

Our mission

We advance health through research, education, clinical practice and community

partnerships, providing each person the best care, in the right place, at the right time..every

time.
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Our Vision

Achieve the healthiest population possible, leading the transformation of health care in our

region and setting the standard for our nation.

Our values ,

• Respect

•  Integrity

• Commitment

• Transparency

• Trust

• Teamwork

• Stevyardship

• Community

About Dartmouth Health (https://www.dartmouth-health.org/)

Copyright © 2023 Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center and Clinics. All rights reserved.
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Trustees of Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and subsidiaries

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health
and its subsidiaries (the "Health System"), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of June 30,
2023 and 2022, and the related consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets and of
cash flows for the years then ended, including the related notes (collectively referred to as the
"consolidated financial statements").

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Health System as of June 30,2023 and 2022, and the results of its
operations, changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinwn

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (US GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors'
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be independent of the Health System and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of consolidated financial.statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Health System's
ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date the consolidated financial statements are
issued. ./

I  Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors'
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS unll
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgeiy,

'  intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, 101 Seaport Boulevard, Suite 500, Boston, MA 02210
T' (617) 530 5000, F: (617) 530 5001, www.pwc.com/us
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In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding,the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. ''

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Health System's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion
is expressed.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Health System's ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Supplemental Itxfomiation

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
taken as a whole. The accompanjnng consolidating balance sheets and consolidating statements of
operations and changes in net assets without donor restrictions as of and for the years ended June 30,
2023 and 2022 (the "supplemental information") is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is
not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. The consolidating information is not
intended to present, and we do not express an opinion on, the financial position, results of operations and
cash flows of the individual companies. The supplemental infonnation is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The supplemental information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underl>'ing
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated
financial statements themselves and other additional procedures, in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplemental-information is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to tlie consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

Boston, Massachusetts
November 17, 2023
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets

June 30, 2023 and 2022

(in thousands of dollars)

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Patient accounts receivable, net (Note 4)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets

Assets limited as to use (Notes 5 and 7)

Other investments for restricted activities (Notes 5 and 7)
Property, plant, and equipment,-net (Note 6)

Right-of-use assets, net (Note 16)

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities

2023 2022

191,929

251,250

169,133

$  115,996

289,787

184,104

589,887

1,071,462

182,224

811,622

55,528

193,333

S  2,904,056 $ 2,964,450

612,312

1,181,094

175,116

764;840

58,925

172,163

Commitments and contingencies (Notes 3,4, 6, 7, 10,13, and 16)

Net assets

Net assets without donor restrictions (Note 9)
Net assets wiith donor restrictions (Notes 8 and 9)

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

658,988

210,333

Current portion of long-term debt (Note 10) $  15,236 :$  6,596

Current portion of right-of-use obligations (Note 16) 11,334 11,319

Line of credit 40.000 -

Current portion of liability for pension and other postretirement
plan benefits (Note 11) 3,386 3,500

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 146,747 156,572

Accrued compensation and related benefits 137,467 190,560

Estimated third-party settlements (Note 3 and 4) 64,360 ■ 134,898

Total current liabilities 418,530 503,445

Long-term debt, excluding current portion (Note 10) 1,098,962 1,117,288

Long-term right-of-use obligations, excluding current portion (Note 16) 45,671 48,824

Insurance deposits and related liabilities (Note 12) 91,349 78,391

Liability for pension and other postretirement plan benefits,
excluding current portion (Note 11) ^ . 206,305 228,606

Other liabilities 173,918 154,096

Total liabilities 2,034,735 2,130,650

634,297

199,503

869,321 833,800

$  2,904,056 $  2,964,450

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

3
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
Years Ended June 30, 2023 and. 2022

(in thousands of dollars) 2023 2022

Operating revenue and other support
Net patient service revenue (Note 4) $  2,397,157 $ 2,243,237

Contracted revenue 84,346 77,666

Other operating revenue (Note 4) 608,875 534,031

Net assets released from restrictions 14,843 15,894

Total operating revenue and other support 3,105,221 2.870;828

Operating expenses

Salaries 1,423,091 1,315,407

Employee benefits 332,386 322,570

Medications and medical supplies 725,480 649,272

Purchased services and other 458,901 403,862

Medicaid enhancement tax (Note 4) 85,715 82,725

Depreciation and amoilization 90,457 86,958

Interest (Note 10) 34,515 32,113

Total operating expenses 3,150,545 2,892,907

' Operating loss (45,324) (22,079)

Non-operating gains (losses) ^

Investment income (loss), net (Note 5) 58,119 (78,744)

Other components of net periodic pension and post
retirement benefit income (Note 11 and 14) (17,691) 13,910

Other losses, net .  (8,530) (6,658)

Total non-operating gains (losses), net 31,898 (71,492)

Deficiency of revenue over expenses $  (13,426) $ (93,571)

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets - continues on next page

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

4
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets - Continued
Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

(in thousands of dollars)

Net assets without donor restrictions

Deficiency of revenue over expenses
Net assets released from restrictions for capital

Change in funded status of pension and other postretirement
benefits (Note 11)
Other changes in net assets

Increase (decrease) in net assets without donor restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions

Gifts, bequests, sponsored activities
Investment income (loss), net

Net assets released from restrictions

Increase in net assets with donor restrictions

Change In net assets

Net assets

Beginning of year

End of year

2023

(13,426)
3,229

34,901

2022

(93,571)
1,573

(32,309)

24,691 (124,330)

23,637 39,710

5,846 (7,010)

(18,653) (17,467)

10,830 15,233

35,521 (109,097)

833,800 942,897

$  869,321 $ 833,800

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

5
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

(in thousands of dollars)

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating and non-operating activities
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of bond premium, discount, and issuance cost, net

. Amortization of right-of-use asset
Payments on right-of-use lease obligations - operating
Change in funded status of pension and other postretirement benefits
Loss (gain) on disposal of fixed assets
Net realized gains and change in net unrealized gains on investments
Restricted contributions and investment earnings
Proceeds from sales of donated s^rities
Changes in assets and liabilities

Patient accounts receivable, net

Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Other assets, net
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued compensation and related benefits
Estimated third-party settlements
Insurance deposits and related liabilities '
Liability for pension and other postretirement benefits
Other liabilities

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, frfant, and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant, and equipment
Purchases of investments

Proceeds from maturities and sales of investments

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from line of aedit

Payments on line of credit
Repayment of long-term debt
Proceeds from issuance of debt

Repayment of finance leases
Restricted contributions and investment earnings

Net cash provided by financing activities

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Supplemental cash flow information
Interest paid
Construction in progress included in accounts payable and
accrued expenses
Donated securities

restricted cash on the consolidated statements of cash flows.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents included in assets limited as to use
Restricted cash and cash equivalents included in other investments for restricted activities

Total of cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash shown
in the consolidated statements of cash flows

2023 2022

$ 35,521 S (109,097)

90,806 87,006
(2,779) (2.764)
9,242 9,270

(9.162) (9,190)
(34,901) 32,309

(883) (523)
(79,799) 86,652

(8,208) (20,151)
3,818 10,665

(38,537) (19,089)
1,984 (9,915)

(21,688) 2,517

(31,082) 17,104

(53,093) 8,490

(71,907) (120,117)
12,958 (1,583)
12,486 (28,422)
21,191 (56.687)

(164,033) (123,525)

(129,321) (160,855)
1,214 613

(71,410) (65,286)
249,684 137,781

50,167 (87,747)

979,500 30,000

(939,500) (30,000)
(81,907) (9.116)
-75,000 .

(3,599) (3.253)
8,206 20,15'1

37,702 7.782

(76,164) (203.490)

193,485 396,975

s 117,321 % 193,485

$ 44,362 S 42,867

5,105 9,407

3,818 10,665

1 cash, cash equivalents and

2023 2022

S 115,996 $ 191,929
- 1,350

1,325 206

$ 117,321 $ 193,485

The accompanyifig notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2023 and 2022

1. Organization and Community Benefit Commitments

Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health (D-HH), its'Members, and their Subsidiaries (the Health System) is a
system of hospitals, clinics, and .other healthcare service providers across New Hampshire and
Vermont. The Health System's mission is to advance health through research, education, clinical
practice, and community partnerships, providing each person the best care, in the right place, at
the right time, every time. The Health System seeks to achieve the healthiest population possible,
leading the transformation of health care in the region and setting the standard for the nation. The
Health System's expanding network of services are the fabric of its commitment to serve the region
with exceptional medical care.

Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health (D-HH) serves as the sole corporate member of the following entities:
Dartmouth-Hitchcock Clinic (DHC) and Subsidiaries. Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital (MHMH)
and Subsidiaries, (DHC and MHMH together are referred to as D-H), The New London Hospital
Association, Inc. (NLH), Windsor Hospital Corporation (d/b/a Mt. Ascutney Hospital and Health
Center) (MAHHC) and Subsidiaries, The Cheshire Medical Center (Cheshire) and Subsidiaries,
Alice Peck Day Memorial Hospital (APD) and Subsidiary, and Visiting Nurse Association and
Hospice of Vermont and New Hampshire (VNH) and Subsidiaries.

The Health System currently operates one tertiary, one community, and three acute care, (critical
access) hospitals in New Hampshire (NH) and Vermont (VT). One facility provides inpatient and
outpatient rehabilitation medicine and long-term care. The Health System also operates multiple
physician practices, a continuing care retirement community, and a home health and hospice
service. The Health System operates a graduate level program for health professions and is the
principal teaching affiliate of the Geisel School of Medicine (Geisel), a component of Dartmouth
College.

D-HH, DHC, MHMH, NLH, Cheshire, and APD are NH not-for-profit corporations exempt from
federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC). MAHHC and
VNH are VT not-for-profit corporations exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3)
of the IRC.

On December 6, 2022, D-HH entered into an Integration Agreement with Valley Regional
Healthcare, Inc. ("VRHC") and Its subsidiary Valley Regional Hospital and its affiliates ("VRH"), a
critical access hospital located in Claremont, New Hampshire. The parties have submitted the
transaction for regulatory review by the New Hampshire Attorney General with a target closing date
in early 2024.

Community Benefits
Consistent with its mission, the Health System provides high quality, cost effective, comprehensive,
and integrated healthcare to individuals, families, and the communities it serves regardless of a
patient's ability to pay. The Health System actively supports community-based healthcare and
promotes the coordination of services among healthcare providers and social services
organizations. In addition, the Health System seeks to work, collaboratively with other area
healthcare providers to improve the health status of the region. As a component of an integrated
academic medical center, the Health System provides significant support for acaderhic and
research programs.
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2023 and 2022

Certain- member hospitals of the Health System file annual Community Benefits Reports with the
State of NH. which outline the community and charitable benefits each provides. VT hospitals are
riot required by law to file a state Community Benefit Report. The categories used in the
Community Benefit Reports to summarize these benefits are as follows:

•  Community Health Improvement Services include activities carried out to improve community
health, and could include community health education (such as classes, programs, support
groups, and materials that promote wellness and prevent , illness), community-based clinical
services (such as free clinics and health screenings), and healthcare support services
(enrollment assistance in public programs, assistance in obtaining free or reduced costs
medications, telephone information seivices, or transportation programs to enhance access to
care. etc.).

•  Health Professions Education includes uncompensated costs of training medical students,
residents, nurses, and other health care professionals

•  Subsidized Health Services are services provided by the Health System, resulting in financial
losses that meet the needs of the community and would not otherwise be available unless the
responsibility was assumed by the government.

•  Research includes costs, in excess of awards, for numerous health research and service

initiatives within the Health System.

•  Cash and In-Kind Contributions occur outside of the System through various financial
contributioris of cash, in-kind donations, and grants to local organizations. ''

•  Community-Building Activities include expenses incurred to support the development of
programs and partnerships intended to address public health challenges, as well as social and
economic determinants of health. Examples include physical improvements and housing,
economic development, support system enhancements, environmental improvements,
leadership development and training for community members, community health improvement
advocacy, and workforce enhancement.

•  Charity Care includes losses, at-cost, incurred by providing health care services to persons
qualifying for hospital financial assistance programs.

•  The Uncompensated Cost of Care for Medicaid patients reported in the unaudited Community
Benefits Reports for 2022 was approximately $235,081,000. The 2023 Community Benefits
Reports are expected to be filed in February 2024.
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2023 and 2022

The following table summarizes the value of the community benefit initiatives outlined in the Health
System's most recently filed Community Benefit Reports for the year ended June 30, 2022;

(in thousands of dollars)

Uncompensated cost of care for Medicaid $ 235,081

■ Health professional education 43,186
Subsidized health services 21,202

Charity care 16,011

Community health improvement services 15,695
Research, 7,254
Cash and In-Kind Contributions 4,001

Community building activities 2,834

Total community benefit value $ 345,264

In fiscal years 2023 and 2022, funds received to offset or subsidize charity care costs provided
were $439,000 and $452,000, respectively.

For fiscal year 2022, Medicare costs exceeding reimbursement totaled $157,615,000.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and
have been prepared consistent with the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC) 954, Healthcare Entities, which addresses the accounting for
healthcare entities. The net assets, revenue, expenses, gains, and losses of healthcare entities
are classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net
assets without donor restrictions are amounts not subject to donor-imposed stipulations and are
available for operations. Net assets with donor restrictions are those whose use has been limited
by donors to a specific time period or purpose, or whose use has been restricted by donors to be
maintained in perpetuity. All significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated upon
consolidation.

\

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the dates of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. The most significant areas that are
affected by the use of estimates include implicit and explicit pricing concessions, valuation of
certain investments, estimated third-party settlements, insurance reserves, and pension
obligations. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

9
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2023 and 2022

Deficiency of Revenue over Expenses
The Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets include the deficiency of
revenue over expenses. Operating revenues consist of those items attributable to the care of
patients, including contributions and investment income (loss) on investments of net.assets without
donor restrictions, which are utilized to provide charity and other operational support. Peripheral
activities, including realized gains/losses on sales of investment securities and changes in
unrealized gains/losses on investments are reported as non-operating gains (losses).

Changes in net assets without donor restrictions which are excluded from the deficiency of revenue
over expenses, consistent with industry practice, include contributions of long-lived assets
(including assets acquired using contributions which by donor restriction were to be used for the
purpose of acquiring such assets), and change in funded status of pension and other
postretirement benefit plans.

Charity Care
The Health System provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under their financial
assistarice policies without charge, or at amounts less than their established rates. Because the
Health System does not anticipate collection of amounts qualifying as charity care, they are not
reported as revenue.

The Health System grants credit, without collateral, to patients. Most are local residents and are
insured under third-party arrangements. The amount of charges for implicit price concessions is
based upon management's assessment of historical and expected net collections, business and
economic conditions, trends in federal and state governmental healthcare coverage, and other
collection indicators (Notes 1 and 4).

Patient Service Revenue

The Health System applies the accounting provisions of ASC 606, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (ASC 606). Patient service revenue is reported at the amount of consideration to which
the Health System expects to be entitled from patients, third party payors, and others, for services
rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-
party payors and implicit pricing concessions. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an
estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as
estimates change or final settlements are determined (Note 4).

Contracted Revenue

The Health System has various Professional Service Agreements (PSAs), pursuant to which
certain organizations purchase services of personnel employed by the Health System and also
lease space,and equipment. Revenue pursuant to these PSAs, and certain facility and equipment
leases and other professional service contracts, have been classified as contracted revenue in the
accompanying'Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes'in Net Assets.

Other Revenue

The Health System recognizes other revenue, which is not related to patient medical care but is
central to the day-to-day operations of the Health System. Other revenue, which consists primarily
of revenue from retail pharmacy, specialty pharmacy, and contract pharmacy, is recorded in the
amounts to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for the prescriptions. Other revenue also
includes Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Securities Act (CARES Act Provider Relief Funds)

10
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2023 and 2022

from the Department of Health and Human Services (HHS), CARES Act Employee Retention
Credit Funds, operating agreemerits, grant revenue, cafeteria sales, and other support service
revenue (Note 3 and 4).

Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include amounts on deposit with financial institutions, short-term
investments with maturities of three months or less at the time of purchase, and other highly liquid
investments (primarily cash management funds), which would be considered level 1 investments
under the fair value hierarchy. All short-term, highly liquid, investments included within the Health
System's endowment and similar investment pools, otherwise qualifying as cash equivalents, are
classified as investments at fair value and, therefore, are excluded from cash and cash equivalents
in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

Investments and Investment Income (Loss)
Investments in equity securities with readily determinable fair values, mutual funds, governmental
securities, debt securities, and pooled/commingled funds" are reported at fair value with changes in
fair value included in the deficiency of revenues over expenses. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date (Note 7).

Investments in pooled/commingled investment funds, private equity funds, and hedge funds that
represent investments where the Health System owns shares or units of funds rather than the
underlying securities in that fund are valued using the equity method of accounting with changes in
value recorded in the deficiency of revenue over expenses.

Certain members of the Health System are partners in a NH general partnership established for the
purpose of operating a master investment program of pooled investment accounts. Substantially
all of the Health System's board-designated and assets with donor restrictions, such as endowment
funds, were invested in these pooled funds by purchasing units based on the market value of the
pooled funds at the end of the month prior to receipt of any new additions to the funds. Interest,
divjdends, and realized and unrealized gains and losses earned on pooled funds are allocated
monthly based on the weighted average units outstanding at the prior month-end.

Investment income or losses (including change in unrealized and realized gains and losses on
investments, change in value of equity method investments, interest, and dividehds) are included,in
the deficiency of revenue over expenses and classified as non-operating gains and losses, unless
the income or loss is restricted by donor or law (Note 9).

Fair Value Measurement of Financial instruments

The Health System estimates fair value based on a valuation framework that uses a fair value
hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The
hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices.in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3
measurements). The three levels of fair value hierarchy, as defined by ASC 820, Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures, are described t)elow:

Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement
date for assets or liabilities.

11
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2023 and 2022

Level 2 Prices other than quoted prices in active markets that are either directly or indirectly
observable as of the date of measurement.

Level 3 Prices or valuation techniques that are both significant to the fair value measurement
and unobservable.

The carrying amounts of patient accounts receivable, prepaid and other current assets, accounts
payable and accrued expenses approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these
instruments.

Property, plant, and equipment
Property, plant, and equipment, arid other real estate are stated at cost at the time of purchase or
fair value at the time of donation, less accumulated depreciation. The Health System's policy is to
capitalize expenditures for major improvements and to charge expense for maintenance and repair
expenditures which do not extend the lives of the related assets. The provision for depreciation
has been determined using the straight-line method at rates which are intended to amortize the
cost of assets over their estimated useful lives which range from 10 to 40 years for buildings and
improvements. 2 to 20 years for equipment, and the shorter of the lease term, or 5 to 12 years, for
leasehold improvements. Certain software development costs are amortized using the straight-line
method over a period of up, to 10 years. Net interest cost incurred on borrowed funds during the
period of construction of capital assets is capitalized as a component of the cost of acquiring those
assets.

Gifts of capital assets such as land, buildings, or equipment are reported as support, and excluded
from the deficiency of revenue over expenses, unless explicit donor stipulations specify how the
donated assets must be used. Gifts of capital assets with explicit restrictions that specify how the
assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to acquire capital assets
are reported as restricted support. Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long those capital
assets must be maintained, expirations of donor restrictions are reported when the donated or
acquired capital assets are placed in service.

Bond Issuance Costs

Bond issuance costs, classified on the consolidated balance sheets within long-term debt, are
amortized over the term of the related bonds. Amortization is recorded within interest expense in
the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets using the straight-line method
which approximates the effective interest method.
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Intangible Assets and Goodwill
The Health System records within other assets on the consolidated balance sheets goodwill and
intangible assets such as trade names and leases-in-place. The Health System considers trade
names and goodwill to be indefinite-lived assets, assesses them at least annually for impairment or
more frequently if certain events or circumstances warrant and recognizes impairment charges for
amounts by which the carrying values exceed their fair values. The Health System has recorded
$8,367,000 and $8,885,000 as intangible assets as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Gifts .

Gifts without donor restrictions are recorded net of related expenses as non-operating gains.
Conditional promises to give and indications of intentions to give to the Health System are reported
at fair value at the date the gift is received. Gifts are reported with donor restrictions if they are
received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction
expires, that is. when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, net
assets with donor restrictions are reclassified as net assets without donor restrictions and reported
in the consolidated statements of operations and changes In net assets as net assets released
from restrictions.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
In March 2020, January 2021, and April 2022, the FASB issued standard updates on Reference
Rate Reform in response to the planned discontinuation of the London Inter-Bank Offered Rate
(LIBOR), a key interbank reference rate. The standard provides accounting relief to contract
modifications and optional expedients for applying U.S. GAAP to contracts and other transactions
that reference LIBOR or other reference rates that are expected to be discontinued because of rate
reform. The Health System is currently in the process of evaluating the impact of adoption of these
standards on the financial statements.

3. The COVID-19 Pandemic

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization designated COVID-19 as a global pandemic
resulting in an extraordinary disruption to our nation's healthcare system. In response to COVID-
19, the Coronavirus Aid Relief and Economic Security (CARES) Act was enacted which provided,
different types of economic support to a wide variety of organizations and individuals. The Health
System employed several CARES Act provisions, with the most significant impacts summarized
below.

Health and Human Services Provider Relief Funds

The Health System received $1,822,000 and $100,346,000 in CARES Act Provider Relief Funds
for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

In July 2020, HHS issued reporting requirements for CARES Act Provider Relief Funds, requiring
recipients to identify healthcare-related expenses that remain unreimbursed by another source,
attributable to the COVID-19 pandemic. If those expenses do not exceed the funding received,
recipients will need to demonstrate that the remaining funds were used to compensate for a
negative variance in patient service revenue. HHS is entitled to recoup Provider Relief Funds

•  awarded in excess of expenses attributable to the COVID-19 pandemic that were not reimbursed
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by another source plus losses incurred due to the decline in patient care revenue. There have been
no recoupments through June 30, 2023.

Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) Accelerated and Advance Payment Program

The Health System received CMS prepayment advances, related to the CARES Act, totaling
$245,200,000. In addition, the Health System accumulated payroll tax deferrals of $33,100,000.
Repayment of funds commenced in April 2021. The balances of CMS prepayment advances and
accumulated payroll tax deferrals at June 30, 2022 were $54,890,000 and $16,550,000,
respectively, and are included in estimated third party settlements arid accrued compensation and
related benefits on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The amounts for CMS prepayment advances
and payroll tax deferrals were repaid, in full, during the year ended June 30, 2023.

the Health System continues to address the challenges and impacts of the C0VIC)-19 pandemic,
including protecting the health and safety of employees and patients, as well as assessing* the
availability of personal protective equipment and other needed supplies to be better positioned for
potential surges. Additionally, the Health System continues to evaluate the impact of new or
changes to laws and regulations at the federal, state, and local levels and the potential effect on
Health System staffing and operations. At this time, the Health System remains unable to
accurately predict the full extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic will affect the Health System's
future finances and operations.

4. Net Patient Service Revenue and Accounts Receivable

The Health System reports net patient service revenue at amounts that reflect the consideration to
which it expects to be entitled in exchange for providing patient care. These amounts are due from
patients, third-party payers (including managed care payers and government programs), and
others;. and they include variable consideration for retroactive revenue adjustments due to
settlement of audits, reviews, and investigations. Generally, the Health System bills patients and
third-party payers several days after the services were performed or shortly after discharge.
Revenue is recognized as performance obligations are satisfied under contracts by providing
healthcare services to patients.

The Health System determines performance obligations based on the nature of the services
provided. Revenues for performance obligations satisfied over time are recognized based on
actual charges incurred in relation to total expected charges as this method provides a reasonable
estimate of the transfer of services over the term of performance obligations based on inputs
needed to satisfy the obligations. Generally, performance obligations satisfied over time relate to
patients receiving inpatient acute care services. For inpatient services, performance obligations
are measured from admission to the point when there are no further services required for the
patient, which is generally the time of discharge. For outpatient services and physician services,
performance obligations are recognized at a point in time when the services are provided and no
further patient services are deemed necessary.

Generally, the Health System's patient service performance,obligations relate to contracts with a
duration of less than one year, therefore the Health System has elected to apply the optional
exemption provided in ASC 606-10-50-14a and, therefore, we are not required to disclose the
aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to performance obligations that are unsatisfied
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or partially unsatisfied at the end of the reporting period. This generally refers to Inpatient services
at the end of the reporting period. The performance obligations for these contracts are generally
completed when the patients are discharged, which generally occurs within days or weeks of the
end of the reporting period.

Established charges represent gross charges. They are not the same as actual pricing, and they
generally do not reflect what a hospital is ultimately entitled to for services it provides. Therefore,
they are not displayed in the Health System's consolidated statements pf operations and changes
in net assets. . •

Hospitals are paid amounts negotiated with insurance companies or set by government entities,
which are typically less than established or standard charges. Gross charges are used to calculate
Medicare outlier payments and to determine certain elements of payment under managed care
contracts. Gross charges are what hospitals charge all patients prior to the application of
contractual adjustments and implicit price concessions.

Explicit Pricing Concessions

Revenues for the Health System under the traditional fee-for-service Medicare and Medicaid
programs are based on prospectively determined rates per discharge or visit, reasonable
(allowable) cost, or prospective rates per episodic period, depending on the type pf provider.

Inpatient acute care services provided to Medicare program beneficiaries are paid using the
prospective payment system (PPS) to determine rates-per-discharge. These rates vary
according to a patient classification system (DRG), based on diagnostic, clinical, and other
factors. In addition, inpatient capital costs (depreciation and interest) are reimbursed by
Medicare on the basis- of a prospectively determined rate per discharge. Medicare
outpatient services are paid on a prospective payment system, based on a pre-determined
amount for each outpatient procedure (APC), subject to various mandated modifications.
Retrospectively determined cost-based revenues under these programs, such as indirect
medical education, direct graduate medical education, disproportionate share hospital,
transplant services, and bad debt reimbursement are based on the hospital's cost reports
and are estimated using historical trends and current factors. The Health System's
payments for inpatient services rendered to NH and VT Medicaid beneficiaries are based on
PPS, while outpatient services are reimbursed on a retrospective cost basis, or fee
schedules, for NH beneficiaries. VT outpatient beneficiaries are paid on a prospective basis
per outpatient procedure.

Inpatient acute, swing, and outpatient services furnished by Critical Access Hospitals (CAH)
are reimbursed by Medicare at 101% of reasonable costs, subject to 2% sequestration,
excluding ambulance services and inpatient hospice care.

Providers of home health services to patients eligible for Medicare home health benefits.are
paid on a prospective basis, with no retrospective settlement. The prospective payment is
based on the scoring attributed to the acuity level of the patient at a rate determined by
federal guidelines.
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Hospice services to patients eligible for Medicare hospice benefits are paid on a per diem
basis, with no retrospective settlement, provided the aggregate annual Medicare
reimbursement is below a predetermined aggregate capitated rate.

The Health System's cost-based services to Medicare and Medicaid are reimbursed during
the year, based on varying interim payment methodologies. Final settlement is determined
after the submission of an annual cost report and subject to audit of this report by Medicare
and Medicaid auditors, as well as administrative and judicial review. Because the laws,
regulations, and rule interpretations governing Medicare and Medicaid reimbursement are
complex and change frequently, the estimates recorded could change over time by material
amounts.

Revenues under Managed Care Plans (MCPs) consist primarily of payment terms involving
mutually agreed upon rates per diagnosis, discounted fee-for-service rates, or similar
contractual arrangements. These revenues are also subject to review and possible audit.
The MCPs are billed for patient services on an individual patient basis. An individual
patient's bill is subject to adjustments, in accordance with contractual terms in place with the
MCPs following their review and adjudication of each bill.

The Health System is not aware of any claims, disputes, or unsettled matters with any payer, that
would materially affect its revenues, for which it has not adequately provided in the accompanying
Health System's consolidated financial statements.

The Health System provides charity care to patients who are unable to pay for healthcare services
they receive as determined by financial conditions. Patients who qualify receive partial or full
adjustments to charges for services rendered. The Health System's policy is to treat amounts
qualified as charity care as explicit price concessions and, as such, are not reported in net patient
service revenue.

Vermont imposes a provider tax on' home health agencies in the amount of 4.25% of Vermont
annual net patient revenue. In fiscal years 2023 and 2022, home health provider taxes paid were
$579,000 and $627,000, respectively.

r'

Implicit Price Concessions
Generally, patients who are covered by third-party payer contracts are responsible for related co-
pays, co-insurance, and deductibles, which vary depending on the contractual obligations of
patients. The Health System also provides services to uninsured patients and offers those patients
a discount from standard charges. The Health System estimates the transaction price for patients
with co-pays, co-insurance, and deductibles, and for those who are uninsured, based on historical
collection experience and current market conditions. The discount offered to uninsured patients
reduces the transaction price at the time of billing. The uninsured and patient responsible accounts,
net of discounts recorded, are further reduced through implicit price concessions based on
historical collection trends for similar accounts and other known factors that impact the estimation
process. Subsequent changes to the estimate of transaction price are generally recorded as
adjustments to net patient services revenue in the period of change.

The implicit price concessions included in estimating the transaction price represent the difference
between amounts billed to patients and the amounts the Health System expects to collect based on
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collection history with similar patients. Although outcomes vary, the Health System's policy is to
attempt to collect amounts due from patients, including co-pays, co-insurance, and deductibles due
from insurance at the time of service while complying with all federal and state statutes and
regulations, including but not limited to, the Emergency Medical Treatment and Active Labor Act
(EMTALA). Through various systems and processes the Health System estimates Medicare and
Medicaid net patient service revenue and cost report settlements and accrues final expected
settlements. For filed cost reports, the accrual is recorded based on those filings, subsequent
activity, and on historical trends and other relevant evidence. For periods in which a cost report is
yet to be filed, accruals are based on estimates of what is expected to be reported, and any trends
and relevant evidence. Cost reports generally must be filed within five months of the closing.
period. ^

Settlements with third-party payers for retroactive revenue adjustments due to audits, reviews or
investigations are considered variable consideration and are included in the determination of the
estimated transaction price for providing patient care using the most likely amount. These
settlements are estimated based on the terms of the payment agreement with the payer,
correspondence from the payer, and historical settlement activity, including assessments to ensure
that it is probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not
occur when the uncertainty associated with the retroactive adjustment is subsequently resolved.
Estimated settlements are adjusted in future periods as adjustments become known, or as years
are settled or are no longer subject to such audits, reviews or investigations.

For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, additional increases in revenue of $24,098,000 and
$19,743,000, respectively, were recognized, due to changes in estimates of implicit price
concessions for performance obligations satisfied in prior years.

Net operating revenues consist primarily of patient service revenues, principally for patients
covered by Medicare, Medicaid, managed care and other health plans, as well as patients covered
under the Health System's uninsured discount and charity care programs. •
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The table below shows the Health System's sources of total operating revenue and other support
presented at the net transaction price for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022.

2023

(in thousands of dollars) PPS CAH Total

Hospital
Medicare $ 587,377 $  106,370 $  693,747

Medicaid 168,410 18,824 187,234

Commercial 862,502 88,492 . 950,994

Self-pay 11,307 802 12,109

Subtotal 1,629,596 214,488 1,844,084

Professional 504,370 35,578 539,948

Subtotal 2,133,966 250,066 2,384,032

Home based care 13,125

Subtotal 2,397,157

Other revenue ' 706,242

Provider Relief Funds 1,822

Total operating revenue and other support $  3,105,221

2022

(in thousands of dollars) PPS CAH Total

Hospital

Medicare $ 542,292 $  99,976 $  642,268

Medicaid 158,121 15,739 173,860

Commercial 809,736 81,395 891,131

Self-pay 7,027 902 7,929

Subtotal 1,517,176 198,012 1,715,188

Professional 470,559 40,186 510,745 ■

Subtotal 1,987,735 238,198 2,225,933

Home based care 17,304

Subtotal 2,243,237

Other revenue 528,762

Provider Relief Funds 98,829

Total operating revenue and other support $  2,870,828

18



DocuSign Envelope ID; 74FD520F^EF94932-A532-2F3F836ADCD6

Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2023 and 2022

Medicaid Enhancement Tax & Disproportionate Share Hospital
On May 22, 2018, the State of New Hampshire and all New Hampshire hospitals (Hospitals)
agreed to resolve disputed issues and enter into a seven-year agreement to stabilize

•Disproportionate Share Hospital (DSH) payments, with provisions for alternative payments in the
event of legislative changes to the DSH program. Under the agreement, the State committed to
make DSH payments to the Hospitals in an amount no less than 86% of the Medicaid
Enhancement Tax (MET) proceeds collected in each fiscal year, in addition to providing for directed
payments or increased rates for Hospitals in an amount equal to 5% of MET proceeds collected
from state fiscal year (SPY) 2021 through SPY 2024. The agreement prioritizes DSH payments to
critical access hospitals in an amount equal to 75% of allowable uncompensated care (UCC), with
the remainder distributed to Hospitals without critical access designation in proportion to their
allowable UCC amounts.

During the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, the Health System received DSH payments of
approximately, $85,853,000 and $77,488,000, respectively. DSH payments are subject to audit
and. therefore, for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, the Health System recognized as
revenue DSH receipts of approximately $83;582,000 and approximately $75,988,000, respectively.

During the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, the Health System recorded $85,715,000 and
$82,725,000, respectively, of State of NH MET and State of VT provider taxes. The taxes are
calculated at 5.4% for NH and 6.0% for VT of certain patient service revenues. The Provider taxes
' are included in operating expenses In the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in
Net Assets.

Accounts Receivable

The following table categorizes payors into four groups based on their respective percentages of
patient accounts receivable as of June 30, 2023 and 2022:

2023 " 2022

Medicare 36% 38%

Medicaid 12% 12%

Commercial 41% 38%

Self Pay ' 11% 1^
Total 100% 100%
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5. Investments

The composition of Investments at June 30, 2023 and 2022 is set forth in the follov^ing table:

(in thousands of dollars) 2023 2022

Assets limited as to use

Internally designated by board
• Cash and short-term investments $  6,988 $  31,130
U.S. government securities 80,595 126,222

Domestic corporate debt securities 271,321 234,490

Global debt securities 37,092 68,610

Domestic equities 205,200 .  198,742

International equities 75,199 63,634

Emerging markets equities 37,080 34,636"

Global equities 77,479 73,035
Real Estate Investment Trust 2 2

Private equity funds 141,808 138,605

Hedge funds 44,558 55.069

.  Subtotal 977,322 1,024,175

Investments held by captive Insurance companies (Note 12)
U.S. government securities 30,366 27,242

Domestic corporate debt securities 13,918 '  7,902
Global debt securities 13,180 7,595

Domestic equities 13,994 10.091

International equities 5,372 4,692

Subtotal 76,830 57,522

Held by trustee under indenture agreement (Note 10)
Cash and short-term investments 17,310 99,397

Total assets limited as to use 1,071,462 1,181,094

Other investments for restricted activities

Cash and short-term investments 21,243 8,463

U.S. government securities 27,323 27,600

Domestic corporate debt securities 45,864 , 37,343

Global debt securities 5,282 10,059

Domestic equities 30,754 34,142

International equities 11,054 10,698

Emerging markets equities 5,187 5,587

Global equities 10,281 11,153

Real Estate Investment Trust 18 19

Private equity funds 18,816. 21,166

Hedge funds 6,368 8,852

Other 34 34

Total other investment^ for restricted activities .  182,224 175,116

Total investments $ 1,253,686 $ 1,356,210
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Investments are accounted for using either the fair value method or equity method of accounting,
as appropriate on a case-by-case basis. The fair value method is used for all debt securities and
equity securities that are traded on active markets and are valued at prices that are readily
available in those markets.. The equity method is used when investments are made in
pooled/commjngled investment funds that represent investments where shares or units are owned
of pooled funds rather than the underlying securities in that fund. These pooled/commingled funds
make underlying investments in securities from the asset classes listed above.

The following tables summarize investments by the accounting method utilized as of June 30, 2023
^ and 2022. Accounting standards require disclosure of additional information for those securities
accouTited for using the fair value method, as shown in Note 7.

2023

(in thousands of dollars) Fair Value Eaultv Total

Cash and short-term investments $  45,541 3;  - $ 45,541
U.S. government securities 138,284 - 138,284
Domestic corporate debt securities 122,320 208,783 331,103
Global debt securities 55,554 . 55,554
Domestic equities 204,541 45,407 249,948
International equities 57,221 34,404 91,625
Emerging markets equities 267 42,000 42,267
Global equities 87,760 87,760
Real Estate Investment Trust 20 . 20
Private equity funds - 160,624 160,624
Hedge funds 456 50,470 50.926
Other 34 - 34

Total investments $  624.238 5i  629,448 $ 1,253,686

2022

(in thousands of dollars) Fair Value Eaultv Total

Cash and short-term investments $  138,990 $ -  $ 138,990
U.S. govemment securities 181,064 - 181,064
Domestic corporate debt securities 118,642- 161,093 279,735
Global debt securities 57,558 28,706 86,264
Domestic equities 191,767 51,208 242,975
international equities .  47,631 31,393 79,024
Emerging markets equities 298 39,926 40,224
Global equities . • 84,187 84,187
Real Estate Investment Trust 21 21

Private equity funds - 159,771 159,771
Hedge funds 443 63,478 63,921
Other 34 - 34

Total investments $  736,448 $ 619,762 $ 1.356,210
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For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, investment income (loss) is reflected in the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets as other
operating revenue of approximately $905,000 and $857,000, respectively, and as non-operating
gains (losses) of approximately $58,119,000 and ($78,744,000), respectively.

Private equity limited partnership shares are not eligible for redemption from the fund or general
partner. It is the intent of the Health System to hold these investments until the fund has fully
distributed all proceeds to the limited partners and the term of the partnership agreements expire.
Under the terms of these agreements, the Health System has committed to contribute a specified
level of capital over a defined period of time. Through June 30, 2023 and 2022, the Health System
has outstanding commitments of $79,753,000 and $75,070,000, respectively.

6. Property, Plant, and Equipment

Property, plant, and equipment consists of the follo\ving at June 30, 2023 and 2022:

(in thousands of dollars) .  2023 2022

Land $  40,749 :E  40,749
Construction in progress • 43.117 163,145

Land improvements 52.054 44,834

Buildings and improvements 1,166,776 984,743

Equipment 1,101,410 1,042,582

Subtotal property, plant, and equipment 2,404,106 2,'276,053

Less accumulated depreciation 1,592,484 1,511,213

Total property, plant, and equipment, net $  811,622 :E  764,840

As of June 30, .2023, construction in progress primarily consists of four projects: the Family and
Community Care Clinic located in Keene, NH, the renovation of inpatient wings as part of the
Pavilion backfill project located in Lebanon, NH. and two lab software upgrades to the Lebanon
campus. The estimated cost to complete the construction in progress is approximately $10,700,000.

The construction in progress as of June 30, 2022, included the in-patient tower, the emergency
department (ED) expansion and the central pharmacy/supply chain facility renovation. All were
placed in service during the year ended June 30, 2023.

Capitalized interest of $59,000 and $6,853,000 is included in construction in progress as of June 30,
2023 and 2022, respectively.

Depreciation expense included in operating activities was $87,029,000 and $83,661,000 for 2023 and
2022, respectively.
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7. Fair Value Measurements ^

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies for assets and liabilities measured at
fair value on a recurring basis:

Cash and Short-Tenn Investments

Consists of money market funds and are valued at net asset value (NAV) reported by the financial
institution and cash which will be used for future investment opportunities.

Domestic, Emerging Markets and international Equities
Consists of actively traded equity securities and mutual funds which are valued at the closing price
reported on an active market on which the individual securities are traded {Level 1 measurements).

U.S. Government Securities, Domestic Corporate and Global Debt Securities
Consists of U.S. government securities, domestic corporate and global debt securities, mutual
funds and pooled/commingled funds that invest in U.S. government securities, domestic corporate
and global debt securities. Securities are valued based on quoted market prices or dealer quotes
where available (Level 1 measurement). If quoted market prices are not available, fair values are
based on quoted market prices of comparable instruments or, if necessary, matrix pricing from a
third party pricing vendor to determine fair value (Level 2 measurements). Matrix prices are based
on quoted prices for securities with similar coupons, ratings and maturities, rather than on specific
bids and offers for a designated security. Investments in mutual funds are measured based on the
quoted NAV as of the close of business in the respective active market (Level 1 measurements).
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Investments are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the
fair value measurement. The following tables set- forth the consolidated financial assets and
liabilities that were accounted for at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2023 and 2022:

2023

(in thousands of dollars) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets

Investments

Cash and short term investments $  45,541 3J  - 3S  - $;  45,541
U.S. government securities 138,284 . . 138,284
Domestic corporate debt securities 41,351 80,969 . 122,320
Global debt securities 24.429 31,125 . 55,554
Domestic equities 200,252 4,289 . 204,541
International equities 57,221 . . 57,221
Emerging market equities 267 . - 267

Real estate investment trust 20 -  • . 20
Hedge funds 456 - . 456

Other - 34 . 34

Total fair value investments 507,821 116,417 624,238

Deferred compensation plan assets
Cash and short-term investments 11,893 - . 11,893
U.S. government securities 40 - . 40

Domestic corporate debt securities 10,453 . . 10,453
Global debt securities 16 - . 16

Domestic equities 41,841 - - 41,841
International equities 5,874 - . ■5,874
Emerging market equities 21 . . 21
Realestate 14 . . 14
Multi strategy fund 62,689 -• - 62,689

Total deferred compensation
plan assets 132,841 - - 132,841

Beneficial interest in trusts - - 14,875 14,875
Total assets .$ 640,662 $ 116,417 $ 14,875 $ 771.954
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2022

(in thousands of dollars) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets

Investments

Cash and short term investments $  138,990 3;  - $ -  5;  138,990

U.S. government securities 181,064 . - 181,064

Domestic corporate debt securities 1,768 116,874 - 118,642
Global debt securities 24,745 32,813 - 57,558
Domestic equities 187,063 4,704 - 191,767
International equities 47,631 - - 47,631

Emerging market equities 298 - - 298

Real estate investment trust 21 - - 21

Hedge funds 443 . - 443

Other - 34 - 34

Total fair value investments 582,023 154,425 . 736,448

Deferred compensation plan assets
Cash and short-term investments 8,053 - - 8,053
U.S. government securities ■ 36 - - 36

Domestic corporate debt securities 10,874 - - 10,874
Global debt securities 954 - - 964

Domestic equities 33,742 - •- 33,742

International equities 4,911 - - 4,911

Emerging market equities 19 - - 19

Real estate 12 - - 12

Multi strategy fund 57,964 - - 57,964

Total deferred compensation

-  plan assets 116,575 - - "116.575

Beneficial interest in trusts - - 16,051 16,051

Total assets $  698,598 S 154,425 $ 16,051 $ 869,074

There were no transfers into or out of Level 1. 2, or 3 measurements due to changes in valuation
methodologies during the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022.

There were no liquidations of Level 3 measurements during the years ended June 30, 2023 and
2022. .
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8. Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes at June 30 2023 and
2022:

(in thousands of dollars) 2023 2022

Investments held in perpetuity $  88,926 $  84,117
Healthcare services 38,596 36,123
Research 28,176 27,477
Health education 27,374 27,164
Charity care 12,486 12,155
Other 10,825 8,639
Purchase of equipment 3,950 3,828

Total net assets with donor restrictions $  210,333 5i  199,503

9. Board Designated and Endowment Funds

Net assets include funds established for a variety of purposes including both donor-restricted
endowment funds and funds designated by the Board of Trustees to function as endowments. Net
assets associated with endowment funds, including funds designated by the Board of Trustees to
function as endowments, are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-
imposed restrictions.

The Health-System has interpreted the NH and VT Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional
Funds Acts {UPMIFA or Act) for donor-restricted endowment funds as requiring the preservation of
the original value of gifts, as of the gift date, to donor-restricted endowment funds,.absent explicit
donor stipulations to the contrary. The Health System's net assets with donor restrictions, which
are to be held in perpetuity, consist of (a) the original value of gifts donated to the permanent
endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to be held in perpetuity, and (c)
accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accordance w/ith the direction of the
applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund, if any.
Collectively these amounts are referred to as the historic dollar value of the fund.

Net assets without donor restrictions include funds designated by the Board of Trustees to function
as endowments, the income from certain donor-restricted endowment funds, and any accumulated
investment return thereon, which pursuant to donor intent may be expended based on trustee or
management designation. Net assets with donor restrictions that are temporary in nature, either
restricted by time or purpose, include funds appropriated for expenditure pursuant to endowment
and investment spending policies, certain expendable endowment gifts from donors, and any
retained income and appreciation on donor-restricted endowment funds, which are restricted by the
donor to a specific purpose or by law. When the restrictions on these funds have been met, the
funds are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions.

t

In accordance with the Act, the Health System considers the following factors in making a
determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds; the duration and
preservation of the fund; the purposes of the donor-restricted endowment fund; general economic
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conditions: the possible effect of inflation and deflation; the expected total return from income and
the appreciation of investments; other resourceis available; and investment policies.

The Health System has endowment investment and spending policies that attempt to provide a
"predictable stream of funding for programs supported by its endowment while ensuring that the
purchasing power does not decline over time. The Health System targets a diversified asset
allocation that places emphasis on investments in domestic and international equities, fixed
income, private equity, and hedge fund strategies to achieve its long-term return objectives within
prudent risk constraints. The Health System's Investment Committee reviews the policy portfolio
asset allocations, exposures, and risk profile on an ongoing basis.

The Health System, as a policy, may appropriate for expenditure or accumulate so much of an
endowment fund as the institution determines is prudent for the uses, benefits, purposes, and
duration for which the endowment is established, subject to donor intent expressed in the gift
instrument and the standard of prudence prescribed by the Act.

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment

funds may fall below their original contributed value. Such market losses were not material as of
June 30. 2023 and 2022.

Endowment net asset composition by type of fund consists of the following at June 30, 2023 and
2022:

(in thousands of dollars)

Donor-restricted endowment funds

Board-designated endowment funds

Total endowed net assets

28,688

2023

Without With

Donor . . Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total

111,843

28.688

28,688 $ 111,843 $ 140,531

$  111,843 $

(in thousands of dollars)

Donor-restricted endowment funds

Board-designated endowment funds

Total endowed net assets

41,344

2022

Without With

Donor Donor
Restrictions Restrictions

$  107,590 $

Total

107,590

41,344

41,344 $ 107,590 $ 148,934
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Changes in endowment net assets for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 are as follows;

2023

Without With

Donor Donor

(in thousands of dollars) Restrictions Restrictions Total

Beginning of year balances $  41,344 $  107,590 S 148,934

Net investment return 212 1,305 1,517

Contributions - 3,201 3,201

Transfers (12,743) 2,561 (10,182)
Release of appropriated funds (125) (2,814) (2,939)

End of year balances $  28,688 $  111,843 3 140,531

End of year balances 111,843

Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts 13,954

Net assets with donor restrictions $  125,797

2022

Without With

Donor Donor

(in thousands ofdoliars)
1

Restrictions Restrictions Total

Beginning of year balances $  41,728 $  108,213 $ 149,941

Net investment return (1,065) (3,998) - (5,063)
Contributions - 12,950 12,950

Transfers 795 (7,105) (6,310)
Release of appropriated funds ■  (114) (2,470) (2.584)

End of year balances $  41,344 $  107,590 $ 148,934

End of year balances 107,590

Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts 14,903

Net assets with donor restrictions $  122,493
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10. Long-Term Debt
/

A summary of obligated group debt at June 30, 2023 and 2022 is as follows;

(in thousands of dollars) 2023 2022

Variable rate issues

New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities

Authority (NHHEFA) Revenue Bonds
Series 2018A, principal maturing in varying annual
amounts, through August 2037 (1) $ 83,355 $ 83,355

Fixed rate Issues

New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities

Authority Revenue Bonds
Series 2018B, principal maturing in varying annual
amounts, through August 2048 (1)

Series 2020A, principal maturing in varying annual
amounts, through August 2059 (2)
Series 2017A, principal maturing in varying annual

amounts, through August 2040 (3)
Series 2017B, principal maturing in varying annual
amounts, through August 2031 (3)

Series 2019A, principal maturing in varying annual
amounts, through August 2043 (4) •

Series 20180, principal maturing in varying annual

amounts, through August 2030 (5)
Series 2012, principal maturing in varying annual
amounts, through July 2039 (6)
Series 2014B, principal maturing in varying annual
amounts, through August 2033 (7)
Series 20168, principal maturing in varying annual

amounts, through August 2045 (8)
Series 2014A, principal maturing in varying annual

amounts, through August 2022 (7)

Note payable

Note payable to a financial institution due in monthly interest
only payments through May 2035 (9)

Total obligated group debt

303,102 . 303,102

125,000 125,000

122,435 122,435

109,800 109,800

99,165 99,165

22,860, 23,950

21,715 22,605

14,530 14,530

10,970 10,970

- 4,810

125,000 125,000

$  1,037,932 3>  1,044,722
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A summary of long-term debt at June 30. 2023 and 2022 is as follows:

(in thousands of dollars) 2023 2022

Other

Mortgage note payable to the US Dept of Agriculture;
monthly payments of S10.892 include interest of 2.375%

through November 2046 $ 2,343 $ 2,417
Note payable to a financial institution with entire

principal due June 2034; collateralized by land
and bujlding. The note payable is interest free 232 247

Note payable to a financial institution payable in interest free
monthly installments through December 2024; -
collateralized by associated equipment Z2 ' 55

Total nonobligated group debt 2,607 2,719

Total obligated group debt 1,037,932 1,044,722

Total long-term debt 1,040,539 1,047,441

Add: Original issue premium and discounts, net 80,112 83,249

Less: Current portion 15,236 6,596
Debt issuance costs, net . 6,453 6.806

Total long-term debt, net $ 1,098,962 $ 1,117,288

Aggregate annual principal payments for the next five years ending June 30 and thereafter are as
follows:

(in thousands of dollars) 2023

2024 $ 15,236

2025 19,363
2026 20,209

2027 20,915
2028 21,574
Thereafter 943.242

Total $ 1.040.539

Dartmouth-Hitchcock Obligated Group (DHOG) Debt

MHMH. established the DHOG for the purpose of issuing bonds financed through NHHEFA or the
"Authority". The members of the obligated group at June 30, 2023 consist of D-HH, MHMH, DHC,
NLH, MAHHC, and APD. The members of the obligated group at June 30, 2022 consisted of D-HH,
MHMH. DHC, Cheshire, NLH, MAHHC, and APD. D-HH is designated as the obligated group
agent.
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Effective June 26, 2023, after approval from the D-HH Board of Trustees, Cheshire withdrew from
the DHOG. The Cheshire Series 2012 bonds and the related obligated group note securing the
Cheshire bonds, will remain outstanding and therefore constitute a continuing joint and several
obligation of the DHOG.

Revenue t>onds, issued by members of the DHOG, are administered through notes registered in
the name of the Bond Trustee and in accordance with the terms of a Master Trust Indenture. The

Master Trust Indenture contains provisions permitting the addition, withdrawal, or consolidation of
members of the DHOG under certain conditions. The notes constitute a joint and several obligation
of the members of the DHOG (and any other future members of the DHOG) and are equally and
ratably collateralized by a pledge of the members' gross receipts. The DHOG is also subject to
certain annual covenants under the Master Trust Indenture, the most restrictive is the Annual Debt
Service Coverage Ratio (l.lOx). i

(1) Series 2018A and Series 2018B Revenue Bonds

The DHOG issued'NHHEFA Revenue Bonds, Series 2018A and Series 2018B, in February
2018. The Series 2018A revenue bonds mature in variable amounts through 2037 and were
used primarily to refund a portion of Series 2015A and Series 2016A revenue bonds. The
Series 2018B revenue bonds mature in variable amounts through 2048, and were used
primarily to refund a portion of Series 2015A and Series 2016A revenue, bonds, revolving line of
credit. Series 2012 bank loan, and the Series 2015A and Series 2016A swap terminations. The
interest on the Series 2018A revenue bonds is variable, with a current interest rate of 5.00%.
the interest on the Series 2018B revenue bonds is fixed, with an interest rate of 4.18%, and
matures in variable amounts through 2048.

(2) Series 2020A Revenue Bonds

The DHOG issued NHHEFA Revenue Bonds, Series 2020A, in February 2020. The Series
2020A revenue bonds mature in variable amounts through 2059 and the proceeds are being
used primarily to fund the construction of a 212,000 square foot inpatient pavilion in Lebanon,
NH, as well as various equipment. The interest on the Series 2020A revenue bonds is fixed,
with an interest rate of 5.00%.

(3) Series 2017A and Series 2017B Revenue Bonds

The DHOG issued NHHEFA Revenue Bonds, Series 2017A and Series 2017B, in December
2017. The Series 2017A revenue bonds mature in variable amounts through 2040 and were
used primarily to refund Series 2009 and Series 2010 revenue bonds. The Series 2017B
revenue bonds mature in variable amounts through 2031 and were used to refund Series
2012A and Series 2012B revenue bonds. The interest on the Series 2017A revenue bonds is
fixed, with an interest rate of 5.00%. The interest on the Series 2017B revenue bonds is fixed,
with an interest rate of 2.54%.

(4) Series 2019A Revenue Bonds

The DHOG issued NHHEFA Revenue Bonds, Series 2d19A, in October 2019. The Series
2019A revenue bonds mature in variable amounts through 2043 and were used primarily to
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fund the construction of a 91,000 square foot expansion of facilities in Manchester, NH, to
include an Ambulatory Surgical Center as well as various equipment. The interest on the

,  Series 2019A revenue bonds is fixed, with an interest rate of 4.00%.

(5) Series 2018C Revenue Bonds

The DHOG issued NHHEFA Revenue Bonds, Series 20180, In August 2018. The Series 20180
revenue bonds mature in variable amounts through 2030 and were used primarily to refinance
the Series 2010 revenue bonds. The interest on the Series is fixed, with an interest rate of
3.22%.

(6) Series 2012 Revenue Bonds

The DHOG issued NHHEFA Revenue Bonds, Series 2012, in November 2012. The Series

2012 revenue bonds mature in variable amounts through 2039 and were used to refund 1998
and 2009 Series revenue bonds, finance the settlement cost of the interest rate swap, and
finance the purchase of certain equipment and renovations. The revenue bonds have, fixed

interest coupon rates ranging from 2.0% to 5.0% (a net interest cost of 3.96%).

(7) Series 2014A and Series 2014B Revenue Bonds .

The DHOG issued NHHEFA Revenue Bonds. Series 2014A and Series 2014B, in August 2014.
The Series 2014A revenue bonds mature in 2022. The Series 2014B revenue bonds mature at

various dates through 2033. The proceeds from the Series 2014A and 2014B revenue bonds
were used partially to refund the Series 2009 revenue bonds and to cover cost of issuance.
Interest on the 2014A revenue bonds Js fixed, with an interest rate of 2.63%. Interest on the

Series 2014B revenue bonds is fixed, with an interest rate of 4.00%.

(8) Series 2016B Revenue Bonds

The DHOG issued NHHEFA Revenue Bonds, Series 2016B, in July 2016, through a private
placement with a financial institution. The Series 20168 revenue bonds mature at various

dates through 2045 and were used to finance certain 2016 projects. The Series 20168 is fixed,
with an Interest rate of 1.78%.

(9) Note payable'to financial institution

The DHOG issued a note payable to TD Bank in May 2020. Issued in response to the COVID-
19 pandemic, the proceeds from the note will be used to fund working capital, as needs require.
The note matures at various dates through 2035 and is fixed, with an interest rate of 2.56%.

Outstanding joint and several indebtedness of the DHOG at June 30, 2023 and 2022 is
$1,037,932,000 and $1,044,722,000', respectively.

The Health System Indenture agreements require establishment and maintenance of debt service
reserves and other trustee held funds. Trustee held funds of $17,310,000 and $99,397,000 at June
30. 2023 and 2022, respectively, are classified as assets limited as to use in the accompanying
Consolidated Balance Sheets (Note 5). In addition, debt service reserves of approximately $46,000
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and $6,674,000 at June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, are classified as other current assets in
the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. The debt service reserves are mainly comprised
of escrowed construction funds at June 30, 2023 and 2022.

For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 interest expense on the Health System's long-term
debt is reflected in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net
Assets as operating expense of approximately $34,515,000 and $32,113,000, respectively, and
other non-operating losses of $3,782,000 and $3,782,000, respectively, net of amounts capitalized.

11. Employee Benefits

Eligible employees of the Health System are covered under various defined benefit and/or defined
contribution plans. In addition, certain members provide postretirement medical and life insurance
benefit plans to certain active and former employees who meet eligibility requirements. The
postretirement medical and life plans are not funded.

The Health System's defined benefit plans have been frozen and. therefore, there are no remaining
participants earning benefits in any of the Health System's defined benefit plans.

Defined Benefit Plans

Net periodic pension expense included in employee benefits expense, in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets, is comprised of the following components
for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022;

(in thousands of dollars) 2023 2022

Interest cost on projected benefit obligation $ 45,924 $ 36,722
Expected return on plan assets (46,071) (65,917)

Net loss amortization 15,820 13,139

Total net periodic pension expense $ 15,673 $ (16,056)

The following assumptions were used to determine net periodic pension expense as of June 30,
2023 and 2022:

2023 2022

Disccunt rates 4.40%-5.10%, 3.30%

Rate of increase in compensation N/A N/A
Expected long-term rates of return on plan assets 4.40% - 7.25% 7.50%
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The following table sets forth the funded status and amounts recognized in the Health System's
consolidated financial statements for the defined benefit pension plans at June 30, 2023 and 2022:

(in thousands of dollars) 2023 2022

Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligation, beginning of year $  938,886 . 3i  1,140,221

Interest cost 45,924 36,722

Benefits paid (58,580) (54,864)

Actuarial loss (59,480) (183,193)

Benefit obligation, end of year 866,750 938,886

Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of year 747,095 958,864

Actual return on plan assets 1,229 (169,405)
Benefits paid (58,580) (54,864)
Employer contributions 12,500.

Fair value of plan assets, end of year 689,744 747,095

Funded status of the plans (177,006) (191,791)

Less: Current portion of liability for pension - -

Long-term portion of liability for pension (177,006) (191,791)

Liability for pension $  (177,006) 3;  (191,791)

As of June 30, 2023 and 2022, the liability for pension is included in the liability for pension and
other postretirement plan benefits in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Amounts not yet reflected in net periodic pension expense and included in the change in net assets
without donor restrictions include $489,486,000 and $519,946,000 of net actuarial loss as of
June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

The amounts amortized from net assets without donor restrictions into net periodic pension
expense in fiscal year 2023 for net actuarial losses was $15,820,000.

The following table sets forth the assumptions used to determine the accumulated benefit
obligation at June 30, 2023 and 2022:

Discount rates

Rate of Increase in compensation

2023

4.85 - 5.90%

N/A

2022

4.40-5.10%

N/A

The primary Investment objective for the defined benefit plans' assets is to support the pension
liabilities of the pension plans for employees of the Health System, by providing long-term capital
appreciation and by also using a Liability Driven Investing ("LDI") strategy to partially hedge the
impact fluctuating interest rates have on the value of the pension plan's liabilities. As of June 30.
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2023, it is expected that the LOI strategy will hedge approximately 70% of the interest rate risk
associated with pension liabilities. As of June 30, 2022, the- expected LDI hedge was
approximately 70%. To achieve the appreciation and hedging objectives, the pension plans utilize
a diversified structure of asset classes. The asset classes are designed to achieve stated
performance objectives, measured on a total return basis which includes income plus realized and
unrealized gains and losses.

The range of target allocation percentages and the target allocations for the various Investments
are as follows:

Cash and short-term investments

U.S. government securities
Domestic debt securities

Global debt securities

Domestic equities
International equities
Emerging market equities

Global Equities

Real estate investment trust funds

Private equity funds

Hedge funds

Range of

Target
Allocations

0-5%

0-10

20-58

6-26

5-35

5-15

3-13

0-10

0-5

0-5

5-18

Target
Allocations

3%

5

42

4

17

7

4

6

I

0

II

To the extent an asset class falls outside of its target range on a quarterly basis, the Health System
shall determine appropriate steps, as it deems necessary, to rebalance the asset class.

The Boards of Trustees of the Health System, as plan sponsors, oversee the design, structure, and
prudent professional management of the Health System's pension plans' assets, in accordance
with Board approved investment policies, roles, responsibilities, and authorities and more
specifically the following:

•  Establishing and modifying asset class targets with Board approved policy ranges,

•  Approving the asset class rebalancing procedures,

•  Hiring and terminating investment managers, and

•  Monitoring performance of the investment managers, custodians and investment consultants.

The hierarchy and inputs to valuation techniques to measure fair value of the Plans' assets are the
same as outlined in Note 7. In addition, the estimation of fair value of investments in private,equity
and hedge funds for which the underlying securities do not have a readily determinable value is
made using the NAV per share or its equivalent as a practical expedient. The Health System's
pension plans own interests in both private equity and hedge funds rather than in securities
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underlying each fund and, therefore, the Health System generally considers such investments as
Level 3, even though the underlying securities may not be difficult to value or may be readily
marketable.

The following table sets forth the Health System's pension plans' investments that were accounted
for at fair value as of June 30, 2023 and 2022:

2023

(in thousands of dollars)
Redemption Days'

Level 1 Level 2 Lovel ? Total or Llauidatlon Noti??

Investments

Cash and short-term investments $ $  10,667 $ $  10,667 Daily 1

U.S. government securities 22,919 - - 22,919 Daily-Monthly 1-15
Domestic debt securities 96,004 250,964 - 346,968 Daily-Monthly 1-15 •
Global debt securities

- - - • Daily-Monthly 1-15
Domestic equities 89,391 26,849 - 116,240 Daily-Monthly 1-10
Intemational equities 18,912 22,361 - 41,273 Daily-Monthly 1-11
Emerging martlet equities

- 26,743 • 26,743 Daily-Monthly 1-17
Global equities

- 52,461 - 52,461 Daily-Monthly 1-17
Private equity funds - • 13 13 See Note 5 See Note 5
Hedge funds

- - 72,460 72,460 Quarterly-Annual 60-96
Total investments S  227,226 $390,045 $ 72,473 $689,744

2022

Redemption Days'
(In thousands of dollars) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total or Llauidatlon Notice

Investments

Cash and short-term investments S $  16,030 $ S  16,030 Daily 1

U.S. government securities 124,686 - - 124,686 Daily-Monthly 1-15
Domestic debt securities 17,530 226,107 - 243,637 Daily-Monthly 1-15
Global debt securities 24,136 - 24,136 Daily-Monthly 1-15
Domestic equities 104,070 31,324 - 135.394 Daily-Monthly 1-10

International equities 15,558 20,406 - 35,964 Daily-Monthly 1-11
Emerging market equities

- 25,487 - 25,487 Dally-Monthly 1-17 ■

Global equities
- 54.787 ■ 54,787 Daily-Monthly 1-17

Private equity funds
- - 14 14 See Note 5 See Note 5

Hedge funds . . 86,960 86,960 Quarterty-Annual 60-96

Total investments S 261,844 $ 398,277 $ 86,974 S 747,095
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The following tables present additional information about the changes in Level 3 assets measured
at fair value for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022;

2023

^  Private
(in thousands of dollars) Hedae Funds Eauitv Funds Total

Beginning of year balances $  86,960 $  14 $ 86,974

Sales (13,013) - (13,013)

Net unrealized losses (1.487) (1) (1,488)

End of year balances $  72,460 $  . 13 $ 72,473

2022

Private

(in thousands of dollars) Hedae Funds Eauitv Funds Total

Beginning of year balances $  . 15,512 $  15 $ 15,527

Purchases 81,400 - 81,400

Sales (2,152) - (2.152)

Net unrealized losses (7,800) (1) (7,801)

End of year balances $  86,960 $  14 $ 86,974

The total aggregate net unrealized (losses) gains included in the fair value of the Level 3
investments as of June 30. 2023 and 2022 were approximately ($12,443,000) and ($543,000),
respectively. Hedge funds totaling $13,013,000 and $2,152,000 were liquidated in 2023 and 2022,
respectively.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 1, 2, or 3 measurements due to changes in valuation
methodologies during the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022.
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The weighted average asset allocation, by asset category, for the Health System's pension plans is
as follows at June 30, 2023 and 2022:

2023 2022

Cash and short-term investments 3% 2%

U.S. government securities 5 17

Domestic debt securities 42 33

Global debt securities 4 3

Domestic equities 17 18

International equities 7 5,

Emerging market equities 4 3

Global equities 6 7  ■

Hedge funds 12 12

Total 100% 100%

The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is reviewed annually, taking into consideration
the asset allocation, historical returns on the types of assets held, and the current economic
environment. Based on these factors, it is expected that the pension assets will earn an average of
7.25% per annum.

The Health System is expected to contribute approximately $15,888,000 to the Plans in 2024
however actual contributions may vary from expected amounts.

The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected
to be paid for the years ending June 30 and thereafter: -

(in thousands of dollars)

2024 $ 122,722

2025 58,784

2026 59,960

2027 61,029

2028 ■ 61,971
2029-2033 313,803

The Cheshire Medical Center plan was terminated effective June 30. 2022, pending regulatory
approvals. Following regulatory approval, the plan sponsor intends to distribute assets and settle
plan obligations through a lump sum offering to active and terminated vested participants and a
group annuity contract will be purchased for any participant that doesn't elect the lump sum, along
with all participants currently in pay status. The benefit obligation for the plan reflects anticipated
disbursement costs and a terminal cash contribution to fully, fund benefits will be made at that time.
The obligations reflect the cost of providing the lump sums and group annuity, described above, as
well as administrative costs and a terminal contribution which will tie necessary to fund all of the
costs of terminating the plan. It is expected that the obligations will be settled by June 30, 2024 and
the plan termination liability will reflect economic conditions, lump sum election rates and annuity
pricing at that time. As a result, the final plan termination liability may be different from the amounts
shown in this report.
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Defined Contribution Plane

The Health System has employer-sponsored plans for certain of its members, under which the
employer makes contributions based on specified percentages of compensation and employee
deferral amounts. Total employer contributions to the plan of approximately $71,152,000 and
$64,946,000 in 2023 and 2022, respectively, are included in employee benefits expenses in the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets.

Postretirement Medical and Life Insurance Benefits

The Health System has postretirement medical and life insurance benefit plans covering certain of
its active and former employees. The plans generally provide medical or medical and life insurance
benefits to certain retired employees who meet eligibility requirements. The plans are not funded.

Net periodic postretirement medical and life benefit (income) cost is comprised of the components
listed below for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022:

(in thousands of dollars)

Service cost

Interest cost

Net loss amortization .

Total

2023 2022

$  357 $ 456

1.956 1,394

6^ 752

$  2,375 $ 2,602

The following table sets forth the accumulated postretirement medical and life insurance benefit
obligation amounts recognized in the Health System's consolidated financial statements at June
30, 2023 and 2022:

(in thousands of dollars)

Change in benefit obligation
Accumulated benefit obligation, beginning of year
Service cost

Interest cost

Benefits paid,

Actuarial loss

Employer contributions

Accumulated benefit obligation, end of year

Current portion of liability for postretirement
medical and life benefits

Long-term portion of liability for

postretirement medical and life benefits

Funded status of the plans and liability for
postretirement medical and life benefits

2023

40,315

357

1,956

(3,588)

(6,355)

32,685

2022

46,863

456

1,394

(3,401)

(4,964)

(33)

40,315

$  (3,386) S (3,500)

(29,299) (36,815)

$  (32,685) $ (40,315)
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As of June 30, 2023 and 2022, the liability for postretirement medical and life insurance benefits is
included in the liability for pension and other postretirement plan benefits in the accompanying
Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Amounts not yet reflected in net periodic income for the postretirement medical and life insurance
benefit plans, included in the change in net assets without donor restrictions, are as follows: •

(in thousands of dollars) 2023 2022

Net actuarial (income) loss (1,970) 4,445

Total $ (1,970) $ 4.445

The following future benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are
expected to be paid for the years ending June 30. 2023 and thereafter:

(in thousands of dollars)

2024 $ 3,486

2025 3,424

2026 3,396

2027 3,387

2028 3,227

2029-2033 14,893

In determining the accumulated t)enefit obligation for the postretirement medical and life insurance
plans, the Health System used a discount rates of 6.00 - 6.10% in 2023, and an assumed
healthcare cost trend rate of 6.50 - 7.00%, trending down to 5.00% in 2029 and thereafter.

12. Professional and General Liability Insurance Coverage

D-H, along with Dartmouth College, Cheshire, NLH, ARD, MAHHC, and VNH are provided
professional and general liability insurance on a claims-made basis through Hamden Assurance
Risk Retention Group, Inc. (RRG), a VT captive insurance company. RRG cedes the majority of
this risk to Hamden Assurance Company Limited (HAC), a captive insurance company domiciled in
Bermuda, and HAC cedes a portion of this risk to a variety of commercial reinsurers. D-H has

• majority ownership interest in both HAC and RRG. The insurance program provides coverage to
the covered institutions, named insureds and their employees on a modified claims-made basis,
which means coverage is triggered when claims are made. Premiums and related insurance
deposits are actuariaily determined,- based on asserted liability claims adjusted for future
development. The reserves for outstanding losses are recorded on an undiscounted basis.
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Selected financial data of HAG and RRG, taken from the latest available financial statements at
June 30, 2023 and 2022, are summarized as follows;

2023

HAG RRG Total

(in thousands of dollars)

Assets $  93,777 $  2,372 $ 96,149
Shareholders' equity 13,620 50 13,670

2022

HAG RRG Total

(In thousands of dollars)

Assets $  79,831 $  2,245 $ 82,076
Shareholders' equity 13,620 50 13,670

13. Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation
The Health System Is involved in various malpractice claims and legal proceedings of a nature
considered normal to its business. The claims are in various stages and some may ultimately be
brought to trial. It is the opinion of management that the final outcome of these claims will not have
a material effect on the consolidated financial position of the Health System.

Line of Credit

The Health System has entered into a loan agreement with a financial institution, establishing
access to a revolving loan of up to $100,000,000. Interest is variable and determined using the
Bloomberg Short-Term Bank Yield Index or the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate. The loan
agreement is due to expire October 3, 2024. The outstanding line of credit balance was
$40,000,000 and $0 as of June 30. 2023 and 2022, respectively. Interest expense was
approximately $1,200,000 and $91,000, respectively, and is included in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets.

14. Functional Expenses

Operating expenses are presented by functional classification in accordance with the overall
service missions of the Health System. Each functional classification displays all expenses related
to the underlying operations by natural classification. Salaries, employee benefits, medical supplies
and medications, and purchased services and other expenses are generally;considered variable
and are allocated to the mission that best aligns to the type of service provided. Medicaid
enhancement tax is allocated to program services. Interest expense is allocated based on usage of
debt-financed space. Depreciation and amortization is allocated based on square footage and
specific identification of equipment used by department.
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Operating expenses of the Health .System by functional and .natural basis are as follows for the
year ended June 30. 2023;

2023

Program Management

(in thousands of dollars) Services and General Fundralslna Total

Operating expenses

Salaries $ 1.238,158 $  183,063 $ 1,870 $ 1,423,091
Employee benefits 293,359 38,778 249 332,386
Medical supplies and medications 722,957 2,517 6 725,480
Purchased services and other 305,192 148.439 5,270 .458,901

Medicaid enhancement tax 85,715 - - 85,715
Depreciation and amortization 45,702 44,707 48 90,457

Interest 8,470 26,037 8 34,515

Total operating expenses $ 2,699,553 $  443,541 $ 7,451 $ 3,150,545

Program Management
Services and General Fundralslna Total

Non-operating expense
Employee benefits $  15,606 $  2,077 $ 8 $  17,691

Total non-operating expense $  15,606 $  2,077 S 8 $  17,691
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Operating expenses of the Health System
year ended June 30, 2022:

by functional and natural basis are as follows for the

2022

Proaram Management
(in thousands of dollars) Services and General Fundraisina Total

Operating expenses

Salaries $ 1,129,572 $  184,533 $ 1,302 $ 1,315.407
Employee benefits 2^1,455 40,887 228 322,570
Medical supplies and medications 6^ 5,437 3,835 -■ 649,272
Purchased services and other 2£ 5,639 142,241 5,982 403,862
Medicaid enhancement tax fi 2,725 - . 82,725
Depreciation and amortization 412,227 44,675 56 86,958
Interest b.iie 22,987 10 32,113

Total operating expenses $.2.4415.171 $  439,158 $ 7,578 $ 2.892,907

Program
Servilces

Non-operating Income
Employee benefits

Total non-operating income

Management
and General

$  12,144 $

$  12,144 $

Fundraisina

1.755 $ 11

1.755 $

Total

$  13,910

11 $ 13,910
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15. Liquidity

The Health System is substantially supported by cash generated from operations. In addition, the
Health System holds financial assets for specific purposes which are limited as to use. Thus,
certain financial assets reported on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets may not be
available for general expenditure within one year of the balance sheet date.

The Health System's fmancia! assets available at June 30, 2023 and 2022 to meet cash needs for
general expenditures within one year of June 30, 2023 and 2022, are as follows:

(in thousands of dollars) 2023 2022

.  Cash and cash equivalents $ 115,996 $ 191,929

Patient accounts receivable 289,787 251,250

Assets limited as to use 1,071,462. 1,181,094
Other investments for restricted activities 182,224 175,116

Total financial assets $ 1,659,469 $ 1,799,389

Less: Those unavailable for general expenditure
within one year:

Investments held by captive insurance companies 76,830 57,522
Investments for restricted activities 182,224 175,116

Bond proceeds held for capital projects 17,310 99,397
Other investments with liquidity horizons

greater than one year 141,810 159,792

Total financial assets available within one year $ 1,241,295 $ 1,307,562

The Health System, used cash flow from operations of approximately $(164,033,000) and
$(123,525,000) for the years ended June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022, respectively. In addition, the
Health System's liquidity management plan includes investing excess daily cash in intermediate or
long term investments based on anticipated liquidity needs. The Health System has an available
line of credit of up to $100,000,000 which it can draw upon as needed to meet its liquidity needs.
See Note 13 for further details on the line of credit.

16. Lease Commitments

D-HH determines if an arrangement is or contains a lease at inception of the contract. Right-of-use
assets represent our right to use the underlying assets for the lease term and our lease liabilities
represent our obligation to make lease payments arising from the leases. Right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities are recognized at commencement date, based on the present value of lease
payments over the lease term. The Health System uses the implicit rate noted within the contract. If
not readily available, the Health System uses an estimated incremental borrowing rate, which is
derived using a collateralized borrowing rate, for the same currency and term, as the associated
lease. A right-of-use asset and lease liability is not recognized for leases with an initial term of 12
months or less, rather the Health System recognizes lease expense for these leases on a straight-
line basis, over the lease term, within lease and rental expense.
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Operating leases are primarily for real estate, including certain acute care facilities, off-campus'
outpatient facilities, medical office buildings, and corporate and other administrative offices. Real
estate lease agreements typically have initial terms of 3 to 8 years. These real estate leases may
include one or more options to renew, with renewals that can extend the lease term from 2 to 5
years. The exercise of lease renewal options is at the Health System's sole discretion. When
determining the lease term, management includes options to extend or terminate the lease when it
is reasonably certain that the Health System will exercise that option.

Certain lease agreements for real estate ihclude payments based on actual common area
maintenance expenses and/or rental payments adjusted periodically for inflation. These variable
lease payments are recognized in other occupancy costs in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations and Changes in Net Assets, but are not included in the right-of-use asset or liability
balances In our Consolidated Balance Sheets. Lease agreements do not contain any material
residual value guarantees, restrictions, or covenants.

The components of lease expense for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

(in thousands of dollars) 2023 2022

Operating lease cost $ 9,590 $ 9,573
Variable and short term lease cost (a) 10,608 10,894

Total lease and rental expense

Finance lease cost:

Depreciation of property under finance lease
Interest on debt of property under fihance lease

Total finance lease cost ,

$ 20,198 $ 20,467

$ 3,778 $ 3,345
- 546 448

$ 4,324' $ 3,793

(a) Includes equipment, month-to-month and leases with a maturity of less than 12 months.

Supplemental cash flow information related to leases for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022
are as follows:

(in thousands of dollars) 2023 2022

Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement

of lease liabilities:

Operating cash flows from operating leases $ 10,067 $ 9,952
Operating cash flows from finance leases 546 448
Financing cash flows from finance leases 3,599 3,255

Total $• 14.212 $ ^13,655
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Supplemental balance sheet information related to leases as of June 30, 2023 and 2022 are as
follows:

(in thousands of dollars) 2023 2022

Operating Leases

Right-of-use assets • operating leases $ 59,258 $ 61,165
Accumulated amortization (26,731)

Right-of-use assets - operating leases, net 32,527 39,943

Current portion of right-of-use obligations
Long-term right-of-use obligations, excluding current portion

7;799
25,386

8,314

32,207

Total operating lease liabilities 33,185 40,521

Finance Leases

Right-of-use assets - finance leases

Accumulated depreciation

Right-of-use assets - finance leases, net

32,837

(9.836)

23,001

27,963

.  (8.981)

18,982

Current portion of right-of-use obligations
Long-term right-of-use obligations, excluding current portion

3,535

20,285

3.005

^  16,617

Total hnance lease liabilities $ 23,820 $ 19,622

Weighted Average remaining lease term, years
Operating leases
Finance leases

7.54

15.73

7.73

19.77

Weighted Average discount rate

Operating leases
Finance leases

2.36%

3.46%

2.24%

2.17%

The System obtained $3.6 million and $9.2 million of new and modified operating and financing
leases, respectively, during the year ended June 30, 2023.

The System obtained $8.9 million and $0.1 million of new and modified operating and financing
leases, respectively, during the year ended June 30, 2022.
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Future maturities of lease liabilities as of June 30, 2023 are as follows:

(in thousands of dollars) Operating Leases Finance Leases

Year ending June 30:

2024 $  8,474 $ 4,265
2025 5,841 3;336
2026 4.311 2,869
2027 3,475 1,900
2028 2,784 1,701
Thereafter 11,340 15,043

Total lease payments 36,225 29,114
Less: Imputed interest 3,040 5,294

Total lease obligations $  33,185 $ 23,820

17. Subsequent Events

The Health System has assessed the impact of subsequent events through November 17. 2023.
the date the audited consolidated financial statements were Issued, and has concluded that there

were no such events that require-adjustment to the audited consolidated financial statements or

disclosure in the notes to the audited consolidated financial statements other than as noted below.

On July 3, 2023, D-HH affiliated with Southern Vermont Health Care Corporation and its

subsidiaries ("SVHC"). including Southwestern Vermont Medical Center. Inc. ("SVMC"). a 99-bed
community hospital located in Bennington, Vermont. Integrating SVHC into the D-HH System gives
D-HH an inpatient presence in southwestern Vermont with reach into eastern New York state and

northwestern Massachusetts markets.

In October 2023, the Health System issued a note payable in the amount of $100,000,000 to ID
Bank. The note matures at various dates through 2033, and is fixed, with an interest rate of
6.17%.
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Dartmeutiv AUaa Pack Now Lendan Mt Asawtnay OH ObUgilad AB Olhar Nan- HmUi
Hhehceck Dartmeutlw Day Heapltal Heapltal and Qreup OMlg Oreup 8yalam

(In thoumndi 0/ Oolan) Haahh Mhehteoli aatmnrial Ataoelallen Haahh Cantor Fllminatlen. 8ubtatal Amiiittt rtlmlniflona CentoNdatad

Currtnt iiMi

Cuh ind uih tqulvsldnlt 2.375 $ 202 5 40,750 S  32.082 5  11.462 8 9  86.871 9  29.125 5 9  115.996
PtUini iceounit racaiwiBll. OM

- 241.747 10,666 11.022 7,607 271,244 18.543 289,767
Prepaid (qwAMt and olhar eurrtnl aiaalf ig.$s2 210.275 2.374 Z449 2.009 (36 7891 199 870 2.619 (18.385) .184 104

Total currtnl ataala 21.927 452.224 53,992 46.553 21,076 (36.789) 557.965 50.287 (18.365) 589.887

AiMta tniled aa lo um 136.937 632.605 13.089 17.990 25,766 (16.760) 1.009.937 61.525 1,071.462
Noiaa racat>aMa. ralaiad party ' 643,»t6 14.308 566 (644.777) 14.065 (566) (13.477) .

OBiar nvastmanta lor raawoad acUviUas 5 126,671 -  2.632 3.200 7.206 139,722 42.502
Pioparty, plant, and aqtdpmani. not 624,394 27.724 44.547 16.260 712.925 96.697 . 611,622
RigN-okuaa aault, nat 344 32,619 14.967 286 4.667 53.313 2.215 . 55,528
Otharaaieta 1.943 168 736 13.798 6.622 4.688 . 195.787 (2.454) . 193.333

Tal4 aaaala $ I.00S.I02 5 2,252,047 5 120,790 t  116.204 $  79.917 t  (696.326) 9  2.683.734 9  252.164 9 (31.882) 9  2.904.050

Lbbliltaa and Net Ataats

Currant habilllia*

Cunam portion of lonp4arm dabl t 13.365 5 . 5 825 5  21 9  II 9 9  . 14,222 9  1.014 9
Currant portion ol rtghi-oi:^M oMgaiiona 204 ■ 9.136 759 49 422 10,670 764 11.334
Urtaolcradt 40.000 40.000 40,000
Cunani portion ol laMty lor paniion artd -

olhar poMrataamanl plan bartallt* 3.366 3.386 3,366
AcGounta payaMa and accntad axpanaat 23.590 151.473 5,300 3,975 8.173 (53.549) 136,962 26.170 (18,385) 146,747
Accruad companaation and ralatad OarMHa 119,718 3,549 3,192 4.491 130.950 6,517 137,467
Ellimalad Ihrd^ity Mdlantanta - 28.560 12.588 18.245 59 393 4.967 64.360

Total cunam kabWaa 37.159 352.273 .  23.021 25.482 13.097 (53.549) 3971483 39.43? (18.365) 418.530

Noiaa payaMa, ralatnd party 600,163 27,044 17.570 (844.777) 13,477 (13.477)
Lonp^arm dabi, aiohiding Mirant pertien 1.028.666 25,113 21.956 11 (105) 1.075.641 23,321 1.098.962
Rigftt4*ruia oOigatJont, axdudlng currant portion 140 24,333 14.786 243 4,635 44.137 1,534 45,671
hauraiKa dapotat and ralatad KabAwa 89,947 322 253 283 90,805 544 91.349
UaMity lor panilon and othar peuratiramanl
plan banafta, antuding currant portion 197.049 368 197.417 6.668 206.305
Other Uabktia* 146.553 366 2.065 150.984 22.934 173.918

Total babdliai 1065 965 1.637.431 60.451 55.098 35 648 (896.326) 1.958.467 110.130 ai 662) 2.034.735

Commamanli and contirrganeiai

Nat aitoit

Nat asaaia without donor raatrictiona (60.673) 476.653 63,706 56,347 35.455 573.290 85,656 40
Nat aaaau with donor rattrletioru 10 137.963 2.631 4.759 6.614 153.977 56.396 (40) 210.333

Total nai astali (60.663) 614.616 66.339 63.106 44.069 727.267 142.054 869.321

Total kabiUiai and not aiaata 1.005,102 2.252,047 126,790 S  118,204 t  79,917 9  (896.326) 9  2.683.734 9  252,164 (31,662) 9  2,904,056

49



OocuSign Envelop* ID; 74FD520F.eEFe^932-A532-2r3E83eADCD6

Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Consolidating Balance Sheets
June 30. 2023

IM1H

and Otfier (Ml and Chetfdra arKf MAHHC and APD and VNHand
(In Ihoutandt of doSars) SutMidiirlei Substdlirtes 9v98i4ifirtn NLH Subsidiaries Subsidiary Subsidiaries

Aasets

Cunent assets

Cash and catfi equivslents 5  2,375 i  1,470 S  1S.9t1 8 32,082 5  11,691 8  50.139 8  2,328
Psbant accoutvs reeeivabia, rtet . 241,747 17,253 11,022 7,709 10,888 1,098
PrepM e^ense* and ottw current assets 19,552 210.708 1.504 2.449 1.992 2.284 789

Total currant asaats 21,927 453,925 34,666 45,553 21.482 63.291 4,215

Assets limited as to use 136,937 860,436 13,376 17,900 27,090 13.089 19,304
Note* receivable, related peny 843,946 14,306 . . .

Other Invesimeni* for restricted aetf\4ties 5 134,091 34,711 3,206 7,209 2.911 91

Property, plant and equipment net . . 627,070 72,289 44.547 17,593 44,435 5,588
Right-oFuse esseta, net 344 32,819 2,145 286 4,698 14,967 69
Other aseets 1.043 186.902 7.130 6.822 2.231 6.505 .

Total assets S  1,005,102 8  2,291,551 8  164,319 S 118,204 S  80,503 8  145.198 8  29,367

IJ«bimi*» tnd N«t A»mU

Current Mbilttie*

Current ponion el lono-ierm debt
Cuneni portkyi of rlghi-oFuee oUs*l)On*
Una of credit

Current portion of liability for peneion and
other postreiirement plw benefit*
Account* payable and accrued expenae*
Accrued compenaabon and related betwfiu
Estimated Utird-perty setdement*

Total current babAlie*

Note* payable, related party
Lonp^atm debt, excluding current portion
RighMkjse obligations, excluding current pcrtion
IncurarKe depoail* and related labttiee
Uablity lor pension and other postretlremartt
plan benefits, exdudbg current portion
Other liablillesi

Total tabiitiei

Commitments and contingenciea

Net aaset*

Nat assets wtmoui donor rttuictions

Net assets vdth donor restriction*

Total net asaats

Total kabAliea and net assets

S  13.38$
284

23,590

9.t36

40,000

3.368

152.515
119.710

26.560

9tS

735

22.816

5,406

4.928

3,975

3.192

18,245

36

423

6.312

4,564

625

759

5,990
3,907

12.568

37.159

1.028.666

140

353,315

600.163

25,113

24,333

69.947

197.049

148.553

34.802

10,477
20,907

1,493

500

8.888

1.500

25,482

27,044

243

253

13,335

17,570

89

4.635
283

368

24,089

21,907

14.788

322

(60,873)
10

507.534

145,544
37.307

48,445

56,347

4,759

35,609
6,614

59,404

2.910

Elimlnattens

(55,1741

(55,174)

(16.760)
(656.254)

1,481

660

39

2,302

•3,000

2.269

41

21,620

91

Heatth

System
Consolidated

115,996

289,787

184.104

589,667

1,071,462

182,224

811,622

55.528

193,333

(930,188) S 2,904,056

S  15.236
11.334

40,000

(71,934)

(71,934

(858,254

(930.1881

3.368

148,747
137,467

64.360

418,530

1,098,962

45,671

91.349

206,305

173,916

556,968

(60.8831 653.078 85.752 63.106 44.223 62.314 21.711 . 869,321

8  1.005.102 8 2.291.551 8 164,319 8 110.204 S 80,503 8 145.198 8 29.367 8 (630,188) 8 2,904,050
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Consolidating Balance Sheets
June 30, 2022 .

ffnaarafe ofclaf^

A(Mt*

CurMMMa

C«h m cMh «qutv«ena
PKitfll KUira iK«h«Ue. M

PttptU etpenm rd cdweunan «n«t»

TeWcurrmttMtt

AcseSlinMwlOiM

Mom {KtlfeMt. rrisM peny
Offer k»Mtm*na lot rtttricMd KtMbM

Preperty, pfan. ind iqvipnitnt. n*t

■***(*
OffWHMtt

TWlMMtl

UaMltlMtndHMAtMb
Currart k*Mtie>

Cutrtfi ponicn d lD(v<Mn dm
Cuntflt ponlon ol rlght4<w ottgaffore
Cunm ponaon cf kaSdiy Iv pentlon *rd
cffMT poMrMnmM fbn b«n«ta
AccmM peyiHi ind eccrwd *ipen*«*
Acovtd cernptflMllon end ramd Mn«la
Estimated SimHeit'/ eedtmena

Teal ontKbaeati

Notes peyme, reliied petty
ler^^erm dePt. exdudlng cutrenl potion
Rgnsokee ae*eaaane. eirduding ofrert poitian
Insurance depotiie and rallied bMtiei
LiaPiiy (or peteion end effier poeiretaement
plan benefti. esduding current portion

Offer bbOies

Total bbiiiM

Coinrriiments end cenanpeneies
NeiRseti

Net eaects vNhoui donor rebieffona
Net iseets with donor restrictiona

Total net ettett

Totalbbiiaeiandneiasem t 1,171,202

147,S2S

3002

tSt.16

<03

1,196,333

{2S,S3S

DartmoutTK
- Ch^re AlieePeck Hew London ML Aecvtney OH Obieeied AH Offier Nen> Health

HKoiieoelE Oerffneuffi- Medical Day HoapftM HntpltMand Qtevp Ot(g Group Syatem
Healtfi HItehenek Center Memerbl Heefth Comer FTlmhittnne '  Subtotal Atflllatas Fllmlnettnnt CensoMaM

3  20S6 3  66827 3  20,163 3  38,416 3  28.467 3  11,327 3 3  167,258 3  24,671 3 3  191,929
206.40} 16,106 9,617 X  9.175 5,360 248,858 2,392

23,361 161262 19 380 3.522 4.452 1,472 (31,1191 182 730 (11372)
25,6)7 434,489 37,851 51,755 42»4 18.159 (31,119) 598,646 15,691 (2,225) 612,312

301.CO0 836919 12,665 14.680 18.C05 25,753 (98,8481 1,130.174 50,920 1,181,094
11,557 803 • (853,809) 603 (803)

118.062 16,422 727 3 925 6,846 • ■146.492 28.624 175.116
585,064 63,067 24,757 45973 15,526 734,387 30,453

1.362 33,321 1.630 14,892 166 5.249 £8,620 105
681 143,318 1,187 14,391 8573 4.983 174,331 (2.1681

3  1,171,202 3  2.189,948 3  153,022 3  122003 3  114.738 3  76,516 3  (983,576) 3  2,843,653 3  122,822 3  (2.225) 3  2,964,450

)
5_

ITSMJ)

4,810
8,314

883 3 , 800 3
889 832

23 3
172

6498 3
11,239

98 3
60

3,500 3,500
100,110 16,507 4.863 4.843 8,693 (129,967) 152795 6,002
169,194 6,817 4,431 4,507 4,434 189.383 1,177
66.876 22,999 17,488 21.886 647 134.698

3K.004 47,9n 26,454 31.431 14,247 (129,967) 498.333 7,337

806,602 27,437 17,570 (853.605)
25,064 21.887 23,080 , 32 (110) 1.114,778 2,510
27,359 1,233 14,499 ' 4.885 48,779 45
76,678 823 373 401 250 78,325 66

220,350 7,774 481 228,605 1
129.092 1,109 300 1749 132250 21.846

1642169 80.583 66.686 61050 37,323 (963,578) 2101.07O 31.805

418.2S5 53,848 54,590 48974 31.078 580,905 53,352
129,524 18.793 729 4,712 8,115 161876 37,665
547,779 724J9 55.319 53.686 39.193 742 783 91,017

3  2189,948 3 153.022 3 122.005 3 114,736 3 76,516 3 (983,576) 3 2,843.853 3 122,622

(2.223)

R22S)

J2n$l

49
1401

8.396
1t,319

3.SC0
136,372
190,560
134,898

503,443

1.117,288
48,624
78,391

228,6C6
154,056

2130,850

634,297
199.303

^  633,800
(2223) 3 2,964.430
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DartmouthrHitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Consolidating Balance Sheets
June 30, 2022

(h tfxxiMnOs 0/ doUtrs)

Aeeet*

Cunent MteU

Cuh and c«»h equtvalenu
Patteni accounts racaivaUa. nai
PrapaM axpansa* and'otnar cuirani assau

Total currant assets

AtMis Umiiad as to uaa

Notes raceivaMa. related party
Other Invastmams for restricted actlvittas

Property, planL artd apulpmant net
Righl-oFusa assets, net
Other assau

Total assets

Uabllltlat and Nat Assala

Current fcaUliias

Currant portion of lonp-ttrm debt
Current portion of right-oFusa oblgatiorts
Current portion of tability lot panilon and
other poatrellremars otan banants
Accounu payable ar>o accrued expanses
Accrued companaciion artd related banaflu
Eitimaiad thircFparty sadlamanu

Total euranl UabliUet

Notes paytbla. ralatad party
Loni^tarm debt, excluding currant portion
Rtghi-of-usa ottUgatioru. axdudng currant portion
Inauranca daposiu and ralatad liabilitias
Liabttty for partsion nd other poatratiramanl
plan bartellu. excluding currant portion
Other liabCtias

Total llabilitlaa

Commibnants and eonlingancias

Nat assau

Nat assets wtihout donor restrictions

Nat issais with donor rastrtctioru

Total net assau

Total IWiilities and net essaU

and Other

Subsldleriaa

2,050

301.000

042,052

490

1.362
681

147,626

3,002

151,187

1,044.845

803

0-N end

Subsidiaries

$  68.075
206.400

161.508

435.983

884,007

11,557

125.614

587,739

35.321
148,699

(25.636)
5

4.610
6.514

3.500

100,817

169,194

66,876

355,511

608.602

25.084

27.359

76,678

220.350

129.092

447,013

137,231

Cheshire and

Subsldlsrias

32,500

18,106

8,296

56.902

13.183

37.124

86.385

1.830

8.316

1.171.202 8 2.226,920 8 185.740

18,726
6,617

22,090

48.006

21.867

1.233

623

7,774

1.109

56,674

48.364

23

172

4.843

4,507

21,686

31,431

27,437

32

1,749

48,074

4,712

UAHHCand APD and VNH ai>d Syttam
NLH Subtldlarfai Subsldiirv Subsldlsrias EllmlneHons Centelldttad

5  26,467 8  11,631 8  47,894 8  1.306 8 8  191.929

9.175 6.431 9.817 2.321 . 251.250

4.452 1,499 2.676 483 (33.344) 169,133

42.094 16,561 60.389 4.110 (33.344) 612.312

16,005 26,979 14.680 24.066 (98,648) 1.181.094
• - (853,609)

3,925 6,646 1,031 66 175,116
45,973 16,947 42,436 5,360 764.640

166 5,248 14,692 106 58.925
6.S73 2,526 7.292 76 172.163

8  114,736 S  77,107 8  140.720 8  33.826 8  (965,801) 8  2.064.450

26

472

6.831

4.490

647

800

652

5,461

4.735

17,488

4.640

817

5  6.596

11.319

(132.192)

14,466

17,670

110

4,665

250

482

29,356

23.005
14.499

373

5.590

2,345

45

66

(132,192)

(653,609)

89.379 (985.601)

31,231

8.113

50,308

1,033

25.695

85

(25.633) 564.244 105,038 53.686 39.344 51,341 25,780 833.800

8  1,171,202 8 2.226.920 8 185.740 8 114.736 8 77,107 8 140.720 8 33,626 8 (985.801) 8 2.064.450

3.SC0

156,572

190,560

134,896

503,445

1,117,288

'  48,624

78.301

228,606

154.090

634,297

199.503
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Consolidating Statements of Operations and Changes In Net Assets without Donor Restrictions
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Dartmouth- AicePKk Hew l.ondon ULAseutney , OHObfigaied AOOtier Noo- HaaUi

Khcheoek Oarboeirih- Day Hospital Hespltxl end Group Obfg Croup System

Health Hitchcock Memorial Atsacletim Hetkh Csfiitt EHmlnttiens Subtoal AfrnatH Flmlnalleot CensoWated

Operatho r*<r*tui« wd ePiat lupport
Palcnl service rev«M i 1  t.(S9.079 3  93.605 3  (7,355 3  63.606 3 3  2.136.)45 3  259.012 3 3  2.397.157

ConSsdeditvenua ' i.tU I41.S62 149 St 3,657 (799) 148.454 336 (64.444) 64.343

Odwr epertfog revenue. 36.7SS $7(.90S 4264 6.435 2.t34 (43,933) 534.62) 3U1t (7,557) 603.875

Net luett rdeaud torn restridion • 12.763 100 316 284 13,463 1.330 14.343

Tetd epetaing revenue arxletwtuppart 40.S90 2621.369 103.113 94,707 69.631 (44.782) 2.(34.663 292.539 (72,001) 3.10542)

Operating cipenies
Salaries . t.163.341 49.062 46,198 28,947 436 1.308.034 162,396 (47.639) 1,423.091
Employee benetti - 276i06 9.020 3221 3.278 1.697 303.322 36,910 (8,346) 332436
Medcations irtd medcd tupplei • 650.157 13.130 11252 4,379 . 679.513 45.962 725,430

Purchased services end oSier 20277 366203 15.321 11,634 21.278 (13.642) 417,471 56.691 (1S.2SI) 453,901

Uedlcak) enhancameni tti • 66.(05 4,426 3,366 2,273 . 75,870 9445 35,715
Otprtdalien and amortiution » 63.566 3,372 4,775 2,311 . . 79.025 11.432 90.457
tntercst 1S.194 23.101 605 1.064 479 (30.386) 33257 1444 (2861 34.515

Tolil opcrafng eipenses S1.472 2.639.379 95.636 87.410 67.945 (48,645) 2.896.997 325430 (71.732) 3.150.545

Operating (loss] margin (12.U2) (13.010) 7.482 7,297 1,736 2.063 (12,314) (32.741) (269) (45.3241

Non«epetating gains (Iosms)
trvestmeni gains (losses), net 1.J73 48,094 881 1,113 915 (752) 52,124 6,067 (72) 53.119
OSwr components o> net petlork pension n) pott

(16269)retkement beneit income - (16.269) (OKI (17.691)
Odier (losses) hcofflt. net 110.043) 250 - 509 337 (1.311) (11.3031 2.437 341 (3.5301

Total norMperatng (losses) gaina, net (9.2701 32,075 331 1.622 1.302 12.063) 24.547 7.032 269 31.893

(Detdency) eiceu ol revenue over eipenses (22.152) 14.065 8.363 3.919 3.036 • 12.233 (25459) (13,426)

KM assets wKhM donor restrictioni

Net easets rdsased torn rastrlclions lor capltsi 2.139 56 26 233 . 2,454 776 3429
Change in kinded status of pension and oditr
postretrsmant banitts - 37.322 114 • 37,436 (2.535) 34,90t

Net assets taitslerted to (torn) afCkaies (13.0(3} 4.331 703 423 992 - (6.079) 6,079

oner chenget In net esses • m (4) "(13) 113)

(Oeoitse) inacase in net asstS wiSMui donor
reatricttons (  (35235) 3  53.393 3  9,118 3  9,373 3  4,377 3 3  46,031 3  (21.340) 3 3  24,691
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Consolidating Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets without Donor Restrictions
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Dirbnouth*

Hltcheook Msnd Chashirs and MAHHCsnd APDand ' VNH and Syttam
(b dwosands oldofisrs) Haslth RuhvMlsria* SubsWIartas KLH SubsWIarlaa Subsldlirv Subsldlirlat FlifnlniOsns ConaoltdMad

Opanting ravanua and olhar support
Patiant seMca ravenua 5 t  1,686.079 S  245,687 % 87.655 5  63.6CB S  98,605 %  13.125 } X  2.397.IS7
Coniractad ravanua 3,634 141,615 84 51 3,656 149 . (65,243) 64.346
Olhar oparaling ravanua 36.756 581,102 15.546 6.485 3,974 14,641 1,909 (51>»0) 608,875
Nal auals rataaiad from rastrlctions 13,358 747 318 293 129 14.643

Tom oparaling ravenua and olhar support 40590 2.624,354 262.266 94.707 71.529 113.524 -  15,034 (116,783) 3.105.221

Opentlng expenMi
Sttarttt

EmptoyM bmUs
M»<tlcaiions ind niMical tuppMi
Fufchiud MfMCM and Mhw

Madlcak) anhancamant lax

Oapreciation and amorttealion
Inarast

Toul oparaling axpantaa

O'paraikig (bu) margin

Naixparating gains (losaat}
bivassman gains (tossas). net
Other componanU of nal periodic pertsion and post
rainmant MnaH ineonta

Olhar (lossas) Incoma. rval

Total rtotHtparating gairts (lossas). nal

20,277

1

33,194

S3.472

(l2,Ma

1,373

(10.6431

1,163,341

276,606
650,157

360,991

65,805
66,566

29,101

2.642,467

(18.113)

50245

(16,269)
250

144,785

33,677

45,073

44.961
9,644

0,945

1,031

288.316

(26,050)

2,369

(1.422)
2,361

(9,2701 3,328

403

1,400 1280

46,198 20,620 53,203 13,097 (47.353) 1,423,091
8,321 6,435 10,002 2.095 (6,650) 332.386
11,652 4,382 13,149 672 (5) 725.480
11.834 22,074 19,198 4.471 (33,903) 456.901
3.386 2,274 4,426 . 85.715
4.775 2.425 5,203 542 90.457
1,064 480 1.115 201 (30,671) 34,515

87,410 69.890 106.294 21,278 (116.562) 3,150,545

7,297 1,639 7 230 (6J44) ),799 . (45,324)

1,113 997 1.111 1,220 P29) 56,119

iMTOl.
(17,691)
(6.530)

(DaOeianey] axcau of ravanua ever aj^ansas (22.152) 16,113 (22.722) . 8.919 3,039 6.341 (4.964) (13,426)

Nal sssats withaut doner rastiletians

Nat assals ralaasad from rastrlcilons lor capU 2.223 691 26 233 56 3,229
Changa in iutvdad status ol pansbn ind Mhar
postratiramant banafils .. 37,322 (2,535) 114 34,901
Nal sssats inntferrad to (torn) iSksias (13,063) 4,872 5,199 428 992 703 669
Olhar changas in nal assals (9) . . (4) (13)

(Dacrassa) incrassa si nat tssais wUhoul donor
rasidcUons 5 (35,235) X 60,521 5 (19,367) X 9.373 $ 4,376 S 9,096 X (4,075) X •  X 24,691
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partmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Consolidating Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets without Donor Restrictions
Year Ended June 30, 2022

Oattmeuth- Chtshirt AlcePecIt Hew London ULAscutney DHObtgatid ABOthuNon- HuCh

Hiicheock Oartawuth> Medial Dtjr Hospital HM^and Croup ObHg Group Systam
■ fnteuuremliUbni Heaflh WtdKock Center Mencflal Association Health Center EKmhatlena Subtotal AffXates EIMnftlons Consotdaled

Optfitiag ttvmui ind otlwr upport
PticntenicsiMnM % 9  1.7S1.093 9  236,645 9  99,403 9  79,754 9  59.049 9 9  7225.935 9  17,302 9 9  2,241237
CwtncM ttvtnut 209 133.921 165 21 22 3.521 (60.573) 77.293 459 (85) 77,668
O0woperj9ngwwue 3$,S68 492.466 23,736 4.146 7,527 2,754 (50.711) 518,475 16,731 (1,175) 534,031
Net ssMs released bCTi ntirtctara 2a9 13299 779 435 190 204 15156 739 1S,04,

Toul operetng tevetHe tfld eOm si^fM 39.02$ 7393.775 261.325 104,005 87.493 65.519 (111.2941 7836,959 »22$ (1.260) 7870,828

Operadng iipeAset

Silv« 1,091.601 135.063 43268 40,219 29,960 (45229) 1.291900 20,422 1,065 1,315,407
Employee beMtts 2».706 31.761 10,302 7,537 8.240 (5842) 315793 3,514 263 322,570

UetaSons and medal sifipies 578,581 43.203 12,268 9946 4,127 645123 1,149 649J72

Pwchasid unices and oA« 2S.EU 312,373 47723 15,951 13,069 17,383 (37962) 394,274 11,399 (1.910) 403.862
Uidc«d enhancement ai 64 036 9.468 3 980 7834 2,407 87725 87725
Dtptedadon and aacrtztton 64.643 8.771 3,519 4.819 2,359 •94.111 2,847 86.958
Interest 32.M6 25365 914 876 1,073 493 (29,530) 31,727 396 37113

Totdoperatngeiperses iiMt 7493394 271,923 ».169 79,493 63,869 (111483) 2,951853 39.716 (462) 7992,937

Operating (loajtnar^n fio.mi 112619) (10.599) 13 845 7,997 1.550 7179 116.7941 (4,497) (769) (22,079)

Nen^pazdng gains Ibsses).
kMStmen inesRie {losses), net (9.026) (59.973) (7069) (795) (1,114) (1,555) (2H^ •{77741) (6.003) (78,744)
Other eemponents of rM petiodc pensian and poet

ritirerttent banell income .  11.902 2.009 11910 13,910
Other (lasses) income, net n.m • (1,641) (542) 1 169 (1.9691 (7.5221 66 796 (6.6501

Total norvoperatlng fosses) gains, net 143,7121 (6021 '  (795) (1.1131 (1,386) 17179) (66.3531 (5.937) 788 (71,492)

(Deldency) access of revenue am apenses pOTli) (61,331) (11.200) 13,050 8,884 )64 (83,147) (10,424) (93,571)

Net nsets nlliMat donor restrietiont

Net assets released Iron rasiticMn Ik capital 671 52 460 233 . 1,423 150 1,573
Change In hnded status of pension and oftec

possHremenlbenefzs (27.960) (*.996) 49 (37308) (1) (32,309)
Net asuts sansferred to (from) afStatea 7.600 (19,395) 4,066 2,571 7095 795 (Z257) 2,257
Odier changes ki act assets (23) (231 (23)

(Oecreau) Increau In net auets Ml'nd donor
restxtons 9  (73.114) 9  (107.999) 9  (11.578) 9  15,621 9  9417 9  1,240 9 9  (115,312) 9  (9,019) 9 9  (124.330)
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Consolidating Statements of Operations and Changes In Net Assets without Donor Restrictions
Year Ended June 30, 2022

D4IH HMkh

and Other Mend Cheshire and MAHHC and APD end ' VHHend System
(in thoustndi oldoBtn} Subildlarles Subsldlariei JubfMljiif] NUi Subsidiaries Subsidbfv (lubfMisrlff Elimlntfteni CensoSdeted

Opantlng nvtnu* ind othtr luppod
Ptiient wnica itvtmie i S  1,751,093 $  236645 $ 79,754 i  59,041 i  99.403 6  17.301 8 8  2,243237
Comridsd rtvtflut 209 134,388 165 21 3.521 21 (60.659) 77,666
Other opertting teverw* u.s6e 494,363 23.794 7627 4,370 14687 2,708 (51,886) 534.031
Nat nuts lakased Itom res&tctions 219 13.873 821 190 204 548 9 . 15.894

Tout operating revenue and other (uppon 39.026 2.393.717 261.425 87.492 87,136 114.559 20,018 (112.5451 2.870.828

Operating expenaei
Saiariei - 1,091,601 135.116 40219 29.729 47,352 15.534 (44,144) 1.315.407
Employee benefta 266.795 31.770 7,537 8,361 . 11.169 •  2,517 (5,579) 322.570
Medications and medcal supples 578.581 43203 9648 4,126 12297 1,123 (4) 649,272
Purchased servieet and other 25.638 315,589 42.938 . 13,067 18,072 18,915 4.313 (34,670) 403.862
Uedicaid enhancement lax 64.036 9,469 • 2.834 2,406 3.980 82,725
Depreciation and amortizaiion 64,643 8,895 4619 2,483 5,595 523 )  86,958
Interest 32.536 25.365 914 1.073 493 1204 58 (29.530) '  32,113

Total operating expenses 58.171 2.406.610 272.305 79.495 66.670 100.512 2«.068 (113.927) 2.692.907

Operating (Ins) margin (19.1481 (12.893)" (10.8801 7697 1.466 14.047 (4.050) 1.382 (22.079)

Nen^peraling gains (lossea)
Invesbneni jncome (bsses). net (8.026) (61.039) (2,163) (1.114) (1.663) (1.373) (3.155) (2)1) (78.744)
Other components of net periodic pension and post
retiiemeni benefl ncomo It,902 2.008 13.910

Other (lotses) income, net (3.5401 (1,641) (542) 1 179 56 (1.171) (6.658)

Total non-operating (losses) gains, net (11,566) (50.7781 (697) (1,113) (1.484) (1,3731 (3,0991 (1.382) (71.492)

(Deficiency) excess o( revanua war expensas (30.714) (63.671) (11677) 6684 (18) 12.674 (7,149) . (93671)

Net assits without donor restrictions

Net esMts reiitsed (torn restilctloos (or capital 634 53 460 226 1,573
Change In iunded status o( pension and other
postretiremen benefits (27.880) (4.496) 47 . (32.309)
Net assets binsterred to (bom) sKEates 7.600 (19.391) 4,108 2,096 795 2671 2,221
Other changes bi net assets - (23) (23)

decrease) increase in net assets wKhoui donor
restrictions »  (23.114) . i (110,088) t  (11612) % 9.417 t  1,050 8  15245 i  (4,928) 8 8  (124,330)
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Note to Supplemental Consolidating Information
June 30, 2023 and 2022

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying supplemental consolidating information includes the consolidating balance
sheet and the consolidating statement of operations and changes in net assets without donor
restrictions of D-HH and its subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions
between D-HH and its subsidiaries have been eliminated. The consolidating information presented
is prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America consistent with the consolidated financial statements.
The consolidating information is presented for purposes of additional analysis of the consolidated
financial statements and is not required as part of the basic financial statements.
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/  MARY HITCHCOCK MEMORIAL HOSPTIAL (MHMH)/
DARTMOUTH HITCHCOCK CLINIC (DHC) \ Combined as DARTMOUTH-HITCHCOCK

BOARDS OF TRUSTEES AND OFFICERS

Effective: January 1.2024

DARTMOUTH-HITCHCOCK

M. Elyse Allan, MBA
Retired President and Chief Executive Officer of General
Electric Canada Company, Inc.

Geraldine "Polly" Bednash, PhD, RN,
FAAN Adjunct Professor, Australian Catholic
University

Laura M. Chiang, MD
Assistant ProffssorofAnesthesiotogy and Critical Care;
Vice Chairpr Education, Dept. ofAneslliesiology and Co-
Medical Director, Surgical Intensive Care Unit

Marcus P. Coe, MD, MS
Associate Professor, Resideticy Director, Department of
Orthopaedic Surgery, Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical
Caitcr and Geisel School ofMedicine

Duane A. Compton, PhD
Ex-Officio: Dean, Geisel School of Medicine at Dartmouth

Joanne M. Conroy, MD
Ex-Officio: CEO & President, Dartmoiilh-
Hitchcock/Dartmouth Health

Gary V. Dcsir, MD
Yale School of Medicine: Paul B. Beeson Professor of
Medicine; Chair, Internal Medicine at Yale School of
Medicine and Yale iVew Haven Hospital: Vice Provost
for Faculty Development and Diversity, Yale University

Page 1 of 4



DocuSign Envelope ID; 74FD520F-8EF9-4932-A532-2F3F836ADCD6

Celestina "Tina" M. Dooley-Jones, PhD
Retired Senior Foreign Sendee Officer

Nancy M. Dunbar, MD
Medical Director, Blood Bank
Department of Pathology and Laboratory Medicine

Roberta L. Hines, MD

MHMH/DHC Boards' Chair
Nicholas M. Greene Professor and Chair, Dept. of
Anesthesiology, Yale School of Medicine.

Keith J. Loud, MD - beginning in March 2024
Chair, Department of Pediatrics and Adolescent
Medicine

Jennifer L. Moyer, MBA
Managing Director & CAO, White Moinitahis Insurance
Croup, Ltd

Sherri C. Oberg, MBA
CEO and Co-Founder of Particles for Humanity, PBC

David P. Paul, MBA

MHMH/DHC Boards' Secretary & Treasurer
Retired President & COO, )BG SMITH

Mark S. Speers, MBA
Co-founder & Senior Advisor, Health Advances, LLC

I'age 2 of 4
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Jonathan B. Thyng, MD
Medical Director, Dartmouth Hitchcock Clinics Nashua

DARTMOUTH HEALTH

Mark W. Begor, MBA Oiief
Executive Officer, Equifax

Joanne M. Conroy, MD
Ex-Officio: CEO & President, Dartmouth-
Hitchcock/Dartmoufh Health

Thomas P. Glynn, PhD
Adjunct Lecturer, Harvard Kennedy School of Government

Charles G. Plimpton, MBA
Dartmouth Health Board Treasurer & Secretary
Retired Investment Banker

Richard J. Powell, MD
Section Chief, Vascular Surgery; Professor of Surgery and
Radiology

Thomas Raffio, MBA, FLMl President
& CEO, Northeast Delta Dental

Edward Howe Stansfield, III, MA

Dartmouth Health Board Chair

Retired Senior Financial Advisor, Resident Director, of
Bank ofAmerica/Merrill Lynch

Page 3 of 4
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Paul A. Taheri, MD, MBA

Clinical Partner - Welsh Carson Anderson and Stowc

Pamela Austin Thompson, MS, RN, CENP, FAAN
Oiief executive officer emeritus of the American
Organization of Nurse Executives (ACNE)

Exec/Govemance Oversight:

Kimberley A. Gibbs (603/650-8779)
Director, Executive Administration and Exec/Govemance
One Medical Center Drive, Lebanon, NH 03756

kimberlev.a.gibbs@hitchcock.org

Administrative Support:

Claire M. Lillie (603/650-5244)
Exec. Coordinator for Exec/Govemance & Leadership
claire.m.lillie@hitchcock.org

Laura K. Rondeau (603/650-5706)
Exec. Coordinator for Exec/Govemance & Leadership
[aura.k.rondeau@hitchcock.org
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Resmiye Oral, MD

GEISEL SCHOOL OF MEDICINE CURRICULUM VITAE

Resmiye Oral, MD

July 31, 2020

I. EDUCATION

institution

Ege University Medical School,- Izmir, Turkey

Years

1977-83

Course of Study and

Degree/Title

Medicine, MD #3450 (07/20/83)

II. POSTDOCTORAL TRAINING

Institution

Dr. Behcel Uz Teaching Hospital for Children.
Izmir, Turkey

Cornell Medical Center, New York, NY

Ege University Medical School

Ohio State University

Long Island College Hospital, New York, NY

Years Course of Study and

Degree/TitlefDate obtained)

1985-89 Residency (Pediatrics) (12/07/89)

6/92-7/92 Externship, NICU

1994-96 Fellow, Neonatology (03/11/97)

1998-99 Fellow, Child Abuse & Neglect
(06/30/99)

1999-01 Residency, Pediatrics (06/30/01)

III. PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES

Course Years Institution Certificate

Sexual Assault (Nurse) Examiner 9/2000 Long Island College Certificate

training Program Hospital
Mindfulness based stress 2002 and 2014 U of Iowa

reduction Psychiatry Dept.
4 Live-Well Courses (4 sessions 6/2017-5/2018 U of Iowa

each) on Self-Care Employee Health
Coaching. Mentoring, and Team- 10/30-31/2001 U of Iowa dCRME 6 CME credits

Building Skills Seminars
Training on Mentoring 8/23/2002 U of Iowa OCRME 1 AMA PRA cat I credit

How to enhance productivity and 10/29/2002 U of Iowa OCRME 1 AMA PRA cat 1 credit

leadership skills
Women Faculty Career 3/5/2010 U of Iowa OCRME

Development Conference
Period of Purple Cry'^g Training 4/9/2010 National Center for

Course ■ Shaken Baby
Syndrome
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NICHD Advanced Forensic 3/8-11/2011

Interview Course

Motivational interviewing course 7/30-8/2/15

Collaborative Leadership
Training
Master trainer training program
on Adverse Childhood

Experiences and Trauma
Informed Care

8/18/2015

8/31-9/1/15

NICHD

U of Iowa College
of Public Health

Iowa Department of
Public Health

ACEs Interface

Certificate

Certificate

IV. ACADEMIC APPOINTMENTS

Title

Clinical Assistant

Professor of Pediatrics

Clinical Associate

Professor of Pediatrics

Clinical Professor of

Pediatrics

Professor of Pediatrics

Institution Year

U of Iowa Carver College of Medicine, Dept. of 2001-06
Pediatrics, Division of General Pediatrics &
Adolescent Medicine, Iowa City, lA
U of Iowa Carver College of Medicine, Dept. of 2006-2010
Pediatrics, Division of General Pediatrics &

Adolescent Medicine, Iowa City, lA
U of Iowa Carver College of Medicine, Dept. of 2010-2019
Pediatrjcs, Division of General Pediatrics &
Adolescent Medicine, Iowa City, lA
Geisel School of Medicine, Dept. of Pediatrics, 2019-present
Division of General Pediatrics, Lebanon, NH

V. INSTITUTIONAL LEADERSHIP ROLES (Please refer to my personal statement for the
impact of these leadership roles)

Director, Child U of Iowa, Stead Family Children's Hospital
Protection Program
Co-chair, Protection of U of Iowa Hospital Advisoiy Council
Persons Subcommittee

Chair, Child Abuse
Panel, Protection of-

Persons Subcommittee

Director, Child
Advocacy & Protection
Program

U of Iowa Hospital Advisory Council

Children's Hospital at Dartmouth

2001-2019

2012-2019

2010-2019

2019-date

VI. LICENSURE AND CERTIFICATION

Certification

.  American Board of Pediatrics, General Pediatrics

and Adolescent Medicine (Last renewal: 2018)

American Board of Pediatrics, Child Abuse

Pediatrics

10/16/2001 073652

1/15/201 1 244

Licensure Year Number
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Turkish Ministry of Health (Medicine) ' 7/20/1983
Turkish Ministry of Health (Pediatrics) 12/7/1989

Turkish Ministry of Health (Neonatology) 6/18/1997
Iowa permanent license (Medicine) 2/14/2001
Last renewal: 2018

New Hampshire permanent license (Medicine)

PEA

Federal DEA, Last renewal: 2018 2001-date

Iowa DEA, Last renewal; 2018 2001-date

VII. HOSPITAL OR HEALTH SYSTEM APPOINTMENTS

4/03/2019

Resmiye Oral, MD

34159

27939-34159

42386-34159

33914

19600

B07199715

1240001

Title

Director, Family Physician-
(Responsibilities: supervising 9
rural, community health centers)
Attending pediatrician
(Responsibilities: teaching,-
research, clinical/inpatient
services)
Deputy Division Director

(Responsibilities: leaching,
research, clinical/inpatient

services)
Director, Child Protection

Program
Child Abuse Specialist ■

Director, Child Advocacy &
Protection Program

Institution Year

Burhaniye Mother and Child Health Care Center 1983-85

Burhaniye, Balikesir, Turkey

Dr. Behcet Uz State Teaching Hospital for Children, 1989-94
Division of Neonatology, Izjiiir, Turkey

Dr. Behcet Uz Teaching Hospital for Children 1996-98
Division of Emergency/Critical Care, Izmir, Turkey

U of Iowa Hospitals and Clinics, Iowa City, lA 2001-2019

U of 1, Child Health Specialty Clinics, Wapello 2003-2006
County Clinic, Ottumwa, lA.

Children's Hospital at Dartmouth and Dartmouth 2019-date
Hitchcock Medical Center

VIII. OTHER PROFESSIONAL POSITIONS

None '

IX. TEACHING ACTIVITIES

A. Undergraduate Teaching

152:160 Global Health Seminar - Challenges to
Child Health Globally for undergraduates through
College of Liberal Arts (3 semester hours)

1 lecture to undergraduate Trauma & Resiliency
certificate program students via webinar

U of Iowa

U of Iowa

2014 ■

spring

2019-

date

devised and

co-instructed

the course

50 students

90 minute 30 students

lecture/semester

B. Undergraduate Medical Education Classroom Teaching

Classroom teaching on Child Abuse & Neglect topics: M1: I hr/year (introductory on physical abuse),
M2: 2 hr/year (adverse childhood experiences and trauma informed care); M3; 1 hi76-12 vvks (online
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since 2008-abu$lve head trauma). Mixed Medical students 1-2 hr/month (in a variety of settings as I
lecture across the institution)

C. Undergraduate Medical Education Clerkship or other Clinical Teaching

2001-03 Genera! Pediatrician at U of Iowa, College of Medicine, Dept. of Pediatrics, Division of
General Pediatrics & Adolescent Medicine. I staffed and taught medical students 4-6 half
days a week in acute care and diagnostic clinics and mobile clinic sessions that 1
volunteered for. Mobile Clinic of Iowa City served the underserved population in Johnson
County.

2001-2019 Director of Child Protection Program at U of Iowa, Carver College of Medicine,
Department of Pediatrics. ORlce/bedside/clinical teaching on General Pediatrics and
Child Abuse & Neglect Ml-M2: 4-8 half days/year, M3-M4; 3-6 hr/week

2005- 1 staff and teach M3-4 students during elective Child Protection Rotation: 20-30
present weeksi/year

D. Graduate Medical Education Teaching

2001-2003 General Pediatrician at U of Iowa, College of Medicine, Dept. of Pediatrics, Division of
General Pediatrics & Adolescent Medicine -1 staffed and taught residents 4-6 half days a
week in acute care, diagnostic, and residency continuity care clinics; from 2003-2010 2
half days/w

2001 -2019 Director of Child Protection Program at U of Iowa, Carver College of Medicine,
Department of Pediatrics. Office/bedside/clinical leaching on General Pediatrics and Child
Abuse & Neglect to pediairic residents and fellows 10-12 hrs/week and; residents from
orthopedics, surgery, neurosurgery, and emergency medicine. 1-2 hr/vveek

2005-2010 1 staffed and taught pediatric residents/fellows during Child Protection Rotation: 8
hr/monlh

2010-201 1 1 staffed and taught pediatric residents during Community Pediatrics Rotation: 1
vveek/month

2011-date I staff and teach pediatric residents during Child Protection Rotation: 2-4 weeks/resident,
9-10 residents a year ^

E. Other clinical education programs

2002-2019 1 gave lectures to Physician's Assistant students, APRN students on child abuse and
neglect in maternal child health courses (3-4/year)

2018-date I trained two nurse practitioners to take on my role at the U of Iowa Chidl Protection

Program before 1 left the institution. 1 am currently training two nurse practitioners at
CAPP

F. Graduate teaching

2002-2019. 1 gave lectures to graduate students from master of social work, master of public health,
clinical psychology, pediatric doctoral nurse practitioner program, and law school
programs on child abuse and neglect (6-8/year)

G. Other professional/academic programs
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None

X. Primary Research Advising

A. Undergraduate students

2010-201 1 Kristen Joegerst, Marvina Roebeck, Helen Pope (undergraduate students) on '"impact of
in-service training on staff compliance with the new hospital protocol for perinatal illicit
drug use" (Presented as an abstract at the Governor's Prevention Conference in Des
Moines Iowa in April 2011 and in 1 1*'' Heifer Society Annual Meeting, April 5-6, 201 1,
and published # XXlll.A.9)

B. Graduate students supervised

1-9/2004 Scott Easton, graduate student in social work, working on a research project on "Parental
- illicit substance use in cases confirmed for child abuse & neglect.in Johnson county, Iowa"

3/2005- Tara Slrang, graduate student in social work, working on a research project on
9/2006 "Intrauterine illicit drug exposure risk factors in mother/infant dyads at the UIHC delivery

population" and '"Surveillance of nieonatal illicit drug screening protocols utilized in
hospitals providing deliveiy sei"vices in Iowa" (Published # XXIII.A.6)

2007-2010 Amanda Reedy, Heather Pontasch, and Andrea Austin (graduate social work and medical
students), working on a research project on "Impact of in-service training on staff
compliance with the new hospital protocol for perinatal illicit drug use" (Presented as a
virtual poster at the 10^ Heifer Society Annual Meeting. April 18-21. Philadelphia, PA,
published #XX1II.A.9) )

2008-2009 Jacob Buhrow (MPH student), working on a research project on "Prevalence of illicit drug
exposure among children evaluated for child abuse and neglect" (Published # XXlll.A.8)

C. Medical students supen'ised

4-8/2003 Jill Goodman (Ml), Anna Floiyanovich (Ml), working on a research project on pediatric
1-8/2004 falls, published# XXlll.B.17)

1/2004-

12/2005

2008-2009

6-10/2009

1-12/2015

1-5/2015

3/2015-

6/2016

Rebecca Mueller and Waseeni Ahmed, medical students (Ml), working on a research
project on "Intrauterine illicit drug exposure risk factors in mother/infant dyads at the
UIHC delivery population" (Oral presentation at 19'*' San Diego Conference on Child
Maltreatment 1/25-28/2005, San Diego, CA)
Abraham Assad (medical student), working on a research project on "Prevalence of illicit
drug exposure among children evaluated for child abuse and neglect" (Published #
XXm.A.8)
Erin Schrunk and Jamie Carlyle (medical students) on "Impact of in-service training on
staff compliance with the new hospital protocol for perinatal illicit drug use" (Presented as
a virtual poster at the lO'"* Heifer Society Annual Meeting, April 18-21, Philadelphia, PA,
published # XXlll.A.9)

(

Stephanie Nakada (M-1), Devin McKissic (M-1), Greta Dahlberg (M-1), supervised on a
project of implementing trauma informed care at the Child Assessment Clinic, U of 1: The
latter won "Award for excellence in pediatric clinical research" on this project
Stephanie Nakada (M-1), Amy Walz (M-3), Angela Kiintz (M-4) supervised on a review
article on Adverse childhood experiences and trauma informed care (Published #
XXI1I.C.7)
Marissa Robinson (M-1), supervised on a project of implementing child abuse
management systems building in Jamaica
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9/2015- Clayton Long (M-1 through IV), Angela Lee (M-1 through IV), Devin McKisic (M-l
6/2018 through IV), Greta Dahlberg (M-l through IV) on service distinction track on Trauma

Informed Care Implementation at the UIHC
9/2016 Victoria Rhoeder, M-llI during her elective rotation with my program and Sarah
-5/2019 Kotlenstette, M-l, Kasra Zarei, M-II collecting data on the second line of research to

^  evaluate the family wellbeing assessment model in my clinic (published, # XXIII.A.I5)
1/2019- Kasra Zarei, MS-II, co-mentoring on a research project on trauma epidemiolog)' in
6/2019 children seen in the ER multiple times a year and mentoring on a case presentation

publication "Hypophosphatasia and child abuse differential diagnosis in an infant
(Submitted for publication XXIII.B.41)

D. Residents/Fellows supervised

7-12/2005 Riad Rahhal, Huda Elshelshari pediatric residents, "Cervical fracture due to inflicted

trauma in a hypotonic.child" (Published XXllI.B.15)

6/18- Rachel Segal and Meaghan Reaney, Pediatric residents co-mentoring on a research project
6/2019 ■ on trauma epidemiology in children seen in the ER multiple times a year

E. Others (academic international visiting professors)

7/2003

4-12/2006

2009-2016

6-9/2010

11/2010-

5/201 1

1-2/201

Figen Sahin, Assistant Professor of Pediatrics, Gazi University Medical School, Ankara,
Turkey, supervised during visiting professorship at the Child Protection Program, U of I,
(Published # XXI! I. A. 7 and XXI11. A. 12 and XXIll.B.21 as a result of this training and
subsequent collaboration)
Munevver Turkmen and Fatih Yagmur (visiting professors from Turkey) working on a
research project on "Fatal Abusive Head Trauma cases; Consequence of medical staff
missing milder forms of physical abuse" (Published U XXIII.B. 18). I supervised Fatih
Yagmur, Assistant Professor of Forensic Medicine, Erciyes University Medical School,
Kayseri. Turkey for 6 months during mini-fellowship at the Child Protection Program, U
of I

Teresa Magalhaes, Professor of Forensic Medicine from Poilo University on establishing
child advocacy center model and forensic interview techniques in Portugal (Published two
review papers # XX1ILC.6 and XXIII.C.8 and two book chapters U XXIII.D.book
chapters.4 & 5)
Serpil Yaylaci, Assistant Professor of Emergency Medicine on "Abusive Head Trauma in
Turkey: Are we missing cases?" (Presented in Shaken Baby Syndrome Conference,
September 12-14, 2010)
Feyza Koc, Assistant Professor of Pediatrics, Ege University Medical School, Izmir,
Turkey, supervised as a visiting professor at the Child Protection Program, U of I
(published two original research # XXIII.A.9 and # XXIII.B.29 and one case presentation
#XXIII.B.26)
Patricia Jardim, Associate of Forensic Medicine, University of Porto, Porto, Portugal,
supeiA'ised as a visiting professor at the Child Protection Program, U of I (Published one
review paper # XXIII.C.6 and two book chapters # XXIII.D.book chapters.4 & 5)

XI. Advising/Mentoring
A. Medical students

2008-2010 Mentoring Andrea Austin and Elizabeth Vanderah (medical students) on "Service with
Distinction" project on Shaken Baby Prevention at Pediatrics and Family Practice Clinics,
Medical Student Curriculum Program, and Pediatric and Family Practice Residency
Programs in Iowa
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B. Residents

2018-2019 Advising Rachel Segal, MD, pediatric resident on getting ready for child abuse pediatrics
fellowship (Started fellowship at Kansas Children's Medical Center in 2020)

2020-to Advising Mica Coulboum, MD, pediatric resident on gelling ready for child abuse pediatrics
date fellowship

C. Advising/Mentoring international trainees
2010-2013 Naeem Zafar, Pediatrician, Pakistan Child Abuse Prevention Society (PACHAAN),

director, on an l-CATCH grant from AAP to train medical staff on recognition and .
management of child abuse and neglect

1-9/201 1 Carlos Pexioto, PhD in Psychology, University of Porto, Poilo, Portugal, supervising on
forensic interview techniques and its implementation in Portugal

2-3/2014 Ozlem Bag, Pediatrician, Behcet Uz Children's Hospital, Izmir, Turkey, supervised as a
visiting professor at the Child Protection Program, U of 1

3-4/2014, Betul Ulukol, Professor of Pediatrics, Ankara University Medical School, Ankara, Turkey,
supervised as a visiting professor at the Child Protection Program, U of I (Published two
review papers # XXI11.C.2 & XX11I.C.5)

2014- Isabella Acuardo, Professor of Psychiatry- from National University of Colombia,
persent collaborating and advising on how to establish a national response system to child abuse

and neglect'in Colombia
7/2015- Miguel Eduardo Barrios, Professor of pediatrics, supervised as a visiting professor at the
8/2015 Child Protection Program, U of 1
2016- Mentoring and advising Assc. Professor of Pediatrics Alexandra Soldatou from the
present University of Athens Child Protection Program and Afroditi Stalhi, the executive director

of ELISA a child abuse NGO in Greece to establish a comprehensive nuiltidiscipiinar)'
response to child abuse in Greece (visited Greece twice through Fulbright scholarship,
published two original articles as a result of these visits: XXIII.B.34 and XX11I.B35)

XII. Engagement, Community' Service/Education

1999 Presentations to Rotary club members in Columbus. OH on Child 8 hrs/y
Abuse & Neglect

2001 -2019 Consultant and expert witness for Department of Human Services and 120 hrs/y
County Attorneys in the State of Iowa for Child abuse & Neglect. In
this role, I trained stafT from these government agencies, did
record review for them, and testified in court when called for on

both cases I had evaluated and as an expert witness. More details
are in my personal statement.

2001-2019 Presentations to Rotary Clubs in Iowa City, Cedar Rapids, Oelwein, 4 hrs/y
and Independence on Child abuse & Neglect

2002-2005 Board Member, Rape Victims Advocacy Program, Iowa City, IA 20 hrs/y
2002-2019 Attending Radio-TV Programs to talk on Child Abuse & Neglect, 20 hrs/y

interviews with journalists for printed media, Iowa City, IA "
2003-05 Founding Board member of Prevent Child Abuse - Johnson County 40 hrs/y

in Iowa City, lA. In this role, I helped the board establish family
support projects in the county.

2003-date Presentations to Rotary Clubs in Izmir, Turkey on Child Abuse & 2 hrs/y
Neglect
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2003-2015 Member of Johnson County Multidisciplinar>' Child Protection Team 20 hrs/y
In Iowa City, lA In this role, 1 worked with multiple county public
servants to improve medical care for abused and neglected
children.

2003-2015 Member of Drug Endangered Children Task Force of Wapello 20 hrs/y
County In Ottumwa, lA In this role, I worked with the local

providers and developed a protocol on how to provide medical
care to drug endangered children.

2003-2019 Presentations to non-governmental community organizations to raise 20 hrs/y
public awareness on Child Abuse & Neglect in Iowa

2004-2009 Board member, Johnson County Sexual Assault Response Team in 20 hrs/y
Iowa City, lA . *

2004-2015 Member of Iowa Alliance of Drug Endangered Children 20 hrs/y

2004-2015 Member of Medical Committee, Iowa Alliance of Drug Endangered 10 hrs/y
Children

2005-2009 Presentations on Shaken Baby Syndrome to High School Students to 4 hrs/y
prevent Shaken Baby Syndrome (City High and West High Schools,
Family, Science & Community Leaders of America) in Iowa City, lA

2005-2018 Iowa statewide collaboration on perinatal illicit drug screening and 20 hrs/y
intervention policy development; 1 worked with Iowa Department
of Public Health Perinatal Care Program as described in my
personal statement and revised the illicit drug screening policy
and protocol and helped disseminate it to many birthing hospitals
Including the UIHC

2006-2019 Member of Johnson County Juvenile Law Community in Iowa City, 8 hrs/y
lA ■

2006-2009 Board Member of Prevent Child Abuse Iowa. In this role, 1 worked 10 hrs/y
with other board^members to guide the staff of the program and
did fund-raising to support it.

2012-2013 Board member of Council on the Status of Women at U of Iowa 10 hrs/y
2014-2018 Iowa Adverse Childhood Experiences Steering Committee member. 40 hrs/y

In this role, I worked with the committee members and did ACEs

screening in the Iowa adult population twice, which revealed ig
rates of ACEs in 15% of the population.

2015-2019 Founding member of Johnson County Trauma Informed Care Task 20 hrs/y
Force. In this role, I collaborated with other members of the
community to establish this task force and engaged many
governmental and nongovernmental agency representatives to
implement trauma informed care and work-force development
across the county.

2007-2019 . Prevent Child Abuse Johnson Count}' Board member, Iowa City, I A. 10 hrs/y
In this role, I worked as a bridge between the PCA-Iowa and its
Johnson County chapter and helped implement multiple mini-
prevention programs.

2018-2019 Invited member, Iowa Trauma Informed Leadership Team. In this 20 hrs/y
role, we worked on how to expand our trauma informed care
efforts to all systems of care.

2018-2019 Johnson County Trauma Informed Care Master Trainers group. In 50 hrs/y
this role, I became a TIC master trainer and provided numerous
lectures to multiple community initiatives all around Iowa
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2019 Panel organization and speaker: Who is Tommy production publicity
efforts (a live play on a child who was abused and neglected
becoming successful in life) .

5  hrs

XIII. Research Activities (reverse chronological order)

A. Sponsored Activity (grants and contracts)

Dates Sponsoring Agency/Project title

2/5- Sigma Theta Tau, The Fraternal Order of Eagles. Trauma-
12/31/2018 Informed Care Survey of staff at UIHC (submitted for

publication # XXI1I.B.40)
5/12- Iowa Child Protection Council. Conference.organization
12/31/2017 grant

4/1- University of Iowa Office of Outreach and Engagement:
12/31/2017 Conference organization grant

6/1/- Iowa Department of Public Health contract. Shaken Baby
12/31/2016 Syndrome Prevention training in Eastern Iowa Emergency

Rooms

10/15/2014 United Way contract. Prevention of Sexual Abuse

5/7/2013- University of Iowa Provost's Office. Global Forum Award:
5/7/2014 To organize multi-media training activities to engage

international, national, and regional professionals and
public on child abuse and neglect and adverse childhood
experiences: As a result of this activity, efforts on
Trauma Informed Care increased exponentially on U of

Iowa campus, I engaged in long term training and
research activities with my colleagu^ in Colombia,
reconnected with colleagues in Turkey and Greece,
which led to improving multidisciplinary response to

child abuse in these countries.

7/1/2010- Children's Miracle Network. Perinatal illicit drug screening
6/30-201 1 practices in mother-newborn dyads at a university hospital

serving rural/semi-urban communities: Translation of
research to quality improvement (Published U XXIH.A.6)

5/1- The Fraternal Order of Eagles. Illicit Drug Exposure in
12/31 /2008 patients evaluated for alleged child abuse and neglect

(Published #XXIII.A.8)
12/8/2006- Children's Miracle Network and The Fraternal Order of

5/1/2014 Eagles. Impact of In-service training on perinatal illicit drug
screening practices at the UIHC and dissemination of the
training curriculum to Iowa hospitals for perinatal illicit
drug screening (Published # XXI1I.A.9)

1/10/2006- Children's Miracle Network, University of Iowa
7/21 /2013 Foundation, Noon Pilot Club of Johnson County. Period of

Purple Ciying Shaken Baby Syndrome Prevention Program
Implementation at Mother Baby Units in 7 hospitals.

My role/ Funding
Percent effort amount

Co-PI/None

Anne

Nielsen, PI
(C)/None

(O/None

(C)/None

(C)/None

(C)/None

Pi/None

PI/None

Pl/None

PI&(C)/None

$2,500

$2,500

$11,000

$10,000

$4,000

$29,500

$20,000

$11,665

$5,000

$15,970
$2,000

$2500

$12,400
$6,000

$4,300

$2,000
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$6,500

$2,580
$5,500

1/1- Children's Miracle Network. The impact of utilization of a Pi/None ' $4,500
12/31/2005, structured screening protocol forperinatal illicit drug

exposure. (Published XXIII.A.9)

<

XIV. Program Development

A. Clinical/Advocacy

o  2001-2003: Establishment of UIHC Child Protection Program with the following functions:
■  Outpatient Child Assessment Clinic as a referral center to evaluate allegedly abused and

neglected children: I devised the structure and guidelines, and trained the hired staff for
the clinic. Assessed 80-100 patients/families a year with attendance by 6-8 students and
.6-8 residents/year.

- ■ Inpatienl consultation ser\'ices: 1 trained hospital social workers and established an in-
patient consultation team. Assessed 50-70 patients/families a year with attendance by 6-8
students and 6-8 residents/year

■  Record review for Department of Human Services and County Attorneys: Completed 50-
60 record reviews/year

■  Testimony as an expert witness, mostly invited by prosecution. Testified on 10-15
cases/year. Impact: Many cases of child abuse and neglect were successfully
prosecuted and victims and their non-offending family members were protected as
described in my personal statement.

o  2005-2008: 1 spearheaded a collaboration at the University of Iowa Hospitals and Clinics and
revised the hospital perinatal illicit drug screening and intervention protocol: Departments of
Pediatrics, Obstetrics, Chemical Dependency, Social Work, Nursing were involved in this project.
Impact: Diagnosis of drug endangered newborns quadrupled,

o  2005-2010:.I led Iowa Department of Public Health and National Center on Shaken Baby
Syndrome to expand Shaken Baby Syndrome Prevention Program to all birthing hospitals in
Iowa. Impact: Iowa became designated as one 19 "PURPLE" states by the National Center
on Shaken Baby Syndrome which refers to this program being disseminated throughout the
state.

o  2006-2007: Co-led the statewide collaboration involving governmental and non-governmental
agencies and developed a statewide policy for perinatal screening and inter\'ention for illicit
drugs, which became part of State Perinatal Care Clinical Guidelines statewide stakeholders;
Iowa Department of Public Health, Iowa Department of Human Services, Iowa Perinatal Care
Program were partners in this program. Impact: Number of birthing hospitals that had a

/  structured perinatal illicit drug screening program doubled as a rbult of this work.
o  2008-2019: 1 established and led a statewide specialized medical consultancy program to assess

child abuse cases from rural Iowa for DHS in real time with a follow-up multidisciplinary
management component. Impact: This helped DHS, law enforcement, and county attorneys
better protect abused and neglected children,

o  2010-2012: Established a network oftrained medical providers across Iowa to ser\'e as medical
resources for local DHS workers: Spearheaded a team of medical directors of the child protection
centers in Iowa and Child Health Specialty Clinics in training these clinicians. Impact: This
helped DHS find local medical ser\'ices eliminating the need to travel 2-3 hours for families
of children with low profile abuse/neglect,

o  2013-2019: Established and led UIHC Trauma Informed Care Initiative to implement trauma
informed practices at the UIHC. In this context, I developed an educational module to use to train
staff from multiple department. Impact: Cumulative efforts of this initiative led to practice

10
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changes in multiple departments/units, created a model for other hospitals in Iowa and with
the associated publications on the model XXI1I.A.15, XXIIl.C?), possibly at the national
level. '

o  2015: 1 participated in the adoption of umbilical cord testing to replace meconium testing for
neonatal toxicology screening. Impact: This improved the diagnostic accuracy for newborns
exposed to illicit substances in utero.

o  2015-2017: Established Family-Well-being Assessment Clinic run by an independent licensed
,  social worker in Child Abuse Assessment Clinic. Impact: increased diagnostic accuracy in two
generational trauma and mental/behavioral health problems leading to increased rates of
referral to multiple services of involved patients and families. A study was published as a
result of this (XXIII.A.15), another has been submitted (XXIII.B.39).

o  2015-2017: Established Family-Well-being Therapy Clinic run by an independent licensed social
worker. Impact: Numerous families evaluated at the Family-Well-being Assessment Clinic
received therapy services with improved compliance to services,

o  2018: Helped implement trauma informed care at the UIHC Burn Unit and trained their staff on
trauma informed assessment model. Impact: Increased diagnostic accuracy in two
generational trauma and mental/behavioral health problems leading to increased rates of

I  referral to multiple services of involved patients and families. A study was published as a
result of this (XXIIl.A. 14).

o  2018: Helped implement trauma informed care at the UIHC ED Pediatric population. Impact:
Identification that 40% of families with a child seen in ED had four or more adverse

childhood experiences revealing need for mental/behavioral health services,
o  2018-2019: 1 co-edited as invited editor The United Nations Manual Revision Committee:

Effective investigation and documentation of torture and other cruel, inhuman or degrading
1  treatment or punishment (Istanbul protocol, or IP) to set out minimum standards for legal and

medical investigations of cases of alleged torture and ill-treatment. Impact: This protocol is
instrumental in reducing multiple forms of torture including electric torture in prisons and
jails of countries with human rights violations history.

B. Educational/Advocacy

INTERNATIONAL

o  2002-to date: Led training activities in Turkey and created a large network of trainers and
had a significant impact on :

■  Establishment of 15 academic hospital based Multidisciplinary Child Protection Teams,
•  Worked as a consultant with national and regional policy makers and child protection

agencies in Turkey and helped a congress bill be passed to implement regional
interdisciplinary child abuse task forces and child advocacy centers

■  Became an invited consultant for the Turkish Ministries of Justice and Health in creating
a network of >40 Child Advocacy Centers in Turkey Multiple studies were published as a
result of this work.

•  Numerous publications from various universities of Turkey.

o  2010-date: I am also a recognized expert in Portugal, Pakistan, Colombin, Baltic states, and
Greece, in developing a national response to child abuse & neglect and specifically to child
sexual abuse and abusive head trauma interdisciplinary/inter-sectorial management, which led to:

•  University of Porto Department of Forensic Medicine implementing regional
interdisciplinary child abuse task forces in Portugal and developing guidelines for
the Ministry of Justice on the management of child sexual abuse (I was a co
author on some of the publications)

•  1 worked with "Protection And Help of Children Against Abuse and Neglect
(PAHCHAAN)" non-governmental agency in Pakistan and helped them develop

II
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a training curriculum for medical professionals on the hospital management of
abused children

o  '2003-2005: 1 led Turkish National Child Abuse Task Force to join the ISPCAN international
Working group on determining the epidemiology of Child Abuse & Neglect in developing
countries

o  2005-2008: Contributed to the development of an international medical curriculum on Child
Abuse & Neglect for medical practitioners in developing countries by participating in the Ad Hoc
Education Committee in International Society for the Prevention of Child Abuse and Neglect
(ISPCAN)

NATIONAL:

o  2006-2010: Several hospitals across USA connected with me in revising their policies on
perinatal screening and intervention for illicit drugs. Impact: I am now recognized as one of the
experts on drug endangered children in the USA.

REGIONAL

o  2006-2013: Established Period of Purple Ciying Shaken Baby Prevention Program at the NICU,
Mother Baby Unit, Pediatrics Clinic, and Family Practice Clinic, after using three years of CMN
grant funding, In 2013, it was adopted by the hospital as part of the capital budget, providing the
program permanency. Impact: I disseminated this program to 7 referral affiliated hospitals
in my region and worked with Iowa Department of Public Health to disseminate it across
the state.

o  2007-2008: 1 developed a training curriculum on how to use the new perinatal illicit drug
screening protocol for the UIHC staff and created a model curriculum to be used at the birthing
hospitals in Iowa. Impact: Explained above

o  2014: Co-founded the Iowa Chapter of American Professional Society on the Abuse of Children
collaborating with a team of child abuse professionals in Iowa

o  2013-2014: Organized the Provost's Global Forum for Academic Year 2013-2014 (March 25-
28/2014) with a theme of Adverse Childhood Experiences and Multidisciplinary Response to
Child Abuse" Impact: Explained above

o  2015-2017: I was a scientific consultant for the European Union Grant PROMISE project.
Impact: It led to the development of multiple practice tools to implement Child Protection
Center model in 20 European countries to address child sexual abuse,

o  2016: Developed a training module on Trauma Informed Care in Collaboration with School of
Social Work to implement Trauma Informed Care at the UIHC. Impact: This model was
established in my child abuse clinic and partially implemented in other units of the UIHC
that led to several publications,

o  2016-2018: Developed two training modules to be used to "train the trainer" programs on
educating providers on child physical abuse and child sexual abuse assessment and management
for ISPCAN (16 and 18 lectures in each module). Impact: I trained hundreds of trainees in
Greece using these modules in 2016 and 2018 that led to a publication and several are in
submission phase. Additionally, these modules were adopted as training tools by ISPCAN,
which allowed child abuse professionals from all over the world access quality educational
resources to train their national audiences,

o  2018: Created a package of child safety brochures including abuse and non-abuse related,
physical, sexual, and emotional injur>' prevention flyers both for parents and children

o  2018: Organized 6 grand rounds for departments of Pediatrics, Family Practice, Emergency
medicine. Nursing, Internal Medicine, Surgeiy, Anesthesiology, and Hospital Advisory Council
on "Implementation of Trauma Informed Care and Behavioral Health Services in Primary Care"
to be held on 11/6-9/2018 by two speakers from Montefiore Hospital in New York City. Impact:
This activity led to UIHC community becoming even more engaged toward implementing
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trauma informed care in the institution.

C. Research:

o  2003-2005: I led Turkish National Child Abuse Task Force to join the ISPCAN International
Working group on determining the epidemiology of Child Abuse & Neglect in developing
countries.

o  2002-date: 1 established a multicenter research team in Turkey to conduct multiple studies on
child abuse and neglect systems building and shaken baby syndrome (Published # XXIII.A. 1-
5,7,11,12;#XX1H.B.12-I4,16,19-2I,23-25,27,28,32,37,38;#XXI!I.C.2,3,5,9)

o  2010-2015: 1 established a multicenter research team in Portugal to conduct multiple studies on
multidisciplinary response to child abuse and neglect, multiple guidelines were published (U
XX111.C.6 and # XXlll.D.book chapters.4,5)

o  2015-2019: Co-established a Council on Trauma Informed Care ("Promoting Resiliency
Initiative") on campus collaborating with the colleges of Education, Public Health, Social'Work,
Nursing, Medicine, and Law with the goals of research, service, and education (two publications
from this team have been submitted for publication)

o  2016-date: I established a multicenter research team in Greece to conduct multiple studies.on
child abuse and neglect systems building and two studies were published (# XX11I.B.34, #
XX1I1.B.35), some are in manuscript writing phase.

XV. Entrepreneurial Activities:
None

XVI. Major Committee Assignments

A. National/International:

1999-date Chair/Co-chair: Conference Organization Committees: 1 co-organize
a national and multiple regional or local conferences, training

courses, symposia, and workshops (4-6/year) on Child Abuse &
Neglect in Turkey.

2005-2008 Member: Ad Hoc Education Committee in International S6ciet>' for
the Prevention of Child Abuse and Neglect (ISPCAN) to develop
educational modules for developing countries; I shared multiple
educational tools with ISPCAN

2010-2015 Member: Training Organization Committees, Training Courses on
Child Abuse & Neglect in Portugal (1-2 conferences a year)

2010-2012 .Co-chair Scientific Com.mittee and member of organization
committee: ISPCAN world child abuse conference

2014-date Member: Training Organization Committee, National Conference on
Child Abuse & Neglect in Colombia (1 conference a year)

2015-date Member, World Perspectives biennial publication of the International
Societies for Prevention of Child Abuse and Neglect and World
Health Organization

20r6-date Co-chair: Training OrganiMtion Committees, Training Courses on
Child Abuse & Neglect in Greece (4-6 training activities ever>' two
years)

2016-date Member: ISPCAN education committee -developed two education

modules on physical abuse and sexual abuse for developing countr>'
professionals.

2019-2020 Scientific committee member: 2020 International Conference on

Turkey

Colorado, USA

Portugal

Istanbul Turkey

Colombia

Colorado, USA

Greece

Colorado, USA

Izmir, Turkey
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Child Abuse & Neglect in Turkey
2020-2021 Scientific committee member: 202:

Adolescent Pediatrics in Turkey
International Conference on Izmir, Turkey

B. Regional;
2001-2017 Member & Medical consultant; State Child Protection Council

2001 -2017 Member & Medical consultant; State Citizen's Review Panel

2002-2005 Board member - Rape Victims Advocacy Program
2003-2005 Founding Member, Board Member; Prevent Child Abuse Johnson

County
2003-2006 Member, Medical Consultant; Wapello Count>' Drug Endangered

Children Task Force and its Education Committee

2004-2007 Board Member, Johnson County Sexual Assault Response Team

2004-2019 Member & Medical consultant; Iowa State Alliance for Drug
Endangered Children

2006-2008 Co-chair: Perinatal Illicit Drug Screening Practice Guideline
Development Committee: Department of Public Health Perinatal
Care Group

2006-2009 Board Member & Medical consultant; Prevent Child Abuse Iowa
2018-2019

2010-2019 Founding member, Johnson County. Child Death Review Team
2010-2019 Founding member, Johnson County Child Abuse Multidisciplinar>'

Team

2019-date Invited member, Attorney General's Child Abuse Task Force
2019-date Invited member, NH Child Abuse Needs Assessment (CANA)

Committee

2019-date Chair of Organization Committee, Shield Children from Harm annual
conference at CHaD

C. Institutional:

2001-2019 Member, Protection of Persons Committee. UIHC

2001-2019 Member, Child Abuse Panel, UIHC

2006-2019 Chair, Child Abuse Panel, UIHC

2006-2008 Chair: Training curriculum development committee on Perinatal
Illicit Drug Screening Practices at the UIHC

2007 UIHC Emergency Department Review Ad Hoc Committee

2009-2019 Member, Pediatric Trauma Multidisciplinao' Team, UIHC
201 1-2016 Member, U of 1 Department of Pediatrics Promotions Advisory

Committee

2013-2019 , Founding member & chair; UIHC Trauma Informed Care Initiative
2014-2019 Vice-chair, Protection of Persons Subcommittee, UIHC

2014-2019 Member, U of Iowa International Programs Funding Opportunities
Committee: This group reviews proposals for the Provost's Global
Forum, IP Major Projects Awards, and IP Summer Research
Fellowships '

2016 Member, UIHC Radiology Department Review Ad Hoc Committee

Iowa

Iowa

Iowa City, lA

Iowa City, lA

Ottumwa, lA

Iowa City, lA

Iowa

Iowa

Iowa

Iowa City, lA
Iowa City, lA

Concord, NH
New Hampshire

Lebanon, NH

Iowa City, lA

Iowa City, lA

Iowa City, lA

Iowa City,\IA

Iowa City, lA

Iowa City, lA

Iowa City, lA

Iowa City, lA
Iowa City, lA
Iowa City, lA

Iowa City, lA
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2016-2019 Elected Member, University of Iowa Faculty Senate Iowa City, IA
2016-2019 Elected Member, Universit>' oflowa Facult)' Council Iowa Cit>', lA
2016-2019 At large Elected Member, Universit>' of lowa Hospitals & Clinics Iowa Cit)', lA

Hospital Advisory Board Iowa City, lA
2017-date Member, Professional Practice and Well-being Subcommittee Iowa Cit)', lA
2017-date Member, Pedialric Inpatient Services Committee ' Iowa City, lA
2018-date Editing member. United Nations Manual Revision Committee:' international

Effective investigation and documentation of torture and other cruel,
inhuman or degrading treatment or punishment (Istanbul protocol, or
IP) to set out minimum standards for legal and medical investigations
of cases of alleged torture and ill-treatment.

2018-2019 Member, Children's Miracle Network Research grant evaluation Iowa City, lA
committee '

2018-2019 Member, U1 Department of Pediatrics Wellness Committee Iowa City, lA
2019 Member, Selection committee for Michael J. Brody Award for Iowa City, lA

Faculty Excellence in SeiA'ice at U of Iowa
2020-date Pediatric Sexual Assault Team Establishment ad hoc Committee Lebanon, NH

XVII. Memberships, Office and Committee Assignments in Professional Societies

Turkish Society for Prevention of Child Abuse & Neglect
1994-date Member

American Academy of Pediatrics

1999-2001 Resident member

International Society for Prevention of Child Abuse & Neglect
1999-dale Member, Faculty on Education Board, serving on the International

Curriculum Development Committee since 2006 and World Perspectives
publication committee since 2015

American Academy of Pediatrics
2001-date Fellow

Iowa Chapter of American Academy of Pediatrics
2001-2019 Member

Iowa Medical Socict)'

2001-2019 Member

Midwest Society' for Pediatric Research
2001-2010 Member

American Academy of Pediatrics, section on Child Abuse & Neglect
2002-date Member

American Professional Society on the Abuse of Children
2002-date Member

2011-2019 Iowa Chapter, Founding Board Member

Ambulatory Pediatrics Association

2004-date Member

Iowa Chapter of American Academy of Pediatrics, section on Child Abuse & Neglect
2004-2019 Chair

American Academy of Pediatrics, section on International Child Health
2006-date Member, serving on the Committee to review l-CATCH grants
American Academy of Pediatrics, section on International Child Health
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2008-date Member, serving on the Nominations Committee
,  The Ray Heifer Society (Society for pediatric child abuse & neglect experts)

2007-date invited member
2010-date Nominations Committee member

Turkish Societ>' of Nervous System Surgery
2009-date Invited member

National Children's Alliance (supervisory organization for child advocacy cenbrs)
2010-date Invited member

Portugese Society for Prevention of Child Abuse & Neglect
2010-date Invited member

Midwest Alliance on Shaken Baby Syndrome
201 1-2012 Invited founding board member
Council on the Status of Women

2012-2016 Board member (Faculty representative)
Iowa Chapter of American Professional Society' on the Abuse of Children
2012-2019 Founding Board member
Ray Heifer Society
2014-date International Subcommittee member of the Heifer Fatal and Nonfatal Severe Abuse

Committee

2018-2019 Founding member, Ad Hoc Advocacy Committee

XVIH. Institutional Center or Program Affiliations:
None with protected time

XIX. Editorial Boards

1994-98 Journal ofNeonatohgy, Assisting Editor, published in Turkey with an international
Editorial Board in English

2010-2013 Journal ofInjury and Violence Research. Assisting Editor, internationally published
2014-2016 Journal of Pediatrics d- Child Care, internationally published, open access journal

XX. Journal Referee Activity

2000-date International Journal ofChild Abuse & Neglect, Journal of International Society to
Prevent Child Abuse & Neglect (1-2 review a year)

2002-2015 Journal of Forensic Sciences, nationally published journal from. Ankara University
Medical School, Ankara, Turkey (I review a year)

2003-2010 Journal ofForensic Psychiatiy, nationally published journal from Ankara University
Medical School, Ankara, Turkey (1 review a year)

2003-2008 Turkish Journal of Toxicology, nationally published journal from Ankara University
Medical School, Ankara, Turkey (I review a year)
http:/Avww.medicine.ankara.edu.tr/internal medical/Forensic medicine/tokdertzi.html

2003-2015 The Turkish Journal ofEmergency Medicine, nationally published journal from Ankara
University Medical School, Ankara, Turkey (1-2 review a year)
http://www.medicine.ankara.edu.tr/ihternal medical/forensic medicine/atddergi.html

2006-date Pediatrics, Journal of American Academy of Pediatrics (1-2 review a year) .
2009-date Archives ofPediatrics & Adolescent Medicine (1 -2 review a year)
2010-date Journal of Justice Academy of Turkey, internationally published journal from Ankara

University Medical School, Ankara, Turkey
2010-date Journal ofInjury and Violence Research (1 review, every few years)
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2010-date Journal ofChildren ami Youth Services Review (I review a year)
2010-dale Behcei Uz Children's HospiialJournal. nationally published journal, Izmir, Turkey (I

review a year)
2012-date Academic Pediatrics {I review a year)
2017-date British Medical Journal (1 review every few years)

XXI. Honors, a\yards, recognitions, outstanding achievements

1997 $15,000 scholarship from Rotary international Foundation for 9-month training on Child
Abuse & Neglect

1998 $20,000 scholarship from Turkish Ministry of Health for 6-month training on Child
Abuse & Neglect

1998 $15,000 scholarship from Humphrey Mid-Career Fellowship Program for 10-month
Training on Child Abuse & Neglect (I had to decline due to inconvenience of institution).

2008 Poster titled "The efficacy of hair and urine confirmatory testing in suspicious pediatric
burn injuries'- won best overall and best in category at the ̂ O''' American Burn
Association Convention.

2009, 2016 Nominated and selected as one of the "Best Doctors in America":

2010 Invited to be the senior consultant and instructor for the Ministi-y of Health on the "Child
Protection Center" pilot project in Ankara, Turkey

2013 $18,000, Provost's Global Forum Award to organize training activities on local, regional,
national, and global nature of adverse childhood experiences and child abuse and neglect

2015 Article co-authored by me tilled "Epidemiology of adverse childhood experiences in
, three provinces of Turkey" won the best article of the year in Turkey at the National
Pediatric Association Annual Conference.

2015 Through a competitive process, I was selected as a master trainer to train trainers in Iowa
on childhood adversity and trauma informed care by "ACEs Interface Initiative" national
program

2015-2019 Fulbright scholar award to collaborate with international education/research institutions
to implement multidisciplinary systems building in developing countries (I spent 3 and 2
weeks in Greece over two visits in 2016 and 2018)

XXII. Invited Presentations

LOCAL: Institutional conferences, grand rounds, journal clubs (All *)

3/12/02 Child Protection Program at the U of Iowa: Clinical guidelines for Iowa City, lA
mandatory reporters, U of 1, Department of Social Work

4/29/02 Clinical guidelines for the Child Protection Program at the UIHC, Grand Iowa City, lA
Rounds at Center for Disabilities and Development, U of I

6/16/02 Child Protection Program at Children's Hospital of Iowa, Referring Iowa City, lA
Physicians'Advisory Council annual meeting

8/2/02 Child Protection Program at the U of Iowa: Clinical guidelines for Iowa City, lA
mandatory reporters. Grand Rounds. Department of Pediatrics, U of Iowa

11/20/02 Management of cases with acute sexual assault, In-service training, Iowa City, lA
Division of General Pediatrics and Adolescent Medicine, Department of
Pediatrics, U of Iowa

4/16/03 Domestic Violence: American Medical Women's Association, Noon Iowa City, IA
lecture to medicar students (MSH MS2), U of Iowa
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6/18/03

mem

10/8/03

3/31/04

4/21/04

10/6/04

11/3/04

12/3/04

4/29/05

10/26/05

11/4/05

12/16/05

4/13/06

4/27/06

11/28/06

1/31/07

2/2/07

9/28/07

.  10/5/07

1 1/29/07

1/24/08

2/21/08

12/16/08

5/14/09

6/1/09

Utilization of sexual assault kit in pediatrics. In-service training, Division Iowa City, lA
of General Pediatrics and Adolescent Medicine, Department of Pediatrics,
U of Iowa

Management of drug endangered children: How to improve neonatal drug Iowa City, lA
screening at the UIHC, Neonatology Faculty Noon Conference
How to improve neonatal drug screening at the UIHC, Neonatology Iowa City, lA
nursing staff continuing education U of Iowa

Inflicted fractures, U of Iowa students serving at Mobile Clinics of UIHC U Iowa City. lA
of Iowa

Health system in Turkey and its problems to Global Medicine Society Iowa City, lA
medical student members, U of Iowa

Drug endangered children Part 1, In-ser\'ice training at the Division of Iowa City, lA
General Pediatrics & Adolescent Medicine, U of Iowa
Drug endangered children Part 2, In-service training at the Division of Iowa City, lA
General Pediatrics & Adolescent Medicine, U of Iowa

Drug endangered children and communit>' response-l. Grand Rounds, Iowa City, lA
Department of Pediatrics, U of Iowa

Neonatal Screening Protocol at the UIHC, Neonatology Meeting, U of I lowaCitj', lA
Drug endangered children and medical management at the UIHC, Family Iowa City, lA
Care Center Monthly Area Clinic Directors Meeting, U of Iowa
^ Hair and sweat screening for illicit drugs to Chemical Dependency Iowa City, lA
Treatment Unit staff, U of Iowa

Changes needed to the UIHC neonatal drug screening protocol, Iowa Cit)', lA
Neonatology Monthly Division meeting, U of Iowa
UIHC Child Protection Coverage Clinical Guidelines for the Blue Team Iowa City, lA
and Pediatric Social Work staff-Part 1 and Part II, U of Iowa
UIHC needs to lead birthing hospitals in Iowa to address perinatal illicit Iowa City, lA

drug use. Grand Rounds to Department of Obstetrics and Gynecolog>'
International training on Child Abuse & Neglect, Pediatric Interest Group • Iowa City, lA
(M2), Uoflowa

Urine and hair screening methods to test children for illegal drugs. Burn Iowa City, lA
Unit Nursing StafFlecture, U of Iowa

UIHC needs to lead birthing hospitals in Iowa to address perinatal illicit Iowa City, lA
drug use, Grand Rounds to Department of Pediatrics, U of Iowa

UIHC needs to lead birthing hospitals in Iowa to address perinatal illicit Iowa City, lA
drug use. Grand Rounds to Department of Family Practice, U of Iowa

UIHC Child Protection Clinical Guidelines, Grand Rounds to Department Iowa City, lA
of Dermatology, U of Iowa

Management of pediatric acute sexual assault, ED core curriculum, U of Iowa City, lA
Iowa

Fetal Alcohol Syndrome and adult outcome, Grand Rounds to Iowa City, lA
Department of Internal Medicine, U of Iowa

Fetal Alcohol Syndrome and adult outcome. Grand Rounds to Iowa City, lA
Department of Obstetrics and Gynecology, U of Iowa
'^•Abusive Head Trauma, Grand Rounds to Department of Ophthalmology, Iowa City, lA
Uoflowa

Abusive Head Trauma, Center for Disabilities and Development staff Iowa City. lA



OocuSign Envelope ID: 74FD520F-8EF9-4932-A532-2F3F836ADCD6

Resmiye Oral, MD

6/8/09 Abusive Head Trauma, Child Health Specialty Clinics staff via video Iowa City, lA
conference

6/09/09 ^ Schwartz Rounds, University oflowa Children's Hospital, U of Iowa Iowa City, lA

7/6/09 Perinatal illicit Drug Screening Protocol, Center for Disabilities and Iowa City', lA
Development staff monthly meeting

7/13/09 Perinatal Illicit Drug Screening Protocol, Child Health Specialty' Clinics Iowa City, lA
staff via video conference

4/1/11 Grand Rounds on Recognition of child abuse in disabled children. Center Iowa City, lA
for Disabilities and Development staff

7/11/11 Core curriculum lecture to Urology residents Iowa City, lA
8/20/12 Shaken Baby Syndrome, Family Practice Core Curriculum lecture Iowa City, lA
1/27/14 Adverse Childhood Experiences: Grand Rounds at Department of Family Iowa City, lA

Practice at the U of Iowa

3/27/14 Adverse Childhood Experiences: Grand Rounds at Department of ' Iowa City, lA
Internal Medicine at the U oflowa

3/28/14 Adverse Childhood Experiences: Grand Rounds at Department of Iowa City, lA
Pediatrics at the U of Iowa

7/15/14 ^ Adverse Childhood Experiences: Grand Rounds at Depailment of Iowa City, lA
Obstetrics and Gynecology at the U of owal

11/21/14 Corporal Punishment: Grand Rounds, Department of Pediatrics Iowa City, lA
12/30/14 How to provide opinion on burn cases to law enforcement and DHS: Burn Iowa City, lA

unit division meeting
1/26/15 Pediatric Neurology: Shaken baby syndrome Iowa City, IA
12/3/15 . ̂  Grand Rounds on adverse childhood experiences and trauma informed Iowa City, 1A

care. Emergency and Trauma Center
12/4/15 ^ How to avoid missed child abuse cases: Grand rounds for Dept. of Iowa City, lA

Pediatrics

10/10/16 Adverse Childhood Experiences: Grand Rounds at Department of . Iowa City, IA
Surgery

12/3/16 ^ Adverse Childhood Experiences: Grand Rounds at Department of Iowa City, 1A
Psychiatry

1/10/17 Inpatient Services' needs for social work and psychology; Monthly Iowa City, lA
Inpatient Team meeting

2/3/17 The future of the Child Protection Program: Stead Family Children's Iowa City, lA
Hospital Administrators lunch meeting

3/6/17 Outcome of Family Well-being Assessment in Child Assessment Clinic: Iowa City, lA
Weekly Facult}' Meeting, Dept. of Pediatrics

5/2/17 Trauma Informed Care and Patient Safety: Patient Safety Group quarterly Iowa City, lA
Forum

6/9/17 Emotional abuse, child neglect and childhood trauma; Pediatric Grand Iowa City, IA
Rounds

9/5/19 CAPP core curriculum: Pediatric residency Retreat Lebanon, NH
1/1 1/20 CAPP and child rights: Annual Physicians for Human Rights Conference Hanover, NH
10/27/20 CAPP protocol: Pediatric nurses core curriculum Lebanon, NH
1 1/17/20 CAPP protocols on referral to CAPP: GAP monthly, staffing meeting Lebanon, NH
3/2/2! CAPP guidelines for Family Practice physicians Lebanon, NH
3/18/21 CAPP guidelines for Ob/Gyn residents Lebanon, NH
9/28/21 Hospital based MDT function: NH Child Abuse Task-Force Concord, NH
1/26/22 How can CAPP best support Rockingham County Attorneys? Zoom, NH
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LOCAL Institutional recurrent lectures/teaching * (Some are CME as listed above)

Child abuse lecture to CDD staff and graduate students, U of Iowa (once 2001-2019 Iowa City, IA
ever>' 1-3 years)
Child Abuse lecture to Medical Students (M3), U of Iowa (Every 6-12 2001-2002 Iowa City, IA
weeks)
Core curriculum lectures to Pediatric residents. U of Iowa (on 8 topics 2001 -2019 Iowa City, IA
cycling eveiy 12-18 months)

Introduction to Child Abuse & Neglect, lecture to Medical Students, (M2) 2002-2019 Iowa City, IA
Foundations of Clinical Practice, U of Iowa (Once a year)

Various topics on child abuse and neglect to Global Health Club, (Mixed 2002-2019 Iowa City, IA
medical students), (once every 2-3 years)

Abusive Head Trauma lecture to Medical Students (M3), U of Iowa (Every 2003-2008 Iowa Cit>', lA
six weeks)
Case by case : Management of Child Abuse & Neglect, U of Iowa (1-2/year)

Osteogenesis Imperfecta, lecture to Medical Students (Ml), U of Iowa
(Every 2-3 yeai's)
Drug endangered children, Undergraduate Child Abuse Course for School of
Social Work students, U of Iowa (Twice a year)

How to interview abused children. Undergraduate Child Abuse Course for
School of Social Work students, U of Iowa (Twice a year)

Drug endangered children, Postgraduate (MPH) students for College of
Public Health, U of Iowa (Twice a year)

Physical Maltreatment lecture to Law School Students, U of Iowa (Every
two years)

Pediatric physical and sexual abuse in ETC, Annual PALS course and
resident core curriculum, U of Iowa (Twice a year)

Child Abuse lecture to Pediatric Nurse Practitioner Students, U of Iowa

(Twice a year)

Child abuse lecture, Family Practice Residency Core Curriculum, U of
lowa(Annually)

Train the trainers lecture series on UIHC Perinatal Illicit Drug Screening and
Intervention Protocol (3 lectures)
Management of sexually abused children and childhood trauma; Child
Psychiatry Residency core curriculum, U of Iowa (two lectures annually)

Child abuse lecture. Orthopedics Residency Core Curriculum, U of Iowa
(Annually)
Adverse Childhood Experiences Training Series "offered to units at the
University of Iowa and agencies across the state of Iowa (6-8 lectures/year)
Child "Abuse lecture, Postgraduate (MPH) students for College of Public
Health, U of Iowa (Annually)
Child Abuse lecture. Dentistry residents for College of Dentistry, U of Iowa
(Annually)
Adverse Childhood Experiences lecture to M-1 students (annual lecture)
Adverse Childhood Experiences and Trauma Informed Care lectures to M-2
students (annually, two lectures)
Trauma Informed Care and sexual abuse prevention: Human Rights Medical
Student Group (Annually)

2003-2008

2004-2008

Iowa City, lA

Iowa City, lA

2005-2010 Iowa City, lA

2005-2010 Iowa City, lA

20.05-09 Iowa City, lA

2005-2019 Iowa City, lA

2006-2019 Iowa City, lA

2007-2018 Iowa City, lA

2007-2019 Iowa Cit>', lA

Jan/2008 Iowa City, lA

2008-2019 Iowa City, lA

2013-2019 Iowa City, lA

2013-2019 Iowa Cit)', lA

2014-2019 Iowa City, lA

2015-2019 Iowa City, lA

2014-2019

2014-2019

Iowa City, lA
Iowa City, lA

2015-2019 Iowa City, lA
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2015-2019

2015-2016

2015-2019

2017

2020-date

2020-date

2020-date

2020-date

2021-date

2021-date

Abusive Head Trauma lecture to Medical Students (M3), U of Iowa (Every
six weeks)

Adverse childhood experiences and trauma informed care, Undergraduate
Child Abuse Course for School of Social Work students, U of Iowa (four
lectures a year)

Adverse childhood experiences and trauma informed care, Medicine and
Society II course for M-! students, U of Iowa (one lecture a year)
Patient Safety Forum lectures on trauma sensitive approaches (two quarterly
lectures spring and summer)

Annual CAPP clinical guidelines training for pediatric residents

Introduction to Physical Abuse Diagnostics: Recurrent Medical student
Clerkship lecture (every 6 weeks)

Adverse Childhood Experiences, Child sexual and physical abuse
recognition: On-Doctoring M-2 Psychiatry course

Annual CAPP collaboration with inpatient pediatric nurses

Annual clinical guidelines training for Psychiatry residents and child
psychiati7 fellows (repeated every year)

Genital examination in sexually abused children (Obstetrics residents)

• Adverse Childhood Experiences, Pediatrics Interest Group medical students

Invited Local and Regional CME/CEU lectures (All are * and

10/02/98 The problems in establishing a hospital based Child Protection Team in a
developing country, Regional Ambulatory Pediatrics Conference

12/28/00 Shaken Baby Syndrome, Woodhall Medical Center
1/03/01 ' . Munchausen Syndrome By Proxy, Beth Israel Medical Center

5/25/01 Sexual abuse. Columbia-Presbyterian Hospital Family Medicine Grand.
Rounds

2001-03 Lectures in the Training Course for the Child Protection Training
Academy program for DHS case workers (One-day course, annually)

1/14/02 Introduction to Diagnosis of Child Abuse & Neglect, Grand Rounds for
Department of Surgery, U of Iowa

1/31/02 Child Protection Program at the U of 1: Clinical guidelines for mandatory
reporters, U of Iowa, Department of Pediatrics

5/22/02 Domestic violence and its impact on children. Child Protection Training
Academy Training Program for DHS case workers via ICN

9/26/02 Two 1-hour lectures in the Annual Meeting Des Moines County Task
Force on Child Abuse & Neglect

2002-07 SPE Conferences (one lecture every two years)

10/18/02 Update on Medical Approach to Child Abuse & Neglect, Blackhawk
County Task Force Annual Meeting on Child Abuse & Neglect

10/19/02 -Mandatory Reporting for Daycare Providers, Indicators of Child Abuse &
Neglect, 4-C's bi-annual conference

10/24/02 Physician's Assistants Association Annual Conference, Medical

Approach to Child Abuse & Neglect

2020-date

Iowa City, lA

Iowa City, lA

Iowa City, lA

Iowa City, lA

Lebanon, NH

Lebanon, NH

 Lebanon, NH

Lebanon, NH

Lebanon, NH

Lebanon, NH

Lebanon, NH

Columbus, OH

Brooklyn, NY

New York, NY

New York, NY

Iowa City, lA

Iowa City, lA

Iowa City, lA

Iowa City, lA

Burlington, lA

Iowa City, lA

Waterloo, lA

Iowa City, lA

Cedar Rapids,
lA
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1/28/03 How to interview families in alleged Child Abuse & Neglect cases, CEU
training to social workers, Dep. Of Social Services, U of Iowa

2/6/03 How to interview children in alleged Child Abuse & Neglect cases, CEU
training to social workers. Dep. Of Social Services, U of Iowa

3/20/03 Diagnostic Approach to Child Abuse & Neglect, Regional Perinatal
Conference

4/29/03 Diagnostic Approach to Child Abuse & Neglect, Prevent Child Abuse
Iowa Annual Conference

9/18/03 - Thirteen 1-hr monthly seminars for the Wapello County Child Protection
12/16/04 Task Force

2/28/04 Diagnostic approach to Child Abuse & Neglect, Annual Conference for
Emergency Medical Technicians

2003-date Medical Approach to Child Abuse & Neglect. Child Protection Training
Academy Training Program (Two-day course, twice/year)

4/15/04 Drug Endangered children. Annual Southeastern Iowa Conference on
Drug Endangered Children

2004-date Child Maltreatment, Advanced Pediatric Life Support Course,
(Once/year) Department of Emergency Medicine, U of Iowa

7/29/04 Failure to thrive. Visiting Professor lecture, Broadlawns Medical Center
10/8/04 Children and Domestic Violence, Children's Alliance in Wapello Count)'

Fall Conference

1 1/5/04 Drug Endangered children, Drug Endangered Children Task Force

11/12/04 Drug endangered children and community response, Appanoose County
Drug Endangered Children Task Force In-service training

I I/I9/04 How does parental methamphetamine use affect children? Court
Improvement Project for Judicial Branch Conference

1/20/05 - Fifteen 1-hr monthly seminars for the Ottumwa Regional Medical Center
7/20/06 medical staff

3/4/05 Effects of illicit drugs on fetus and children, Southeastern Iowa Spring
Conference on Drug Endangered Children

7/19/05 Child Maltreatment, Advanced Pediatric Life Support Course to
Pediatricians & Family Practice Physicians, U of Iowa

9/23/05 Neonatal Screening Protocol at the U of Iowa, AAP Iowa Chapter
Postgraduate Fall Course on "Child and Adolescent at Risk"

9/24/05 . Medical Evaluation of Sexually Abused Child, AAP Iowa Chapter
Postgraduate Fall Course on "Child and Adolescent at Risk"

10/13/05 Physician's Assistants Association Annual Conference, Child Abuse &
Neglect Mandatory Reporter Training course

12/2/05 Child Abuse & Neglect Grand rounds to Multidisciplinary Trauma
Group, U of Iowa

12/13/05 Neonatal drug screening practices in Iowa and how can it be improved.
State Child Protection Council bi-monthly meeting

12/29/05 Munchausen Syndrome by Proxy to Emergency and Trauma Center staff,
U of Iowa

1/10/06 Drug Endangered Children, Law Enforcement Annual Child Abuse and
Neglect Certification Course, Johnson County Law Enforcement
Agencies

Iowa Cit)', lA

Iowa Cit)', lA

Mason City, lA

Des Moines, lA

Ottumwa, lA

Iowa City, lA

Des Moines, lA

Ottumwa, lA

Iowa City, lA

Des Moines, lA

Ottumwa, lA

Burlington, lA

Center\'ille, lA

Des Moines, lA.

Ottumwa, lA

Ottumwa, lA

Iowa City, lA

Iowa City, lA

Iowa City, lA

Cedar Rapids,
lA

Iowa City, lA

Des Moines, lA

Iowa City, lA

Iowa City, lA
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1/17/06 , Drug Endangered Children, Law Enforcement Annual Child Abuse and
Neglect Certification Course, Johnson County Law Enforcement
Agencies •

1/24/06 Drug Endangered Children, Law Enforcement Annual Child Abuse and
Neglect Certification Course, Johnson County Law Enforcement
Agencies

1/31/06 Drug Endangered Children, Law Enforcement Annual Child Abuse and
Neglect Certification Course, Johnson County Law Enforcement
Agencies

2006-date Visiting Professor lecture and hands-on training on selected cases, (I -3
invitations per year to family practice residencies around the state)

4/07/06 Povert)' and child abuse. Annual Diversity Conference

4/14/06 Drug Endangered Children, Johnson County Systems Unlimited Staffing
Meeting '

6/23/06 Drug Endangered Children, Johnson County Public Defender's,Office
Annual Conference

6/23/06 Shaken Baby Syndrome, Johnson County Public Defender's Office
Annual Conference

9/19/06 Pedialric burns and child abuse, Annual Midwest Burn Conference

9/27/06 Perinatal Illicit Drug Screening Policy efforts in Iowa, Carol County
Conference on Drug endangered Children

2006-2010 Advanced Training on Medical Approach to Child Abuse & Neglect
Child Protection Training Academy Training Program (One-day course,
annually)

10/26/06 Munchausen Syndrome by Proxy, Grand Rounds for St. Luke's Hospital
Family Practice residency program

8/2/07 Perinatal illicit drug screening and intervention practices in Iowa, Public
Health Barn Raising Conference VI

9/6/07 Perinatal illicit drug screening and intervention practices in Iowa,
Prevention Symposium

9/26/07 Perinatal Illicit Drug Screening Policy efforts in Iowa, Union County
Conference on Drug endangered Children

10/4/07 Child Abuse & Neglect re-certification Course for Mandatory Reporters,
Iowa Physician Assistant Society Fall Conference

3/26/08 Inflicted Head Trauma in Children & Childhood Physical Abuse, Iowa
Women's Police Association Conference

4/9-10/08 Statewide Policy on Perinatal Illicit Drug Screening and Intervention,
Perinatal Care Conference

4/18/08 How to recognize child abuse? Pediatric Nursing Conference
4/21/08 Prevention of Pediatric Inflicted Head Trauma, Annual Prevent Child

Abuse Iowa Conference

3/31/09 Shaken Baby Syndrome Prevention, Family, Career, Communication
Leaders of America Annual Conference

4/7/09 Dissemination of the Statewide Perinatal Illicit Drug Screening and
Intervention Protocol: Preliminary outcome, Drug Endangered Children
Alliance of Iowa Annual Meeting

Iowa Cit>', lA

Iowa City, lA

Iowa City, lA

Iowa

Ottumwa, lA

Iowa City, lA

Iowa City, lA

Iowa City, lA

Iowa City, lA

Carol, lA

Des Moines, lA

Cedar Rapids,
lA

Des Moiries, lA

Des Moines, lA

Creston, IA

Cedar Rapids,
lA

Des Moines, lA

Des Moines, lA

Iowa City, lA

Des Moines, lA

Des Moines, lA

Des Moines, lA
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6/9/09 How do pediatricians deal with emotions and personal biases when
managing child abuse cases and interacting with their families: Schwartz
Rounds

7/1/09 Shaken Baby Syndrome Prevention, Family Consumer Sciences Teachers
Annual Conference

3/20/10 Recognition of child physical abuse, Rural Health Conference, Indian
Hills College

4/13/10 Shaken Baby Syndrome Prevention Efforts in Iowa, Governor's
Prevention Conference

2010-date Advanced Training on Abusive Head Trauma, Child Protection Training •
Academy Training Program (One-day course, once a year)

4/1 1/12 Non-organic failure to thrive and perinatal illicit drug exposure: Visiting
Professorship lecture

4/12/12 Nebulous and gray areas in child abuse; Midwestern Family Physicians
Conference

10/23/12 Impact of staff training on perinatal illicit drug screening and intervention
(Drug Endangered Children Conference)

9/9/13 Sick From Bullying: Reaction Panel at Youth and Violence Conference
9/12/13 Local Perspectives on Adverse Childhood Experiences at The Corridor's

ACEs Summit

9/20/13 Abusive Head Trauma at Trauma Conference

10/3/13 Maternal and neonatal illicit drug screening (Neonatal Update
Conference)

10/4/13 Indicators of child abuse and neglect (Iowa Nursing Conference)
12/3/13 Adverse Childhood Experiences at 4-C's Annual Conference
1/15/14 Adyerse Childhood Experiences: Carol County Community Task Force .

(full day training course)
4/1/14 Adverse Childhood Experiences: Trainer the trainers seminar for Johnson

County Supei*visors Group
2/4/14 Inflicted Trauma: Trauma Group Seminar
3/20/14 Skin findings and child abuse; Visiting Professor lecture at Broadlawns

Hospital Family Practice Program:
3/26/14 Systems building in Turkey: Provost's Global Forum at the U of Iowa
5/1/14 Adverse Childhood Experiences: Iowa Nurse Practitioners Association

Annual Conference

6/24/14 Adverse Childhood Experiences: Trauma Informed Care Course to Fort
Dodge Community Task Force

8/25/14 Adverse Childhood Experiences: Blackhawk County Community Task
Force f

10/7/14 Adverse Childhood Experiences: Mason City Medical Society monthly
meeting

10/9/14 Adverse Childhood Experiences: School Nurses Annual Conference
4/23/15 Munchausen Syndrome by Proxy: Siouxland Medical Center family

Practice Residency Program grand Rounds .
8/26/15 Domestic Violence and how it effects families: Broadlawns Medical

Center Family Practice Program grand rounds
2/5/16 Transforming the U of Iowa to a trauma informed campus: Invited

presentation to the Ul president, provost, vice president for student affairs
3/18/16 Poverty and child abuse: Ottumwa Annual Regional Diversity

Conference

4/22/16 Childhood Trauma Work at Global Scale: Language Makes a Difference,

Iowa City, lA

Des Moines, lA

Ottumwa, lA

Ames, lA

Des Moines, lA

Waterloo, lA

Iowa City, lA

Des Moines, lA

Iowa City, lA
Cedar Rapids,
lA

Davenport, lA
Iowa City, lA

Iowa City, lA
Iowa City, lA
Creston, lA

Iowa City, lA

I owa City, IA
Des Moines, lA

Iowa City, lA
Iowa City, lA

Fort Dodge, lA

Waterloo, lA

Mason City, lA

Des Moines, lA

Sioux City, lA

Des Moines, lA

Iowa City, lA

Ottumwa, lA

Cedar Rapids,
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4/27/16

5/18/16

5/18/16

5/19/1,6

8/18/16

10/28/16

2/4/17

3/4/17

3/8/17

4/18/17

4/20/17

5/30/17

5/3I/I7

6/1/17

6/2/17

10/26/17

12/14/17

2/21/(8

3/21/18

4/12/18

4/24/18

5/8/16

5/9/18

5/21/18

10/31/18

11/15/18

1/22/19

3/14/19

10/30/2019

11/7/2019

Coe College French Department Grand Rounds
Trauma Informed Care: Resiliency Triumphs Over Trauma Workshop
Trauma Informed Care on Campus and Beyond: Resiliency Triumphs
Over Trauma Workshop
Resiliency Triumphs over Trauma: Just Living Theme Semester
workshop
Bullying real life and internet for parents: Visiting Professor lecture at St.
Luke's Flospital
Abusive Head Trauma recognition and prevention in the ER: Webinar to
all Iowa Hospitals with an ER service
How to provide Trauma informed Care to children in foster care: Iowa ,
Foster Care Association annual conference

Nurses' Role in Trauma Informed Practices: U1 Nursing Grand rounds
Trauma informed care and trauma sensitive responses: Peri-
anesthesiology Nurses Annual Conference
Trauma informed care in primar)- care: First Five Webinar training
Adverse Childhood Experiences and How they impact all aspects of life:
Shelby County Trauma Task Force meeting
How child abuse affects mental health: Mental Health Nurses Annual

Conference

Domestic Violence: First Five Webinar training
Recognition of child abuse and neglect in primary care: First Five
Webinar training
Trauma Informed Care: The future of Health Care

Domestic Violence: First Five Webinar training
Trauma Informed Care: Medicine-Psychiatry Nurses Conference
How to implement Trauma Informed Assessment in Systems of Care:
Ottumwa Mental Health Task Force

Adverse Childhood Experiences and Sexual Abuse: First-Five training for
primar)' care providers
Trauma sensitive responses to families in which child abuse occurs:
Children's Hospital's Nursing Grand Rounds '
How to conduct Trauma Informed Assessment in systems of care:
Ottumwa Train-the-Trainer Course (half day)
How do Adverse Childhood Experiences affect health, education,
income, productivity, and mortality: First-Five training for primary care
providers
How to respond to sex abuse lecture: UIHC Ob/Gyn residents
How. to conduct Trauma Informed Assessment in systems of care:
Ames Train-the-Trainer Course (full day)
Trauma Informed Care: UI Family Practice Grand Rounds
Path to diagnostic accuracy and value based care is Trauma Informed
Care

Domestic Violence and child abuse: Broadlawns Hospital Grand Rounds
Adverse Childhood Experiences and Their Impact on Health: U of Iowa
Trauma and Resiliency Certificate Lecture
Flow to conduct Trauma Informed Assessment in systems of care:
Ottumwa Train-the-Trainer Course (full day)
CAPP and its future to lead NH in child abuse response: Dept. of
Pediatrics Grand rounds .

Medical Child Abuse: Concord Hospital Pediatric in-service training

lA

Iowa City, !A
Iowa City, lA

Iowa City, lA

Cedar Rapids,
lA

Iowa

Cedar Rapids,
lA

Iowa City, lA
Iowa City, lA

lo.wa City, lA
Shelby Count)',
lA

Iowa City, IA

lowa City, lA
Iowa City, lA

Cedar Falls, lA
Tipton, lA

Iowa City, lA
Ottumwa, lA

Cedar Rapids,
lA

Iowa City, lA

Ottumwa, lA

Cedar Rapids,
lA

Iowa City, lA-

Ames, lA

Iowa City, I/Jt
Manchester, IA

I

Des Moines, lA
Iowa City, lA

Ottumwa, lA

Lebanon, NH

Concord, NH
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2/19/2020

3/1/2020

i/12/2021

2/4/2021

3/24/2021

4/6/2021

4/7/2021

4/8/2021

4/9/2021

5/12/21

6/18-

8/20/2021

June-

December

2021

October 12-

November 2

2021

January lO-
February 14
2022

January 14-
February 18
2022

March 15-

April 19
2022

Medical Child Abuse and how to interview families when abuse is Concord, NH
suspected: Concord Family Practice in-service training (2 lectures)
How can CARP collaborate with primaiy care providers? Annual CHaD Mt.
Pediatric Conference Washington,

NH

Medical Child Abuse: New England Virtual Pediatric Education Course Lebanon, NH
Eye findings in Child Abuse for Ophthalmology Grand Rounds Lebanon, NH
DCYF referral process to CAPP services Lebanon, NH
COVID pandemic and prevention of and rwponse to child abuse and Lebanon, NH
neglect in NH, Panel moderation and discussion at Shield Our Children
from Harm Conference

Psychological maltreatment, Panel discussion at Shield Our Children Lebanon, NH
from Harm Conference

DCYF patient referral process to CAPP clinics: Annual DCYF Concord, NH
conference

Flospital based MDT meetings: Annual DCYF conference Concord, NH
International collaboration on systems building for child abuse and Lebanon, NH
neglect national response in Turkey: Grand rounds for Dept. of Pediatrics
Nine biweekly lecture series on medical fundamentals of child abuse and Zoom, NH
neglect: Comprehensive course for DCYF legal staff
Fifteen biweekly lecture series on medical fundamentals of child abuse Zoom, NH
and neglect: Comprehensive course for DCYF field staff, district

supervisors, and nurses
Six weekly lectures on Know & Tell Medical Fundamentals of Child Zoom, NH
Abuse & Neglect: Southern New Hampshire Medical Center and Elliott
Hospital staff
Six weekly lectures on Know & Tell Medical Fundamentals of Child Zoom, NH
Abuse & Neglect: Valley Regional Center staff

Six weekly lectures on Know & Tell Medical Fundamentals of Child Zoom, NH
Abuse & Neglect; Wenworth Douglas Hospital and Dover Pediatrics staff

Six weekly lectures on Know & Tell Medical Fundamentals of Child Zoom, NH
Abuse & Neglect: North Country Hospitals staff

Invited National CME Lectures (All are * and

3/23/99

3/3/00

1/27/05

4/30/06

10/7/06

Sexual Abuse in Children, Department of Pediatrics Noon
Conference at Cornell Medical Center

Munchausen Syndrome By Proxy, Driscoll Children's Hospital

Establishment of Interdisciplinary Child Protection Teams in a
traditional society: The. hurdles and how they are overcome, 19"'
Annual Conference on Child and Family Maltreatment

Neonatal illicit drug screening: How can we prevent sending infants
to drug using homes? Pediatric Ambulatory Society Annual
Conference, Child Abuse & Neglect Special Interest Group session

Outcome of structured training program on child abuse & neglect in
Turkey, AAP International Child Health Section Annual Membership
meeting

New York, NY

Corpus Christi, TX

San Diego, CA

San Francisco, CA

Atlanta, GA
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1/12/07 Perinatal illicit drug use/exposure; Still a dilemma nationwide?
Children's Hospital at Dartmouth Grand Rounds

3/5/07 Neonatal illicit drug screening: How can we prevent sending infants
to drug using homes? University of Connecticut, Department of
Pediatrics Grand Rounds

3/7/07 . Neonatal illicit drug screening:. How can we prevent sending infants
to drug using homes? Annual Howard Sloan Day, Long Island
College Hospital

4/1 1/07 Child advocacy center model and medical assessment of sexually
abused children, New Hampshire Child Protection Task Force

4/12/07 Child advocacy center model and medical assessment of sexually.
abused children, Children's Hospital at Dartmouth Child Advocacy
Center staff in-service training

10/21/07 Perinatal Illicit Drug Screening Policy Development Efforts in Iowa,
Heifer Society Annual Conference

1/31/08 Perinatal Illicit Drug Screening Policy Development Efforts in Iowa,
22"'' San Diego Annual Conference on Child Maltreatment

9/23/08 Illicit drug exposure in children evaluated for abuse and neglect,
Heifer Society Annual Meeting

4/6/1 1 Improvement in perinatal illicit drug screening and inter\'ention
practices at the UIHC, Heifer Society Annual Meeting

3/20/12 Leading the way to Child Advocacy Center model in Turkey,
National Children's Alliance Annual Meeting

8/10/12 Assessment of child homicides: Child fatalities symposium. Midwest
Alliance on Shaken Baby Syndrome

10/20/12 Systems Building in Turkey on child abuse management and
prevention (AAP annual conference)

4/5/13 Munchausen Syndrome by Proxy (full day course to forensic
investigators)

1 1/14/14 Drug Endangerment of Children (full day course to forensic
investigators)

4/19-22/15 Trauma informed care by child abuse pediatricians: Heifer Society
Annual Conference

5/5/15 Trauma informed care at Child Advocacy Centers: National
Children's Alliance Annual Conference

1/27/16 Trauma Informed Care at the UICH: Heifer Society Prevention
Committee Quarterly Meeting

3/4/16 Adverse Childhood Experiences and how childhood trauma affects
health: AlAFS Training Course for Forensic Scientists

7/11/18 Path,to diagnostic accuracy and value based care is Trauma Informed
Care: Mount Sinai Children's Hospital Grand Rounds

9/25/18 Path to diagnostic accuracy and value based care is Trauma Informed
Care: UC at Irvine Child Protection Program Grand Rounds

10/28/18 Path to diagnostic accuracy and value based care is Trauma Informed
Care: University of New York Grand rounds

1 1/19/18 Path to diagnostic accuracy and value based care is Trauma Informed
Care: Hackensack University Medical Center Child Protection
Program Grand Rounds

1/11/19 Trauma Informed Care and Trauma Sensitive Responses in Health

Lebanon, NH

Hartford, CT

New York, NY

Manchester, NH

Hanover, NH

Stevenson, WA

San Diego. CA

Tuscan, AZ

Amelia Island, FL

Huntsville, AL

Minneapolis, MN

New Orleans, LA

Minneapolis, MN

Minneapolis, MN

Savannah, GA

Norfolk, VA

Houston, TX

Minneapolis, MN

New York City,

NY

Irvine, CA

Syracuse, NY

Hackensack, NJ

Minneapolis, MN
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care; AlAFS day-long Training Course for Forensic Scientists
2/25/2020 Drug Endangered Children and Assessment: Grand Rounds at Springfield, MA

Baystate University Medical Center
5/8/2020 Trauma informed Care and Trauma Sensitive Responses in Health Minneapolis, MM

care: AIAFS day-long Training Course for Forensic Scientists

Invited International CME/CEU lectures (All are * and

3/19/02 Collaboration of Medical, Legal and Social work fields in Child Neglect Izmir,
prevention in Turkey, Ege Universit)' Medical School (One-day in-ser\'ice Turkey
training course)

3/20/02 Collaboration of Medical. Legal and Social Work fields in Child Abuse & Ankara,
Neglect prevention in Turkey, Ankara and Gazi University Medical Schools Turkey
(Three I -hr lectures)

3/21/02 Collaboration of Medical, Legal and Social Work fields in Child Abuse &, Ankara,
Neglect prevention in Turkey, Ankara and Gazi University Medical Schools Turkey
(Half day in-service training course)

3/22/02 Medical diagnostic approach to Child Abuse & Neglect, Duzce University Duzce,
Medical School (One-day in-service training course) Turkey

3/25/02 Problems of a newly established hospital-based Child Abuse & Neglect Izmir,
follow-up team, 3-hour workshop, Dokuz Eyiul University Turkey

3/27/02 Problems of a newly established hospital-based Child Abuse & Neglect Izmir,
follow-up team, 3-hour workshop, Ege University Turkey

.  5/3/03 Training Course for physicians on Child Abuse & Neglect, Istanbul Chapter Istanbul,
of Turkish Medical Association (One-day in-service training course) Turkey

5/5/03 Training Course for multidisciplinary professionals on Child Abuse & Antalya,
Neglect Akdeniz University Medical School (One-day in-service training Turkey
course for hospital stafO

5/6/03 Training Course for interdisciplinary professionals on Child Abuse & Neglect Antalya,
Akdeniz University Medical School (One-day in-service Regional training Turkey
course)

5/9/03 Training course to hospital based multidisciplinary team members, Ege Izmir,
University Medical School (One-day in-service training course) • Turkey

5/12/03 Training Course for general practitioners on Child Abuse & Neglect, Ege Izmir,
University Medical School (One-day in-service training course) Turkey

5/13/03 Role of schools in the management of Child Abuse & Neglect, -Ege Izmir,
University Medical School (Half-day symposium, four I-hr lectures) Turkey

5/20/04 Introductory^training to Aydin Regional Child Protection Task Force, Aydin Aydin,
Municipality Human Resources Center (One-day in-service training course) Turkey

5/21/04 ^ Establishing and running a child advocacy center in Turkey to Aydin Child Aydin,
and Youth Center staff, Aydin Child and Youth Center (4 hours) Turkey

5/24-26/04 5"' National Conference of Sexuality & Sexual Disorders (Tvvo I -hour Istanbul,
lectures) Turkey

5/27-28/04 Training course to hospital based multidisciplinary team members, Hacettepe Ankara,
University Medical School (Two-day in-service training course) Turkey

6/2-3/05 Training course to hospital based multidisciplinary team members on Child Ankara,
Abuse & Neglect, Baskent University Medical School (Two-day in-service Turkey
training course)

28



DpcuSign Envelope ID: 74FD520F-8EF9-4932-A532-2F3F836ADCD6

Resmiye Oral, MD

6/3/05 How to improve legal response to Child Abuse & Neglect, Ankara
Bar Association

6/4/05 How to interview sexually abused children, Vth Social Psychiatr)'
Conference, Osmangazi University Medical School (Half day Workshop)

6/7-8/05 How to organize regional interdisciplinary response to Child Abuse &
Neglect, Erciyes University Medical School (Two-day in-ser\'ice training
course)

5/15/06 Two 3-hour workshops for Multidisciplinary Child Protection Teams in
Ankara, Gazi University Medical School

5/16-17/06 Biennial conference on response to Child Abuse and Neglect, Turkish Society
for the Prevention of Child Abuse and Neglect (3-hour workshop)

5/18-19/06 Training course on response to Child Abuse and Neglect, Ondokuz May is
University Medical School (Two-day in-service training course)

6/8/06 Grand Rounds on Inflicted Head Trauma in Children, National Forensic
Medicine institute

6/9/06 Cerrahpasa Medical School Child Protection Symposium (Two l-hour
lectures)

6/9/06 Capa Medical School Child Protection Symposium (Three I-hour lectures)

5/21 -22/07 Conference on response to Child Abuse and Neglect, Uludag University
Medical School, (Two-day in-service training course)

5/24-28/07 Forensic Medicine Association Annual Symposium (Three 4-hour
workshops)

6/4/07 Medical management of inflicted head trauma

5/5/08 Regional Conference on Child abuse & Neglect, Ege University Medical
School (2-hour lecture)

5/8-10/08 National Conference on response to Child Abuse and Neglect, Turkish
Society for the Prevention of Child Abuse and Neglect (2-hour workshop)

5/9/08 Task Force meeting on National Child Protection System Development:
Collaboration among State Departments of Social Services, Health, Justice,
Education, internal Affairs, and Education (2-hour workshop)

5/26/08 Izmir interdisciplinary Child Abuse & Neglect Task Force meeting (2-hour
workshop)

1 1/3/08 Izmir Department of Public Health Annual Conference (2-hour workshop)

11/4/08 Izmir Child Abuse Task Force monthly meeting (2-hour workshop)

11/5/08 Izmir Forensic Medicine Institute Grand Rounds

inflicted head trauma and case management on a multidisciplinary basis
4/12-14/09 19'*' National Child and Adolescent Psychiatry conference

One day course on Interdisciplinary Management of Child Sexual Abuse
4/16-17/09 Izmir Child Abuse Task Force and Behcet Uz Children's Hospital Grand

Rounds (I-hour lecture)

9/27-30/09 National Conference,on Child Maltreatment, Ankara Child Protection Task

Force (One day in-service training course, 4-hour workshop, key note lecture)

10/1-4/09 5'^' Neurosurgery Conference (2-hour workshop on program development on
Shaken Baby Syndrome)

Ankara,

Turkey

Eskisehir,

Turkey

Kayseri,
Turkey

Ankara,

Turkey

Ankara,

Turkey

Samsun,

Turkey

Istanbul,
Turkey

Istanbul,

Turkey

Istanbul,

Turkey

Bursa,

Turkey

G-antep
Turkey

Aydin,
Turkey
Izmir,

Turkey

Ankara,

Turkey

Ankara,

Turkey

Izmir,
T urkey

Izmir,

Turkey
Izmir,
Turkey
Izmir,

Turkey

Antakya,
Turkey
Izmir,

Turkey

Ankara,

Turkey

Urgup,

Turkey
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10/14-17/09 4''* Mediterranean Academy of Forensic Sciences Meeting (4-hour workshop Antalya,
and 90 minute round table) Turkey

5/19-20/10 Child Abuse in-service training course, University of Porto (2-day course on Porto,
program development on Shaken Baby Syndrome and Child Sexual Abuse) Portugal

5/22-24/10 Unicef/Marmara University Collaborative Meeting (3-day in-service training Istanbul,
course on establishment of child advocacy centers at 9 universities in Turkey) Turkey

5/26-28/10 l"Mational Shaken Baby^Syndrome Conference (Half day inservice training Ankara, ■
course, four 1-hour lectures) ' Turkey

5/30/10 Celal Bayar University Conference of Social aspects of medical care for Manisa,
elderly and children (One two-hour lecture on management of abusive head Turkey
trauma)

6/16-17/10 Cunihuriyet University and Sivas Child Abuse Task Force meeting (2 day in-. Sivas,
service course to support interagency team establishment, 6 one-hour Turkey
lectures)

7/26-30/10 Ministry of Health in-service training on Child Protection Pilot Project Team Ankara,
building (5 day in-service course, 9 one hr lectures, 2 workshops) Turkey

11/8-9/10 Zeynep Kamil Children's Hospital in-service training on child abuse & Istanbul,
•neglect (3 one-hr lectures) Turkey

11/8-10/10 Ministry of Health in-service training on updates on Child Protection Center Ankara,
Pilot Project Team building (2 day in-sei'vice course, 3 one-hr lectures) Turkey

11/1 1/10 Samsun.Child Abuse Task Force Meeting (4 one-hour lectures) Samsun,
Turkey

11/12/10 Izmir Child Abuse Task Force meeting (1-day course on Child Protection' Izmir,
Center model) Turkey

12/5-7/10 10'''National Conference on Child Abuse and Neglect (half-day workshop on Lahore,
hospital based child protection team building) Pakistan

5/2-7/11 University of Porto Annual Child Abuse Conference (two day forensic Porto,
interview course, one-day child advocacy center course and two lectures Portugal

5/18/11 Izmir Child Abuse Task Force symposium (lectures on child advocacy center Izmir,
model and abusive head trauma management) Turkey

6/1-2/11 Trabzon Child Abuse Task Force symposium (lectures on child advocacy Trabzon,
center model and interdisciplinary response to child abuse & neglect) Turkey

9/12-17/11 International Association of Forensic Sciences 19'** Triennial Conference Madeira,
(three workshops on sexually transmitted infections, assessment of acute Portugal
sexual assault, and child advocacy center model)

9/18-21/1 1 Establishment of Child Advocacy Centers in Turkey and Portugal Tampere,
(Symposium at the 12'''European Child Abuse Conference) Finland

9/18/11 Child Protection Program Development in Turkey (International Working Tampere,
Group on Epidemiology of child abuse & neglect meeting) Finland

11/25/11 Updates on Child Abuse & Neglect (University of Crete Symposium) Crete,
Greece

12/1-3/1 1 Child Advocacy Center in reducing secondary iraumatization within the • Istanbul,
system of sexually abused children (Excellence in Child Mental Health 201 1 Turkey
Conference)

6/14-16/12 Child Abuse management systems building in Turkey (Sustaining Families: Iowa City,
Global and local perspectives-U of 1 College of Law International lA
Conference)

7/16/12 Child Advocacy Center Model to respond to child abuse & neglect, ' Guatemala
University of Guatemala City
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9/6-7/12 Evaluation of the First Child Advocacy Center in Turkey: First Annual
Conference

9/9-12/12 Evaluation of severe physical abuse (19'*' International Congress on Child
Abuse & Neglect-ISPCAN)

1/18/13 Corporal Punishment of Children & Child Advocacy Center Model (3'''
SPECAN International Child Abuse Conference)

1/18/13 ' Child Advocacy Center Model for Portugal (3"^ SPECAN International Child
Abuse Conference)

1/15-16/13 Prevalence of Child Abuse & Neglect in Turkey (BEGAN National
Conference) .

3/18/13 What Clergy needs to recognize and prevent child abuse and neglect: Izmir
Child Abuse Task Force meeting

3/20/13 How to establish a hospital based child protection team: Grand rounds at
Dokuz Eyiul University' Medical School

3/20/13 Case conference: How to improve child abuse case management in Izmir

3/21/13 Child Advocacy Center: Behcet Uz Children's Hospital Grand rounds

7/30-31/13 Acute Sexual Assault Response Systems Building at Mugia Task Force's
Workshop Days

8/6/1-3 Acute Sexual Assault and Forensic Medical Examination, Grand Rounds,
Turkish National Institute of Forensic Medicine, Istanbul Headquarters

8/7/13 Acute Sexual Assault and Forensic Medical Examination, Grand Rounds,
Turkish National inslitute of Forensic Medicine, Izritir Chapter

1 1/9/13 How to keep your children safe in digital age at National Conference on Child
Safety and Internet

I I/I 5/13 Child Advocacy Center Model in Turkey at Child Abuse Task Force Meeting

11718/13 Child Advocacy Center Model in Turkey at Child Abuse Task Force Meeting

11/22-23/13 Multidisciplinary team response to child abuse and neglect at National
Conference on Child Maltreatment

5/4-6/14 How to establish mullidisciplinary/interagency response to abusive head
trauma at International Abusive Head Trauma Conference

7/31/14 How to establish multidisciplinary/interagency response to child abuse at
children's hospitals; Bogota University Medical School, Department of
Psychiatry Grand Rounds

8/4-6/14 How to establish multidisciplinaiy/interagency response to child abuse at
children's hospitals (Plenary at International Conference on Child
Maltreatment

8/4-6/14 Adverse Childhood Experiences (Keynote Speech at International Conference
on Child Maltreatment

10/23-25/14 Child Death Review Teams at International Conference on Child

Maltreatment

6/30/15 Bullying and Pediatrics: Behcet Uz Children's Hospital Grand Rounds

9/27- Adverse Childhood Experiences and Trauma informed care
30/2015

11/16-18/15 Train the trainers on fundamentals of child abuse and neglect diagnosis and
management: ELIZA child abuse grant educational activities

2/18/16 Challenges in diagnosing child physical abuse: National Pediatric Conference

Ankara,

Turkey

Istanbul,
Turkey
Porto,

Portugal
Porto,

Portugal
Izmir,

Turkey
Izmir,

Turkey
Izmir,

T urkey
Izmir,

Turkey
Izmir,

Turkey
Mugla,

Turkey
Istanbul,

Turkey
Izmir,
Turkey

Ankara,

Turkey

Aydin,
Turkey
Antalya,
Turkey
Nicosia,

Cyprus
Paris,

France .

Bogota,
Colombia

Bogota,
Colombia

Bogota,
Colombia

Istanbul,

Turkey
Izmir,
Turkey

Bucharest,
Romania

Athens,

Greece

Muscat,

3.1
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6/1-5/16 Train the trainers on how to establish hospital based child protection team in
Greece (3 day course, during which I gave 11 lectures and prepared 16
lectures for others.to deliver)

6/8/16 Integrating Trauma informed care into health: Solidarity Clinic grand rounds

6/10-13/16 Integrating Trauma informed care into health and human services in Greece:
National Conference on how to improve social sciences in Greece

6/22-23/16 Revisiting forensic interview principles: Grand rounds at Behcet Uz
Children's Hospital Child Protection Center and hands on peer-review

5/14-26/17 ln-ser\'ice training course on how to implement interdisciplinary child
protection programs in Colombia: University of Bogota and AFECTO child
abuse task force (5 day course, I prepared and gave 12 lectures)

.6/14/17 Interdisciplinary response to child abuse and neglect across the community:
PROMISE European Project conference

10/11-13/17 Videogames and child abuse and neglect: Internet and Child Safety
Conference - Digital games

11/13-14/17 Course on physical abuse and its hospital based niultidisciplinary and regional
interdisciplinary management in Lahore: The Children's Hospital and The

Institute of Health symposium on child abuse
11/15-17/17 Physical abuse management at children's hospitals: 1st South Asia Regional

Conference on Child Rights & 12th National Child Rights Conference

1/25-27/18 Adverse Childhood Experiences and Trauma Informed Care: Adolescent
Health Conference

3/13-15/18 Multidisciplinary response to Child Abuse and neglect in Pakistan via Child
Protection teams and centers

5/28-31/18 Course on Forensic Interviews: Izmir Child Protection Center annual course

7/21-25/18 Trauma informed Care and Sexual Abuse management: National Colombian
Child Maltreatment Annual Conference (two lectures) .

10/18/18 Medical evaluation of child victims of sexual abuse: Webinar for PROMISE

European Union Project
12/3/18 Interdisciplinaiy Response to Child Abuse & Neglect at Hospital Setting:

Kyriakou Children's Hospital Child Protection Team
12/4/18 Inter-hospital collaborative Child Protection Program Establishment:

Combined Grand Rounds for Kyriakou Children's Hospital and Agia Sophia
Children's Hospital

12/6/18 Diagnostic Comprehensive Evaluation of Child Sexual Abuse; Kyriakou
Children's Hospital Grand Rounds

12/10/18 Training Course on Interagency Response to Child Sexual Abuse: Annual
Training Course for Northern Greece Prosecutors, Law enforcement and
Judges (half day course)

12/1 1/18 Training Course on Interagency Response to Child Sexual Abuse: Annual
Training Course for Southern Greece Prosecutors, Law enforcement and
Judges (half day course)

12/12/18 International Success Story on Implementing Interagency collaborative
Response to Child Sexual Abuse: ELIZA Board of Directors Quarterly
Meeting

12/13/18 How to assess inpatient child physical abuse cases: Kyriakou Children's
Hospital Pediatric resident weekly seminar

1/17/19 How to integrate child and family advocacy services into Child Advocacy

Oman

Athens,,

Greece

Rethymnon

Greece

Rethymnon

Greece

Izmir, .

Turkey
Bogota,
Colombia

Brussels,.

Belgium
Ankara,

Turkey
Lahore,

Pakistan

Lahore,

Pakistan

Lisbon,

Portugal
Islamabad,

Pakistan

Izmir,

Turkey
Bogota,
Colombia

Webinar

Athens,
Greece

Athens,

Greece

Athens,

Greece

Athens,
Greece

Athens,

Greece

Athens,
Greece

Athens,

Greece

Izmir,
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Center model in Turkey: Weblnar for national leaders on child abuse Turkey
4/8-12/19 Best practices to respond to four major categories of child abuse and neglect Istanbul,

(2 day course) National Conference on Child Maltreatment Turkey
1 1/27-30/19 Adverse Childhood Experiences and Trauma Informed Care: 2"*^ International Izmir,

7'^ National Pediatric Nursing Congress Turkey
10/14/2020 How to prevent child maltreatment via Truama informed Care, International Izmir,

Child Maltreament Conference Turkey
1/6/2021 Sexually Transmitted Infecitons in sexually abused children: Marmara Istanbul,

University Dept of Forensic Medicine Grand rounds Turkey
6/2-9/2021 Sexual abuse course (4 lectures over 6 hours to Regional Athens/

Multidisciplinary/lnteragency Child Abuse Task Force) Greece
11/9/2021 Adverse Childhood Experiences and Trauma Informed Care Porto,

Portugal
2/8/2022 Physical findings in children who have been tortured by police forces: San Diego,

ISPCAN international course USA

3/21-22/22 Sexual Abuse course to Athens Hospital Based Child Protecton Programs Athens,
Greece

3/24/2022 Adverse Childhood experiences and mental health: Turkish Annual Child and Izmir,
Adolescent Psychiatry Conference Turkey

3/25/2022 Adverse Childhood experiences in primary care: Ankara City Hospital grand Ankara,
rounds Turkey

Invited Lectures at other Meetings *

9/23/03 Drug Endangered Children, Annual Public Forum of Prevent Child
Abuse-Johnson County Council

5/6/05 Shaken Baby Syndrome, City High School Health Class students'
5/17/05 Shaken Baby Syndrome, West High School Health Class students

2/10/06 Perinatal Illicit Drug Screening Protocols in Iowa, Iowa Alliance on
Drug Endangered Children bimohthly meeting

2/28/06 Community collaboration is needed: Drug Endangered Children
Community Task Force, Monthly luncheon meeting, Johnson County
Juvenile Law Community

8/8/06 Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner's responsibilities in assessing pediatric
acute sexual assault cases, SART monthly meeting

8/22/06 How to improve perinatal illicit drug'screening in Iowa, Iowa
Department of Public Health staffing.meeting

10/7/06 International training activities make a difference in the management of
child abuse and neglect, American Academy of Pediatrics International
child. Health Section Executive Board Meeting

3/8/07 How to improve perinatal illicit drug screening in Iowa, Depailment of
Public Health, Maternal and Child Health Advisor)' Council Meeting

1/10/08 Statewide Policy on Perinatal Illicit Drug Screening and Intervention in
Iowa, Department of Public Health, Maternal and Child Health Advisory
CouneilMeeting

1/10/08 Statewide perinatal illicit drug screening and intervention policy in Iowa,
Department of Public Health, Maternal and Child Health Advisory
Council Meeting

9/10/08 Shaken Baby Syndrome Prevention Panel, Family Career & Community
Leaders Annual in-service Training

Iowa City, lA

Iowa City, lA

Iowa City, lA

Des Moines, lA

Iowa City, lA

Iowa City, lA

Des Moines, lA

Atlanta, GA

Des Moines, lA

Des Moines, lA

Des Moines, lA

Ankeny, lA
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9/10/08 Shaken Baby Syndrome Prevention Panel, Family Consumer Science
Teachers Luncheon Meeting

2008-2010 Profile of abusive families, Coe College Sociology Department (annual
,  lecture to Sociology of the Family class

11/9/09 International Mondays: Child Abuse & Neglect prevention in Turkey

2010-2018 Historical background of the political environment in Turkey (annual
lecture to Psychology and Society Class)

2/17/11 How to prevent missed abuse, Iowa Child Death Review Team
3/19/15 How to address the needs of drug exposed children in foster care, Cedar

Rapids Foster Families
4/13/15 Adverse Childhood Experiences and Trauma Informed Care: Kirkwood

Community College Nursing students
9/10/15 Neonatal Abstinence Syndrome: Medicaid Enterprise of Iowa monthly

meeting
10/14/15 Career path of a pediatrician from general practice to neonatology to

child abuse pediatrics: ImmUNlTY campaign student group

12/1/15 International systems building on child protectlon-From the University
of Iowa to Turkey and beyond: Iowa City Foreign Relations Council

1/5/16 Adverse Childhood Experiences: Johnson County Morning Rotar>' Club
2/7/16 Implementing Trauma Informed'Care on campus at the U of Iowa:

Presentation to the President, Provost, Vice President of Students

4/27/16 Resiliency Triumphs over Trauma; Just Living Theme Semester
workshop

8/4/16 Nurses' role in Trauma Informed Care: Nurse Managers Council
monthly meeting

11/4/16 Child Trauma Prevention: From Ul to Greece - Ul Fulbright Annual

Presentation Series

10/22/2018 Path to diagnostic accuracy and value based care is Trauma Informed
Care: Dartmouth University Child Protection Program Seminar

1/15/2019 Importance of specialized medical evaluation of all alleged victims of
child abuse and neglect: Forum discussion with New Hampshire
Legislature

2/4/19 Panel presentation for the City Circle Theater in Relation to "Who is the
Tommy" musical

8/27/19 Quechee Lakes Landowners Association CHaD Classic Gala Night
9/5/2019 How to utilize CAPP Services and how to interview families: Pediatric

Residency Retreat
1 1/7/2019 CAPP and NH stakeholders collaboration: County Attorneys Monthly

Meeting

12/8/2019 New Hampshire Specialized Medical Services for Child Protection
System: Attorney General's Child Abuse Task Force Quarterly meeting

12/18/2019 New Hampshire Specialized Medical Services for Child Protection
System: Presentation to CANA-statewide stakeholders

1/16/2020 How to implement trauma informed care in primary care: Mt. Ascutney
Hospital Board Meeting

10/28/2020 CAPP collaboration with inpatient pediatric nurses '
11/17/2020 CAPP protocol in collaboration with GAP staff at CHaD
3/2/2021 CAPP protocol in collaboration with Family Practice staff at CHaD
3/18/2021 Annual clinical guidelines training for Ob/Gyn residents
8/19/2021 Professionalism while assessing families for child abuse and neglect

Ankeny, lA

Cedar Rapids,

lA

Iowa City, lA

Cedar Rapids,
lA

Des Moines, lA

Cedar Rapids,
lA

Cedar Rapids,
lA

Des Moines, lA

Iowa City, lA

Iowa City. lA

Iowa City, lA
Iowa City, lA

Iowa City, lA

Iowa City, lA

Iowa City, lA

Lebanon, NH

Concord, NH

Coralville, lA

Queeche, VT
Lebanon, NH

Concord, NFI

Concord, NH

Bedford, NH

Windsor, VT

Lebanon, NH

Lebanon, NH

Lebanon, NH

Lebanon, NH

Lebanon, NH
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XXIII. Bibliographv

A. Most significant peer-reviewed publications in print or other media (Underlined are
undergraduate or graduate students I supervised, SS indicates THE MOST impactful five
studies I published)

1. Oral R, Yavuz S, Battered Child Syndrome. Anatol JPediatr 1994, 3:32-35. (First published
shaken baby syndrome case in Turkey that led to pediatricians and neurosurgeons diagnosing
SBS in increasing rates in Turkey, My role: Concept & design, analysis & interpretation of data,
writing the manuscript)(In Turkish).

2. Oral R, Can D, Yavuz S. Beware of epiphysiolysis: Child Abuse. JContin Med Edu, 1997
6(10):332-334. (First published inflicted fracture case in Turkey, which changed pediatricians and
orthopedists' approach to fractures in infants. My role: Concept & design, analysis &
interpretation of data, writing the manuscript) (In Turkish).

3. Betin N, Oral, R. Battered Child Syndrome. Cukurova Med Sch J 1998, 23:106-1 10. (First report
of skeletal survey establishing diagnosis of inflicted pediatric trauma in Turkey, which
institutionalized this diagnostic tool in child abuse pediatrics in the country. My role: Analysis &
interpretation of data, writing the manuscript) (In Turkish).

4. Oral R, Can D, Hanoi H,.Miral S, Ersahin Y, Tepeli N, Bulguc AG, Tiras B. A multicenter child
maltreatment study: Twenty-eight cases followed-up on a multidisciplinary basis. Turk J Pediatr
1998; 40(4)515-523. (First case series of child abuse in Turkey assessed and managed by the first
multidisciplinary team of the country that led to recognition of the need to establish hospital
based multidisciplinary teams. My role: Concept & design, analysis & interpretation of data,
writing the manuscript).

5. Oral R, Can D, Miral S, Hanci H, Kaplan S, Ates N, Polat S, Ersahin Y, Tepeli N, Uran N, Tiras
B. The First Child Abuse Case Series Followed-iip on a Multidisciplinary Basis in Turkey, C/j/Vc/
Abuse Negl 25 (2001) 279-290. (This publication introduced pioneering child abuse work to
international arena and led to academics in Turkey starting to research this field. My role:
Concept & design, analysis & interpretation of data, writing the manukript).

6. $S Oral R, Strang T. Neonatal Illicit Drug Screening Practices in Iowa: The impact of utilization
of a structured screening protocol. J Perinatol 2006; 26(11):660-6. (This study verified the
importance of a structured protocol on this topic in neonatal case finding of perinatally drug
endangered infants, which led to my work on statewide new protocol development in Iowa. My
role: Concept & design, analysis & interpretation of data, critical review of manuscript).

7. $$ Agiitan CA, Akar T, Akbas S,... Oral R, ... et al. (with 79 authors from multiple centers in
alphabetical order). Establishment of Interdisciplinaiy Child Protection Teams in Turkey 2002-
2006: Identifying the strongest link can make a difference! Child Abuse & Neglect 2009;
33(4):247-55. (With my leadership in building a sustained education campaign on child abuse in
Turkey, a large collaboration was established leading to this study among others, which was
followed with the establishment of 40 child advocacy centers in the country as well as 15 hospital
based child protection centers. My role: Concept &'design, train the trainers for the project,
provide consultation and guidance for MDT establishment, analysis & interpretation of data,
writing the manuscript).

8. $$ Oral R, Bayman L, Assad A. Wibbenmeyer L, Buhrow J. Strang T. Austin A. Bayman EG.
Illicit Drug Exposure in patients evaluated for alleged child abuse and neglect. Pediatric
Emergency Care, 2011 ;27(6):490-5 (This study led to the practice of screening victims of child
abuse via hair and urine toxicology testing, which led to numerous hospitals in the country
implementing the same practice. My role: Concept & design, analysis & interpretation of data,
writing the manuscript). ̂

9. $$ Oral R, Koc, F, Bayman EG, Assad A. Strang T. Austin A. Perinatal illicit drug screening
practices in mother-newborn dyads at a university hospital serving rural/semi-urban communities:
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'

Translation of research to quality improvement. J Mat-Fet & Neonat Med, 2012, 25(1 l):244l.
(This study verified the importance of staff training on case finding of perinatally drug
endangered children. My role: Concept & design, analysis & interpretation of data, writing the
manuscript).

10. Longmuir SQ, McConnell L, Oral R, Dumitrescu A, Kamath S, Erkonen G. S. Retinal

hemorrhages in intubated pediatric intensive care patients. J AAPOS. 2014 Apr;l8(2):l29-33.
(This study added to the limited body of literature that illnesses that require critical care or critical
care itself do not cause retinal hemorrhages in infants, which had been a controversial topic in
high profile abusive head trauma cases. My role: Contributing to the concept & design, provision
of the patient list, critical review of the manuscript)

11. Sofuoglu Z, Oral R, Aydin F, Cankardes S, Kandemirci B, Koc F, Halicioglu O, Aksit S.
Epidemiological study on negative childhood experiences in three provinces of Turkey. Turk
Pediatr Arch 2014; 49: 47-56 (This study led to Turkish medical community recognize the
importance of adverse childhood experiences and multiple studies followed this.study. My role:
Contributing to the concept & design, analysis & interpretation of data, critical review of the

manuscript)
12. Yaylaci S, Dallar Y, ... Oral R,... Karagoz F (32 authors). Abusive Head Trauma in Turkey and

Impact of Multidisciplinary Team Establishment Efforts on Case Finding and Management:
Preliminary Findings. Eur J Emer Med 2016; 15:24-29 (This study established the practice of
using a structured abusive head trauma response guidelines in hospitals in Turkey. My role:
Concept & design, analyzing data, critical review of the manuscript)

13. Spldatou, A, Paouri, B, Stathi, A, Nega, C, Tsolia, M, Oral, R. Leventhal, j. Missed
Opportunities for the Detection of Physical Abuse and Neglect among Patients Hospitalized with
Burns at a Tertiary Children's Hospital in Greece (2017). Eur J Pediatr 176 (I I), 1547-1548 (This
study is one of multiple studies published and submitted for publication after I trained the trainers
in Greece during my Fulbright scholarship. (My role: Concept & design, creating and delivering
the intervention tool/training module, critical review of the manuscript)

14. Fassel M. Grieve B, Hosseini S, Oral R, Galet C, Ryan C, Kazis L, PengshengN, Wibbenmeyer
L. The Impact of Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs) on Burn Outcomes in Adult Burn
Patients. J Burn Care Research 2019; 26;40(3):294-30. (My role; critical review of methodology
and the manuscript)

15. $$ Kottenstette S. Segal R, Roeder V. Rochford H. Schnieders E. Bayman L, McKissic DA.

DahlbergGJ. Krewer R. Chambliss J. Theurer JL, Oral R. Two-generational trauma-informed
assessment improves documentation and service referral frequency in a child protection program.
Child AbuseNegl. 2019. 16;I0I:]04327.

B. Original peer reviewed articles (Underlined are undergraduate or graduate students I
supervised)

1. Oral R, Can D, Ibrahimhakkioglu M, Sumer S. Neonatal Mullifocal Salmonella Typhimurium
Osteomyelitis. J Neonatal 1995; 2(l):29-36. (My role: Concept & design, analysis &
interpretation of data, writing the manuscript).

2. Oral R, Kultursay N, Ozturk C, TansugN. Dual Energy X-Ray Absorptiometry in Determining
Bone Mineral Content of Prematurely Bom Infants, Ann Med Sci 1996; 5:13-17. (My role:
Concept &'design, analysis & interpretation of data, writing the manuscript).

3. Kiiltursay N, Gelal F, Mutluer S, Senrefper S, Oziz E, Oral R. Antenatally diagnosed neonatal
craniophaiyngioma. J Perinatal. 1995; l5(5):426-428 (My role: Writing the manuscript).

4. Ozkinay F. Akisii M, Oral R, Tansu|N, Ozyiirek R, Kiiltursay N. Spondylocostal dysplasia and
cardiac anomalies in one dizygotic twin. Turk J Pediatr l996;38(3):38l-4. (My role: analysis &
interpretation of data, writing the manuscript). ^
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5. Ozkinay FF, Akisu M, Kultursay N, Oral R, Tansug N, Sapmaz G. Agenesis of the corpus
callosum in Schinzel-Giedion syndrome associated with 47,XXY karyotype. Clin Genet. 1996;
50(3); 145-148. (My role: analysis & interpretation of data, writing the manuscript).

6. Akisu M, Kultursay N, Coker 1, Oral R, Huseyinov A. Myocardial Free Carnitine Depletion in
Asphyxiated Young Mice-Do Hypoxic Ischemic Newborn Infants Need Carnitine Supplement?
Turk J Med Sci 1997; 27:349-353. (My role: analysis & interpretation of data, writing the
manuscript).

7. Oral R, Akisu M, Kultursay N, Vardar F, Tansug N. "Neonatal Klebsiella Pneumonia sepsis and
imipenem/cilastatin. Indian JPediatr 1998; 65(1): 121-129. (My role: Concept & design, analysis
& interpretation of data, writing the manuscript).

8. Can D, Inan G, Yendur G, Oral R, Gunay 1. Salbutamol or Mist in Acute Bronchiolitis. Acta
Pediatr Jpn 1998; 40(3):252-255. (My role: Writing the manuscript).

9. Akisu M, Darcan S, Oral R, Kultursay N. Serum Lipid and Lipoprotein composition in Infants of
Diabetic Mothers. Indian J Pediatr 1999; 66(3):38)-386. (My role: analysis & interpretation of
data, writing the manuscript).

10. Johnson CF, Oral R, Gullbere L. Diaper Burn: Accident, Abuse or Neglect. Pediatr Emerg Care,
2000; 16:173-175 reviewed in Child Abuse Quarterly Medical Update Vlll (1):14. (My role:
Writing the manuscript and interpretation of findings).

11. Oral R, Johnson CF, Blum K. Fractures in young children and child abuse. Pediatr Emerg Care

2003; 19 (3): 148-153. (My role: Concept & design, analysis & interpretation of data, writing the
manuscript).

12. Ozkara E, Karatosun V, Izge Gunal, Oral, R. Trans-metatarsal amputation as a complication of
child sexual abuse. JC/Zw Forensic Med, 2004; 1 1 (3): 129-132 (My role; analysis & interpretation

of data, writing the manuscript.
13. Acik Y, Deveci E, Oral R. Level ,of knowledge and attitude of prirnary care physicians in Eastern

Anatolian cities in relation to child abuse and neglect. Prev Med:2004::39(4):79I-7. (My role:

Concept & design, analysis & interpretation of data, writing the manuscript).
14. Acik Y, Deveci SE, Polat A, Oral R. Adolescents in Apprentice; Abuse experiences and attitudes

toward violence. J Public Health 2004; 14(1):95-102. (My role: Concept & design, analysis &
interpretation of data, critical review of manuscript) (In Turkish).

15. Oral R, Rahhal R, Elshelshari H, Menezes AH. Intentional Avulsion Fracture of the 2"*^ Cervical
Vertebra in a Hypotonic Child. Pediatr Emerg Care 2006, 22(5):352-4. (My role: Concept &
design, analysis & interpretation of data, critical review of manuscript),

16. Yucel-Beyaztas F, Dokgoz H, Oral R, Demirel Y. Child physical abuse: a five-case report.
Middle East Journal of Family Medicine, 2006; 4(2):21-26. (My role: Analysis & interpretation
of data, writing the manuscript)

17. Oral R. Florvanovich A. Goodman J. Household falls in children less than 2 years of age.
Turkish J Pediatr 2007, 49(4): 379-384. (My role; Concept & design, analysis & interpretation of
data, critical review of manuscript).

18. Oral R, Yagmur F, Nashelsky M, Turkmen M, Kirby P. Fatal Abusive Head Trauma cases:
Consequence of medical staff missing milder forms of physical abuse. J Pediatr Emerg Care
2008; 24( 12);816-21. (My role: Concept & design, analysis & interpretation of data, critical
review of manuscript).

19. Atilmi? 00, Gunduz T, Karbeyaz K, Balci Y, Oral R. Diagnostic dilemma in a case with incest
suspicion. J Clin Turk Foren Med 2008;5(3): 124-32. (My role: Concept & design, writing the
manuscript).

20. Yucel-Beyaztas F, Oral R, Butun C, Beyaztas A, Buyukkayhan D. Four cases of physical abuse
in children. Turkish J Pediatr 2009, 52(2):75-80. (My role: critical review of manuscript).

21. Sahin F, Kuruoglu AC, Demirel B, Akar T, Camurdan AD, l§eri E, Demirogullari B, Pash F,
Beyazova U, Oral R. Six year- experience of a hospital based child protection team in Turkey.,
Turkish J Pediatr 2009;5l(4):336-43. (My role: Concept & design, critical review of manuscript).
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22. Hayek SN, Wibbenmeyer LA, Kealey LH, Williams IM, Oral R, Onwuanieze O, Light TD,
Latenser BA, Lewis 11 RW, Kealey G P. The efficacy of hair and urine toxicology screening on
the detection of child abuse by burning. J Burn Care and Research, 2009;30(4):587-92. (My role:
Review of concept & design, analysis & interpretation of data, critical review of manuscript).

23. Tiras U, Dallar Y, Dilli D, Oral R. Evaluation and follow up of cases diagnosed as child abuse
and neglect at a tertiary hospital in Turkey. Turk J Med Sci, 2009; 3(96):969-977. (My role:
Concept & design, writing the manuscript).

24. Kucuker H, Demir T, Koken R, Oral R. Pediatric Condition Falsification (Munchausen
Syndrome by Proxy) as a Continuum of Maternal Factitious Disorder (Munchausen Syndrome).
Pediatric Diabetes, 2010; 11(8):572-8. (My role: Analysis & interpretation of data, writing the
manuscript).

25. Butun C, Beyaztas FY, Oral R, Guney C, Buyukkayhan D, Sato Y. Twins physically abused by
the father. Turkish Archives of Pediatrics, 201 1; 46: 346-50 (My role: Concept & design, analysis

• & interpretation of data, editing the manuscript).
26. Oral R, Koc F, Smith J, Sato Y. Abusive Suffocation Presenting as New Onset Seizure. Pediatric

Emergency Care, 2011; 27( 1 1): 1072-4 (My role: Concept & design, analysis & interpretation of
data, editing the manuscript).

27. Kondolot M, Yagniur F, Yikilmaz A, Turan C, Oztop D, Oral R. A life-threatening presentation
of child physical abuse: jejunal perforation. Pediatric Emergency Care, 2011; 27(1 1): 1075-7 (My
role: Concept & design, analysis & interpretation of data, editing the manuscript).

28. Demirii (^^aylan N, Yilmaz G, Oral R, Karacan CD, Zorlu P. Abusive head trauma: report of 3
cases. Ulus Travma Acil Cerrahi Derg. 2013, 19(3):26l-6 (My role: Concept & design, critical
review of the manuscript).

29. Koc F, Oral R, Butteris R. Missed cases of multiple forms of child abuse and neglect. Int J
Psychiatry Med. 2014;47(2): 131 -9. (My role: Concept & design, patient care, critical review of
the manuscript).

30. Wibbenmeyer L, Liao J, Heard J, Kealey L, Kealey G, Oral R. Factors Related to Child
Maltreatment in Children Presenting With Burn Injuries. J Burn Care Res. 2014 Sep-
Oct;35(5):374-81 (My role: Concept & design, critical review of the manuscript).

31. Longmuir S, Oral R, Walz AE. Kemp PS, Rvba J. Zimmerman BM, Abramoff MD. Quantitative
Measurement of Retinal Hemorrhage in Children Suspected of Abuse. J of AAPOS, 2014;
18(6):529-33. (My role: Contributing to the concept & design, provision of the patient list, critical
review of the manuscript)

32. Oral R, Sofuoglu Z. Case-Based Surveillance Study In Judicial Districts in Turkey: Child Sexual
Abuse Sample from four Provinces. J Child & Fam Social Work, 2017. DDI: 10.1 1 1 1 /cfs. 12427
(My role: Concept & design, critical review of the manuscript)

33. Evans EM. Jennissen CA, Oral R, Denning GM. Child welfare professionals' determination of
when children's access or potential access to loaded firearms constitutes child neglect. Trauma

■ Acute Care Surg. 2017 Nov;83(5S SuppI 2):S210-S216 (My role: Critical review of the
manuscript)

34. Soldatou, A, Paouri, B, Hountala, A, Koutrouveli, E, Plevriti, E, Kyriakidou, T, Stathi, A, Tsolia,
M, Oral, R, Leventhal, J. Age and Outcome of Inpatients Evaluated for Possible Physical Abuse
at a Tertiary Children's Hospital in Greece. Eur J Pediatr 2017; 176 (1 1), 1547 (My role: Concept
& design, creating the intervention tool/training module, critical review of the manuscript).

35. Jennissen C, Evans E. Oral R, Denning G. Child Abuse and Neglect Experts' Determination of .
When a Child Being Left Home Alone Constitutes Child Neglect. InJ Epidemiol. 2018; 10;5
(SuppI 1):16 (My role: finalizing concept & design, creating partnerships for the study, critical
review of the manuscript)

36. Sofuoglu Z, Cankardas-Nalbantcilar S,"Oral R, Ince B. Case-based surveillance study in judicial
districts in Turkey: Child sexual abuse sample from four provinces. Child & Fam Social Work

,  2018; 23(4):566-573. (My role: finalizing concept & design, critical review of the manuscript)

38



OocuSign Envelope ID: 74FD520F-8EF9-4932-A532-2F3F836ADCD6

1  Resmiye Oral, MD

37. Allan H, Sahin F, Oral R. Measuring Awareness about Child Abuse and Neglect: Validity and
Reliabilit)' of a Newly Developed Tool- Child Abuse and Neglect Awareness Scale. Turkish J
Peds, 2018; 60:392-399. (My role: Concept & design, critical review of the manuscript)

38. Soldatou A, Stathi A, Paouri B, Nega C, Apergi FS, Tsolia M, Leventhal J, Oral, R. A national
^  educational campaign to raise awareness of child physical abuse among health care

professionals. Europ J Ped, 2020, 179(9): 1395-1403. (My role: Concept & design,
creating the intervention tool/training module, critical review of the manuscript)

39. Conrad A, Butcher B, Oral R, Ronnenberg M, Peek-Asa, C. Trends in Shaken Baby
Syndrorne Diagnosis Codes Among Young Children Hospitalized for Abuse. lnjur>'
Epidemiology, 202. 8:46. (My role: Concept & design, critical review of the manuscript)

40. Ong JE, Fassel M. Scleszinski L, Hosseini S, Galet C, Oral R, Wibbenmeyer L. The
burden of adverse childhood e.xperiences in children and those of their parents in a burn
population. Journal of Burn Care & Research, 2021 Jan 23;irab009. doi:
10.1093/jbcr/irab009. Online ahead of print (My role: Concept & design, creating the
intervention tool/training module, critical review of the manuscript)

41. Wojciak AS, Butcher B, Conrad A, Coohey C, Oral R, Peek-Asa C. National Trends in
Child Abuse and Neglect Hospitalization Rates and Costs in the United States of
America. MDPl IJERPH, 2021. 18(14)7585. (My role: Concept & design, critical review
of the manuscript)

)  42. O'Hara M, Valvano TJ, Kashyap M, Daly JC, Bachim AN, .... Oral R. Understanding
Bilateral Skull Fractures in Infancy: A Retrospective Multi-Center Case Review. Ped
Emerg Care 2022 (Accepted for publication; My role: Concept & design, critical review.
of the manuscript)

C. Review papers:

1. Oral R. Perinatal Illicit Drug Use and Fetal Exposure: Consequences and Management with
a Public Health Approach. J Drug Testing & Analysis, Published Online: Mar 10 2009
7:07AM DOI: I0.1002/dta.2l (Invited by editor, reviewed by editor).

2. B, Oral R. Child poverty and neglect in Turkey. In: Dubowitz H (ed). World Perspectives on
Child Abuse. Tenth edition, 2012. International Society for Prevention of Child Abuse and
Neglect, Turkey, pp 36-39. (Invited by editor, reviewed by editor. My role: Critical review of
the manuscript).

3. Kaynak H, Oral R. Protection of children from neglect in the Turkish laws. In: Dubowitz H
(ed). World Perspectives on Child Abuse. Tenth edition, 2012. International Society for
Prevention of Child Abuse and Neglect, Turkey, pp 40-43. (Invited by editor, reviewed by
editor. My role: Critical review of the manuscript).

4. den Otter J, Smit Y, Dela Cruz LB, Ozkalipci O, Oral R. Documentation of torture and cruel,
inhuman or degrading treatment of children: a review of existing guidelines and tools.
Forensic Science International, 2013, 10;224(l-3):27-32. (Invited by editor, reviewed by
editor. My role: Analysis & interpretation of data, critical review of the manuscript).

'5. Akco S, Dagli T, Inanici MA, Kaynak H, Oral R, Sahin F, Sofuoglu Z, Ulukol B
(alphabetically listed by last name). Child abuse and neglect in Turkey: professional,
governmental and non-governmental achievements in improving the national child protection
system. Paed IntrntI Child Health. 2013, 33(4):30l-9 (Invited by editor, reviewed by peers.
My role: Concept & design, critical review of the manuscript).

6. Silveira Ribeiro, C., Oral, R., Carmo, R., Jardim, P., Magalhaes, T. (2013). Management of
child abuse and neglect in Portugal. A comprehensive and critical review. In MagalhSes, T &
Vieira, DN (Ed.), Abuse & Neglect Series 1 - To improve the Management of Child'Abuse •
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and Neglect (1 1-30). Maia: SPECAN. ISBN: 978-989-97275-0-2 (Invited by editor, reviewed
by editor. My role: Critical review of the manuscript).

7. Oral R. Ramirez M. Peek-Asa C. Nakada S. Walz A. Kuntz A. Coohev C. Childhood

Adversity and Trauma Informed Care. Pediatric Research 20l6;79(l-2):227-33. (Invited by
editor, reviewed by peers. My role: Concept & design, writing one section, critical review of
the manuscript)

8. Oral R, llyas F, Leventhal JM, Magalhaes T, Oliveira M, Soldatou A, Stathi A, ZafarN.
Building systems to address child abuse and neglect: Successful collaborations with
international pailners. World Perspectives 2018 (ed: Howard Dubowitz) (Invited by editor,
reviewed by editor. My role: Concept & design, critical review of the manuscript).

9. Bag O, Oral R. Child Protection Systems in the USA and Europe. J of Turkish Clinics 2020
(Invited by editor, reviewed by peers. My role: Concept & design, writing two sections,
critical review of the manuscript)

10. Statement on conversion therapy. Independent Forensic Expert Group. J Forensic Leg Med.
2020 May;72:101930.PMID: 32452446 .

11. Oral R, Coohey C, Zarei K, Conrad A,Nielsen A, Wibbenmeyer L, Segal R, Wojciak A,
Charles Jennissens, Corinne Peek-Asa. Nationwide efforts for trauma infoiTned care
implementation and workforce development in healthcare and related fields: a systematic
review. J of Turkish Clinics 2020; 62: 906-920 (My role: Concept & design, writing two
sections, critical review of the manuscript)

12. Alempijevic D, Beriashvili R, Beynon J, Alempijevic Petersen D, Birmanns B, Brasholt M,
Cohen J, Alempijevic Petersen D, Duque M, Duterte P, Van Es A, Fernando R, Korur
Fincanci S, Holger Hansen S, Hamzeh S, Hardi L, Heisler M, lacopino V, Mygind Leth P,

^  Lin J, Louahlia S, Luytkis H, Louahlia S, Morcillo-Mendez MD, Moreno A, Moscoso V,
Oral R, Ozkalipci O, Payne-James J, Quiroga J, Ozkalipci O, Reyes H, Rogde S, Sajantilla
A, Ozkalipci O, Schick M, Terzidis A, Lange Thomsen J, Tidball-Binz M, Treue F, Vanezis
P, Viera DN. Statement of the Independent Forensic Expert Group on Conversion Therapy.
Torture. 2020;30(l):66-78. (My role: Critical review of the manuscript)

13. Bag, O, Oral R. Child Protection Systems in the United States of America and in the World
Tiirkiye Klinikleri; 2021. p.93-7. (My role: Concept & design, writing one section, critical
review of the manuscript)

D. Books, Book chapters, Other monographs

Books:

1. Report by Izmir Non-governmental Organizations on Children's Rights. Ed: Resmiye Oral,
National Medical Association Press, Izmir, 1996. (My role: Concept & design, writing child abuse
section, critical review and comprehensive editing of the book).

2. Primary Care Physicians and Child Abuse & Neglect. Ed: Resmiye Oral. Ministry of Health Print
shop, Ankara, 1998. (My role: Concept & design, writing and comprehensive editing of the book).

3. Physical Abuse: Training Kit for Physicians. Charles F. Johnson, Resmiye Oral (eds), Ohio State
University Publications, 1999, Columbus. (My role: Concept & design, writing the first draft and
co-editing).

Book chapters:
1. Oral, R. Hepatitis B and Hemophilus Influenza Vaccination Practices. In: Antibiotic Use in

Pediatrics and Goals in Immunization Practices. Turkish National Pediatric Association Press,
Izmir, 1994:65-78. (My role: Concept & design, writing and editing the chapter).

2. Oral, R. Child Abuse. In: Report by Izmir Non-governmental Organizations on Children's.Rights.

K

40



DocuSign Envelope ID: 74FD520F-8EF9-4932-A532-2F3F836ADCD6

Resmiye Oral, MD

(ed. Resmiye Oral). National Medical Association Press, Izmir, 1996. (My role: Concept & design,
writing and editing the chapter).

3. Oral, R. Child Abuse. In: Forensic PsychiairyXtd: Hamit I. Hand), Intertip, Izmir, 1997. (My role:
Concept & design, writing and editing the chapter).

4. Oral, R, Jardim P, Magalhaes T. Sexually transmitted infections in child sexual abuse/assault:
,  diagnosis, forensic significance, and treatment. In: Abuse & Neglect Series, n® I - "To improve

the management of Child Abuse'& Neglect" (ed: Teresa Magalhaes), SPECAN publications, 201 1.
(My role: Critical review and editing the chapter).

5. Ribeiro CS, Oral, R, Do Carmo R, Jardim P, Magalhaes T. Management of child abuse and neglect
in Portugal: A comprehensive and critical review. In: Abuse & Neglect Series, n® I - "To improve
the management of Child Abuse & Neglect" (ed: Teresa Magalhaes), SPECAN publications, 201 1.
(My role: Critical review and editing the chapter).

6. Oral R. Multidisciplinary Management of Child Sexual Abuse. In: Front TRAUMA to Post
Traumatic Stress Disorder (ed: Fani Triantafullou and Oresis Giotakos) (in print for 2019). (My

role: Writing and editing the chapter).

Guidelines

1. UIHC Child Protection Program Clinical Practice Guidelines: Developed in 2001, updated in 2003,
2004, 2005, 2006, 2008, 2009, 2010, 2019 (My role, concept-design, writing the original version
and editing each following version)

2. Ambulator)' Pediatric Association (APA)'s Educational guidelines Revision Project (2002-2004),
grant award to the APA by Josiah Macy, Jr., Foundation (Project Director, Diane Kittredge). (My

role, concept-design, writing the section on child abuse)
3. Identifying the Child Victim of Abuse or Neglect: Profocols for Assessrnem. Care for Kids: Early

Periodic Screening, Diagnosis & Treatment, 2003; 10(3):l-6. (My role, concept-design, writing the
manuscript)

4. Iowa Statewide Protocol on Perinatal Illicit Substance Screening and Intervention. Care for Kids:
Early Periodic Screening, Diagnosis & Treatment (2008). (My role, concept-design, writing the
manuscript)

5. CHaD/DHMC Child Advocacy & Protection Program Clinical Practice Guidelines: Developed in
2019 (My role, concept-design, writing the original draft in consultation with CAPP medical
providers, ED, SANE, Pediatrics Department leadership)

E. Other publications

Newsletter publications (Mv role, concept-design, writing the manuscripts listed below; if with a co-.
author, editing the final draft)

1. Oral, R. Role of Rib Fractures. The Clinician's Corner, Newsfrom the AAP Jowa Chapter, Spring
2004 pp 7-8.

2. Oral, R. Denial of Critical Care/Child Neglect. Care for Kids: Early Periodic Screening, Diagnosis
& Treatment, 2004; I l(l):3-6.

i. Oral, R, Figen Sahin. Establishing multidisciplinar)' Child Abuse Teams in Turkey. AAP Section
on International Child Health quarterly newsletter. Fall 2006.

6. Oral, R. When to consider abuse and neglect in children. Pediatric trauma Update. 2008, l(2):l-2.
7. Oral, R. Care for children exposed to illicit drugs. Care for Kids: Early Periodic Screening,

Diagnosis & Treatment Winter, 2009.

8. Oral, R. Perinatal Illicit Substance Exposure and the Dilemma Related to Prescription Abuse. Core
for Kids: Early Periodic Screening. Diagnosis & Treatment ?a\\,20\Z.

41



DocuSign Envelope ID; 74FD520F.8EF9-4932-A532-2F3F836ADCD6

Resmiye Oral, MD

9. Oral, R, Corbin M. Adverse Childhood Experiences and Pediatrician's responsibility: The
foundations of a lifelong health are built in early childhood. Care for Kids: Early Periodic
Screening, Diagnosis cfe Treatment Spring, 2015.

Electronic publications CMv role, concept-design, created the written material listed below; if with a co
author, editing the final draft)

2001-2019 Web page describing the Child Protection Program at the U of I
httD://www.uihealthcare.com/depts/childrenshospitalofiQwa/childpiotection/index.html
http://www.vh.org/navigation/vch/bibliographv/archive/index.html

2002-2019 Teaching material for medical students arid residents online via Virtual Hospital on Introduction
to Medical Approach-to Child Abuse, Inflicted Head Trauma, Denial of Critical Care Part 1:

Medical/Dental Neglect, Denial of Critical. Care Part 11: Non-organic failure to thrive
http://www.vh.org/navigation/vh/textbooks/pediatrics.html ■

2003-2019 Educational and descriptive brochures on Child Abuse & Neglect online for families, children
and professionals on Sexual abuse, Shaken Baby, Child Discipline, Prevention of Child Abuse
http://www.uihealthcare.com/dents/childienshospitalofiowa/childDrotection/brochures.html

2005-2019 Child Protection Clinical Guidelines (accessible via IPR)
http://forms.uihc.uiowa.edu/pdf/abusefonns/index.htm

2005-2015

2005-2012

2006

9/18/06

2007-date

2007-date

12/03/07

2008

12/2014

3/2015

3/2021

Medical Management of Drug Endangered Children for the website of Iowa Alliance for Drug
Endangered Children http://mvw.iowadec.org/wst page6.html

Mandatory reporter training course on Child Abuse & Neglect via Iowa Communications Online
(ICON) and The Point http://forms.uihc.uiowa.edu/pdf/abiiseforms/index.htm

Video production for online training of General Pediatricians on how to interview families of
children allegedly sexually abused or suffered from inflicted head trauma, U of 1

http://forms.uihc.uiowa.edu/pdf/abuseforms/index.htm

D'Alessandro DM, Oral R. What Should 1 Do When I'm Called To See A Drug-Exposed Child?
mvw.pediatiiceducation.org/2006/09/18
Mandatory reporter training course on Child Abuse & Neglect for pediatricians in Iowa:
http://www.iowapeds.org/

Perinatal Illicit drug Screening and intervention Policy in Iowa: http://www.iowapeds.org/

D'Alessandro DM, Oral R, Kao SC. How Old Are Those Subdural Hematomas.

http://www.pediatriceducation.org/2007/12/Q3
Video production for online training of staff involved in the care of pregnant or delivering
women and newborns on perinatal illicit substance screening/testing practices, U of I
http://foims.uihc.uiowa.edu/pdf/abuseforms/index.htm

Adverse childhood experiences: Helping Services for Northeast Iowa-Domestic Violence ,
Awareness Online Training https://lielpingservices.skvpepapp.com (access via
rmatt@helpingscrviccs.org1

Domestic Violence and Women: TASSA March 2015 Newsletter

COVlD-19 Crisis and Preventing Child Abuse and Neglect through Interagency Collaboration
and Innovation. Cote A, Alvarez de Toledo B, Brennan C, Tappan C, Simmonds C, Berrien F,
Ribsam J, Barrett J, Schollette L, Linebaugh M, Sink M, O'Neill M, Oral R, Chapman S.
International Society for the Prevention of Child Abuse and Neglect: World Perspectives 2020
(eds) John Fluke and Heather Hein. Pp 29-34.
fhttps://www.dropbox.coiTi/s/f8d59srzUia2ii2/lSPCAN 0001-

20 World%20Persi)ectives%20Report 2.7.Ddr?di=0.
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F. Reviews of publications/programs

1. Johnson CF, Oral R, Gullberg L. Diaper Burn: Accident, Abuse or Neglect. Emerg Pediair Care,
2000; 16:173-175 reviewed in Child Abuse Quarterly Medical Update 2001; Vill(l):14.

2. Oral R, Strang T. Neonatal Illicit drug screening practices in lovya: The impact of utilization of a
structured screening ptoXocol. J Perinatal 2006; 1:1-7 reviewed in Child Abuse Quarterly Medical
Update 2007; X^I'V(3):32-33. _

3. My role in the field of child abuse & neglect as a child abuse pediatrician was reviewed in: The Child
Abuse Doctors. David Chadwick (ed). GW Medical Publishers/STM Learning, Inc. (in press)

4. My role in systems building on child abuse management in Turkey was reviewed in; Turkish American
Scientists & Scholars Association newsletter 2013; 2(1) accessible at
http://www.iassausa.or2/Newsioom/item/l407/Building-a-bridge-from-lowa-to-1'urkive-for-
Children?utm 'source=2013+.lanuarv+Newslcttcr&utm camDaign=Scptember+2012-FNewsletter&utm

medium=emaii (1.30.2013)

5. Article co-authored by me titled "Epidemiology of adverse childhood experiences in three provinces.of
Turkey" won the best article of the year in Turkey.

G. Abstracts (Oral and poster presentations):
INTERNATIONAL

4/22-24/93 # Knowledge, behavior and attitude of Turkish physicians on Child
Abuse & Neglect, 1" Balkan, Caucasian, and Middle East Conference
on Child Abuse & Neglect

10/24-27/93 # Neonatal Salmonella Typhimurium infections in 21" International
Congress of Union of Middle Eastern and Mediterranean Pediatric
Societies (Published, #12 in original peer reviewed articles list)

4/3-5/96 U Epidemiology of Caustic Esophagitis, 1st World Conference on the
Prevention and Treatment of Caustic Esophageal Burns in Children

9/8-9/97 # Twenty-eight cases of child abuse reported from five teaching
hospitals in Izmir, International Seminar on Child Abuse & Neglect,
(Published, #4 in most significant peer reviewed publications list)

1/27-30/98 a How was the first multidisciplinary Child Abuse follow-up team
established in Turkey, San Diego Conference on Responding to Child
Maltreatment

10/13-16/99 # Child Maltreatment Study: 83 cases followed up on multidisciplinary
basis, Annual Congress of European Society for Social Pediatrics

8/24-26/01 # Turkish Physicians' knowledge on Child Abuse & Neglect. European
Conference on Child Abuse & Neglect, (Published, #13 in original peer
reviewed articles list)

5/21-27/05 # Diffusion-weighted imaging of brain injury in shaken baby syndrome.
^  American Society ofNeuroradiology meeting

9/11-15/05 # Establishment of Interdisciplinary child protection teams in a
traditional society; The hurdles and how they are being overcome, Vth
European Conference on Child Abuse & Neglect, (Published, #7 in
most significant peer reviewed publications list)

Ankara, Turkey

Izmir, Turkey

Izmir, Turkey

Antalya, Turkey

San Diego, CA

Istanbul, Turkey

Istanbul, Turkey
\

Toronto, Canada

Berlin, Germany
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9/3-6/06 # Missed inflicted trauma with subsequent fatal inflicted head trauma in
infants, XVIth International Conference on Child Abuse & Neglect,
(Published, #18 in original peer reviewed articles list)

9/3-6/06 # Establishment of Interdisciplinary child protection teams'in a
traditional society: The hurdles and how they are being overcome,
XVIth International Conference on Child Abuse & Neglect, (Published,
#7 in most significant peer reviewed publications list)

10/5-7/08 # Fatal inflicted head trauma in cases with missed diagnosis of milder
forms of abuse. Seventh North American Conference on Shaken Baby
Syndrome, (Published, #18 in original peer reviewed articles list)

10/14-18/09 # Prevalence of illegal drug exposure in children evaluated for abuse
and neglect, 4th Mediterranean Academy of Forensic Sciences Meeting,

(#8 in most significant peer reviewed publications list)

9/18-21/11 # Child Advocacy Center Model: Implementation efforts in Turkey as a
national model, 12th European Child Abuse Conference

5/23-25/12 # European Conference on Child Abuse & Neglect: A new project; A
structured child protection service in Turkey

5/23-25/12 # European Conference on Child Abuse & Neglect: The first year
experience of Ankara CIM (Child Follow up Center)

5/23-25/12 # European Conference on Child Abuse & Neglect: Illicit drug
exposure in cases with alleged maltreatment

9/9-12/2-12 # Prevalence and Etiology of Retinal Hemorrhages in Pediatric
Intensive Care Unit in Intubated Patients: 19th ISPCAN meeting

9/9-12/2-12 # Impact of staff training on perinatal illicit drug screening and
intervention: 19th ISPCAN meeting

9/9-12/2-12 # International implementation of the CAC model to respond to child
abuse and neglect: 19'''ISPCAN meeting

7/7-10/15 # Family Related Variables As A Risk Factor For Negative Childhood

Experiences in Three Provinces of Turkey. 14th European Psychology
Congress

1 1/17-19/16 # Case Based Surveillance Child Sexual Abuse Study in Four Provinces
in Turkey; II. International Congress of Clinical and Health Psychology
on Children and Adolescents (Published #32 in original peer reviewed
articles list)

6/22-25/17 # Evaluation of an educational campaign to raise awareness of child
physical abuse among health care professionals in Greece

9/2-5/18 # Missed opportunities for the detection of physical abuse among
patients hospitalized with fractures at a teiliary children's hospital in
Greece. Biennial World ISPCAN conference

9/2-5/18 # Secondao' prevention of Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs) via
implementation of trauma informed practices and cai^e at an academic
hospital

3/17-21/19 # Secondary Prevention Opportunity for Adverse Childhood
Experiences via implementation of family wellbeing assessment at an
academic hospital

York, England

York, England

Vancouver, BC-

Canada

Antalya, Turkey

/

Tampere, Finland

Amsterdam, The

Netherlands

Amsterdam, The

Netherlands

Amsterdam, The

Netherlands

Istanbul, Turkey

Istanbul, Turkey

Istanbul, Turkey

Milano, Italy

Barcelona, Spain

Rome, Italy

Prague, Czech
Republic

Prague, Czech
Republic

Panama City,
Panama

NATIONAL
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10/08-12/89 Lipoprolein Metabolism in Insulin Dependent Diabetic Children ly^
National Conference of Pediatrics

6/2-7/91 Hepatitis B Prevalence in Children with Malignancy, 9'** National
Cancer and 6'^ Pediatric Tumors Conference

5/6-10/91 Ampiciliin/sulbactam treatment in.neonatal sepsis, 6'^ National
Chemotherapeutics and Antibiotics Conference

5/28-30/92 # Hypoxic Ischemic Encephalopathy in Neonates 1" National Pediatric
Neurology and 4''' Mediterranean Countries Pediatric Neurology
Conference

7/14-18/93 Congenital Rubella, 2"'' National Neonatology and 30''^ Conference of
Pediatrics

4/14-17/94 . Prevalence of Child Abuse & Neglect in an outpatient population

followed up at Child Psychiatry Clinic at Behcet Uz Children's
Hospital, in 4'^ Child and Adolescent Psychiatry Conference

9/18-21/94 Brain stem auditory potentials in-neonates, 38'"^ National Congress of
Pediatrics

3/1-2/95 Renal failure in asphyxiated newborns, Neonatal Nephrology Days

6/4-8/95 Renal vein thrombosis in two newborns, 39*'' National Congress of
Pediatrics

6/10-14/95 Multifocal Salmonella Osteomyelitis in newborns, 10"' National
Antibiotics and Chemotherapeutics Conference, (Published, #1 in
original peer reviewed articles list)

9/6-8/95 Spontaneous gastric perforation in a neonate, 1" National Pediatric
Gastroenterology and Nutrition Conference

10/4-6/95 Brainstem visual evoked responses In neonates, 3*^" (^apa Neonatology
Days

10/23-27/95 Knowledge, attitudes and behaviors of physicians in child abuse and
neglect cases, 3 H' Turkish Pediatric Conference

4/24-26/96 Report of non-governmental organizations on improving children's
rights, 2"" National Conference on Child Abuse & Neglect (Published,
#2 in book chapters list)

10/14-17/96 Izmir Child Abuse & Neglect Task Force multidisciplinary experience,
40''' National Pediatric Conference

5/26-29/97 Bone densitometry of newborns, 8"' National Neonatology Conference,
(Published, #2 in original peer reviewed articles list)

6/27-30/97 Eight cases of Child Abuse & Neglect followed up on a
multidisciplinary basis, 41" National Pediatric Conference

10/29-31/97 Calcium and phosphorus metabolism of premature infants, 4''' National
Metabolic Diseases and Nutrition Symposium

4/15-18/98 Thirty-two cases of CAN followed up on a multidisciplinary basis, 6'''
National Public Health Conference

1/22-24/01 Fractures in young children; Inflicted or Un-inflicted ? Conference on
Responding to Child Maltreatment, (Published, #11 in original.peer
reviewed articles list)

9/12-15/02 U Avulsion fracture of odontoid in a hypotonic child due to physical
abuse. 4'*' Shaken Baby Syndrome Conference, (Published, U\5'in
original peer reviewed articles list)

Bursa, Turkey

Izmir, Turkey

Antalya, Turkey

Ankara, Turkey

Istanbul, Turkey

Bursa, Turkey

Trabzon, Turkey

Istanbul, Turkey

Ankara, Turkey

Nevsehir, Turkey

Izmir, Turkey

Istanbul, Turkey

Istanbul, Turkey

Ankara, Turkey

Gaziantep, Turkey

Izmir, Turkey

Van, Turkey

Izmir, Turkey

Adana, Turkey

San Diego, CA

Salt Lake City, UT
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1/25-28/04

11/12/04

1/22-25/05

1/22-25/05

7/11-13/07

4/29-5/2/08

4/21-24/10

9/12-14/10

9/12-14/10

9/26-29/10

10/22-25/1 1

4/28-5/1/12

10/21-

25/2016

12/2-4/2016

4/22-27/17

5/6-9/17

6/22-25/17

12/1-3/17

# Preliminary Results on Consequences of falls in children under two
years of age: Parental survey, 1S*'' Annual Conference on Child and
Family Maltreatment, (Published, ̂ 17 in original peer reviewed articles
list)
# Diffusion-weighted imaging of brain injury in shaken baby syndrome.
Scientific exhibit at the Radiological Society of North America 90"'
Annual Meeting

U Intfauterine illicit Drug Exposure risk factors in mother/infant dyads
at the UIHC delivery population, 19"' Annual Conference on Child and
Family Maltreatment, (#6 in most significant peer reviewed
publications list)
# Consequences of falls in children under two years of age: Parental
survey, 19"' Annual Conference on Child and Family Maltreatment
(Published, #17 in original peer reviewed articles list)
# Perinatal Illicit Drug screening Practices in Iowa: Statewide Policy
Development Efforts, APSAC Annual Colloquium
# The efficacy of hair and urine confirmatory testing in suspicious
pediatric burn injuries. American Burn Association 40"' Annual
Meeting, (Published, #22 in original peer reviewed articles list)
# Staff training makes a difference: Improvements in neonatal illicit
drug screening and intervention. Annual Heifer Society Conference

# Multicenter efforts to prevent shaken baby syndrome in,Turkey, 1 1'''
international Conference on Shaken Baby Syndrome
# Multicenter efforts to prevent shaken baby syndrome in Iowa, 1 1'^
international Conference on Shaken Baby Syndrome

# Establishing shaken baby syndrome management and prevention
teams in Turkey, XVIll"* ISPCAN International Conference on Child
Abuse & Neglect

# Prevalence and Etiology of Retinal Hemorrhages in Pediatric
Intensive Care Unit in Intubated Patients: 115'^ American Academy of
Ophthalmology Annual Meeting (Published #10 in most significant
peer reviewed articles list)
# Prevalence and Etiology of Retinal Hemorrhages in Pediatric
Intensive Care Unit in Intubated Patients: PAS Annual Meeting

# Child Welfare Professionals' Determination of When Certain Unsafe

Activities and Lack of Child Protection Constitutes Child Neglect: AAP
National Conference in the Section on Child Abuse and Neglect
# Child Welfare Professionals' Determination of When Certain Unsafe

Activities and Lack of Child Protection Constitutes Child Neglect:
. Forging New Frontiers: Looking into the Future of Childhood Injuiy
Prevention. 21st Annual Injury Free Coalition for Kids® Conference.
# Revisited Imaging Findings and Pathophysiology of Abusive Head
Trauma with Emphasis on Diffusion-Weighted Imaging: ASNR 55"'
Annual Meeting
# Trauma-informed assessment (TIA) at an academic child protection
clinic Annual PAS Meeting
# Updates on Pathophysiology and Imaging of Abusive Head Trauma:
RSNA Annual conference

# Child Abuse and Neglect Experts' Determination of When a Child

San Diego, CA

Chicago, IL

San Diego, CA

San Diego, CA

Boston, MA

Chicago, IL

Philadelphia, PA

Atlanta, GA

Atlanta, GA

Honolulu, HI

Orlando, FL

Boston, MA

San Francisco, CA

Fort Lauderdale,

FL

Long Beach, CA

San Francisco, CA

Chicago, 11

Fort Lauderdale,
FL
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Being Left Home Alone Constitutes Child Neglect: Forging New
Frontiers: Moving Forward with Childhood Injury Prevention. 22nd
Annual lnjur>' Free Coalition for Kids® Conference. (Published #36 in-

1/4/18 original peer reviewed articles list)
# Referral for Follow-up Assessment of High Risk Families from the
ED: A Comparison of Two Methods. Council on Child Abuse and
Neglect. American Academy of Pediatrics National Conference &
Exhibition

Orlando, FL

REGIONAL:

10/2/98 The first hospital based Child Protection Team in Turkey Regional Columbus, OH
Ambulator)' Pediatrics Conference

10/1,6/98 The establishment of the first Turkish Child Abuse & Neglect Follow- Columbus, OH
up Team, Regional Meeting of Ohio Chapter of American Academy of
Pediatrics, Section of Child Abuse & Neglect

4/5/11 Does in-service training make a difference in staff s compliance with' • Ames, lA
the Iowa statewide perinatal illicit drug screening and intervention

protocol at the UIHC, Governor's Conference on Public Health

XXIV. Personal Statement

I am a double board certified general pediatrician (2001-date) and a child abuse pediatrician (201 l-date). I

came to the USA in 1998 to do a child abuse pediatrics fellowship and pursued academic career in this field
starting in 2001. Child abuse pediatrics became a board certified specialty in 2009 about 50 years after child abuse
became a diagnostic entity in pediatrics. Board certified child abuse pediatricians are very few (only - 300,
nationwide), but their expertise is extremely important to diagnose victims of child abuse accurately, to assess
their families holistically, and connect them with needed mental/behavioral health and social services followed
with advocating for them at the community level, within the legal system as well as by implementing prevention
programs to reduce mortality and morbidity of this psychosocial illness. Furthermore, board certified child abuse
pediatricians are instrumental in establishing systerhs approach to child maltreatment institutionally and
regionally.

A good child protection program that every academic center should establish engages multiple disciplines
collaborating toward the same goal, which should be the best interest of the child and ultimate prevention of child
abuse. Assessments are completed with a team approach; post-diagnostic service referrals and child and family
advocacy efforts are taken seriously with structured family navigation; team members reach out to collaborate
with child protection services, primary care providers and non-governmental organizations to deliver preventive
care, and the court system to ensure that children are removed from abusive families or reunited with rehabilitated'
parents in a timely manner. Lastly, a child abuse pediatrician can and should work at the legislative and state level
to advocate for policies, laws and regulations to prevent, address and treat child abuse and its consequences.

My academic life has been extremely gratifying and rewarding since 1 was able to integrate all domains
of academic career and my passions via teaching, service, program development/advocacy and research into my
activities with significant impact at the institutional, regional/national, and international arenas. Before moving
on, I would like to explain how 1 moved project after project forward during my academic career: In every
institution I worked at, after establishing a functional child protection program with available resources, I

identified the gaps in the system and conducted necessary clinical studies to gather data. I used the data and my
teaching abilities to close the gaps in the system: i.e. I identified that many newborns exposed to illicit substances,
in-utero were missed at the time of delivery. I did staff training on perinatal exposure to illicit substances,
collected data and proved my hypothesis, published multiple studies, reached out to both hospital-based and
statewide stakeholders to resolve this problem. 1 joined Iowa Department of Public Health Perinatal Care group
and collaboratively we revised the Iowa Perinatal Illicit Drug Exposure Policy and developed a risk assessment
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tool for pregnant women and newborn infants. Then, 1 worked with University of Iowa Perinatal Care group and
revised the hospital protocol on the same, developed a train-the-trainer module and trained all relevant staffto

.  follow the new protocol. This work quadrupled the number of newborns identified as being exposed to illicit
drugs in-utero with subsequent services for both children and their families. 1 then published the positive outcome
of this prac tice, which led to multiple hospitals in the national arena reaching out to me to. implement a version of
the protocol in their institution. With this approach, the major themes of my academic career have been:

* Institutional/Regional program development with evidence based models:
1 established institutional multidisciplinary child protection programs at Behcet Uz Children's Hospital,

Izmir, Turkey (1996. the first in the country that established the clinical practice of child protection) and
University of Iowa Hospitals and Clinics, Iowa City, Iowa (2001). With both programs, 1 developed extensive
evidence based clinical guidelines, a comprehensive service array consisting of inpatient consultation, acute
sexual assault response, outpatient clinical assessment, record review and educated all hospital staff and enhanced
their competencies in recognizing and responding to child abuse; at the end of my tenure at the latter institution,
annual child abuse reports had tripled with no similar increase at the state level. Working collaboratively with
state agencies, 1 brought $200-250,000/year revenue to my program every year.

! spearheaded many projects both institutionally and statewide that improved institutional and regional
capacit)' to better diagnose and protect drug endangered children, psychologically abused children, and children
and families suffering from psychological intergenerational trauma, and prevent shaken baby syndrome. 1
contributed to the literature and clinical practice modifications with all my projects. Thus, with my leadership and
utilization of all my academic skills, I moved the stale of Iowa and University of Iowa Hospitals and Clinics
forward in multiple areas of child abuse recognition, assessment, management, and prevention. With these major
projects, I became recognized as a regional/national leader and was invited to join Ray Heifer Honorary Society.

* International work force development:

1 conducted a collaborative intensive workforce development campaign in Turkey, my country of origin
between 2001-2014. 1 organized and actively participated in numerous national conferences, regional conferences,
courses, and workshops in Turkey and created a large network of interdisciplinary providers, some of whom I
trained in Iowa in the mini-fellowship I developed specifically for international medical leaders. As a result, ~ 20
hospital based child.protection programs and > 40 child advocacy centers were established in Turkey, which serve
as the backbone of the national child protection response system. As my CV reveals, I was instrumental in
creating the science around child maltreatment in Turkey.

Through my work in Turkey I became a recognized expert internationally and have done training,
research and work force development in multiple countries including Portugal, Colombia, Pakistan, and Greece.
In each of these countries, my scientific consultation helped them improve professional awareness, develop,
guidelines, and establish coordinated efforts toward a more structured child protection system in the country. In
the last five years, I have also been invited to larger international projects as a scientific consultant (BEGAN,
PROMISE) and to International Society for the Prevention of Child Abuse and Neglect Education Committee, the
details of which are in my CV.

Mv first year at GeiscI School ofMedicinc aiid DHMC

Since August 2019, when my tenure started at DHMC, 1 have recognized that CAPP and DHMC units
and departments it is in collaboration with had multiple strengths as well as some systems gaps, preventing CAPP
from becoming a center of e.xcellence. 1 recognized CAPP had not developed structured clinical guidelines and
protocols for all hospital staff to follow. As a result, I started working with the Emergency Department, Sexual
Assault Nurse Examiner Program, Nursing Department, Care Management Office, Risk Management Office, and
sections of the Department of Pediatrics to collaboratively develop guidelines and protocols, which"are very close
to fruition. Those protocols that were needed solely for the CAPP's internal workings have already been
developed and being followed by all CAPP providers.

.  1 also recognized that CAPP along with statewide culture and practice was functioning more under the
guidance of police and prosecution (prosecutorial model) rather than balancing investigative work with medical
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diagnostics aiid rehabilitative efforts. Additionally, I discovered that there was lack of connection among the four
branches of CAPP, which 1 believe needs to be eliminated to create a true team spirit involving all team members.
Lastly, both at the institutional level other than core members of CAPP, and at the state level, there is a dire need
for professional education to enhance DCYF, police, medical provider, social worker, nursing competencies in
recognizing, reporting, diagnosing, documenting, treating child abuse and neglect and protecting its victims.

Arriving at a consensus vision for CAPP with my department administration, I participated in the
conversations with the legislature and Child Abuse Needs Assessment State Task Force and helped them secure
state funding of--$1,400,000 for child abuse specialized medical services for two years, which is at contract
signing phase as of July 2020. Presenting my vision and sharing the identified staffing needs for CAPP, 1 secured
$500,000/year for five years with the major external donor for CAPP (an increase from $250,000 for one year).

With retiring staff, 1 moderated hiring activities for a 0.8 FTE nurse and a 1.0 FTE.nurse practitioner and
we are in the process of hiring, a 1.0 FTE secretary, a 1.0 FTE program coordinator, and 2.0 FTE social worker to
make sure both Manchester and Lebanon CAPP teams have full time social worker support. 1 have established
multiple layers of teams to both run CAPP activities swiftly and effectively while working on team building
efforts as well as keeping all team members connected with one another.

I have already worked with Elliott Hospital CAPP leadership and we arrived at consensus to combine
our clinical and call functions in 2021, which will be the first step toward bringing all CAPP activities in NH
under one coordination. I have trained two CAPP APRNs to Join the CAPP call system as well as recruiting our
part time Family Practice physician, to take some calls. 1 am in the process of recruiting and training additional
medical providers to join our call-taking team to respond to DCYF calls in real time 24/7 (already recruited one
APRN and one pediatrician). With the new DCYF contract, 1 will start training DCYF nurses and supervisors
followed with all DCYF field workers on child abuse medical fundamentals. Working with Granite State
Children's Alliance 1 contributed to the development of the Know&Tell medical module, which I will use as a
DHMC CME program to expand professional education to include front line workers from multiple fields
including but not limited to medicine, social services, child advocacy centers, law enforcement, prosecutors and
judges, among other staff.

1 have also identified that the absence of 24/7 Pediatric Sexual Assault Program in the DHMC ED was.a
big gap that is inconsistent with other academic children's hospitals' practice. I am working with Pediatric
Department Administration and other DHMC stakeholders to close this GAP first by utilizing the DCYF grant
and SANE certification of CAPP APRNs. for two years to be followed with hospital-wide investment into this
task.

My goal at CHaD is to establish a systems approach to all child abuse functions via comprehensive
clinical guidelines to be complied to by all DHMC staff, to train my team members to a higher level of
competency, and gradually replace the prosecutorial approach to child abuse with a medical/rehabilitative
approach without sacrificing the forensic aspect of our work, I also would like to expand this vision to New
Hampshire at large so that community agencies and our affiliated medical facilities also follow similar protocols

■  and guidelines and New Hampshire's overall prosecutorial approach to child abuse is modified to a more
rehabilitative and truly multidisciplinary model.
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WORK EXPERIENCE

SEPTEMBER 2019 - CURRENT

CERTIFIED PEDIATRIC NURSE PRACTITIONER - CHILD ADVOCACY AND

PROTECTION PROGRAM, DARTMOUTH HITCHCOCK MEDICAL CENTER-

LEBANON, NH .

FACULTY APPOINTMENT AS INSTRUCTOR OF PEDIATRIC SPECIALITIES, THE

GEISEL SCHOOL OF MEDICINE AT DARTMOUTH

Conduct inpatient and outpatient, urgent and routine, multidisciplinary evaluations of children

who are suspected victims of physical abuse, sexual abuse, and/or neglect. We conduct these

evaluations at the request of medical professionals within and outside of Children's Hospital at

Dartmouth and at the request of child protective services (CPS) social workers or police
investigators. Other activities include state and regional coordination of services for abused

children, child abuse prevention activities, medical-legal case reviews at the request of CPS social

workers, police investigators, and attorneys with expert testimony when required, ongoing'
training regarding child maltreatment to teachers, health care professionals, attorneys, police

investigators, and CPS social workers, partake in child abuse research, and provide direct support

to the Child Advocacy Centers in New Hampshire and Vermont.
/

AUGUST 2013 - SEPTEMBER 2019

PEDIATRIC INTENSIVE CARE UNIT PROFESSIONAL STAFF NURSE RN BSN, UPMC

CHILDREN'S HOSPITAL OF PITTSBURGH, PA

Highly skilled and detail oriented professional with experience working in a Level 1 trauma 36-

bed PICU providing exceptional care for critically ill infants, children, and adolescents! Experience
with ECMO, CRRT, Level 1 traumas, transplants, chronic illness, acute illness, mechanical

ventilation, etc. Cooperated and communicated effectively with physicians to ensure client

satisfaction an^ compliance with set standards. Continually improved knowledge, skills and
performance based on feedback and self-identified professional developmental needs.

MAY 2018 - SEPTEMBER 2018

PEDIATRIC INTENSIVE CARE UNIT TRAVEL RN, AMERICAN MOBILE, CA

Seattle Children's Hospital - Seattle, WA

Pediatric Intensive Care Unit with floating to Cardiac Intensive Care Unit and Neonatal Intensive

Care Unit.

I

JANUARY 2018 - APRIL 2018

PEDIATRIC INTENSIVE CARE UNIT TRAVEL RN, AVA HEALTHCARE, CA

Primary Children's Hospital - Salt Lake City, UT

Level 1 Pediatric Intensive Care Unit with floating to Cardiac Intensive Care Unit. /
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AUGUST 2012 - AUGUST 2013

PICU PATIENT CARE TECHNICIAN, UPMC CHILDREN'S HOSPITAL OF PITTSBURGH,

PA

Interacted effectively with patients, families, staff and other hospital department staff to deliver

a high level of customer service and teamwork. Assisted patients with activitlesof daily living

under guidance of the registered nurse.

MAY 2012-AUGUST 2012

PICU STUDENT NURSE INTERN, UPMC CHILDREN'S HOSPITAL OF PITTSBURGH, PA

Expanded nursing skills in pediatric intensive care. Skills include mechanical ventilator care,

tracheostomy care, ECMO, ICR monitoring, central line insertion assistance, NG tubes, TPN, blood

product transfusions, hemodynamic monitoring. Managed patient care, including checking vital

signs.

NOVEMBER 2010 - MAY 2012

PATIENT SUPPORT ASSISTANT, UPMC CHILDREN'S HOSPITAL OF PITTSBURGH, PA

Supports others in improving the health and wellbeing of all children through excellence in

patient care, teaching, and research. Provides basic personal hygiene and assistance in activities

of daily living.

EDUCATION

JUNE 2019

MASTERS OF SCIENCE IN PEDIATRIC PRIMARY CARE NURSE PRACTITIONER,

DREXEL UNIVERSITY - PHILADELPHIA, PA

MAY 2013

BACHELOR OF SCIENCE IN NURSING, DUQUESNE UNIVERSITY - PITTSBURGH, PA

JUNE 2008

HIGH SCHOOL DIPLOMA, SOMERSET AREA HIGH SCHOOL - SOMERSET, PA

STUDENT PNP CLINICAL EXPERIENCES

JANUARY 2019 - JUNE 2019

PEDIATRIC ALLIANCE, ARCADIA DIVISION

WEXFORD, PA

APRIL 2019

ADOLESCENT MEDICINE AT UPMCCHILDREN'S HOSPITAL OF PITTSBURGH

PITTSBURGH, PA

JANUARY 2019

OTOLARVNGOLOGV (ENT) AT UPMC CHILDREN'S HOSPITAL OF PITTSBURGH
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SEPTEMBER 2018 - DECEMBER 2018

UPMC CHILDREN'S COMMUNITY PEDIATRICS, PITTSBURGH PEDIATRICS

PITTSBURGH, PA

SEPTEMBER 2017 - DECEMBER 2017

PEDIATRIC ASSOCIATES OF WESTMORELAND

GREENSBURGH AND IRWIN, PA

JUNE 2017 - AUGUST 2017

CHAN SOON-SHIONG MEDICAL CENTER, PEDIATRIC SPECIALIST DR.

BOROUMAND

WINDBER, PA

CERTIFICATIONS

•  APRN-NP License: State of New Hampshire - License ft 081088-23

•  Pediatric Nursing Certification Board: Certified Pediatric Nurse Practitioner, Primary Care

License # 201914026 , .

•  RN License: State of New Hampshire-License # 081088-21

•  CCRN (Pediatric): AACN, January 2017

•  Pediatric Advanced Life Support: American Heart Association, renewed September 2020

•  CPR/BLS: American Heart Association, renewed September 2020

AFFILIATIONS

National Association of Pediatric Nurse Associates and Practitioners - member: current

American Association of Critical Care Nurses - member: 2017-2019

UPMC Children's Hospital of Pittsburgh PICU nursing preceptor

UPMC Children's Hospital of Pittsburgh Beads of Courage Ambassador: Spring 2016

PICU Patient-Family Centered Care board at UPMC Children's Hospital of Pittsburgh; 2014-2019

National Student Nurses' Association - member: Fall 2009-Spring 2013

Student Nurses' Association of Pennsylvania - House of Delegates: Fall 2010 and Fall 2011

Duquesne University Student Nurses' Association - Publicity Chair: May 2011-May 2013

Alpha Tau Delta Professional Nursing Fraternity - Vice President: January 2011-May 2013

TRAININGS

•  01/2021: 36th Annual San Diego International Conference on Child and Family Maltreatment
The Chadwick Center for Children and Families, Rady Children's Hospital-San Diego, the
University of California, San Diego School of Medicine
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0 Featured over 200 experts from around the globe providing the latest research, practical
experience and skill building workshops on evidence based practices. The conference is directed

to multidisciplinary audiences from fields of medicine, mental health, legal, invekigatio'ns,
education, domestic violence, child welfare, infant and early childhood, administration, public
policy, and research. Conference also focused on preventions, diagnosis, and the treatment of

child abuse, family, and community violence.

2020: Weekly Child Abuse Pediatrics (CAP) Fellowship ECHO r Children's Healthcare of Atlanta

10/14/2020: Youth With Problematic Sexualized Behavior Training Series - Granite State
Children's Alliance

10/2020-11/2020: International Conference on Forensic Nursing Science and Practice -
International Association of Forensic Nurses

06/03/2020-08/19/2020; Trauma and Resilience Level 2 ECHO

03/25/2020-04/29/2020: Trauma and Resilience Level 1 ECHO.
o  6 continuing education credits

06/16/2020: Missing and Exploited Children Training Program from the Office of Juvenile Justice
and Delinquency Prevention: National Criminal Justice Training Center of Fox Valley Technical

College - From Suspicion to Disclosure

06/09/2020: Granite State Children's Alliance: New Hampshire's Network of Child Advocacy
Centers - Youth with Problematic Sexualized Behavior Training Series

2019-2020: Monthly CAPP Medical Peer Review - Children's Hospital at Dartmouth, Child

Advocacy and Protection Program ^
o  1.25 continuing education credits/meeting

04/08/2020-04/29/2020: American Academy of Pediatrics Trauma and Resilience ECHO
o  6 continuing education credits

03/12/2020: Comprehensive Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner Training Program
(Pediatric/Adolescent/Adult) - NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

o  65 contact hours

03/07/2020: Pelvic exam simulation training - NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence

o  8 contact hours

01/25/2020-01/31/2020: 35*^ Annual San Diego International Conference on Child and Family
Maltreatment - The Chadwick Center for Children and Families, Rady Children's Hospital-San

Diego, the University of California, San Diego School of Medicine

o  Featured over 200 experts from around the globe providing the latest research, practical
• experience and skill building workshops on evidence based practices. The conference is

directed to multidisciplinary audiences from fields of medicine, mental health, legal,

investigations, education, domestic violence, child welfare, infant and early childhood,

administration, public policy, and research. Conference also focused on preventions,

diagnosis, and the treatment of child abuse, family, and community violence,

o 40 continuing education credits/contact hours

10/15/2019: Pediatric Sexual Assault: An Online Training Program for Sexual Assault Nurse
Examiners and Other Medical Professionals Serving Children - Postgraduate Institute for

Medicine

o  10 contact hours

10/09/2019: Center for Rural Emergency Services and Trauma 2019 - Who's in your waiting
room? How Health Care Can Respond to Human Trafficking)

o  1.0 credit
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ADDITIONAL CONTACT HOURS - CHILDREN'S HOSPITAL AT

DARTMOUTH, GRAND ROUNDS

ll/ll/2020: Parenting and Substance Use Disorders: A Bl-generational Approach - Elizabeth

Peacock-Chambers, MD, MSc -1.00 credit

10/29/2020: Part 2 - Changing the Culture Surrounding Mental Illness: It's Way Past Time -1.00
credit

10/28/2020: The Intersection of Human Trafficking and Domestic Violence - Janet Carroll, RN,

SANE -1.00 credit

10/28/2020: The Here and Now Care of Acute Appendicitis - Jill Rockwell, APRN, MSN - 1.00
credit

10/21/2020: Pediatric Cardiology 1990-2020; What has changed and what has not. - Norm

Berman,.MD -1.00 credit

10/07/2020: Too Much, Too Little, or Just Right: Seeking the Goldilocks Approach to Enteral
Nutrition in the PICU Patient - Ann-Marie Brown, PhO - 1.00 credit

09/23/2020: Life Support: Equity as a Social Determinant of Health - Xusana Davis, Esq. -1.00
credit-

09/16/2020: Taking the Fight to Facebook; 'Those Nerdy Girls" versus the COVID Infodemic -

Lindsey Leininger, PhD -1.00 credit

09/09/2020: A Vexatious, Versatile Virus - SARS-CoV-2 - Paul Palumbo, MD - 1.00 credit

04/22/2020: Understanding Maternal Addiction: A Neuroscience-lnformed Approach - Helena
Rutherford, PhD -1.00 credit

04/15/2020: Concussion Management: Guidance for School and Home - Jonathan Lichenstein,
PhD -1.00 credit

03/25/2020: Better Together, A Quality Improvement Initiative to increase Nursing Presence on
Rounds - Jessica Truelove, MD -1.00 credit

03/11/2020: Should We Let Our Children Play Contact Sports? - Robert Murray, MD -1.0 credit

02/26/2020: Early Childhood Brain Development/Adolescent Parenting - Lee Savio Beers, MD -
1.0 credit

02/19/2020: Nutrition as Medicine in Premature Neonates - Keira Kilmartin, MD - 1.0 credit

02/12/2020: #BODYACCEPTANCE as a Health Promotion Tool for Adolescents - Olutosin

Ojugbele, MD -1.0 credit

01/22/2020: Immunotherapy: The Good, The Bad, The Ugly - Bonnie Lau, PhD -1.0 credit

01/15/2020: Collaborative Care in Pediatrics - Julie Balaban, MD and Katherine Shea, MD -1.0

credit

01/08/2020; Dravet Syndrome; Is There a Cure On the Horizon? - Richard Morse, MD -1.0

credit

12/18/2019: It's Perfectly Normal: Teens, Disability, and Sex - Catherine Shubkin, MD -1.0

credit

12/04/2019: Management of Familial Hypercholesterolemia in 2019 - Mary McGowan, MD -

1.0 credit

11/20/2019: The Alphabet Soup of Psychotherapies: CBT, PMT, MBSR, and What? A Review for
Pediatric Practices - Susan Pullen, LICSW -1.0 credit

11/13/2019: Understanding Asthma in the Age of Biologic Therapeutics-Joshua Boyce, MD -
1.0 credit

10/30/2019: NH Specialized Medical Services for Children in Need of Protection: How will DHMC

Lead the State in 2020 and Beyond - Resmiye Oral, MD, FAAP - 1.0 credit

Health Care Without Walls: Opportunities and Challenges for Pediatrics - Susan Dentzer, MD -

1.0 credit
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•  10/09/2019: The Burden of Neonatal Disease: Caring for the World's Most Vulnerable Patients
Shaun O'Dell, MD - 1.0 credit

•  10/02/2019: Emerging Eating Pathologies: What and Why - Olivio Bermudez, MD - 1.0 credit
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SUMMART STATEMENT
anna".

.Compassionate pediatric nnrs© practitioner with high energy and integrity

Passionate to assure quality owe and reduce disparities related to race,
ethnicity and income

Proven ability to manage proficient clinics, Prioritizing the needs of patients.
While Bimultaneously valuing and encouraging teamwork

Strong comfort level in care
patient.

of the orthopaedic, trauma and surgical pediatric

DATES

Pecexnber 2021
Present

DaitnwntbHeal^ Lehanom NH
Pediatric'Jhiise Practitioner for CflPP

services. and famUy in various

•  S'pSSSS'

famfiles involved. children and develop trust

; SSrrScp;-——
neglect.
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• Knowledge about the special developmental and emotional needs of
child ana adolescent abuse victims, and able to recognize behavioral
indicators and olinical signs of abuse.

•  Being Familiar with local Child Protective Services and other services
avai&ble to abused children/adolescents and their families is
essential. In addition, the physician must understand the roles of other
professionals, be willing to provide consultation to them, objectively
document findings, and be willing to provide testimony in court

DATES proceedings.
B^assaa^sssESBaa

June 201X - Dartmouth Heahhi Lebanon, NH
December 2QZ1 Fedlatxio Nurse Practftioner for Pediatxic General Surgery

•  Provided anticipatory guidance to pedlatric patients and ftieirfaimlies
concerning growth and developmental milestones, nutrition and hygiene,
and safety.

•  Evaluated patients with possible surgical interventions needed and made
appropriate referrals.

•  Identified disease/syndrome entities not limited to but including pilonidal
cysts, abscesses, C3I irregularities, bowel diseases and the needs for ostomies
and cares. Also identified the teaching needs for gastrc^omy, NO and
cecostomy tubes.

. Managedthacareoftheinpatieiatra\OTapaJient,9nda3suiingreadiiie8sfoi
discharge, coordinating and assuring follow-ups.

t Managed the non-aoddental trauma patient as an inpatlent and assured
readiness for discharge, assuring approssnate safety plans in place andJanu^ 2013 facilitating discharge.

June 2017

Paxtxnouib Health, Lebanon, NH
Staff RN onPediatric Inpatient Floor

.  Served as a patient advocate, assessmg patient status and notifleng
physician of any changes

.  Performed as charge muse, supervising staff and assuring safety of aU
patients.

.  Evaluated staffing requirements, floor assignments snd and managing
unit activities for all patients
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September 2001
May 2011

August 2010-
January 2013

August 2001
July 2009

• Acted as a strong resource for residents and nursing staff on the
management of their patients.,

• Maintained accurate, detailed reports and records.

•  Precepted many new RNs with varied experience.

Colby-Sawyer CoUegCi New London, NH ^
Adjunct Professor of Pediatric Nursing
•  Facilitated class instruction-Evaluated student performance
•  Responded promptly to grade

•  deterztunation

•  Organized, prepared and revised (as needed) course materials-
• Corrected and graded writing assignmentfi
. Assured content met the needs of students to enable them to pass thetr

NCLEX exams for pediatrics

. whenneednecessitated, I also taught the dinioal portion of Pediatrics

. Assuring students met the sldU level needed to care for the iU pediatric

Dartmouth Health, Lebanon, NH
Transfer Center Nurse This
•  Triaging all levels of patients from all areas served by DHMC. This

included but was not limited to

.  ExLlentcormnunicationBldllsandlmowledgeofmostmedloaldiagnoses
was necessary.

•  An ability to work effideirtly, qoioldy and accurately was required.

Dartmouth Health, Lebanon, NH
Pediatric Orthopaedic Nurse Practitioner
.  Evaluated, diagnosed and managed injuries and maladies of the

pediatric patient. Including but not limited to acoUosis, cerebral palsy,
developmental dysplasia of the hips, olubfeet, spurn bjfida.

. taitiated treatments including orthotios, casting, initiation of pavUcharness, ordering tests and procedures. „„u-rtiiled

. Managed independent clinics and assumed surgeons schedule
emergently
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EDUCATION

NortlieaBtem University, Boston MA
Master of Science.

Gradnated 2001 Graduating vrith high honors

Santa Ana Junior College, Santa Ana, CA
Associate of Science

Graduated with high honors
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Reanna Fishwick, MS, APRN, FNP-BC, CNL

^  EDUCATION
UNIVERSITY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE Durham, NH
Post Masters Certificate, Family Nurse Practitioner December 2022

UNIVERSITY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE Durham, NH
Master of Science in Nursing. Clinical Nurse Leader August 2020

EAST STROUDSBURG UNIVERSilA' East Stroudsburg, PA
Master of Science in Athletic Training. Advanced Clinical Practice December 2014

UNIVERSITY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE Durham, NH
Bachelor of Science in Athletic Training, Cum Laude May 2012

CLINICAL EXPERIENCE

Seminar and Practicum of Families 111,350 hours Manchester, NH
Amoskedg Health, Elliot Hospital. Doctors Park Pediatrics September 2022-December 2022

Practicum of Primary Care of Families II, 150 hours Manchester, NH
Doctors Park Pediatrics. Amoskeag Health May 2022-August 2022

Practicum in Primary Care of Families I, 150 hours Brentwood and Concord, NH
Rockingham County Nursing Center, The Orthopedic Institute at Concord Hospital January 2022-May 2022

Clinical Nurse Leadership Capstone, 300 hours Concord, NH
The Orlhojjedic Institute at Concord Hospital January 2020-Ma)' 2020
•  Reduced self-reported low back pain in nurses through implementation of a safe patient handling program

RELATED EXPERIENCE

■REGISTERED NURSE Manchester, NH
Amoskeag Community Health Center November 202! - Present

•  Team nurse who advocates for patients and provides medical advice via telephone triage
•  Manage scheduled and walk in appointments
•  Facilitate care coordination between interpreter services, case management, state and city health departments, etc.

REGISTERED NURSE Manchester, NH
Elliot Hospital June 2020 - February 2022

•  Cared for up to 6 patients on a 65 bed, post-surgical care unit with a focus in trauma, stroke, and general medicine
•  Pursued professional development with monthly seminars and workshops'
•  Facilitated nursing staff with the education and means to reduce low back injiiiy by up to 26%

ATH LETIC TRAINER Concord, NH
Granite State Physical Therapy August 2016 - December 2019
CLINICAL HEALTHCARE ASSOCIATE Manchester, NH
Planned Parenthood of Northern New England March 2018 - October 2018

SURGICAL AND PATIENT CARE COORDINATOR Concord, NH
Concord Orthopaedics July 2015 - March 2018

ASSISTANT ATHLETIC TRAINER, BIOLOGY INSTRUCTOR Meridcn, NH
Kimball Union Academy August 2013 - June 2014

CERTIFICATIONS AND AFFILIATIONS

NH APRN License 082985-23, NPI 1609596659, DEA Registration Ml^847722. NCLILX Registered Nur.ie, State of New
Hamp.dure Licensing Compact Number 082985-21. Clinical Nurse Leader. American Heart Association Basic Life Support
Certified
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CATHERINE COLLIER
REGISTERED NURSE

A

CONTACT PROFILE

I am a Registered Nurse with 27 years of experience, primarily in the outpatient
pediatric setting. I have displayed 23 years of commitment to the mission of

Dartmouth Hitchcock, and have proven excellent skill in nursing leadership,
telephone triage, and pediatric nursing assessment, with a more recent focus on
child maltreatment. 1 am a loyal, collaborative team player, with a passion for
providing quality care for the most vulnerable patients within our community.

PROFESSIONAL SKILLS

°  NURSING ASSESSMENT

°  NURSING LEADERSHIP

SANE TRAINED

°  EPIC/E-DH SYSTEM

"  PHOTO DOCUMENTATION

o  TELEPHONE TRIAGE

«  PATIENT EDUCATION

EDUCATION

University of Vermont
Associates of Science in Nursing

1995

LICENSURE/TRAINING.
Registered Nurse, NH license » 045156-21-

CPR Certified

Yellow Belt trained

SANE trained

EXPERIENCE

Clinical Nurse-CAPP Apr2016'present
Dartmouth Hitchcock- Manchester Pediatrics

•  Support the work of the Manchester, Nashua, and Elliot CAPP Providers in

the clinic setting with both administrative and clinical task Including:

o  Schedule coordination and referral processing,
o  Facilitate telephone triage and follow-up with patient as needed,
o  Perform patient care, exam assistance and photo documentation
o  Communication with multidisciplinary team {CAC,DCYF, Law

Enforcement)

Pediatric Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner Jan 2021-present
Dartmouth Hitchcock- Lebanon ED

•  On-call for the DH Lebanon Pediatric SANE team, one night per week and
one weekend per month

o  Respond and perform exam, evidence collection, and photo
documentation for children under 12 years of age who present to
the Emergency Department after disclosure of a sexual assault

Clinical Nurse Supervisor Aufi(20J6-At;g20i9
Dartmouth Hitchcock -Manchester Pediatrics

•  Supervision and coordination of 12-14 direct reports and management of
their performance including: evaluations, coaching, disciplinary action as
appropriate, and orientation and training for new employees

•  Conflict resolution as needed. Maintained smooth operations of the
department, and performed service recovery to promote patient and
employee retention.

•  Service as a liaison with other persons/departments/clinics/outside
agencies
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Attended:,.San Diego International
Conference on Child and Family -

Maltreatment, Jan 2019 ,

Coordination and implementation of special quality improvement pilots

and projects including:

o  NH Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program POCT

lead screening

o  Ages and Stages Screening

o  IDN funded Integrated Behavioral Health initiative

o  Participated on Symptom Governance Committee to develop e-
tool for call center

Clinical f^urse May 1999-Aug2016
Dartmouth Hitchcock- Manchester Pediatrics

•  Telephone triage and provider support for a large Pediatric department in
the ambulatory setting.

Charge Nurse Mayi995-Aug 1997
Marion Memorial Hospital, Medical/Surgical Unit

r
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Curriculum Vitae

Patricia T. Glowa, MD Community Health Center
1 Medical Center Drive

Lebanon, NH 03766

Harvard Medical School, Boston, MA, M.D.

City College of the City University of New York, NY,
B.A. McGill University, Montreal, P.Q., Canada, English
major

Post Doctoral Training;
1997-1998 National Institute for Program Director Development,

Association of Family Practice Residency Directors
1993-1994 Faculty Development Fellowship, Department of Family

Medicine, University of North Carolina - Chapel Hill
1979-1980 Co-Chief Resident, Family Medicine Program, Highland

Hospital, Rochester, NY
1977-1980 Iiiternship and Residency in Family Medicine, Highland

Hospital, Rochester, NY
I.

\
Licensure and Certification:

1980, certified Diplomate, American Board of Family Practice
1986,1992,1998,

2004 Recertified, American Board of Family Practice
1980-present New Hampshire license for medicine and surgery, lie. no. 6250
1978-2011 New York license for medicine and surgery, lie. no. 134698
1983-present Vermont license for medicine and surgery, lie. no. 6920
1991-1995 North Carolina license for Medicine, lie. no. 33831
1997-present Approved ALSO (Advanced Life Support in Obstetrics) Instructor

Academic Appointments:
2003-present Assistant Professor, Department of Pediatrics, Dartmouth Medical

School

1995-present Assistant Professor, Department of Communit)^ & Family
Medicine, Dartmouth Medical School



DocuSign Envelope ID: 74FD520F-8EF9-4932-A532-2F3F836ADCD6

^  Patricia T. Glovva, M.D. 2

1992-1995 Clinical Assistant Professor, Department of Community & Family
Medicine, University of North Carolina, residency faculty

1991-1992 Clinical Instructor of Family Medicine, University of
North Carolina, 1991-1995

1980-1991 Adjunct Assistant Professor of Clinical Community and
Family Medicine, Dartmouth Medical School

Major Professional Positions:
1995-2000 Residency Program Director, NH Dartmouth Family Practice

Residency Program, Lebanon, NH
1995-1998 Medical Director, Community Health Center, Hanover, NH
1992-1995 University of North Carolina - Chapel Hill, Department of Family

Medicine, Clinical Assistant Professor; Team Leader -

Family Practice Center
1991-1992 Haywood - Moncure Health Center, Moncure, NC, practice of

Family Medicine
1980-1991 Monroe Clinic, Monroe, NH, partnership private practice

of Family Medicine, with Donald Kollisch, M.D.

Other Professional Positions:

1995-present Attending Staff, Dartmouth-Hitchcock' Medical Center
1993-1995 Associate Director, Family Practice Center, Departnnent of Family

Medicine, University of North Carolina - Chapel Hill
1991-1995 Attending Staff, University of North Carolina Memorial Hospitals
1980-1991 Active Staff, Cottage Hospital, Woodsville, NH
1983 President, Medical Staff, Cottage Hospital, Woodsville, NH
1998-present Sexual Abuse Evaluation Clinic (Child Advocacy and Protection

Program), Co-Founder and Attending Physician,
Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center, Lebanon, NH

1995-present Sexual Abuse Examiner, Dartmouth-Hitchcock Medical Center,
Lebanon, NH

1991-1995 Attending Physician of the University of North Carolina Child
Medical Evaluation Program (a referral and training clinic
on child abuse for the State of North Carolina)

1987-1988 SexuaFAbuse Team, Division Children & Youth Services,

Department of Welfare, Littleton, NH
1984-1991 Sexual Abuse Examiner, Division Children & Youth Services,

Department of Welfare, Littleton, NH

Committees:

2001-2004 Steering Committee, Child Advocacy Center, Grafton and Sullivan
Counties, New Hampshire

2000-2004 Advisory Board, Child Advocacy Center at the Family Place,
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Patricia T. Glowa, M.D.

1999-2010

1999-present

1998-1999

Norwich, Vermont

CARE Network, New Hampshire statewide group of child sexual
abuse examiners, meetings for education and case review

Child Advocacy and Protection Program, Dartmouth Hitchcock
Medical Center, Lebanon, NH

Children At Risk Team, Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center,
Lebanon, NH

Memberships:
1980-present

1991-present
1992-2000

1993-present
1995-2000

American Academy of Family Practice
Society of Teachers of Family Medicine
American Medical Women's Association

American Professional Society on the Abuse of Children
Association of Family Practice Residency Directors

Teaching Experience and Responsibilities:
3/2004
2003-2007

1999-2003

1992-2008

1992-1995

Pelvic exam training for prospective SANE nurses
Training in child sexual abuse evaluation to DCYF (Division of

Children, Youth and Families) workers. State of NH
Invited presentations on cliild sexual abuse to community hospitals

in northern New Hampshire (five)
Conference presentations and skills training workshops on

evaluation of child sexual abuse, domestic violence, ALSO
(Advanced Life Support in Obstetrics) and other women's
health topics to family medicine residents and faculty,
medical students, medical and nursing staff of community
hospitals, and residents in other departments, (internal
medicine, obstetrics & gynecology), four to ten presentations
per year

Child Medical Evaluation Program: UNC referral sexual abuse
clinic, teaching residents and students in a referral clinic

Additional Training:

2018-present Monthly CAPP case review - education and quality assurance

4/11/19 Dartmouth-Hitchcock Medical Center Conf - Shield Our Children
From Harm, 5.25 CME hours

4/11/17 Dartmouth-Hitchcock Medical Center Conf - Shield Our Children

From Harm, 5.25 CME hours



OocuSign Envelope ID; 74FD520F-8EF9-4932-A532-2F3F836ADCD6

Patricia T. Glowa, M.D.

4/19/16 Dartmouth-Hitchcock Medical Center Conf - Shield Our Cliildren
From Harm, 5.25 CME hours

4/9/15 Dartmouth-Hitchcock Medical Center Conf - Shield Our Children
From Harrh, 5.25 CME hours

4/18/14 Dartmouth-Hitchcock Medical Center Conf - Shield Our Children
From.Harm, 5.25 CME hours

4/11/13 Dartmouth-Hitchcock Medical Center Conf - SMeld Our Children
From Harm, 5.25 CME hours

1/28-31/13 San Diego Int'l Conf on Child and Family Maltreatment, San Diego
CA, 22.5 CME hours

9/20-21/12 Harvard Medical School Conf. on Pediatric and Adolescent

Gynecology, 9 CME hours
1/23-26/12 San Diego Int'l Conf on Child and Family Maltreatment, San Diego

CA, 28.5 CME hours

1/22-23/12 APSAC Pre-conference, Advanced Medical Training for Child
Sexual Abuse Evaluation, San Diego CA, 10.5 CME hours

9/22-23/11 Harvard Medical School Conf. on Pediatric and Adolescent

Gynecology, 16 CME hours
4/26/11 Dartmouth-Hitchcock Med. Ctr. Conf. - Shield Our Children From

Harm, 5 CME hours

9/23-24/10 Harvard Medical School Conf. on Pediatric and Adolescent
Gynecology, 15.25 CME hours

4/15/10 Dartmouth-Hitchcock Med. Ctr. Conf. - Sliield Our Cliildren From
Harm, 5 CME hours

4/6/09 Dartmouth-Hitchcock Med. Ctr. Conf. - Shield Our Children From

Harm, 5 CME hours

10/4-5/07 Harvard Medical School Conf. on Pediatric and Adolescent

Gynecology, 18.25 CME hours
4/3/07 Dartmouth-Hitchcock Med. Ctr. Annual Conf. on Child Abuse and

Neglect, 6.25 CME hours
4/3/06 Dartmouth-Hitchcock Med. Ctr. Annual Conf. on Child Abuse and

Neglect, 4.25 CME hours
1/23/06 San Diego International Conf. on Child/Family Maltreatment, 28.50

CME hours

3/31/04 MacNamee Memorial Conf. - Impact of Domestic Violence on
Children, Dr. Robert Kinscherff, DHMC, 5.0 CME hours

4/15/04 Community Focus on Child Abuse 2004, DHMC, 4 CME hours
10/21-25/02 Advanced Training on Child Sexual Abuse Examinations, Calif.

Chapter 4 American Academy of Pediatrics, 35 CME hours.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 74FO520F-8EF9-4932-A532-2F3F836ADCD6

Patricia T. Glowa, M.D.

3/13-16/01

11/13-15/00

1999-present
^127-1^195

Orange, Calif.
17'^^ Annual Symposium on Child Sexual Abuse, National

Children's Advocacy Center, 13.50 CME hours, Huntsville,
Ala.

. Third Annual Northeast Child Maltreatment Conference, Tufts

Univ. School of Medicine, 14.5 CME hours. Providence, RI

CARE Network meetings, quarterly case review and education
Expert Medical Evaluation in Child Physical aiid Sexual Abuse,

Wake AHEC, 11 CME hours, Raleigh, NC

rev. 8/22/20
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ANITA S. GUTHIKONDA

OBJECTIVE

I am seeking a leadership position that allows me to leverage my skills in information management to maximize
efficiency, work in a team environment, and solve problems. In my current role in the Child Advocacy & Protection
Program (CAPP;) I have honed my proficiency in multi-tasking, personnel management, and collaboration. I aspire to
advance into a new phase of my career where my skills will help steer CAPP in fulfilling its mission of advocating for the
physical safety, psychological wellness, and social stability of children and adolescents.

WORK EXPERIENCE

Dartmouth Health; Lebanon, NH
- NH's largest private employer and only Level 1 trauma center

Dartmouth Health Children's

Senior Clinical Secretary - CAPP June 2022 - Present

• Continue all clinical secretary responsibilities listed in the role below

• Perform administrative tasks to support the Director of CAPP

• Facilitate coordination of legal depositions and testimonies requested of 5 providers between various outside
agencies and the Office of Risk Management

• Created a tracking system for subpoenas to facilitate the flow of pertinent information in court cases involving CAPP
• Coordinate the scheduling of CAPP rotations for medical students, pediatric residents, and visiting professors
• Provide training for new clinical secretary hires and manage secretary coverage for the department

Clinical Secretary - CAPP Jan 2022 - Present

• Respond to phone calls and fax material related to patient referrals

• Review, process, and track all referrals to the Child Advocacy & Protection Program from various agencies in NH/VT
• Collaborate with providers and nurses on patient care

• Schedule outpatient appointments for new patients and follow-up appointments as needed

• Encrypt and digitize media for the Office of Medical Records

• Manage provider calendars and multiple work lists to track information

Clinical Secretary - Pediatrics June 2021 - Dec 2021
• Answered patient calls and connect them with the proper resources

• Scheduled outpatient appointments and providing patients with after visit documents

• Collaborated with providers and nurses on patient care and documents requested by patients and outside agencies
• Coordinated scheduling of referrals with other departments

• Managed various work queues in regards to scheduling patients for appointments

• Cross-trained to provide coverage for other pediatric specialties

Structure Tone, Inc.; New York, NY
- A leader In global interior construction management & general contracting

Building Department Coordinator December 2007 - July 2014
• Coordinated permitting with the NY Department of Buildings for up to 15 simultaneous projects from conception to

completion

• Initiated a protocol for filing over 370 after-hours variances with an estimated cost savings of nearly $150,000 in
expediter fees per year

• Implemented a system for archiving project information electronically, thereby modernizing the filing system and
streamlining access to critical information
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• Led a transition to time-based billing, allowing for optimized compensation for services rendered

• Facilitated meetings with project managers and field superintendents on status of permit filings on projects '
V

Computer Method International Corporation (CMIC) System Trairier June 2011 - July 2014
• Computer Method International Corporation (CMiC) is a single database system implemented for use by multiple

departments to handle all aspects of a project from conception to closeout, providing transparency, information

tracking and access, drawings, submittals, invoices, and purchase orders in real time.

• Served as trainer for the Operations Department, providing 350 hours of training to over 250 employees in total

• Functioned as liaison for the Building and Operations Department team during initial design and implementation of

CMiC, participating in data validation, process troubleshooting, and workshop scheduling and presentation

Superintendent September 2007-A/ovember 2007
• At Rockefeller Center, coordinated inspections, maintained permits, and interfaced with clients, architects,

subcontractors, and engineers for interior construction projects at First Republic Bank, Key Bank, and the financial

asset management firm Lazard

Sweet Construction of NJ, L.L.C.; Middlesex, NJ
• General Contracting & Construction Management Firm

Project Manager February 2006 - August 2007
• Managed account and supervised construction for interior'construction projects at 3 sites for Elizabethtown Gas
(subsidiary of AGL Resources Inc.), including interfacing with client and contractors, coordinating with accounting
department, preparing of subcontracts, and leading weekly progress meetings

Project Administrator/Office Manager June 2005 - August 2007
• Drafted bid estimates through coordination with the estimator and subcontractors, performed quality assurance
screening of subcontractors, and drafted closeout packets for all projects

• Performed all necessary administrative tasks as the sole administrative assistant with roles including answering

phone calls, office supply management, timesheets, and training new employees in office protocol.

• Created employee handbook to improve efficiency of training

Superintendent June 2005 - January 2006
.  •Supervised interior construction projects for Berlitz Corporation (Princeton, NJ), Old Navy (Eatontown, NJ), and

Banana Republic (Shrewsbury, NJ), with roles including coordinating of inspections, ensuring timely completion, and
OSHA compliance

EDUCATION

Bachelors of Science in Information Technology New Jersey Institute of Technology, NJ May 2005

• Concentration in Management of Information Systems, Minor in Management; GPA 3.5/4.0

• Awards/Accolades: Dean's List for 7 semesters; Faculty Scholarship 2001-2005

SKILLS

Applications/Software/Programs: MS Office, Microsoft Outlook, Lotus Notes, Business Objects, Computer Methods
International Corporation, and HTML & CSS for'Web Design, EPIC

Languages: English (native fluency), Hindi (native fluency), Spanish (basic)

INTERESTS

• Crochet, Hiking, Dancing, Softball, Badminton, Board games. Baking, Violin, Piano, and Trivia
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement,

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name: Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital

NAME

•  'IV

JOBTITLE

ANNUAL

Amount paid

FROM THIS

contract

ANNUAL

SALARY

Resmlye Oral CAPP Medical Director $330,000.00 $330,000.00

Anna Marsh CAPP APRN $31,423.60 $125,694.40

Jill Rockwell CAPP APRN $15,610.14 $62,440.56

Reanna Fishwick CAPP APRN $30,076.80 $120,307.20

Catherine Collier CAPP RN $107,681.60 $107,681.60

Pat Glowa CAPP MD $17,670.02 $252,428.80

Anita Guthikonda CAPP Program Leader $30,607.20 '  ~ $61,214.40
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Lorl A.ShiWBtn(

Comoriuioocr

Jottpb C. Ribum, ir.
Dlr*ct»r

STATE OF NEW

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR CHILDREN, YOUTH & FAMILIES

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301.3857
003.271.4451 1.800452-3345 Eit 4451

Fm: 603-27M729 TDDAcctn; 1400.735-2964 www.dhhfcob.gqv

May 24, 2022

]Lp

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Children. Youth and
Families, to amend an existing contract with Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital (VC#177160).
Lebanon, NH to extend this contract for an .additional two years, to assist DCYF with the medical
evaluation of child abuse, by increasing the price limitation by $1,499,410 from $1,499,410 to
$2,998,820 and by extending the completion date from June 30, 2022 to June 30, 2024, effective
July 1, 2022 or upon Governor and Council approval, whichever is later. 14.01% Federal Funds.
85.99% General Funds.

#10.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on October 21. 2020. Kem

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2023 and are anticipated
to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items within the price
limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and
justified.

05-95-47-470010-7948 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT. HHS: OFC MEOICAIO SERVICES. MEOICAID CARE MANAGEMENT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increase/

(Decrease)
Amount

Revised

Amount

2021
101-

500729

Medical
Payments to
Providers

47004033
$200,000 $0 $200,000

2022
101-

500729

Medical

Payments to
Providers

47004033

$400,000 $0 $400,000

2023
101-

500729

Medical

Payments to
Providers

47004033 $0

$120,000 $120,000

2024
101-

500729

Medical

Payments to
Providers

47004033 $0

$120,000 $120,000

Subtote/ $600,000 $240,000 $840,000
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His Excollency, Governor Christopher T. Surujnu
and the Honorable Coundl
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05-95-95-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OP HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, CHILD PROTECTION, CHILD-FAMILY SERVICES

State

Fiscal
Year

Class I

Account
Class Title Job Number

Total

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease
Amount)

Revised Amount

2021
102-

500731 .

Contracts

for Prog Svc
TBb

$209,705 $0 $209,705

2022
102-

500731
Contracts

for Prog Svc
TBD

$209,705 $0 $209,705

2023
102-

500731

Contracts

for Prog Svc
42105837

$0 $390,240 $390,240

2024
102-

500731

Contracts

for Prog Svc
42105837

$0 $389,170 $389,170

Subtotal $419,410 $779,410 $1,198,820

05-95-95^21010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, CHILD PROTECTION. CHILD-FAMILY SERVICES

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Total

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease
Amount)

Revised

Amount

2021
103-

502507

Contracts for

Prog Svc
TBD

$160,000 $0 $160,000

2022
103-
502507

Contracts for

Prog Svc
TBD

$320,000 $0 $320,000

2023
102-

502507

Contracts for

Prog Svc
.42105837

$0 $240,000 $240,000

2024
102-

502507

Contracts for

Prog Svc
42105837

$0 $240,000 $240,000

Subtotal $480,000 $480,000 $960,000

Total $1,499,410 $1,499,410 $2,998,820

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to continue providing ons^all access 24 hours a day. 7 days
a week to experienced health care professionals who are trained in and can advise on the
standardized diagnostic methods, treatment, and disposition of suspected child sexual abuse and
physical abuse. Dartmouth Hitchcock's Child Advocacy and Protection Program (CARP) will
continue to conduct physical examinations of children who are suspected victims of multiple types
of abuse, and provide the Division for Children, Youth and Families (DCYF) with medical opinions
based on these examinations. Dartmouth Hitchcock will also provide case reviews of other
specific cases, at the request of DCYF. and consultation to DCYF when necessary. Additionally,
the Contractor will continue to provide nurses and child protective service workers performing
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and (he Horwrsble Council

Page 3 of 3

screenings and assessments of reported cases of child abuse pre-service training in the
standardized medical diagnostic methods, treatment, and disposition, as well as providing
training, as requested by DCYF.

The population to be served are children Involved with DCYF investigations, who are
suspected victims of child abuse or neglect. These services are needed because DCYF, through
rts investigative process, often requires the expert opinion of appropriately trained medical
professionals who specialize in the evaluation and diagnosis of child abuse and neglect.
Approximately 1,000 individuals will be served from July 1, 2022, to June 30, 2024.

The Department will monitor services by:

•  90% of all clients will be contacted and offered a family appointment within ten (10)
days of CAPP receiving the referral from DCYF.

•  80% of all cases refeired to CAPP by the Department will have received a
completed evaluation and assessment within two (2) months of the referral from
DCYF if family agrees to the CAPP evaluation.

•  100% of medical providers will participate in a minimum of five (5) peer review
sessions annually.

As referenced in Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions, Subsection 1.2 of
the original agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to four (4).
additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement
of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to
renew services for two (2) of the four (4) years available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request DCYF will not have continued
access to the expert opinion of appropriately trained medical professionals who specialize in the
evaluation and diagnosis of child abuse and neglect.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Federal Funds; Medicaid CFDA# 93.778 FAIhf# 2205NH5MAP

Respectfully submitted.

f>r-

Loti A. Shiblnette

Commissiorier.

The D<parOnenl of Health and Hunion Stroice$' MUiion is to join communities and familits
in providing opporiunilies for ciluent to acftieve health and independenet.



DocuSign Envelope ID; 74FD520F-8EF9-4932-A532-2F3F836ADCD6

DocuSign Envelope ID: 18CD4FC9-B6CF^2D5-92EF-COAC86629871

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Special Medical Evaluation Services contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("Stale" or "Department") and Mary Hitchcock
Memorial Hospital ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on October 21. 2020 (Item #10). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the-terms
and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17 and Exhibit A, the contract may
be amended upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive
Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation to support
continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2024

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, .Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$2,998,820

3. Modify Exhibit C. Payment Terms, Section 2.4, to read:

Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the fulfillment
of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as specified in Exhibits
C-l, through exhibits C-4 Budget Sheets.

■ 4. Add Exhibit C-3, Budget Sheet, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

5. Add Exhibit C-4, Budget Sheet, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

r—08
m.
- ■-

SS-2020-DCYF-l3-SPeCI-01-A01 q/5^/5fi55
Page lot 3



DocuSign Envelope ID: 74FD520F-8EF^932.A532-2F3F836ADCO6

DocuSIgn Envelope ID: 18C04FC9-MCF-42O5-92EF-CDAC86629871

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not.modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amerldrnent shall be effective July 1. 2022, or upon Governor and Council
approval, whichever is later.

V

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
De(Dartfhent of Health and Hunian Services

6/1/2022

Date

r-0ocuS)gn*4 br:
Joseph E. Ribsarrt, Jr.

Name':^"<^s'^pr?:"Ribsam, 3r.
Title; Director-

5/.25/2022

Date

fii^ary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital
—Docu9tgncd by:

Title: chief clinical Officer

Ma'fy Hllchc^k M<^brial:Hc«plU

SS-2020-DCYF-,13-SPECI-Oi-AOi

A-S-1..2

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, haying been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

— OocuSIgn*4 by:

6/4/2022

□Si
Title; Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Cduhcil of
the State of Neyy Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

pate Name:
title:

Mary Hitchcock.Memorial Hospilai A-S-1.2
SS:2026^OCYF.i3^SPECi-O1-AOl

Page 3 of 3
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ex. 1.0 Exhibit C-3. SFY 2023 Budget

New Hempshiro Department of Health and Human Services

Cpmp/ete one budget form for each budgot period.

Contractor Name: Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital

Budget Request for:- Spec/a/ Medical Evaluation Services

Budget Period July 1,2022-June 30,2023

indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 0 00%

Line Item Program Cost • Funded by pHHS

1. Salary & Wages $499,527

2. Fringe Benefits $66,254

3. Consultants $0

4. Equipment
Ind'rtet oosT rM cennoT be epptM ro equipment cosM per 2 CFR 200. t vx}

App9netUIVlo2CFR2Cd.
$0

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0

5.(b) Supplies r Lab $0

5.(c) Supplies ♦ Pharmacy $0

5.{d) Supplies • Medical $10,000

5.(e) Supplies Office

6. Travel S2.000

7. Software $0

8. (a) Other • Martceting/Communications $0

8. (b) Other» Education and Training $22,800
8. (c) Other«Other {specify below)

Call reimbursement (or providers $149,659

Other (please spec/TV) SO

Other (please specify) $0

■Other (please speciM SO

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $750,240

Total Indirect Costs $0

TOTAL $.750,240

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital
SS-2020.DCYF.t3^PECl-Oi-A01
Exhibit C-,3.Sn'2024 Birig'et
Page i:of i

Contractor Initials 0^

Date ,5/25/22
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8T-1.0 Exhibit C-4. SFY 2024 Budget

New Hampshire Oepariment of Health and Human Services

Complete one budget form for each budget period.

Contractor Name; Msry Hitchcock Memoriel Hospital

Budget Request for: Special Medical Evaluation Services

Budget Period July 1.2023'Juna 30.2024

Indirect Cos't Rate (If applicable) 0.00%

Line Item Program Cost • Funded by DHHS

/

1. Salary & Wages $499,527

2- Fringe Benefits $66,254

X Consultants $0

4. Equipment
Indkeel cost rue cinriol be applM to equlprfiehi coUi per 2 CFR 200.1 end
Appendix IV to 2 CfR 200. ^ '

$0

5.(a) Supplies' Educational $0

5.(b) Supplies • Lab SO

5.(0) Supplies - Pharmacy SO

5.(d) Supplies'-Medical $10,000

5.(e) Supplies Office

6. Travel $2,000

7. Software '• $0

8. (a) Other - MarVetinq/Communicaliohs SO

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $21,730

8. (c) Other • Other (specify below)

Call raimbursament for providers $149,659

Other (please specify) $0

Other (pleose specify) SO

Other (please specify) SO

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $749,170

Total Indirect Costs $0

TOTAL $749,170

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital
;SS.2020-OCYF-1 3-SPE'CI-OI-AO'l
■Exhibll,c4, SPY 2024,Budget
Page'1 of 1

Cbntractorlnitials

Dale 5/25/22
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Lofi A. SMblntlU'

Comailuioflcr

JoMpb C. Ribum. Jr.
Director

STATE OF NEW HAIVfPSHTRE

DEPARtMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR CHILDREN, YOUTH & FAMILIES

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301-3857
60>27|.44SI l-800-8S2-3345Est:44Sl

Fai: 603-27M729 TDDAcceu; i40O-73S-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

Septemter 21. 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House .
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Departinent of Health and Human Services, Division for Children. Youth and
Families, to enter Info a Sole Source contract with Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital
^G#177160). Lebanon. NH. in the amount of $'1,499,410, for 24/7 on-call access to and training
sen/ices from heatth care professionals specializing In standard diagnostic methods and
treatmerit of children who Have been abused 6r neglect, with the option to renew for up to four (4)
additional years, effective upon Governor and Council approval through June 30, 2022. 20%
Federal Funds. 80% General Funds.

Funds are availatJie ifi the fbllowing account for State .Fiscal Year, 2021, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability ar>d continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, ̂ th the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between stale .fiscal.years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

05-95-47-470010-7948 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT. HHS: OFC MEDICAID, SERVICES, MEDICAID CARE MANAGEMENT.

State

Fiscai Year
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2P.21 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47004033"

$200,000

2022 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
■  47004033.

$400,000

Subtotal $600,000

05-95-95-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
human SVS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, CHILD PROTECTION, CHILD-FAMILY SERVICES

iState

Fiscal Year

Class'/

Account
Class Title Job Numt>er To.tal Amount

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Syc TBD $209,705

2022. 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc TBD $209,705

Tht Deportmtnt pfHtoUh ond.HumonServiets'MUiwn U lojoin eonimtiniiiet ond/omilits
iii prnwding opportunitiet (or cilizcn^ lo ochUix health and independence.
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01-9&'9&421010-29S80CK)0 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AlNO
HUUAN SVS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, CHILD PROTECTION. CHILD-FAMILY SERVICES

iState
Fiscal Year

Class/

Account
Class title Job Number Total Amount

2021 103-502507 Contracts for Prog Svc TBD $160,000

2022 103-502507 Contracts for Prog Svc TBD $320,000

Subtotal. $480,000

total $1,499,410

EXPLANATION

This r^ue^ is Sole Source tecduse the Contractor.is uniquely positioned as an
accredited, leducationa! fddljty with'the only certified child abuse ar^ neglect p^latricjan in NH.
The Contractor also possess a state^de network of health cere facilities and access to trainers
that would satisfy the any future anticipated business or legislative requirements. Additionatiy.
the Contractor has numerous public arid private partnerships that would ajidw for the successful
administration of this program.'

The purpose of this request is to provide orvcail access 24 hours a day, J days a week tp
experienced health care professionals who are trained in and can advise on the standardized
diagrwstic methods, treatmertt, and disposition of-suspected child sexual abuse arid physical
abuse, bartnwuth Hctchcock;8 Child-Advocacy and Protection Program (CAPP) y^ll conduct
physical exa.minatiprn of childreri who are suspected .victims .of multiple types of abuse, ar^
provide the Diyisipn for Childreri. Youth and Families (DCYF) ̂th medical ppinions based on
these examinations, partrnouth Hitchcock will alsp provirto case reviews pf other specific cases,
at the request of OCYF. and consultation to DCYF when necessary. The Contractor wHI also
provide.tfainlng. as requested by OCYF.

the Contractor ,vyjll provide nurses and child protective service wrkers peifprrriing
screenings and assessrnents of reported cases; of child abuse pre-service training in the
standardized medical diagnostic methods, treatment, and disposition. Further, the Contractor will
periodically have health care providers,-experienced in child abuse and neglect, provide in-service

'training. Health ;cdre professionals''v<ho. participate in the training or are members of -a
multldlSdplinary team, working wtth the pepartment of Health end Human .^ryices 'or law
enforcement, will participate in periodic peer or expert review of their evaluations and .uridertake
continuing education in the rriedicat evaluation of child abuse and neglect acM/ding to
professional stari^rds.

The population to be served are children involved with DCYF inverstigatipns.'^o are
suspected ̂ ctims of child ajiuW or neglect. These services are needed beceuse DCYF, through
its investigative prot^$s> requires the expert opinion of epprophately trained medicel
professionals who spedat'izo |n the evaluation and diagnosis of child abuse and ;ne9|ect.
Approximately 1;pbp indiylduals^ll be served from October 7, 2020, to June 30.2022.

. The Department will monitor .contracted services by e_nsuring;

•  90% of ail .clients will be contacted and offered a;fam|ly appointmeril within ten (1 p)
. days'cf CAPP receiving the referral from DCYF,
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•  80% of all cases referred to CAPP by the Department will have received is
completed e^luaUon and assessment within two (2) months of the referral from
OCYF if the femily agrees to the CAPP evaluation.

•  10% increase in medical providers recruited to be CAPP consultants annually.

•  100% of medical providers partidpate in a minimum of five (5) peer review
sessions annually..

As reference in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions, Section 1.2, of the
attached contrect, the parties have.the option to extend the agreement for up four (4) additional
■years, cdhtingent upon satisfactory, delivery of services, available funding, agre6nf>ent of the
parties and Governor arKl Council approval.

Should the .Governor and Council not authorize this request children who are alleged
victims of physical and Mxual abuse will not have access to these specialized evaluations to
er^ure they r^'ive appropriate, treatment and servlcas.

Area served; Statewide

Source of Funds: Medicaid CFDA#93.778

The Department will request General Funds in the.event that Federal Funds are r>o longer
available and services are still ne^ed.

Respectfully submitted.

'X ^ILiLixellly
Lori A. Shibinette
Commissioner
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FORM NVMDCR P-37 (vtnkw 12/11/2019)

Stit>je<i:_Spccial Medical Evaiualion Services (SS*2020-DCYr-13-SP£CI-OI)

Notice: Thitegreemcnl end ellofiu etlMhmcnti ihell becomepublk upon submission lo Oovcmor tnd
Gxeculivc Council fbf spprovil. Any inforoutian tJiii is private, conndcntie) or proprietary must
be ckerly idcniified to the esency ind earced to in uriiiog fvior lo signing the cenirecL

AGREEMENT
T7)e Suit of No* Hampshire and (he Contractor hereby mutuelJy agree as follows;

C CNEOAL PROVISIONS

_L 1DENT1PICATI0N.
l.t State Agency Name

New Hampshire Departmenl of Health end Htanan Services

1.2 State Agmcy Address

129 Pleauni Street

Concord,NH 03301-3137

1.3 Cbhtractcr Nime

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital

1.4 Contractor Address

One Medical Center Drive

Lebanon, NH, 03756

1.3 Contractor Phone

Number

(603} 646-1110

1.6 Account Number

05-095-42-4210-2958

05-095-47-4700-7948

1.7 Complalon Date •

June 30, 2022

1.8 Price Limitation

$1,499,410

1.9 Coniracling Officer for Sttte Agoicy

Nalhtn D. While, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

1.1) Contractor Signature - 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Suun A. Reeves, EdD, RN

Q  Executive Vice Pruident

1.13. Siele^c^^ Sign^jjJM
D,,.:

1.14 Name and Title ofSlaie Agency Signatory

Joseph E. Rlbsam, Jr.. Director. DCYF

1.15 Agpfbval bjrtheN.H. Deportment of Adminittrafion. Diviiiort of Personnel (l/appllcabk) >

By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by (he Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) f^fopp/icob/r,/

By On: 09/22/20

1.17 Approval by the Governor end Executive Council (ijap^itabU)

CAC Item number; O&C Meeting Date:
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t S£RV(CeS TQ BE PCRFORMEO. The Sittc of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block I.I

.(^Siite'O. engages contractor identified in block 1.3
rContractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXKIBIT B which is incorporated
hadn by refercnoe C'Scrvlccs'*).

y EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OP SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agrccmcni lo the

'contrary, artd subject to the epprovai of the Governor and
Excoitivc Council of the State of New Hampshire, ifapplkabie,
this Agreement, and all obligotions of the parliea hocundcr, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Excculis^
Coundl approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such ai^roval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement Is signed by
the Slate Agency as shown in block -1.13 C'Cffective.Oate").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to ihc
Effective Dale, all Services pcrforn>cd,by the Contractor prior (o
the Effective Date shall be perform^ at the sole risk of the
Cortirector, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the Slate shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Conirector must complete all Services by (he Completion Oute
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONplTlONAL NATURE OK AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, oil obligaliofis of (he State hcreunder, irKludtng,
without limiuiiioo, Ihc continuance of payments hercunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropHeiion of
■funds affected by ony stale or federal legidaiive or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
ai^oprialicn or availability of funding for this A^ccmeni and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
l>art. In no event shall the Stale be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available opprt^riaied Kmds. (n the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, (he
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
became available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agrcemcnl immediately upon
giving-the Contractornodce of such reduction or Icrminnlion.
The Stale shall not be required lo transfer fbnds from any other
account or source to (he Account identified in biock l.(i in ihe
event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICG/PKICR LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.
$.1 The contract price, method ofpaymcni, and lermsof payment
arc identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
S.2 The payment by the Slate of (he contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to Ihe Coniractor for all
cxpcrtscs, of whatever nature incurred by the Cootracior in (he
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Cohtnctor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other then the contract price

'3.3 The Slate reserves (he right to oflkei fhim ony amounts
otherwise poyaWe to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or pcrmincd by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80;7-€ or any other provision of law.
3.4 Notwiihstonding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwiihstonding unexpected ciruimstances, in rto
event shall Ihe lota! ofail payments aulhorixcd, or actually mode
hercunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE OV CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.
5.1 In connection wiih Ihe performance of Ihe Servico, the
Coniractor shall comply with all applicable tiatuia, taws,
regulations, end orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Coniractor, including, but not limited lo, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition. If this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of(he United Slates, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rula, regulaticms
and rtatuia. end with ony rules, regulations and guidelines as the
Stale or the United Slates issue lo implement these regulations.
Thc'Conuaaor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
properly laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, (he Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or eppiicanis for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex. handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin end will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees lo permit the State United Sutes
access to any of Ihe Contractor's books, records and accounts for
(he purpose ofosccneining compliance with all rules, r^ulations
and ordcn, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
AgrecmoiL

7. PERSONNEL
7.1 The Cbnlractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform (he Services. The Contractor wtrronis that
all persormel engaged in.the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable lavrs.
7.2 Unless otherwise ®uibori-zcd in writing, during (he term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months afler the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Coorroctcr shall not hire, and
shall not permit-any subconiracior or other person, firm or
corporailcxt with whom it is engaged in o combined effort to
perform Ihc Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is malerialiy' involved in the procurement,
adminifiration or pa-formance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or ha
successor, shall be (he State's representative. In the evati of any
dispute concerning Ihc interpretation of this Agreement, the
Ccnirecting Officer's decision shall be fi na] for the Stale.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following eas or (Missions of (he
Conlrsctor ihell consliliite en event of default hereundcr ("F.vent

ofDcftuh'"):
8.1.r failure (0 perform (he Scrvleea saiiafactorily . or on
schedule;
8.1.2 fgiilure to submit eny rq^od rcquir^ hoeunder, and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform eny oih& covenant, term or cor>diiion of
this Agrecmeni.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of eny Event of Default, the State may
'take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor ■ vwiaen notice specifying (he Event of
Default and rcquiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of lime, thirty (30) days frorh (he
date ofihe notice; arid if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate (his Agreement, cfTcctive two (2) days aflcr giving (he
Contractor notice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Cortiractor a written nolice.specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and crdcring ihat (he portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from (he date of such notice until such lime as the Suic
dclcrminca that (he Contractor has cured the Event of DefBult

shall never be petd to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor o written notice tpeciiying the Event of
Default and set off ogoinst any other obligations the State may'
owe to (he Contraaor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Oefsuli; an<Vor
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, cr
both.

8.3. No fbilure by the State to enforce any provisions hereofofler
any Event of Default shall be deemed a ̂ ivcr of its rights with
regard to (hat Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Eycnl of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of (he rl^l.ofthe State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further of otha Event of
Default on (he pan of the Contractor.

F.TERfVl (NATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, (he Slate may, at its sole
discretion, (erminste the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days wrinen notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its q>lion (o tomihale the Agreement.
9.2 In (ho event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to (he
Contracting Officer, not Inter than ftffeen (iS)doys after the date
of termination, o report CTcrinination Report") describing in
detail all Services paformed, and the contract price corned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, end number of copies of the Termination fieport shall
be identical to those'ofany Final Report described in (he attached
EXHIBIT 0. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contraaor
shall, within IS days of notice of early icrminniion, develop and

submit to the State o Transition Pton for services under the'

Agreement. ^

10. DATA7ACCESSrt»NKI0ENriAUTV/
PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in (his Agreement, (he word "data" ̂all mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the'
performance of. or acquired or developed by reason of, (his
Agreement, including, bul not limited to, all studies, rcporto,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, anolyseo, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
(he State or purchas^ with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the properly of the State, and
Shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agrccmoit for any reason.
10.3 Confidcntbliiy of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 9I<A or otho existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior wriner> approval of (he Stale.

11. CONTRACl'OH'S RELATION TO THE S'I'ATE. In the

performance of this Agreement (he Contraaor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an ogeni nor on
employee of the State. Neither (he Contraaor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any bcncfib, workers' compensstion or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIONMENTmELECATION/SUBCONTKACrS.

12.1 The Contraaor shall not assign, cr otherwise transfer eny
interest in this Agrcemciil without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at lost fificcn (15) days prior to
the auignmeni. and a written consent of the State For purposes
' of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall consiiruie

assignntent. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or saics of related transaciions in
. which D third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direa or Indirect owner of fifty percail (50S) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contraaor. or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The State is cniillcd to copies of all subcontraus and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an auignmeni agrcemenl to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify end hold harmless the Slate, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other, claims asserted against
(he Stale, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oQ Ihc aas or omiuion of (he

Page 3 otd
Contractor Initials

Datc^-/7' }t>7o



DocuSign Envelope ID: 74FD520F-8EF9-4932-A532-2F3F836ADCD6

OocuSIgn Envelope ID: 18CD4FC9-B6CF-42D5-92EF-COAC8^29871

Conlrector. or iubc<m(ractbr>. indi^mg bOrnot limited, lo the
negligenccv reckless or intcniionsi conduct. The State ihatl cict
be liabte for ah/ ccsU incurred by (he Conlnictor'ariting ̂ er
(hUpara^ph 13. Notwithstanding the forgoing, nothing herein
conlain^shall be deen^ to constitute e waiver of the sovereign
immunity ofthe Sute, which immunity is hereby reserved to (he
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Cohbactor shall, at its so|e^ u^se. (Main and
continuously - rrulntain in rorce, artd shall -require any
subcontractor or'assigirec re obtain and maintain in force, ihe
following insurence;
14.1.1 ciammerclat goieral liability insiaan« agains] all claims
of bodily injury, death or.propcny ̂ magc, in amounu of not
less than Si.OtXI.OOO per occurrence e^ $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess: end

14.1.2 special cBiisc ofloas coverage form covering'all prtipcrty
sulirjeci to subpartgraph 10.2 herein, in en amount not less than
10% of the Mholc replacement value of the property. .
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph I4.l hcsein shall be
oil policy forrhs and endorsements approved, fpr-.use in the Stale
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of'Insurance, and
isst^ by insurers licensed in (he State pfNew Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to^the.Contracting Officer
identified in blodt l.9, or.hisorher»aessor,a c«rtifica(e(s)of
insurance for all insurance required under'this-Agreement.
Contractor shall also furhi^ to the Contracting Officer identified
h block 1.9, or his or ha successor, cejiificatc(s)'c)f insurance
for all rene^l(s) of ins^hcc required ̂ er this Agreerheni ho
iaia than ten (10) days prior to the expiration dote of each
insisrance' policy. The eertiricate(s) .of insuraha and any
renewals thereofshall be attached and are incorporated hacin by
reference.

15. WORKERS^COMPENSATTpN.
IS. I By sighing this agreement, the Conlraclor agrees, ceriiftes

.and worrants that (he.Cpntrauor is.th.romp|iahcc with or exanpt
froni, the rcquironCTls ofN.H.' RSA chapia 281-A ("iVorkerj'
Comfknsetidh
15.2 To the extent the Contractor Is subject to (he requirements
of N.H. RSA choptcir'2f|I-A. Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and mainuin,
•pe)mwl -of Wdrkas' Cornpensation in connect,ion with
ae'ilviiics.which ihepcrson proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agri^cnt. The Contracjtbr shall furnish thc'Cohtracting Olficer
idcnliRed ln.bloi^.1.9. or his or ha successor, prooFof Workers'
'Compensslipn lii the mariner described in^N.H. RSA'chapter
28I>A and any applicable.renewal(s) thaccf, which shall be
B(ta<^ed and Brc JncQijsofiifid haein 'by refcrende, Ihe'Stoie
-shail not be responsible for paymchi of any 'Workers'
Cofnj^ution 'prcrhiums''pr for'any oiher cjairn or behefit for
Contractor,':or:any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
'which rhighl arise'unda p'ppllcsbic Slale/of New Hampshire
Workers' C^pensaiion' 'laws in' connection with the
iparormancc'dflhc'Seryica Agrecmmt.

id. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the dtha party
shall be deemed (ohbve-becn duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage pr^id, in a United States
PoA pfTicc addressed to the parties ai the addresses given in
blocks i.2 and 1.4. herein.

f?. AfviENDMENT. This Agreement may be amovded. waived
or discharged only by an .instrtimerit in writing signed by (he
parties haeto and only aflcr -approval of such amendrrxnt,
waiva or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstenccs pursuant to Sute'law, rule or policy.

IB. CHOICE OP LAW AND P0RUIV1. This Agreement dial)
be governed, intapreted and consirved in ecoordonce vvith the
laws of the Suite of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the bericfit ofthe panics and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in (his Agreemmt is (he wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of mslhtction shall be'applied against or in favor of imy party.
Any actions arising oui of this Agreement shall .be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court wtiich shall ha^
exclusive jufisdictionthereor.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a ."conflkt

^wten ihe tarns of this P-37 form (as modified In EXHIBIT
A) end/or atuchmoiis and amendment (hereof, (he terms ofthe
P-37 (as modiHed in EXHIBfr A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not Intend to'
benc'hi any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. Theheadings'ihroughpui (he AgrecmMi ore
for refaence purposes only, and the words contained (herein
.^all in.no way be hdd to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the'
intcrprclatioh, constnictiPn or meaning of the previsions of this
AgrccrriMt. ,

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional -or modifying
provisions ui forth in ihe attachcd EXHIBIT A ere incorporstcd
hwein by reference.

13. 'SEVEkABILri"V. In ihe,evCTl.ony ofthe provisions of this
Agreemeni are.held by.a court of eompetcnt jirriidiction to be
'contrary to any (talc or federal law, the rci^ining provisions of
this Agrccniait will remain in fiill force end effect.

24., Effi'lRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be.
iuented in a nui^bcr ;of countcrpsrti, ea^'of which shall be
deemed an (viginal, consiitules the cmire agreement onci
undemanding bctsycien th'e, panic's, 'and supmedes all -prior
agreements and understandings with resf>ec( tothesutyect matter
haeof.
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New Hempehire Department of Health and Human Services
Special Medical Evaluation Services

EXHIBIT A

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.2, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is
- deleted In its entirety and replaced as follows;

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the Effective Date, all
Services performed by the Contractor prior to the Effective Date shall be
performed at the sole risk of the Contractor, and in the event that this
Agreement does not become effective, the State shall have no liability
to the Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay the '
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed. Contractor
must use reasonable efforts to complete all Services by the Completion
Date specified In block 1.7.

1.2. Paragraph 3. Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows;

3.3. ' The parlies may extend the Agreement for up to four (4) additional years j
from the Completion Dale, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of !

j  services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the j
Governor and Executive Council. !

1.3. Paragraph 7, Subparagraph 7.1, Personnel, is deleted in its entirety and
replaced as foDows:'

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide ail personnel necessary
to perform iHe Services. The Contractor certifies that all personnel

■  engaged In the Services shall be qualified to perform the Services, and
shall be properly licensed and otherwise aiithorlzed to do so under all
applicable laws.

1.4. Paragraph 9. Subparagraph 9.1. Termination, is amended to include the
following language:

9.1 Conlractor may terminate the Agreennent by providing the State with
thirty (30} days advance written notice if (he State fails to pay the undisputed
amount of any expense report submitted by Contractor pursuant to Exhibit C
within thirty (30) days after the date of the report: however, upon receipt of such
notification the State.has an additional twenty (20) days to make payment of
undisputed amounts to avoid termination.

1.5. Paragraph 9, Subparagraph 9.2. Termination, is deleted iri its entirety and is
replaced as follows:

9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for any reason other
than the completion of the Services, the Contractor shall, at the State's
discration, deliver to the Coritractirig Officer, not later than fifteen (15)

SS-2020-OCYF-1J-SP6CF01 EitfVM A • Re><ilorkS (oSlintfird Con(rKlPrp«<ilo<u Ccrti/adef tnBUlt
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Special Medical Evaluation Services

EXHIBIT A

days after the dale of lerminalion, a report (Termination Report')
describing In detail.all Services performed, and the contract price earned,
to and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,

.  content, and number , of copies of the. Termination Report shall be
Identical.to those of any Final Report described in the attached EXHIBIT
B,

1,6, Paragraph 12. Assignment/Deiegalipn/Sut^cpntracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as'follovys;

12,3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor Is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions, the Contractor shall have wfitteri
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's

^ performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall mariage. the
subcontractor's performance oh an ongoing basis and take corrective
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the State of any inadequate subcontractor performance:

.1.7. Paragraph 13. Indemnification, is deleted in its entirety and.replaced as follows;

13. CONTRACTOR LIABILITY. The Contractor is responsible and liable for
any personal injury or property damages caused by its. its employees,
agents.-cpntractors and subcontractors' action or omission.

1.8. Paragraph 14, Subparagraph 14.1.2, Insurance^ is deleted in its entirety and
repjacedas follows;

1.4.1.2. Professional liability insurance In the amourit of $1,000,000 per
occurrence and $3,00b.OOO per annual aggregate.

1.9. .Paragraph 14. Subparagraph 14.2, is dieted in its entirety and is replaced as
'follows; " .

14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be oh policy
forms and endorsements approved for use In the State of New
Hampshire by the N.H. Oepaftmenl of Insurance.

SS*202(>pCYF>1^SPECl:bl A • RvViions to Standard Cci^act PrcMilorii CpiWactor
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Special Medical Evaluation Services

EXHIBIT B

V  Scopgof Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor shall provide services in this agreement to the Department to
service children vrho are suspected victims of abuse or neglect.

1.2. The Contractor shall ensure services are available in multiple locations
throughout the state. .

1.3. For the purposes of this agreement, all references to days shall mean calendar
days.

1.4. For the purposes of this agreement, all references to business hours shall
mean Monday through Sunday, twenty four (24) hours per day.

1.5. Special Medical Evaluation Services

1.5.1. The Contractor shall provide on-call access 24 hours a day, seven (7)
days a week to the Department and other health care providers
including, but not limited to:

1.5.1.1. Pediatricians.

1.5.1.2. Emergency Room staff.

1.5.1.3. Family Care Doctors.

1.5.1.4. Medical providers who are treating a child with a suspicion of
abuse or neglect.

1.5^2. The Contractor shall evaluate children who are suspected victims of
abuse or neglect, ensuring:

1.5.2.1. Evaluations are conducted on both an inpatienl and
outpatient basis, as appropriate.

1.5.2.2. Professional guidance as to the severity or possible origin of
injuries is provided to the referral source.

1.5.3. The Contractor shall ensure on-call staff are experienced health care
professionals who are trained in, and can advise on. standardized
diagnostic methods, treatment, and disposition of suspected child
sexual abuse; physical abuse; or neglect.

1.5.4. The Contractor shall determine the level of the client's injuries and
coordinate client transfer or care , to the Children's Hospital at
Dartmouth (CHAD) or other medical facilities, as appropriate.

1.6.5. The Contractor shall complete an intake and referral form during the
initial contact with the provider, which includes, but Is not limited to:

1.5.5.1. Name of agency.

1.5.5.2. Patient name. .

SS-2020-DCYF.13-SPECI-01 Conlraclor IniUals
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Special Medical Evaluation Services

EXHIBITS

1.5.5.3. Patient date of birth.

1.5.5.4. Patient address.

1.5..5.S. Nature of child maltreatment, which may include, but Is not
limited to;

1.5.5.5.1. Physical abuse.

1.5.5.5.2. Sexual abuse.

1.5.5.5.3. Neglect.

1.5.5.5.4. Psychological/Emotional Abuse.

1.5.5.6. Brief history of concern.

1.5,5.7- Parent or guardian contact information.

1.5.5.8. Referral from the Division for Children. Youth and Families
(DCYF), or law enforcement.

1.5:6. The-Contractor shall provide information to non-DCYF callers relative
to filing a-report with the Oepadment, if appropriate, and document the
random intake number for the filed report.

1.5:7. The Contractor shall provide all assessment notes and documents,
relative to each encounter with the family, including phone, triage and
clihlcally follow-up information, within 24 hours of each encounter to
the Department to enable the Department to develop:

1.5.7.1, appropriate safety plan for each client; and

1.5.7.2. Further strategic planning in any occurrence in which a child
reQUires ongoing consultation or follow-up due to
hospitalization or extended need.

1:5.8. The Coritractor shall ensure ah'experienced heallh care professional
is avaiiabieio the Departmehl 24 hours per day, seven (7) days per
week by telephone Jto clarify any diagnostic Issues.

1.5.9. The Conlractor shall receive or initiale requests for hpspital-based
mulil-dlsciplinary team rneetings with ihe Departmehl and
subspecjallsts.

1.5.10. The.CpnlraCtor shall ensure.mulli-disciplinary team members include,
but a're.not limited to:

1.5.10.1. Department staff.

1.5/10.2. Law enforcement.

1.5.10.3. County attorney.

S"Sr202b-C)CYF-i3-SP6CFbl Conl/toor WtWs,

Memorld Hospital Page 2 ol 7 Data f? •* / 79-<>



DocuSign Envelope ID; 74FD520F-8EF9-4932-A532-2F3F836ADCO6

DocuSIgn Envelope ID: 18CD4FC9-66CF-42D5-92EF-CDAC6e629871

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Special Medical Evaluation Services

EXHIBIT B

1.5.11. The Conlractor shall ensure CAPP members provide medical <
testimonials in court per Department request. , . ' i

1.6. Medical Provider Peer Review Consultation

1.6.1'. The Corttractor shall laciiitate a peer review meeting to the Child
Advocacy and Protection Program (CAPP) medical provider network,
statewide. In order to present and receive guidance on active cases.

1.6.2. The Corttractor shall ensure peer review entities include, but are not
limited to:

1.6.2.1. New Hampshire Medical Provlders Peer Review.

1.6.2.2. New England Provider Medical Peer Review.

1.6.3. The Contractor shall ensure all nodical providers attend a minimum of
five (5) peer review sessions annually.

1.7. Training " * ,

1.7.1. The Contractor shall provide pre-service and In-service trainings to the
Department, as requested, on topics that include, but are not limited
to:

1.7.1.1. Child abuse and neglect.

1.7.1.2. Psychological and emotional abuse.

1.7.1.3. Physical abuse training that includes, but is not limited to;

1.7.1.3.1. Abusive skin Injuries and fractures.

_ 1.7.1.3.2. Types of abusive head trauma.

1.7.'1.3.3. Abusive internal organ and burn injuries.

1.7.1.3.4. History and categories of child abuse and |
neglect.

1.7.1.3.5. CAPP Services.

1.7.1.3.6. How CAPP services can provide guidance to
Department and medical providers.

1.7.1.3.7. Diagnostic approach and diagnostic work up
protocols to child abuse and neglect.

1.7.1.3.8. Signs and indicators of neglect, sexual, physical
'  and psychological abuse.

1.7.1.3.9. Photo documentation.

1.7.2. The Contractor shall ensure nurse and child protective service worker
professionals receive pre-service and in-service training on topics that
include, but are not limited to:

SS-202DOCYF-13-SPECI-01 ConUoclor InllialB
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-1.7.2.1. Standardized diagnostic methods.

1.7/2.2. Foljow up treatment needs.

1.7.2.3. Medical disposition pf child abuse and rieglect diagnosis.
2. Exhibits Incorporated

2:1. The Contractor shall.use and dladose Protected Health Information in compliance
with the Standards for Privacy of Individually identifiable Health Information
(Privacy Rule) (45CFR Parts 160 and 184) under the Health Insurance Portability
and Accourtlability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in accordance with the attached
Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor shajl manage all confidential data related to this Agreement In
accordance with the tern^ of Exhibit K. OHMS Inforfinallon Security Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits 0 through, K. virhlch are attached
hereto and.incorporated by reference herein.

3. Reporting Requlrementa

3.1. The Contractor shall providequarterty reporls to the Department within fifteen (15)
days following the end of the quarter, ensuring reports include,, but are not limited
to:

3.1.1. Number of calls to CAPP.

3.1.2. Nurnber of ca^s referred to CAPP by the Depariment and evaluated for
special medicalservices.

3.1.3. NumVer of record reviews conducted for the Department by CAPP.

3.1.4. Number of court appearances by"CAPP members.

3.1 ;5. Nurnber of mOlti-disclplinaiy :team 'meetings 'atteinded by GAf^P rheinbiefs,
including but not limited to: • '

3.1.5:1. Cburity based multi-disciplinary case reviews.

3,1 .,5.2. Hospital-based mulll-disclplinary Interagency .case review.

3.1.6. Number pf trainings provided to the Department.

3.1.7. Annual number and duration of trainings provided to (he Departrnent staff
by CAPP.

3.1.8. Annual nurnber .of over-the-phone consultations provided to the
bepartment:

4. .Perfphfhance (Measures

4.1. The Deparlmerlt will rhohitor Contractor performance based on.theroutcomes that
Include, but are hot limited to:

SS-202(VDCYF-13-SPECK)t CohlrscJdf Iniliaift
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4.1.1. 90% of all clients will be conlacled and offered a family appointment within
ten (10) days of CAPP receiving the referral from DCYF.

4.1.2. 80% of all cases referred to CAPP by the Department will have received a
completed evaluation and assessmeni within two (2) months of the referral
from DCYF If family agrees to the CAPP evaluation.

4.1.3; 10% increase in medical providers recruited to be CAPP consultants
annually. ' ^

4.1.4. 100% of medical providers participate in a minimum of five (5) peer review
sessions annually.

4.2. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery and
policy based on successful outcomes.

4.3. The/Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics, to the
Department, including ciient-level demographic, performance, and service data.

4.4. Where applicable, the Contractor shall collect and share data with the Department
in a format specified by the Oepartmenl.

5. Additional Terms

5.1. Irhpacta Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

5.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an Impact on the Services
•described herein, the Slate has.the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requiremenls under this Agreement so as to achieve
conripliance therewith. .

5.2. Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services (CLAS)

5.2.1. The Contractor shall submit and comply with a detailed description of
the language assistance services they will provide to persons with

.  limited English proficiency and/or hearing impairment to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10)
days of the contract effective date.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases; research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the, performance of the
services of the Contract shall include the following statement, 'The

■preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under .a
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services."

SS*2020-OCYF'l J*SP£CI-01 Conlrador-lnilials
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5.3.2. ' The Contractor shall not reproduce any.materials produced under the
contract without prior written approval from the Department.

6. Force Majeure

6.1.1. Any delays in performance by a party under the contract shall not be
considered a breach of (he contract if and to the extent caused by
occurrences beyond the reasonable control of the party affected; acts

of God. embargoes, governmental restrictions, strikes, pandemics, |
Tire, earthquake, flood, explosion, riots, wars, civil disorder, rebellion,
or sabotage. The party suffering such occurrence shall immediately
notify the other party of the occurrence of the Force Majeure event (in
reasonable detail) and the expected duration of the event's effect on ■

the party. A disruption In a party's performance due to Force Majeure !
extending beyond a stated period may be the cause for termination of
the Contract at the sole discretion of the State. The State reserves the

right to extend any time for performance by the actual time of the.
delay caused by the occurrence, provided that the party affected by !
the event uses reasonable efforts to overcome such delay.
Notwithstanding anything In this provision. Force Majeure shall not >
Include the novel coronavirus COVID-19 pandemic, which Is ongoing •
as of the date of the execution of this Contract. In the event that the {
Contractor's performance under the conVact may be delayed due to
a supply chain-disruption or shortage and/or other similar occurrences ,
completely outside of Contractor's control, the Contractor must notify j
the State of such delay and the State, at its sole discretion, may {
modify the delivery of services due to the circumstances. Said i
discretion on the part of the State to modify the delivery of services ,
will not t)e unreasonably withheld, delayed, or conditioned.

7. Records

7.1. The Contractor sliall keep records that Include, but are hot limited to:

7.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data •
evidencing and reflecting ail costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all Income received
or collected.by the Contractor.

7.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting |
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such I
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Deparlment. and
to Include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original ;
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor time cards, payrolls, arid other records requested or required by
the Department., j

SS-2020-OCYF-13-SPECI-01 Contractor IrviHals
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7.1.3. Statistical; enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records shajl include all records of Application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of senrices and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payrnenl vfor such
"services.

7.1.4. Medical rerards on each patient/recipient of services,

7.2. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hercunder. the
Departrhent. the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have acceiss to all reports and
records maintained pursuarit to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination,
excerpts arid transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maxirhurh.'riumberof units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of
the price lirriitation hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of (he parties
hereurKier (except such obligations as, by the terras of the Contract are to be
performed after the end of the terrn of this Contract and/or survive the
termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that If. upon
review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any
expenses'claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall
retain (he right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are
disallowed of to recover such sums from the Contractor.

SS-2020^0CyF,1^PECl-01 Conlr^or Irdliels .
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1

Frocedyre

Code Description Current Rate

2 9920S OKkie/outpatlent visit new 563.14
3 .  99211 Established patient office or other outpatient visit, typically 5 minutes $15.91
4 99212 Established patient office or other outpatient visit; typlcaity'lO minutes $32.05 .
S 99213 Established patient office or other outpatient visit, typlcaily 15 minutes $44.04.
6 99214 Established patient office or other outpatient, visit typically 25 minutes $67.83
7 .  99215 Established patient offke or other outpatient; visit typically 40 minutes $77.37
6 99245 Patient office consultation, typically 80 minutes $117.78

9 99285 Emergency depailment visit; problem with significant throat to life or funalon $97.00

10 99223 Initial hospital.inpatient care, typically 70 minutes per day $115.47
11 99255 Inpatlent hospital consultation, typically 110 minutes $117.78

12 99170

Examination of genltaj and anal region of child usjng an endoscope, suspected
trauma $84.26

13 993S4 Prolonged office or other outpatient service first hour S62.35

14 99356

PROLONGED SERVICE IN THE INPATlENT.OR OSSERVATIGN SFTTING.
REQUIRING UNIT/FiOOR TIME BEYOND THE USUAL SERVICE; FIRST HOUR'(LIST
SEPARATELY IN ADDITION TO CODE FOR INPATlENT EVALUATION AND

MANAGEMENT SERVICE) $57.74

is 99357

PROLONGED SERVICE If^ JHE IMPATIENT OR QBSERVATION SETTING,

REQUIRING UNIT/FLOOR TIME BEYOND THE USUAL S£RVIC£;.EACH

ADOlTlpNAL 30 MINUTES (LIST SEPARATELY IN ADDITION TO CODE FOR ,

PROLONGED SERVICE) $57.74

16 99359

PROLONGED EVALUATION AND MANAGEMENT SERVICE BEFORE ANO/QR.

AFTER OIREa PATIEf>IT CARE; EACH ADDITIONAL 30 hllNUTES (LIST "
SEPARATELY IN ADDITION TO CODE FOR.PRQLONGEO SERVICE) $27.72

M«/Y Hli{tKOdi Metnoftil KoipXti.
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Payment Terms

1. This Agreemenlis funded by;

1.1. 20%. This conlract is funded wilh funds from the Foster Care Program, Title IV-
E. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) fil93.658. Federal Award
Identification Number (FAIN) «2001 NHFOST and Medicaid.

1.2. 80% General funds.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement:

2.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a Contractor, in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

2.2. The de mlnimis Indirect Cos! Rate of 10% applies in accordance wilh 2
CFR §200.414.

2.3. The Department has identified this Contract as NON-R&O. in
accordance with 2 CFR §200.87.

2.4. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance
with the approved line item, as specified in Exhibits C-1, and 0*2 Budget
Sheets.

3. The Contractor shall submit an Invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the
fifteenth (15lh) working day of the following the end of the quarter, which
identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the
prior month. The Contractor shall ensure the Invoice is completed, dated and
returned to the department in order to Initiate payment.

4. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic'signature and
emailed to DCYFInVoices@dhhs.nh.gov. or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

4.1.The Contractor shall bill the appropriate funding sources in accordance with
standard billing procedures in both NH Medicaid and DCYF. The Contractor
shall submit NH Medicaid expenses via the Website below:

httDS:/Awww.nhmmis.nh.Qov

4.2. Non-clinical DCYF services

4.2.1. The Contractor shall submit non-clinical expenses via the Website
.  below:

hltDs://business.nh.QOv/beb/DaQes/index.aspx

MefyMitchc^^McmoriolKDSpitot EiWbUC Corttsdoi
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5. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt
of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if
sufficient funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General Provisions
Form Number P-37 of this Agreement.

6. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the
contract completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

7. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit 6. Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

8. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in
whole or in part In the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions
of Exhibit B, Scope of Services.

9. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or In part, in the event
of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable
to the services provided, or if the said services or products have not been
satisfactorily completed In accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.

10. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between Slate Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office rr^ay be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

11.Audits

11.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department
if any of the following conditions exist;

11.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more In
federal funds received as a subreclpient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200. during the most recently completed fiscal year.

11.1.2. Condition B • The Contractor Is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:26, llt-b. pertaining to charitable
organizalicns receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

11.1.3. Condition C • The Contractor Is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

11.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accpuntant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor'sJl^caJ

M6<v Hiic'iOOCX Memortd.HoftptUil EtfVbtiC C«Mi»ctorinibU.
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11.3.

11.4.

year, conducted in accordance wilh the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200, Subpart F of the Unlfonm Administrative Requirements, Cost
Pfindples, arid Audit Requirements for Federal awards.
If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
anriua) financial audit perlorrhed by an Independent CPA within 120
days afler the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it Is underslood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

Mary HilchcocX Memorld Hospital
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CERTIFICAXION REGARDING DRUG^REE WORKPLACE ReQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Oivg-free.Woflrplece Ad of 1966 (Pub! L. 100490. Title V. Subtitle 0:41.
U.S.C. 701 el sied.). end further agrees to have the Contractor'& representative, as identified in Sections
1.1.1 and 1.12,of:V^jGeneral Proytslohs'execute the folIowing'CertiTtcalion;

ALTERNATIVE t - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVlpUALS

US Department OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
tJS DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATiON • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This cedlficatio'n Is required by the regulations Implerhditlng Sections 5151-5160 of the Dn/g-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 <Pub. L. 100-690. title V. SubliUe 0; 41 O.S.C. 701 et seq.)! The January 31.
1989 regulations were amehded'arid published as Part ll of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21661-21691), and require certificelion by grantees (and by Inference, sub-grantees end sub- ;
contractors), priof to'award, that they will maintain e drug-free workplace. Sectioh 3017.63p.(c) of the ;
regulation provides that a grantee (and by Inference, sub-grantees and 8ub<ontrector$) that Is a'State
may.elect to maHe orie certincatlon to.the DoportnierU in each.federal fisui year jp tieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by ̂ e ceilification. The certlTicaie set out below Is a
material rep'resenlatlon of fad upon which reliance Is placed when the agency awards the .grant: False ;
certification or vioialicm of the certification shall bo grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or |
terrhlnatlori of grants. or govemmerit wide suspension ordabarment. Contractors using this form should i
send it to; ' ' I... . . ^ I

Cqmrrilssioner \
NH Department of Health and Human Services
l29.Pledsant Street.
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The.granlee certifies that 1t will or will continue to provide a drug-free woHtplace by:
T.I. Publishing a slatemenl.nptlfytng employees that the uritawful manufacture, distribution,

;dispenslng, possession or use of a conlroDed substanca.is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace; and specifying (he actions that will.b'e taken against erripto'yee.s for violation of such
.prohibition;

i;2. Establishing ari ongplng'drOg-frea owareness program to Inform'employees about
'1:2.1. Tfte dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy ot rnalnlainlrSg a/drug^free .wdtkpla'ce:
1.2.3. Any available drug counsoling, rohabiliialion, and employee assistance programs;; and
1.2.4., The^penattias that may be impost upon employees for.'drug abuse violation's

occurring In the workplace;
1.3: Makifig It erequlretfient that each''employee to be engaged In the performance of (he grant be

given a copy of the statement required by pari^raph (b);
1.4. Notifying the''ettipioyee'ln the^stbtemeinl required by paragraph (o) that, as a condition of

lemptoyment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Al>ld6 by the terms of the 8tbtcrnenl;'and '
1.4.2. Noli^ the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a viotetion of a criminal drug

Btatuteoccuning'in the workplacenp. later than flye calendar days after sucli
conviction;

1:5: Notifying the pgehcy In wril'mg,.wilhiri ten calendar .days.Bherreceivlng nDt')ce 'ur)der
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of cohvlded.orriployees rhiiBl provide.notice, including p'osHicin title, to every grant
officer on y^os.e^grenf activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency .

CU(MQ/1t07l> p«9«iof2

Exhlttl D - CeniflcaUon ropinlJng Drug Free Vendor Intthlj ̂



OocuSign Envelope ID: 74FD520F-8EF9-4932-A532-2F3F836ADCD6

.OocuSIgh Envelope 10: l8C04FCe-B6CF^205-92EF-CpAC86629871

N«w Hampshire Dopartmont of Haatlh ond Human Services
Exhibit b

has designated a central point for the receipt of such n<^ices. Nottee shall include the
■ldan1iflC8tlon'number(8) of »ch eKectisd grefit;

1.6. Taking one of (he following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
•subparegmph 1.4.2, with resp^t to any employee who Is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking approprtate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

lermlnaUon, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. as
amended; Of

1.6.2. Requiring such emptoyee to partkipalo satisfactonly in p dnjg obuso ossistanca or
rehabilitation program epproyed for such purposes by a Federal, Stale, or local health,
taw enforcement, or .other epprbpriate agency;

1.7. -Making 8 good faith effbrl to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implemontaUon of paragraphs T.l. 1.3.1.3.1.4, l.is, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may inserl'ln the space provided below the Blte(s) for the performance of work.dohe in
connecltonyoth the, BP!^r« gre^

Place of Perfprmancejst/ee.t address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

/

Check □ tf.there.are workptaces'on file that are not Identified hare.

Vendor Name:

'OtrTo /a*<uxjCLC/'r*^
Dale Name: Susari A. Reeves. EdD, RN

Title:- Executive Vice Presideril

cuwoenioro P®g#2o(2

"exNW O - CcrtlfWiBUon legitClnQ Drug Ftte Vei^Of WlUlj
WorkplicaRcqjrcmwiJ: f'J .i/n

Pm#2oI2 Oflla I "
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING |

The Vendor idenlilied in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions egroes to comply with the provisions of '
Section 319 of Public Low 101-121, Governmeni wide Guidance for New RestrictionB on Lobbying, end . i
31 U.S.C. 1352, and furtheragrees to have the Contractor's representative, es identihed in Sections 1.11 !
end 1.12 of the General Provisions execute (he loilowing Certificaiion: ' I

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES-CONTRACTORS i
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS |

Programs (tndicele applleebie progrom covered): . ■ j
Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Tills IV-A I
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Tilfe IV-0 ' j
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Mediceld Program under Title XIX ;
'Community Services Block Grant under title VI ;
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the bbst of his or her Knowledge and belief, (hat: ' •

.1. No Federal appropriated funds have been pakf or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, lo ^
any person for Influencing or attempting to influence en officer or employee of any egency, a Meml>er j
cfCorigress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in - !

' connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or '
modifrcation of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific n>entlon
sub-grantee or aub-conl/ector). !

2. If any funds other than Federal eppropriaied funds have been paid or win be paid to any person for i
Influencing or attempting to influence en cfftcer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, >
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Cot^ress In connection wilh this |
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or 8ut>- j
contractor), the undersigned ehall complete and submit Standard Form LLL. (Disclosure Form to 1
Report Lobbying, In accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

'3. The undersigned shall require'lhai the language of (his certlficalion be Included Ir) the award
document for sub-awards at'all tiers (including subcoritracts, sub-grants, end contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements), and (hat all sub-recipients shall cerllfy end disclose accordingly. |

This cedification is □ material representation of fact upon which reliance was ptaded when this transaction' |
was made or entered into. Submission of this certlficalion is a prerequisite for making or entering into this {
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required I
cenificetion shall l>6 subject to a civil penally of not less than $10,000 end nol more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name:

Date Name: Susan A. Reeves, EdD. RN
Title: Executive Vice President

EtflUi E - CffllBcsUon ReoonPng LoMrjitio Vendor Mllelt.

cucwsnteiil PagDiNI Oslo.
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CERTIFICATION REQARDIHQ DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor Identilied In Section 1.3 of (he General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Oebarmenl.
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Mailers, end further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Coftincation: .

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTlFICATtON
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant Is providing the

certiricalion setout t>elow.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certificalion required below will not necessarily result In dental
of participation In this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an

-  explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certincatlon or explanetion will be
considered In connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
delerminalion whether to enter Into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a cerlincalion or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this trahsaction.

3. The cerlificetion In this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS deiermined to enter into this transaction. If it Is later determined that the prospective
prtmary particlpani knowingly rendered en erroneous certificelbn, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary pertlcipant shall provide Immediate written nollce to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at eny time the prospective primary participant learns
thai its ceftificalion was errorteous when submitled or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered trensection.' 'debarred.' 'suspended,' 'ineligible,* 'tower tier covered
■ transaction.* 'participant,* 'person,* "primary covered Iranseclion.' 'principel,* 'proposal,* and
'voluntarily excluded,' as used in this clause, have the meanings set cut In the Dertnilions end
■Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549; 45 CFR Part 76. See the
ettached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not Knowingly enter into eny lower tier covered
transaction with a person who Is debarred, suspended, declared.inoligibte. or voluntarily excluded
from participation in (his covered transaction, unless eulhbrUed by DHHS.

7. The prcspecllvo primary participant further agrees by submlttir>g this propose) that it wfll indudo the
clause tilled 'Certrficalion Regarding Oebarmenl. Suspension. Inetigibility end Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions.' provided by OHMS, without modification, tn all lower tier covered
transactions and In el) solicllations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participani In a covered transaction may rely upon a certificeUon of a prospectivo partldpanl in a
lower tier covered transaction that it Is not debarred, susperided, Ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered.transaction, unless it knov/s that (ha certification Is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which II determines the eligibility of Its principals.. Each
participant may. but is not required lo, check the Nohprocuremeni List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothir>g contained In the foregoing shaJI be construed to require establishment of a system of records
In order to render in good faith the certificetion required by this clause. The knowledge ar>d

Emttill F - Ccflincjtlon Regsitflng DotMumenl. Sutpsnsktn Vendor InlUab
And Other Respemlbdity MiUeri O rrt nao«ariiom PegciefJ Pete ^^1 ("/Q/P
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Information of s participant is not required to exceed that which Is normally possessed by a prxKJent
person In the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. ̂ cepl for transactions authoraed under paragraph 6 of these Instructions. If eparticipanl In a I
covered transaction knowingly enters Into a tower tier covered transactten with a person who Is «
suspended. det>arrad, Ineligible, or volunlartly exctuded from particlpalton In this transactton. In *
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government. OHHS may terminate this transaction '
for cause or default. j

I

PRIMARY COVERED transactions .1
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge end belief, that it and its •

principals; 1
11.1. arenotpresenllydebarred. suspended, proposed for debarment.'declared ineligible, or !

voluntarily excJuded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have r»t wilhin a Ihree^year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convtded of or had

a cKriJ judgment rendered against them for commlsston of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection v^h obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a pubBc (Federal, State or local) !
trensacUonoir a contract under a pubGc transaction; violation of Federal or Slate aniitnjst !
statutes or commlsston of embezzlement; theft, forgery, bribery, falsincalion or ctostructlon of I
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; I

11.3. ore not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or ctviUy charged by'o goverrvnenlal entity !
(Federal. State or loca)) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; end

11.4. have not wilhin a threo-yoar period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Fbderal. Slate or local) termlnaled for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective prfmery participant Is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certiflcelton, such prospective participenl shall ellach an explansllon to this propose! (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS " '
13. Bysigning end submHlIng Ihb tower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as ;

defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the bast of its knowledge and befief that It and Its princlpets: ;
.13.1. are not presenliy debarred, suspertoed. proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or I

volunlailiy axdudod from participation in this Iransaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposel (contract}. !

14, The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposel (contract) that it will
tncludo this clause entitled 'Cortification Regarding Debarment. Suspension. Inellglbllily. and
Voiuntary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered Transactions,* without modification In all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for tower tier covered iransactions.

Vendor Name;

Name; 'Susan A. Reaves. EdD, RN
Executive Vice Presldonl

P - Cenirc<don Regudlno 0«barmenl. Susperulon Vendor bilUtli M!kr
And Otncr RcjponjWWy Mstien
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONOISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTHCTIONS

The Vendor idenlifted in Section 1.3 of the GenersI Provisions agrees by signature of the Cortlractor's
representative as Identified In Sections 1.11 end .1.12 of the General Provisior^s. to execute the foUovnng
certlTtcotlon:.

Vendor will comply, and wOl require any lubgrantees or subcontractors to comply,.with any apptlcabie
-federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include;

- the Omnibus Crirr>o Control-end Safe Streets Act of 1988 (42 U.S.C. Section 37e9d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this eleluto from discriminating, either In employment practices or In
the delivery of senrices or benefils, on the basis of race, color, retigion, national origin, end sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce en Equal Employment Opportuniiy Plan;

• the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention ̂  of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the ctvil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employmeni practices or in the delivery of services or
benefils. on the basis of race, color, raliglon. nalional origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

• the Civfl Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prDhibits recipients of fodoral financial
esslstonce from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or r^ational origin.in any program or ectrvity); '

- the RehablSlation Ac! of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits r^plenls of Federal financial
assistance from dlscriminelir>g on (he basis of disability, in regard io employment end (he delivery of
services or benefits, In any program or activily;

•the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34}, which prohibits
dtscrimlnalion and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disebililies in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, end transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1581.1683,1665-86), which prohibits
disciimir>ation on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

• the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on ihe
basis of age in progrenis or activilles receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
' employment discrimination;

. 28 C.F.R. pi. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pi. 42
(U.S; Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimtnation; Equal Employmeni Opportuniiy; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the taws for faith-based and community
orgonizatioris); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making,
criteria for partnerships with foilh-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pi. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regublions - Equal TrealmenI for Failh-Bascd
Organizatrons); and Whlsllablower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2,2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whisllebtower Protectior\3. which protects employees ogoinsl
r^rlsat for certain whistle bloi^ng activities in conneclion with federal granis end contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certincation. or vblation'of the cortificelion shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or lerminailon of granis. or government wide suspension or
dobarmcnt.

ExNbhG
Vendor InUta!*

rmnMffFVtvOcMdOpvlulani'
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In IM event a Federal or State ciotiil or Federal or Stale odrntntstrative egerKy makes a ftrxllng of
discdmlnotlon after a dut) prc^ss hearing on the pounds of rece. color, religion, national origin, or sex
egalnat e redpler^t of funds, the reciplehl wtil forward o copy of the. finding to the Office for CtviJ RIghte.-to
the eppRcabie.contracting agency or dh/fsion wllhln-the Depaitrr\ent of Health and Human Servtceti ond
to itM Depertrnent of Healih end Human Servicee Otllca of the Ombudsman.

the Vendor Uentifted tn Sectlori 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor'fl
.representative as iderdined In Sections 1.11'and i.i2of ine General Pnsyteions. to .execute the lowing
certlflcotlon:

,1. 8y signing afKl^submlUIng thb proposiBl.(cpniract) the Vendor egren^ip comply with the provisions
Indicated obovo.

Vendor Name:

Oata i^ame: Susan a. Reeves. Edo. RM
THIe: Executive Vice Preeldent

ExhlMO
Vendor ihniiJi

'CmUciJmU Ca«(SM4 itft pwuMv NeneMMutwv Csnl r<Nlfi«nl« rdXSiMe OsvbriMM
: (Id VAMWkM «)«((•»•'
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227. Part C • Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as Ihe Pro-ChiWren Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permilied In any portion of any Indoor faoTrly owned or leased or
conlrected for by en entity end used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 16. If the services ore funded by Federal programs either'
directly or through Slate or local govemments. by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to chBdren's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicakj funds, end portions of lociCties used for inpatiant drug or alcohol Ireatmenl. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result In the Imposition of a dvO monetary penalty of up to
91000 per doy ond/or Ihe Imposition of en admtnlslraliva compliance order on (ho responsible entity.

The Vendor fdentifted in Section 1.3 of the'General Provislorts agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
ropresentolive asWenlified In Section l.ll and l.i2of the General Provisions, to execute the following
.certtflcalion:

1. By s^nlng and'submilting this contract; Ihe Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
ell appncabte provisions of Public Lew 103-227, Parl C. krxwn as the Prr^Children Act of 1994.

Vendor Name:

"kilo
Name: Susan A. Reeves. EdD. RN
Title: Executive Vice President

EjCVbli H - CertiTicalion Rc^ardlno Ver^dor InlUsb
envfrorvnancal ToSaeco Smoka r, -i n _

CucirtcnwriJ PfBHofi pjia \ " jO Kj
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Corttfdctor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
.comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Lew 104>191 end
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information. 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, 'Business
Associate' shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agerUs of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and 'Covered
Entity' shall mean the Stale of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach* in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate* has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
. of Federal Regulations. '

c. Covered Entity' has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Designated Record Set'shall have the sarne meaning as the term "designated record set* •
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

c. 'Data AaQfeoation* shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation' In 45 CFR
Section 164.501-.

f. 'Health Care Operations' shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations'
in45CFRSection 164.501.

9- 'HITEGH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle Oi Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. 'HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 4.5 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. 'IndivlduaP shall have the same meaning as the term 'individual' in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall Include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

(

'Privacy Rule* shall mean the Standards for Privacy of.lndivlduaDy Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160'and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services..

k. 'Protected Health Information* shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
Information' In 45 CFR Section 160.103. limited to the Information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

VtOK ExMMl ConMdoiNfltil_y__
Keilih Insu/tnca PonsbOiy Ad
Bu»lrtcj»Ajtod«l«^recmeM *7 - 1/)

PaQfrlofe DHa l i t ^



DocuSign Envelope ID: 74FD520F-8EF9-4932-A532-2F3F836ADCD6

OpcuSigri Envelope IO:.18C04FCe-B6CF^2p5t92EF-CpACe662987l

Now Hampshire Oepaitrhent of Health and Human Services.

Exhibit I

I. "Required bv Law* sheil.have the aame meaning as the,term "required by.lawMn 45 CFR
Section 164-fQi-

m. 'Secretaiv'shall mean the Secretary of ihe Department 01 Health and Human Services or
'his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule* shall mean the Security Standards for the'Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at'45 CFR Part 1.64. Subparl C, ar>d arhendrnehts thereto.

o. 'tJnsecured Protected Health Information' means protected health information'that Is not
.secur^ by a technology standard that renders, protected heallh informaiion uriusabte,
unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and Is developed or endorsed by '
a standards developing organization (hat is accredited by'the.American National Standards

■  Institute.

p. Other Deftntiions - Ajl terrns.ndt olherwise'defined-herein shall have the meaning
established under 45j,C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164. as amended from time to time, and the
hitech'
Act.

(2) Btialness AasOclate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information:

a! Business Associate,shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Heallh
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the aeivices outlined^ under
E)^ibil A of the Agreement., Further, Business Associate, Including but not iimited to .all '
its directors, officers, erhployees and.agents. shall not use, disdose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any mariner^.ihat would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b.. Business Associate may use or disdose PHI:
I. . :For the proper mariagement and administration of the Busiriess Associate;
II. As required by law. pursuant to the terms.set^foith in paragraph d. bdow; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for'the.hodith care operatibris of Covered

Entity.

c. . To the extent Business Associate is perrnlited under the Agreement to disclbse PHI to a
third party,; Busjhess Associate must obtain, prior itd making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances.fromjhe third party that such PHI will be held connderitialty'arid
used or further disclosed .only as required by law or ifdr the purpose.'for Which it was
disclosed to the third parly; and (ii) an agreernenl from such third party to notify Business
Assodale, In accordance, .vyith the HIPAA Privacy; Security, and Breach Nolificallpn
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent It has obtain^
knowledge of euch breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide service's under-Exhibit A.of the Agreement, disclose any.PHI Irtresponse to a

..request for disclosure on the basis, lhat' l| is required by law, wilhput^firsi npiifying
Covered Entity so lhat Covered Enilty has an ppportunily to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. .If Covered Entity objecis to such disclosure; the Business

.^014 EXtilbtll Contraaor IHdtIi.
HeidlMmuiance PcirtablOiy Act ^
awjlfteuAjioclale Acreemeni Q - 70

P«90 2 or ft 0*tc " I '



DocuSign Envelope ID: 74FD520F-8EF9-4932-A532-2F3F836ADCD6

DocuSign Envelope 10: l8C04FC9-B6CF-426&-92EFrCbACe6629d7t

Now Hampshire Oopartrnent of Health and Human ̂rvices

Exhibit I

Associate shall refrain frorn disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
- rernedies.:

e. If the Covered Entity notiriies the Business Associate that'Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant (b the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by .such additional restrictions'and shall .not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards. \

(3) " Obllqattona and Actlvltloa of Business Aaeoclaite.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer Immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any.use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreerhent including breaches of unsecured
protected health Information and/or any security [nddent that may.have an.imjpact on the
protected health information of the Covered. Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall Include, but not be
limited to;

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including'the'
types of Identiners and the. likelihood of re-identincation;

o The unauthorized persort used the protected health information or to whonri the
disclosure was made;

6 Whether (tie protected heallh information was actually acquired or viewed
o. The extent to .which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated;

The Business Associate shall complete (he risk assessment within; .five (5)
buisiriess^ da'ys of ;the breach arid immediately report the findings of the risk

)  assessmentin.wfillrig to the Covered Entity.'

;c. The Budness Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
'Breach Notification Rule.

.d. Business Associate shall 'make available-all of ils'iriterhal policies arid procedures, books
end records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf oTCovered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Ehtily's compliance with HIPAA and (he Privacy arid
Security Rule,

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associatesjhat receive; use or have
access to PHI.under the Agreerrient, to agree In writing to adhere.to (he.same
reslrictibri's arid .conditidns on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein.-Including,
•the duly to returri or destroy the.PHl as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a djrecl third party berienciary of the Contractor's business associate
agre.e'iments with Gpntractqr's Intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI
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pursuant (o this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such .
business associates who shall be governed by standard.Paragraph 013 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, bboXs, agreernents, policies and procedures relating to use end disclosure'
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Cov^ered Entity to determine
Business.Asso.clate's compliance wllh the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request froiri Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Desigriated Record Set to.lhe
Covered Entity, er as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to rheet the
fequirements'under^S CFR Section,i64.524. . •

h. Within.ten (10) business days of receiving, a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI. or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set,
t.he Business Associate shall malte such PHI available to Covered Entity for amendment
and Incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fuiriil its obligations
under.45CFRSection 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to

such disclosures.es would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request t>y an
individual for an accouriting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164,528.

j. Wthin ten (10) business days of recelvirvg a written requ.est from Covered Entity (or. a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make-available

-  to Covered Entity such information as.Covered Entity rhay require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting^of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance wllh 45 CFR
SecUon 164.528.

k. In the event.'any iridividuai requests access to. amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, (he Business Associate shall within five '(5)

-  business days forvyard such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entiiy shall have the
responsibility of res'pondirig to forwarded requests. However. If forwarding the'
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business'
Associate .to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to (he ihdividual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. .Within ten (10) business days of lermihation of the Agreement, for any reason, (he
Business' Asisociate shall return or destroy, as specilled by Covered Entity, atl PHI.
received from, or created or received.by Ihe Business Asspclatejri cdnneCtioh with the
Agreement, end shall hot retain ariy'coples or back-up tapes.of such PHI.' |f return or
deslructiori is not feasible, of the disposition of the PHI has beeri, otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI, and limit further uses arid disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return ordeslruciion Infeasibie, for so long as Business --
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in Its sole discretion, requires that the
•Business Associate destroy any or all PHi, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Qbllaatlons of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or {imitalion(s) In its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to Individuals In accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to (he extent that such change or limitation may effect Business Associate's

- use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes In, or revocation
of permission provid^ to Covered Entity by Individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Sectlon 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance, with 45 CFR 164.522,
to (he extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(6) Termination for Cause '

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreenf\ent the Covered Entity may Immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either Immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the

' alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered EnUty
determines that neither termination nor cure Is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

8. Definitions.and ReQulatorv References. All terms used, but not olhenvise defined herein.
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to Include this Exhibit I. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity ar>d Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend'the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, (he Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The,Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHi provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretaliori. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HiPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.
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SMfflQBtlQfi. If eny term or condition of this ExKlbjl I or the .application thereof to any
pefsori(s) or circumstanoe Is held invalid, such invalidity aha!) not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given affect vrllhoui the Invalid term or condition: to this .end (he
tenns end conditions of this Exhibit I ere declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI. •jdenslone ot the protections of the Agreement In section (3) I. the
defense end. Indemnification ̂ ovlslooa'of sectli^ (3) e and Peregraph 13 of the
ctondord torms and conditions (P*37), shall eurvtva the termination of tho Agreerhent. .

IN WTNESS WHEREOF, the. parties hereto heve duly executed this Exhibit I.

bepdrtment of Health end Human Services Wary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital
Namoofthe ContractorThe Slat

Slgnatu^f <|^i^d(^d RepresentBUye
.Jose^ E. Ribsariii. Jr:
Narne o( Aulhorbed Representative

Director, DCYF

Title of Authorized Representative

I/fiW ̂
Date'

VtOM

Signature of Authorized Representative

Susan A. Reeves, EdO, RN

Name of Authorized Representative

Executive Vice President

Title of Authorized Representatrve

9-17'
Date

ExNbni-

He«fih Irwirvcs PoftitCKir Act
But^u.Atiteclal* AcrMfflvnl

Pigt'SelS

Cohbadv
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C[A 1



DocuSign Envelope ID: 74FD520F-8EF9-4932-A532-2F3F836ADCD6

•DocuSign Envelope ID: 18CD4FCe-B6CF^205-92EF-CDAC8862987i

Now Hompohiro Oopartmoni of Hoolth end Human Sorvtcoa
Exhibit J

CpRT{F(CAT10N REQARDINQ THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCQUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY:
■act tFFATAt COMPLIANCE '

Th« Federal Funding AccM.ntebllity and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardcea of IndMdual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October l 2010 to report on
date related to executjve.comperisalion artd ae^atefd fl rsi^jar sub-granta ol $25,000 or moro. If the
Initial Bwrard is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modiricattons result In a total oward equal to or over
$25,000. tto ^rd Is wb/«'l,to the FFATA mpprtlnfl requiremento, as of the date of the award.

.  In eccordance with 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subawan) and Executive Compensation Informellon) the
.Peparbneril of Health end I4uman Scryices (OHHS) must.repon the following Infofmetion for any
:6ub8W8rd or contract avirard subject to the FFATA reporting requirerhents: '
1. Name of entity
2: Amount of award
'3. Funding agency
4. NAICS codo-for contracts / CFDA prograrn number for grants

.5. Program source" '
6. iAward UUe descriptive of the ^rpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
6. Principle piaoe-of performarvce'
-9. tlnlque fdanlifler of (he enUty (OUNS 0)
10. Total compensation and narnes of the top five executives

lp.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues ere from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M'annually and10.1 CompensaUpn Information Is, not already avadabte through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grent recipients musl.8ubrnil FFATA required data by the end of the month", plus 30 days In which
the award or award amendment Is made.
The Cohlractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the pirbvislons of
The Federal Funding" AccounteWniy end Transparency Act, Public Law 109^282 and Public Law 110-252. ,
and 2 CFR Part .170 (Reporting Subavterd and Executive Compensation fnformatlon), and further eg'mes'
to have the Contractor's repiesenlaitive, as identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
.execute Ih.e following Certl.ficatlo^

named Contractor agrees to provide needed Information as outlined above to the NH
p^artment of Health and Human Services end.lo comply with.'aD applicable provisions of the Federal
Flnandal Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:'

Jkr^j^Td
'  Name:/Susan A. Reeves. EdO. RN

Title: Executive Vice President

EiMblrJ|.«C«ftncaUpn.R»gardtn[|inoFe^rstFunding " Coniiscto InWib
-  . Aeco«ftl«l^AAdtrinipaWftC)rAd(FFATAJC^p!Unc« « i-1cuo»«3»n»ia Pagai©/? Diia M {" j/O.
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2. In your business or prgahtzallon's preceding completed fiscal yeer. did your business or orgariizatjon
revive (1) 80 percent or more of your anrujal gross revenue In U!S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sut^rartts, arvl/or cooperaliye agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or rnore to annual
■gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcdhtracts, loans, grants. 8ut>gronts. ertd/or
cooperative ogrcements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above Is NO, stop here

.  IflheenswertodSeboveis YES. please answer the foflowlng:

3. Does the' pubDc have access to information about the compensation of the executives fn'your
business or orgentzatlbn through peHodlc.reporls filed ur^er se'ciioh 13(a) or 1 S(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.76m(8). 78o(d])or section 610^1 of (he Internal Revenue Code of
'19887.

NO' YES

4.

If the answer to 03 above Is YES, slop here

,lf the artswerlo fS above Is NO, please answer the following;

The names and pompensation.of the five most highly compensated oifftcers in.your business or
organization.ere as foltows: ■

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:.

Amount,

Amount,

Amourvt.

Amount

POWMA

As the Contraclor'Identifled in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to (he
below tisled questioru are true end accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity la: 0^^^10297

CUOtO/l 1071)

CiSitbl J T-Cotmcillon Roflordlno IMFotftcii Funding
AceouniabOIiy And Transparency Aci'(FFATA} Comptanca
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A. Dennltions

The following terms may be reficcicd and have (he described incanlng in this document:

1. - "Breach" mcons (he loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,-
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for.'an other than authorized'
.purpose have access or potential access to personally idenlinabic inrormation,
whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health information,
"Breach" shall have the sarnc'mcaning as the icrm:"Brcach" in section 164.402 of
Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. •'Computcr Sccurity Incident" shall have the samp meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) ofNIST Publication 800-61. Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Inforrnotion," "Confidential Data,":or "Data",(as defined in Exhibit K),
means alliconfi'dential inforfnBtibn'dlsclosed by one party to the other such as all ■
medical, health, financial, public assislanc'c bcnefi.ls and personal inforrnation
including without limitation, Substance Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records,
Protected Hcojth lnformation and Personally Idcntifiablc lriformation.

Confidential Information also includes any arid all information owned or managed by
the Slate of NH - created, received, from or on behalf of the Deporimcn'i of Health and
Human Services (pHHS) or accessed In the course pf performing contracted services
• of which.colle.ctioh, disclosure, protection, andrdispdsition is"governed by state or
federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not liniiicd to Protected
Health Inrprniatlon (PHI), Persona! Informotion (PI), Personal Financial Information
(PFI), Federal Tax l.nfofmnlidh (rfj), Spcial Security Nurnbcrs (SSN), Payment Card
Industry (PCI), and or.othcr schsiiivcrand confidchiial infornialiori.

,4.^ "Ehd.Uscr" means atiy person or entity (e.g., contractor's employee, business
associalc, subcontractor, othcr dpwnstrcam user^ etc.) that receives DHHS data or
derivative data in etxordance withjhe (crms'of.ihis Cphtfect.

.5, "HIPAA" rhcnhs thc.rtcalth Insurance Portability and Accountability Acit of 1996 and
the regulations.promulgated thereunder..

,6. "Incident'- mcans an act'ihat p'otchtialiy yidlales a security policy, which includes
successful attempts) to gain unauthorized .access io.n system or its data, unwanted
disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of a system forlhc.proccsslng.br

/^i; 2020 ^ Coo"»dw InSlloto ^ • I
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:^orage or.dateii'Bnd changes to system hardware, firmware, or software
characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or consent. Incidents
include the loss of data through ihefl or device misplscemem, loss or misplQccmeni of I
hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or elMtronic'documcnts or'mail. . |

I
7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is '•

not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of jnfprrnalion |
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and approved, !
.by means of the Stale, to iransrhit) will be considered.an open network and not
adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PHI, PHI or. i
con^dentiol DHHS data. '

'8. "Pcrsonaljnformaiiph" (or "PI") means infonmaiion which can be used to distinguish j
of (race an Indiylduars identity,'such as tlicir name, social security number, personal j
informalloh'osderined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:l9, bipmclric,records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or idehlifying information which is

<  linked or linkable to a specific individual, such as dote end place of biiih, mother's
maiden name,-etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable
Health Information at 45 t.F.R. Pans 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA'by the
United States Department of Health and Human Services.

.  10. "Pfoteclcd Health lrifofthnlioh''.(or''PHr') has'lhc sarhc meaningrOs'pfbvidcd in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HlPA A Privacy Rule el 45 C.F.R.

§ 160,103.

I'l. "Security Rule" shall mean (he Security Standards for ihe Protection of Electronic
Protected Healih Information at 45 C.f.R. Port 164, Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

I

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Informaiion" means Prdiecied Heolih Informaiion'thal is

'not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health information
unusable, unreadBbW, pr'indcciphcrable to unauthorized individuals and is developed
or'endprsed.by a standards developing organization that is eccrediled by .the American
.National Standards Institute.

J. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and.Disclosure of Cohndcniial Informoiibh.

I,. The Cohlfa'cior rhusthdl'use', disclps.e.'mainfain or transmit Confidential Inform'alipn

^rtl. »2P ExWl K Contrador inmala m:L
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except es required or permined under this Contract or required by law. Further,
ConlrBCtor, including but not limited to all its directors, ofTicers, employees and
agents, must not use, disclose,'mainiaih or transmit PHI in ony manner (hot would

2. The ConUoctor must not disclose any Conndcmla) Information inrcsponsctoa
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in res^nse to a subpoena,
etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to consent or
object to the disclosure..

3. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to on End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

H. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If Contractor is transmitting DHHS Data containing
Conndential Data between applications, (he Contractor attests the opplications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
appiication's cncrypiion capabilities ensure secure transmission via the intcrrKt.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. Contractor may not use computer disks or
portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, es a method of transmitting DHHS Data.

3. Encrypted Email. Cohtractor may only employ email to transmit Conndential Data if
email is encrvotcd and being sent to and being received by .email addresses of persons

• authorized to receive such informatioh.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If.Contractor is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be secure.

■SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.
5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. Contractor may nor use Hie

hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit Confidential
Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. Contractor may only transmit Confidential Data via cerlificd '■
ground mull within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. if Contractor is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices musl'be encrypted and password^proieclcd.

8. Open Wireless Networks. Contractor may not transmit Conridenlia! Data via on open
wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via en open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. irConlraclor is employing remote communication to

3020 Ediblt K .ConltacK* Wllab
, OHKS Information

constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule. I
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access or u^nsfnit Conndenual Oala, o secure me^od of trahsmissjon.or remote

access, which complies with the terms and conditions of Exhibit K, must be used.-

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also.known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If.
Gdnlfacfor is employing en SFTP-lo transmit Confidential Data, End User will .
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevertl ina^ropriate disclosure of
information, SFTP-foldcrs, and sub-folders used for iransmiiiing Cortfidcntial Data will
be coded for 24-houf auio-deletidn cycle (I.e. Confidcnliai Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless bcviccs. If Contractor Is iiansrnitting Conftdeniial Data via wireless devices,-all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

in. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF identifiable RECORDS

The Contractor vvlll only retain DHHS Data arid any derivative of the data for tlK.duralion of
this Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have thirty (30) days to destroy the data
and any derivative in whatever form It may exist, unless, othei^vise required by law.or. if it is
infeasibte to return or destroy DMHS Data, protections arc extended to such information, in
accordance with the^tetmination'provisions in this Section. To this end. the parlies must:

A. Retention

1. The .Cohtractbr agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Conlract outside,6f ihe.Unlied
States., This physical localion requircmeni shall also apply in the implcmeriiatio'n of
cloud cpmputirig; cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations:

2. 'Ihc Contractor agrees to ensure proper security moriitdring copabljities-are in' place,
to detect potential security events thai can Impact State dfNH systems and/pr
Department conftdeniial information for contractor provided systems acccsscd.'of
utilized for purposes of carrying out this contract.

-3. The Contractor agrees to provide security.awareness and education for its End Users
in support of prqlccliiig DHHS Confidential information.

4, the Contractor ogrccs'tq retain all electronic and,hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure localion and identified in section IV. A'2

5. The Contractor agrees Corifidchtial Data stored iri a Cloud rtitisl be in a
FcdRAMPyHITECH compliarit solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
rcgulalions regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices rnust have-
"cu'rrcntiy-supported ahd hafdcjii^ operating systems, current, updated, and

EitfibUK Cont/actodrtUsb.
OKHS Inlormallon
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' meintained anti-malwarc (e.g. anli-virai, onti-heckcr, onti-spam, anti-spywarc)
ulllilics. The environmenl, os.d whole, must have o^resslve intrusion-detection and
nrewall protection.

6. The Coniractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief InformQiion Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the
hosting infrastructure.

B. Disposition

If the Contractor maintains any Confidential Information on its systems (or its sub
contractor systems) and it has not done so previously, the Contractor will implement
policies and procedures to ensure thai any storage media on which such data maybe

. recorded will be rendered unreadable and (hat the data will be un-recoverabic when

the storage media is disposed of. Upon request, the Contractor will provide the
Department with copies of these policies and with written documentation
demonstfuting compliance with the policies. The written documentation will include
all details necessary to demonstrate data contained In the storage media has been
rendered unreadable and tin-recoverable. Where applicable, regulatory and
professional standards, for retention requirements may be jointly evaluated by the
State and Contractor prior to destruction.

1. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Conftdcntial Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of (he termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor ogrees to sofeguord (he DHHS Doto received under this Coniroct, end any
derivative doto or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will mainloin proper security controls to protect Department
conndential Information collected, processed, managed.-nnd/or stored in (he delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies end procedures to protect Department
conndential information throughout the information lifecycie, wher.e applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the media

f
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used (0 store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.)' '

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate euthentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidentiol information
where applicable.

4. . If the Contractor will bC sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will ensure End-
User will maintain en intemal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum,
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

5. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with ell applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies orKl
procedures,-systems access forms, and-compuicr use agreements as part of obtaining
and rficintoining access to any Department sysiem(s). Agreements will be completed
and signed byjhe Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to system access
being authorized.

6. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will c.xccuic a HI PA A Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with (he Department and Is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

7. The Contractor will not store any Stale ofNew Hampshire or Department data
ofTshort or outside the boundaries of the United States unless prior express wrillcn
consent is obtained from the Ihrormation Security Office leadership member within
the Department.

8. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any computer security incident,
incident, or breach Contractor shall make efforts to investigate the causes of the
breach, promptly lake measures to prevent future breach and minimize any damage or
loss resulting from the breach. The Slate shall recover from the Contractor all costs of
response end recovery from the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring
services, mailing costs and costs associated with website and telephone call center
services necessary due to the breach.

9. Contractor must, comply .with ell applicable statutes end regulations regarding (he
privacy and security of Conridentiol Information, end must in oil other respects
moiniain the privacy and security ofPI end PHI at o level and scope that is not less
than the level-end scope of, HI.PAA Privacy and Security Rules (45 C.F.R. Ports 160
and 164) and 42 C.F.R. Potl 2 that govern protections for individually identifiable

»
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health ihfoiTTialioh.and as applicable'under State law.

to. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards .to protect the conndcnliality of the Confidehtial Data and to
prevent uhouthorized use or access to it, The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less then the level ond scope of security requirements
established by the Stateof New Hampshire, Dcpahment oflnformation Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doil/vcndor/index.hlm
for the Dcpanmciit of Informaiipn Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement'infonnatipn rcloting to vendors. ^

11.. Contractor agrees to maintain a dpc.umented breach notincati.pn and incident response
process. ITic Contractor must notify ihc D.HHS Security Office and thc'Program
ConiQc't via the email addrcsscs pmvidcd in Section Vl of this'Exhibit, immediately
upon the Contractor determining that a breoch or security incident has occurred arKl
that DHHS confideniial Information/data may have been exposed or compromised.
This.includes a.conndcntial informatiori broach, computer security incident, or .
suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems (hat
connect to the Slate of New Hampshire network.

12. Contractor mustfc'sirict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only (hose authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data .to perfbrm
their ofRcial duticV.ih connection whh purposes idenlificd in this Contact.

13. The Contractor is responsible for End User oversight and complloncc with the
terms and cpndjtl.orts of the contract arid Exhibit K.

DHHS reserves the r'ighl to conduct orisilc inspcclioiis to rponilor compliance .withHhis
Controct, including the pnvacy and security rcquitxmcnis provided in herciri, HIPAA,
attd other applicable laws and Federal regulations until .such time.the Coriridential Data
is disposed of m accordance vyith this Cpnitract.

y, toss REPORTING

The Contractor murt Immediately notify the State's Privacy Ornccr. lrifo^miation ^
Security Office and Progrorn Manager of any Security Incidents and Breaches as
spccificd in Section IV, paragraph 11 above.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches.iiiyoiving PHI in
accordance wilh DHHS's documented Inciden'l.Handling and Breach Nolification
■prpccdures.ond.l,n accordance with- thc HIPAA, Pnvacy and Security Rules.1n addition
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to. and notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and
procedures, Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Octcrmirtc ifpcrsonaily identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or conrtrmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents'; and

5. Determine whether Breach notiftcatlon is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

.  Incidents end/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, a.s
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 3S9-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

Ai DHHS contact for Data Management or Data Exchange issues:

DHHSlnfofmBtionSecurityOfnce@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS contacts for Privacy issues;

DHHSPrivacyOfncer@dhhs.nh.gov

C. DHHS contact for Information Security issues:

DHHSInformalionSccurilyOmcc@dhhs.nh.gov

D. .DHHS contact for Breach notifications;

■ DHHSinrorma(ion$ccurityOmcc@dhhs.nh.gov

DHHSPrivacyOfticertSdhhs.nh.gov

E. DHHS Program Area Contact:
I

Chrisiine.Bean@dhhs.nh.gov
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